AGENDA

eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee



REMOTE MEETING NOTICE

This meeting will be accessible by remote video conferencing. Please be advised that
while the District will endeavor to ensure these remote participation methods are
available, the District does not guarantee that they will be technically feasible or work
all the time. Further, the District reserves the right to terminate these remote
participation methods (Subject to Brown Act Restrictions) at any time and for
whatever reason. The public may observe and participate in this meeting remotely via
Zoom as set forth below.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USING ZOOM
¢ Join the meeting using the link below.
¢ You must have audio and microphone capabilities on the device you are using
to join the meeting.
e When you join the meeting make sure that you join the meeting with audio and
follow the prompts to test your speaker & microphone prior to joining the
meeting.

TO SPEAK DURING PUBLIC COMMENT USING ZOOM

o The Board President will announce when it is time for Public Comment.
Click on the Raise Hand icon if you would like to speak during Public Comment.
Your name will be called on when it’s your turn to speak.
When your name is called, you will be prompted to unmute yourself.
You will have three (3) minutes to speak. When your time is up, you will be
muted.

TO SPEAK ON AN ITEM USING ZOOM
e The Board President will call the item and staff will begin the staff report.
Click on the Raise Hand icon if you would like to speak on the item.
Your name will be called on when it’s your turn to speak.
When your name is called, you will be prompted to unmute yourself.
You will have three (3) minutes to speak. When your time is up, you will be
muted.
e You will repeat this process for each item you want to speak on.

FOR OPEN SESSION PARTICIPATION
Join Meeting Electronically at:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84120458030?pwd=LF44qweSXfdQKqg2L 5D8SCI04amIGHI.1

Meeting ID: 841 2045 8030
Passcode: 354734

Please attend in person or by submitting your comment via email to:
RMangus@GoletaSanitary.Org

Agenda Packet Page 2


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84120458030?pwd=LF44qweSXfdQKg2L5D8SCI04amIGHI.1

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
A PUBLIC AGENCY

One William Moffett Place
Goleta, California 93117

August 4, 2025
CALL TO ORDER: 6:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS
BOARD MEMBERS: Steven T. Majoewsky
Dean Nevins

Jonathan Frye
Edward Fuller

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING

The Board will consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 21,
2025.

PUBLIC COMMENTS - Members of the public may address the Board on items within
the jurisdiction of the Board. Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited
from taking action on items not listed on the agenda. Please limit your remarks to three
(3) minutes and if you wish, state your name and address for the record.

POSTING OF AGENDA — The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the main
gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the District’'s web site 72 hours in advance of
the meeting.

BUSINESS:

1. DECISION TO FILL DIRECTOR SEAT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR VOTING DISTRICT #2 BY APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORIZE THE
POSTING OF A NOTICE OF VACANCY
(Board may take action on this item.)

2. CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 25-725
APPROVING SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE
(Board may take action on this item.)

3. UPDATE ON ENERGY STORAGE PROJECT

4. GENERAL MANAGER’'S REPORT

Agenda Packet Page 3



Regular Meeting Agenda
August 4, 2025
Page 2

5. LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT

6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTOR'S REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF
DIRECTOR'’S ACTIVITIES

7. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

9. CORRESPONDENCE
(The Board will consider correspondence received by and sent by the District since
the last Board Meeting.)

10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND
RATIFICATION OF CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT
(The Board will be asked to ratify claims.)

ADJOURNMENT

Persons with a disability who require any disability-related modification or accommodation, including
auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the meeting are asked to contact the District's Finance
Director at least 3 hours prior to the meeting by telephone at (805) 967-4519 or by email at
info@goletasanitary.org.

Any public records which are distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting to all, or a majority of all, of
the District’s Board members in connection with any agenda item (other than closed sessions) will be
available for public inspection at the time of such distribution at the District’s office located at One William
Moffett Place, Goleta, California 93117.

Agenda Packet Page 4


mailto:info@goletasanitary.org

MINUTES

Agenda Packet Page 5



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT

A PUBLIC AGENCY

DISTRICT OFFICE CONFERENCE ROOM
ONE WILLIAM MOFFETT PLACE

CALL TO ORDER:

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

GOLETA, CALIFORNIA 93117

July 21, 2025

President Smith called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Jerry Smith, Steven T. Majoewsky, Dean Nevins,
Jonathan Frye, Edward Fuller

None

Steve Wagner, General Manager/District Engineer, Vyto
Adomaitis, Assistant General Manager, Rob Mangus,
Finance Director/Board Secretary and Reese Wilson,
Engineering Manager, and Jeff Ferre, General Counsel
(via Zoom)

David Linville, Director, Goleta Water District

(via Zoom)

Tom Evans, Director, Goleta Water District

(via Zoom)

Bob Thomas, Director, Goleta West Sanitary District

Director Majoewsky made a motion, seconded by Director
Fuller, to approve the minutes of the Regular Board
meeting of 07/07/2025. The motion carried by the
following vote:

(25/07/2036)

AYES: 5 Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Frye, Fuller
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Director Nevins made a motion, seconded by Director
Frye, to approve the minutes of the Special Board meeting
of 07/09/2025. The motion carried by the following vote:

(25/07/2037)

AYES: 5 Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Frye, Fuller
NOES: None

Agenda Packet Page 6



Regular Meeting Minutes

July 21, 2025
Page 2
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None
POSTING OF AGENDA: The agenda notice for this meeting was posted at the
main gate of the Goleta Sanitary District and on the
District’s website 72 hours in advance of the meeting.
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None
BUSINESS:

1.

PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PLACING SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ON THE
COUNTY TAX ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-26. CONSIDERATION AND
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 25-724 OVERRULING OBJECTIONS AND
ADOPTING REPORT ON SEWER SERVICE CHARGES TO BE COLLECTED ON
THE TAX ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-26

Mr. Wagner gave the staff report.

President Smith opened the public hearing at 6:33 p.m.
No public, nor comment.
President Smith closed the public hearing at 6:34 p.m.

Director Frye made a motion, seconded by Director Nevins to approve and adopt
Resolution No. 25-724 overruling objections and adopting report on sewer service charges
to be collected on the tax roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26.

The motion carried by the following vote:

(25/07/2038)

AYES: 5 Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Frye, Fuller
NOES: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

REVIEW OF QUARTERLY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT
STATUS REPORT

Mr. Wagner and Mr. Wilson gave the staff report on this presentation item. No Board
action was taken.

CONSIDERATION OF FY26 ACTION PLAN STATUS REPORT
Mr. Wagner gave the staff report on this presentation item. No Board action was taken.

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2025\Minutes 2025\2025-07-21 Regular Minutes.docx Agenda Packet Page 7



Regular Meeting Minutes
July 21, 2025
Page 3

4. GENERAL MANAGER'’S REPORT
Mr. Wagner gave the report.

5. LEGAL COUNSEL’S REPORT
Mr. Ferre reported on recently passed CEQA reform bills that primarily focused on housing
and the changes do not help water or wastewater agencies too much.

6. COMMITTEE/DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF
DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES

Director Fuller — No report.
Director Frye — No report.

Director Nevins — Reported on his attendance at the Goleta West Sanitary District meeting
he attended.

Director Majoewsky — Reported that there was not a Goleta Water District meeting
scheduled for this month.

7. PRESIDENT'S REPORT
President Smith — No report.

8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS
No Board action was taken to return with an item.

9. CORRESPONDENCE
The Board reviewed and discussed the list of correspondence to and from the District in
the agenda.

10. APPROVAL OF BOARD COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES AND RATIFICATION OF
CLAIMS PAID BY THE DISTRICT

Director Majoewsky made a motion, seconded by Director Frye, to ratify and approve the
claims, for the period 07/08/2025 to 07/21/2025 as follows:

Running Expense Fund #4640 $ 1,028,927.16
Capital Reserve Fund #4650 $ 285,336.55

The motion carried by the following vote:

(25/07/2039)

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2025\Minutes 2025\2025-07-21 Regular Minutes.docx Agenda Packet Page 8



Regular Meeting Minutes

July 21, 2025
Page 4
AYES: 5 Smith, Majoewsky, Nevins, Frye, Fuller
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:28 p.m.

ATTEST
Steven T. Majoewsky Robert O. Mangus, Jr.
Governing Board President Pro Tem Governing Board Secretary

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2025\Minutes 2025\2025-07-21 Regular Minutes.docx Agenda Packet Page 9



AGENDA ITEM #1



AGENDA ITEM: 1

MEETING DATE: August 4, 2025

NATURE OF ITEM

Decision to Fill Director Seat on the Board of Directors for Voting District #2 by
Appointment and Authorize the Posting of a Notice of Vacancy

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Board members of the Goleta Sanitary District are elected from five separate voting
divisions (areas) and serve staggered four-year terms. A map of the District voting
division areas is attached to this report. If a sitting Board member resigns from his or her
position on the Board or a position becomes vacant for any other reason, the remaining
Board members may appoint a qualified candidate from the same voting district (area) to
fill the vacant position.

President Jerry D. Smith submitted a letter of resignation, received by the Board July 28,
2025, effective July 25, 2025. This Board member seat for voting division area #2 is up
for election in November 2026. Under Government Code Section 1780, the Board has
the option to fill the vacancy by appointment or by calling an election. As such, staff is
seeking Board direction on this issue.

Since President Smith resides in voting division area #2, the vacancy can only be filled by
someone 18 years or older who lives within the boundaries of voting division area #2. A
copy of the District’s approved voting division area map is attached to this report.

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Date of Vacancy

Under Government Code Section 1780, the “Date of Vacancy” is deemed to be either the
date on which the Board is notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy,
whichever is later. In regard to President Smith’s resignation, the Date of Vacancy is July
28, 2025.

District staff is required to notify the county elections official of the vacancy no later than
15 days after the Date of Vacancy, August 12, 2025. District staff is also required to
notify the county elections official of the appointment no later than 15 days after the
appointment.

Filling Vacancy by Appointment

The Board may make an appointment within 60 days after the Date of Vacancy.
Therefore, the Board has until September 26, 2025, to fill the Board seat by appointment.

A Notice Of Vacancy must be posted in three or more conspicuous places in the District’s
boundaries at least 15 days before the Board makes the appointment. In addition to
posting the Notice, agencies often take extra steps such as posting the Notice on their
websites, social media, etc. The format for the Notice is enclosed.

Agenda Packet Page 11



If the Board takes action today to elect to fill the position by appointment and authorize
the posting of the Notice of Vacancy, then the soonest the Board could fill the Board seat
would be 15 days after the posting of the notice. However, if the Board is interested in
sending out an informational flyer on the vacancy to eligible residents and conducting
interviews, as was done for the last two Board vacancies, more time will be needed prior
to making the appointment.

Calling An Election

In lieu of making an appointment, the Board may, within 60 days of the Date of Vacancy,
call an election to fill the vacancy. The Board may find that this option is not feasible due
to the cost and timeframe between the effective date of the resignation, available special
election dates, and the fact that the term is up for election in November of 2026. If the
Board does wish to call an election, staff and Legal Counsel will return at a subsequent
Board meeting with the required resolution and more detailed procedures.

Filling The Balance Of The Term

The term of President Smith is in the second half of the current term which runs to 2026.
Therefore, for the purposes of Government Code Section 1780, this Board vacancy is
deemed to have occurred in the second half of the term of office (2024-2026). As a
result, the person appointed to fill the vacancy (or elected in a special election) will hold
office until the next general election on November 3, 2026.

Involvement By The Board Of Supervisors

If the vacancy is not filled by Board appointment, or if the Board has not called for an
election within 60 days of the Date of Vacancy, then the Santa Barbara County Board of
Supervisors (Board of Supervisors) may appoint a person to fill the vacancy within 90
days of the Date of Vacancy, or the Board of Supervisors may order the District to call an
election to fill the vacancy.

If within 90 days of the Date of Vacancy neither the District Board nor the Board of
Supervisors have filled the vacancy and no election has been called, then the District
Board is required to call an election to fill the vacancy.

REFERENCE MATERIAL

Goleta Sanitary District Voting Division Area Map

Draft Notice of Vacancy

Agenda Packet Page 12



Division Two Parcels

ﬂ':"-! Goleta Sanitary District

@ Asessor Parcels within Division Two

\

idad

ereni
r

CumbEHARAIDY | =

! EOak,s Rd

Cathedral

A

iColfax ¢

Mﬂ:’.@ﬂi Dr:
M

2rtboroug py
Parkhurkg. Dr

EL)

3

i
eria

o S
< %

e\
[

171

L

I!II!PIHIIL TN ,

eyL

Via Del Re

‘Alondra Dr o
’é Armitos/Av, 'Po'
5, - Mandarin o & 2] I
Eﬁ@ g GatoAv EE =g’
b
& El = n
ehi8 g
& 2
5 o

[

20

T

&@'\“ ”dgeARd

Princeton-Av,
e
"Ida

m

e
. (3 ‘,' > -

Orchard Park.Ln

(==]

AN & .&z =
) p )
/(9\6 &

s
& 22
‘\&@o ‘C&Qj T
AN E

()
b,,,@" Riata Ln

??Q° g
4 ¢ o777
oginaRY 3 =
2 A
Vi <
LA Pennell Rd J Ge,,,’i’ < S
.\ O . . <
> g N2 e\ PA
mBouIder Ridge Rd #O % X 2
L — arvg N S 3 %
Via Orquidiy S & 2)
NG T T 17 (? %
NiaLos Santos | || l l )
ﬁ San Antonio Ct ol
Palom:
Q La
Vi 3
I[;o 41
3 Olingy,
.o Creek!
& An\°“‘° Rd
e > & rg2dreRd | [—£
g 7 S & 3
2 ] & 3
5 Q{* & o@ Y
$ ]
r«@'ﬁf AR S g
\la Rd parkwood Pl 2 rocha & - \
-Frane! . : ‘
Vista Bahia AP . : E
_ ( A e
= DG %o 2o : :
g O\YTAT (9. % o ; :
(i} S o o5 or ; :
= s 3 X 3
‘%, iverst = a““e’b( €sDr
; I
Qoe. O weenWy :
¥ Taba_ngy B3 A== = FRE £
QY rcumog@?\_,_, ‘orero °
tOﬂa\ EB 3 ® 5] ”, iy g
wa! Lg g % :
[ ) ) 7
g o
101 T & =S £ o
=
oL Vida
e State'St
Simeon'D co® o
n'Dr x -
= s
@ Fg 9;12(\)( %
: N
: g U A,
K] %] or &Y X
é & \-\0“\5 - = {
' r F i Feet
LE = Andrita St g Vista Buena Rd'g e
; <
. . St <
2 g’ F'ﬁ&fg Pé“'da/‘e" Eﬁ% /71 INueces Dr
Paxton-St L) = www.zworldgis.com July 2024

Agenda Packet Page 13



DRAFT
NOTICE OF VACANCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT

Please take notice that there is a vacancy in a Director seat on the Board of
Directors of the Goleta Sanitary District. Pursuant to Government Code Section
1780, the Board of Directors may, within 60 days of July 28, 2025, appoint a
successor for the vacant seat.

A person appointed to the office of the District 2 Board seat must be a resident of
District 2. The boundaries of District 2 are described in the map set forth below.
Please contact the District representative set forth below if there are any
questions.

Anyone interested in being appointed is required to submit a letter of interest
and/or a resume setting forth a brief summary of the person’s interest,
qualifications, and background. The letter of interest/resume must include the
residency address. Letters of interest and/or resumes should be delivered or
mailed to the District offices so that they are received at the District offices no later
than 5:00 p.m. on September 5, 2025. Letters of interest and/or resumes should
be delivered or emailed to the following address:

Goleta Sanitary District

1 William Moffett Place Goleta, CA 93117

Attn: Steve Wagner, General Manager/District Engineer
Phone 805-967-4519

swagner@goletasanitary.org

The District will contact the applicants regarding the time, date and location of the
open and public Board meeting(s) during which interviews will be conducted and
during which the Board will potentially make a decision regarding an appointment.
The Board may elect to schedule additional meetings if necessary.

Agenda Packet Page 14


mailto:swagner@goletasanitary.org

AGENDA ITEM #2



AGENDA ITEM: 2
MEETING DATE: August 4, 2025
l. NATURE OF ITEM

Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 25-725 Approving Sewer System
Management Plan Update

Il BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The District owns and maintains a sewer collection system that is comprised of
approximately 135 miles of underground pipes located throughout the District’s service
territory in accordance with an approved Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP).
These efforts are subject to the requirements of the new Waste Discharge Order No.
2022-0103-DWQ (Order), issued by the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB), which went into effect on June 5, 2023. The new Order requires an enrollee
to: comply with federal and state prohibitions of discharge of sewage to waters of the
State, including federal waters of the United States; comply with specifications, and
notification, monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping requirements in the 2022 General
Order that implement the Federal Clean Water Act, the California Water Code, water
quality control plans (including Regional Water Board Basin Plans) and policies;
proactively operate and maintain resilient sanitary sewer systems to prevent spills;
eliminate discharges of sewage to waters of the State through effective implementation
of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP); monitor, track, and analyze spills for
ongoing system-specific performance improvements; and report noncompliance with
this General Order per reporting requirements.

In advance of the upcoming SSMP Update due date, the District contracted Fischer
Compliance, LLC to comprehensively audit and update the District's SSMP to continue
to comply with the Order’s required elements and update the District’'s improved
management, operation, and maintenance procedures.

Fischer Compliance, LLC and District staff have prepared an SSMP Update to comply
with the requirements of the Order, a copy of which is included as a reference to this
report. The SSMP Update requires formal approval and adoption by the Board via
resolution.

One of the requirements of the Order requires Districts serving populations between
10,000 and 100,000 to submit a SSMP Update to the SWRCB by August 2, 2025.
Subsequent Plan Updates are required every six years to incorporate operational and
management changes along with periodic internal audit findings are required every six
years thereafter.

Due to a delay in the completion of the SSMP Update, the Collection System Manager
uploaded a draft SSMP Update to the SWRCB’s online California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS) Sanitary Sewer System Database prior to the deadline of
August 2, 2025. The draft SSMP Update uploaded to CIWQS includes a letter
notifying the SWRCB of the District’'s schedule for Governing Board adoption and
approval on August 4, 2025. Following approval by the Board, the Collection System
Manager will upload and certify the Board-approved SSMP Update in CIWQS.

Agenda Packet Page 16



COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Governing Board adopt Resolution No. 25-725
approving the Sewer System Management Plan Update incorporating any
revisions the Board may wish to make.

REFERENCE MATERIAL

Resolution No. 25-725

Sewer System Management Plan dated August 4, 2025

SWRCB Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ

Agenda Packet Page 17



RESOLUTION NO. 25-725

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVING
SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

WHEREAS, on December 6, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board
(“SWRCB”) adopted General Order Number 2022-0103-DWQ (“2022 General Order”),
effective June 5, 2023, reissuing the State’s wastewater discharge requirements for sanitary
sewer systems. The 2022 General Order requires an enrollee to (i) comply with federal
and state prohibitions of discharge of sewage to waters of the State, including federal
waters of the United States; (ii) comply with specifications, and notification, monitoring,
reporting and recordkeeping requirements in the 2022 General Order that implement the
federal Clean Water Act, the California Water Code, water quality control plans (including
Regional Water Board Basin Plans) and policies; (iii) proactively operate and maintain
resilient sanitary sewer systems to prevent spills; eliminate discharges of sewage to waters
of the State through effective implementation of a Sewer System Management Plan
(SSMP); (iv) monitor, track, and analyze spills for ongoing system-specific performance
improvements; and (v) report noncompliance with this General Order per reporting
requirements.

WHEREAS, the 2022 General Order supersedes the SWRCB’s prior General
Order Number 2006-0003-DWQ that set forth Statewide General Waste Discharge
Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems and a Monitoring and Reporting Program.

WHEREAS, as required by Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ adopted on May 2, 2006,
the District adopted in November 2006 a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) which
was updated in January of 2010, in August of 2011, in September of 2013, and again in
January of 2021.

WHEREAS, the 2022 General Order requires existing enrollees serving
populations between 10,000 and 100,000 to submit a SSMP Update by August 2, 2025;
with subsequent Plan Updates that incorporate operational and management changes, and
the periodic internal audit findings, at the frequency of six years thereafter.

WHEREAS, the District performed an internal audit of the SSMP and updated its
SSMP to incorporate findings and recommendations from the audit. The SSMP Update
included updates to the District’s key performance indicators for the required SSMP
elements based on the findings of said audit.

WHEREAS, the 2022 General Order requires updated SSMPs to be approved
by the District’s Governing Board prior to certification by the District’s Legally
Responsible Official (LRO) and upload to the SWRCB’s online California Integrated
Water Quality System (CIWQS) Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Agenda Packet Page 18



WHEREAS, due to the timing of the completion of the SSMP, the LRO
uploaded a draft SSMP Update in CIWQS prior to August 2, 2025, pending approval
by the Governing Board prior to certification by the LRO. The draft SSMP Update
submittal included a letter to the SWRCB notifying them of the Governing Board
timeline for SSMP Update approval by resolution.

WHEREAS, the District’s Governing Board desires to adopt a revised SSMP
to comply with the requirements of Order No. 2022-0103-DWQ.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board of the
Goleta Sanitary District as follows:

1. Adoption of Revised SSMP. The Goleta Sanitary District Sewer System
Management Plan dated August 2025, as presented to the Governing Board (the “2025
SSMP”), is hereby approved and adopted.

2. Prior SSMP. The 2025 SSMP shall supersede and replace the SSMP
adopted by the District in January of 2021.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of August 2025, by the following vote of
the Governing Board of the Goleta Sanitary District:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Steven T. Majoewsky
President Pro Tem of the Board of Directors

COUNTERSIGNED:

Robert O. Mangus, Jr.,
Secretary of the Governing Board

Agenda Packet Page 19



Sewer System Management Plan

2025 Update
Waste Discharge ID (WDID): # 35S010270

MISSION

We protect public health and the environment through cost-effective
wastewater collection, treatment, and resource recovery to meet present and
future community needs.

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

Steve Wagner
Legally Responsible Official
Goleta Sanitary Water Resource Recovery District
Sanitary Sewer Collection System
(includes Element Development Plans & Schedules)

Date Signed

Agenda Packet Page 20



Revision  SSMP Approval
Date Section Date

Description of Change/Revision Made Initials

COPY THIS PAGE AS NEEDED

Agenda Packet Page 21



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCGTION.....ctttiitieeeitee ettt e ettt e ettt e steeeteeestteesteeessseeaasaeassseeasseeassseeansasansseassseeansasesssesansesanssaeansesesnssesnsesansenssnseennns 1
SN\ L O = ] a1 1 o] o IO TTPPPPPPPPRPPRE 2
ADDreVIationNs AN ACTONYIMS.....cuiiiei ittt eeitee st e ettt e e s sbee e e ssbeeeesasbeeesesbeeeessbeeesessbeeesessseeesensseeessssseeessssenessnsseens 3

1. GOAL AND INTRODUCTION .....ceiiiiieiteeeitteesteeetteesteesstesessseesseeaseeeassasasssesssesasasesssesassesanssesssesessseessesansesesnseenns 4
O B 20T 0| =) o oV T 1 =) A SRR 4
1.2, SSIMP UPAAe SCHEAUIE ...eeeeiieee ettt e et e e e et e e e e bt e e e e eabtee s s esteeeeestaeeeeasteeesansteeeeasenaesannes 5
S Y VYT A Y =T 0 XY @ A =T YT Y N 7
Specifications 5.2 — SSMP Development and Implementation ...t e 10
Specifications 5.7 — AllOCAtion Of RESOUICTES ......uuiiiiiiiiii ittt et e e ssbte e e st e e e e s e e s ssabeeessasbe e e e ssnreeeesnnseeas 11
Provisions 6.1 — ENfOrCEMENT PrOVISIONS. .....c.uiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiite ettt et e e e e site e s baessa e e sdaesbeeessbeessaeesasaaenseeessensnns 12
Provisions 6.3 — Sewer System Management Plan Availability .........ciocoiiee e e 13

D @ 121 Y V] 727 [ T\ P RS 14
P B 01 ¢- - [ [V Yu e Yo T | I O ¥ o PRSP 17
2.2. Organizational Staffing ReSpONSIDIlITIES.......ciiiiiiiie e e ree e e e e e s e e e e e sareeas 18
2.3. Chain of Communication for RePorting SPillS........cccuuiiieiiriii ettt e et e e e e e e e e are e e e e nreeas 19

3. LEGAL AUTHORITY Lo ttteetee ettt esteeeteeesieeseteeessteessaeesuseessbneesssesansaeesssessnseasasbasenssassssessnsesenseessnsesssssesssessneessnsesanns 21

4. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM ....ciiiittitiiitiee s ieittee e esiteeseeitteeessbteesssbeeesssaseeesessseeessnnseeessnsseesessnsens 24
4.1. Updated Map Of SEWET SYSTEM ......eii i iciiee e eittee e eette e e e et e e e e etteeesetbtaeeeeastaeesessaeasaassseesastseessastaseesassanaesnes 24
4.2. Preventive Operation and Maintenance ACHVITIES . ciu uuiii it e s esare e e e saraeeeeanes 26
O T I - 11 11 ¥ - OO P PO PPPTPPPPPTRRUPIRE 28
o o [0 o] a 0 =T 0 101V =T a1 o YN 30
Specifications 5.19 — Operations and MaintENANCE .......ccccuiiei ittt e e e e sbre e e s sbee e e esareeas 32

5. DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS ....ouiiiiiienieiiiieeiiee et sreesieeesite e sttt esiteesabeessvteesabeessseessseesseeesseesnns 34
5.1. Updated Design Criteria/Construction Standards/Specifications ........c.cccveveereeiieciieeiie e e 34
5.2, Procedures and STaN@ards........ciiuieeiei ettt ettt et e s e et e e st e s bte e s baeebbeesabeesbaeesabeenn 35

6. SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN.......ciiittiiieeeitteesieeeiteeesteessueesssseestesesseasssesessseesssasesseessssessssssssssesssssessnsessnns 36

7. SEWER PIPE BLOCKAGE PROGRAIM .......cciiitiiiiiieeitieesieeesteeesteeesteeessteessteseseasssesessseesnsaseseessnsesssssessssessnssessnseenes 38

8. SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS.....cccttiiiieiiieeteeeiee e siee e siee s 41
8.1. System Evaluation and Condition ASSESSIMENT .......ccccuiiiiiiiiieeiiiee et e e esee e e srre e e e sbee e s e sbree e s sabeeeeenareeas 41
8.2. Capacity Assessment and DESIZN CritEria .....iiiicieiiiiiiee ittt ere e e sree e e e st ee e e e sabee e e s sabeeeeenareeas 44
S IC TN Mg ToTgnvZ: [ oo o) il 0fe] Yot u V-l Yot o] o[NP 46
R S 0 o) =Y 1 0T o o) VZ=T o a V= ol od =1 o TSP 47

9. MONITORING, MEASUREMENT, AND PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS ...cccutiiieeiiieenieenieeenireesieeesireesieesvsessveesnns 49

10. INTERNAL AUDITS. ..ttt ette ettt ettt site sttt ste e stt e ettt e sabaessateesateesabaeesabaesabaeeabeesabaeesabeesabeesnsaeesabaesnsseennsaessseesaseens 51

11. COMMUNICATION PROGRAM ... .uttiiiieetteesieestteestteesteeessteessteesseeessseessseesseeeassasassseesntesaseesasesessseesnsesassseesnsenn 53

LIST OF APPENDICIES ... .oeeiteeeteeeetee ettt e stteeetteeseteesteeessteessseeaasseessseeaaseeeasseessseeassseeansaeeasseesnsesenseessnsesensesesnsessnseeessenn 55

Pagei

Agenda Packet Page 22



TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 — Collection System Operational Report — SWRCB CIWQS, 7-1-2020 t0 7/1/2025.......ccoveveeeieecreecreereereenes 1
Figure 2 — Sewer System Management Plan, Subsequent Update and Audit Due Date ........ccccevevieeiviiieeevciiee e, 5
Figure 3 — District Vicinity Map @nd SEIVICE Al .......ccoccuieeiiiiiiieeceiiee e eecitee e eeette e e e ette e e e staee e e sbeee s esasaeesesabaeeesnnseeesennsenas 8
FIgure 4 — Organization CRart ........ccuiii oottt e e et e e e e e bte e e e st e e e e ebaeeeesasteeeesastaeessseseesaseaeessnseneesanes 17
Figure 5 — Organizational Staffing ReSPONSIDIlITIES ....cccivviiiiiiiiie e e e s saee e e s 18
Figure 6 — Chain of Communication for Reporting SPills ........cuueiiieciiie it et eere e e e e aree e eanes 19
LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 — Abbreviations @Nd ACIONYIMS . .....ciiiiiieieiciee e eetee e setee e esreee e e se et e e e sateeeeesnsteesaasbaeasessseeessssseneesssseessessseeessnsseees 3
Table 2 — District Sewer Connection Flow Classifications and Connections Data...........ccccceeiivieeivriieeeccciee e, 8
Table 3 — Implementation RESPONSIDIIITIES ...c..vviiiieiiiee et e et ee e e et e e e e etesaesebaeeeeebtaeeessraeeeennes 15
Table 4 — Responsible Position Contact INfOrMation ........oocciiiiiieiie et e e e e e e ertare e e e e e e e e enannnns 16

Page ii

Agenda Packet Page 23



OVERVIEW

Introduction

This Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) or “Plan” has been prepared for the Goleta Sanitary Water Resource
Recovery District (District) with technical assistance from Fischer Compliance LLC for meeting and exceeding
compliance with the State Water Resources Control Board’s 2022 General Waste Discharge Requirements, Order
WQ 2022-0103-DWQ for Sanitary Sewer Systems (referred to throughout this document as the WDR). The District
provided all details, information and institutional insights for preparation of the SSMP. The document has been
developed to meet the size, scale, and complexity, serving as a “living document” used as a tool for managing and
operating the District's sanitary sewer collection system. Additionally, the latest 2024 Sewer System Management
Plan Guidance Manual published by the Bay Area Clean Water Agency (BACWA) was utilized as a model for
development of the document to harmonize formatting/content and incorporate recommended suggested
guidance wherever possible.

The District’s commitment to meeting or exceeding regulatory requirements, along with their proactive approach
to operation and management of the collection system, has served them well, as evidenced by system performance
relative to other agencies in the region and the state.

This SSMP reflects the ongoing day-to-day activities of the District for the management, operation, maintenance,
and funding of the District’s sanitary collection system. As such, this SSMP is a living document subject to constant
review and revision as conditions and needs of the collection system change. This SSMP relies on numerous
supporting documents, which are also subject to change, and which form the basis for how the District performs
operation and maintenance of the collection system. The most current version of the SSMP, although it may be
subject to update at any time, will be found at the District’s Administrative Office.

Collection System Spill Summary

Operational Indices: Goleta Sanitary District C5

Spill Rate Indice (spills/100mi/yr)
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3

Main System Laterals Other Main System Other Main System Cther
Goleta Sanitary
Districl CS 0.0 MIA 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.44 0.0
State
Municipal{Pubilic ) 164 M/A 0499 099 132 227 0.43
Average
Beqi
Municipal 094 MIA 029 1985 0.68 2.24 048
Average

MNet Volume Spills Indice (gallons/1000 Capita/yr)
Category 1 Category 2 Calegory 3

IMain System Laterals Other Main System Other Main System Other
Goleta Sanifary
District CS 0.0 MIA 0.0 0.0 0.0 239 0.0
State
Municipal{Public | 3365.27 MIA 2019.17 152.96 1106.7 46.12 15.31
Average
Beqi
Municipal 754.74 MfA 22949 436.75 10,15 41.2 1.79
Average

Figure 1 — Collection System Operational Report — SWRCB CIWQS, 7-1-2020 to 7/1/2025.

Page 1 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 24



OVERVIEW

SSMP Organization

This SSMP is organized into 11 core elements following Attachment D of the WDR, with inclusion of applicable
Specifications requirements.

Each individual element in the SSMP includes the following technical contents.

1.

vobhow

Requirements — Provides the actual description of applicable requirements in the WDR.

Compliance — Describes the District’s approach to complying with the WDR requirements.
Effectiveness — As measured by Key Performance Indicators (KPls.)

Implementation — Demonstrates how the District will ensure the SSMP will be carried out as described.

Resilience — Demonstrates the resilience that is addressed in the SSMP and built-in to the District’s collection
system and procedures.

Appendix Inclusions — List the items included in the Appendix for each SSMP Element, if any.

Page 2 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 25



Abbreviations and Acronyms?

BMP
CcCTv
CIP
CIWQS
CMMS
EPA
FOG
FSE
GCD
GIS

I &I
LRO
NPDES
RWQCB
SCADA
SERP
SOP
SSMP
Spill
WDR

SWRCB

WDID

Best Management Practices
Closed Circuit Television

Capital Improvement Program

California Integrated Water Quality System (State Water Board Online Spill Database)

Computerized Maintenance Management System
US Environmental Protection Agency

Fats, Oils and Grease

Food Service Establishment

Grease Control Device

Geographic Information System

Inflow and Infiltration

Legally Responsible Official

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Regional Water Quality Control Board
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition

Spill Emergency Response Plan

Standard Operating Procedure

Sewer System Management Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill

OVERVIEW

Sanitary Sewer Systems General Wastewater Discharge Requirements Order issued by the State

Water Board (Order No. 2022-0103-DWAQ)

State Water Resources Control Board

Waste Discharge ID Number (CIWQS)

Table 1 — Abbreviations and Acronyms

1 For a list of related WDR terms, see the WDR, Attachment A (page 32)

Page 3 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 26


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

1. Goal and Introduction

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-1 (pg. D-2)

“The goal of the Sewer System Management Plan (Plan) is to provide a plan and schedule to: (1) properly
manage, operate, and maintain all parts of the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system(s), (2) reduce and
prevent spills, and (3) contain and mitigate spills that do occur.

The Plan must include a narrative Introduction section that discusses the following items:”
1.1. Regulatory Context

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-1.1 (pg. D-2)

“The Plan Introduction section must provide a general description of the local sewer system
management program and discuss Plan implementation and updates”.

COMPLIANCE

The District is committed to fully implementing the WDR? which includes addressing all requirements by
integrating a wide range of programs specifically designed for ensuring the integrity and efficiency of the
District’s sanitary sewer collection system. Moreover, the District is dedicated to maintaining its collection
system by implementing various work programs, with a focus on critical areas, to prevent spills, allowing for
a comprehensive approach to maintenance. Work programs include CCTV inspections, pipe cleaning,
manhole inspections, root control, source control and pipe repair, just to name a few. Work programs are
described in more detail in Section 4.2 “Specifications 5.19- Operation and Maintenance” of this SSMP.

By prioritizing proactive measures and taking a comprehensive approach, the District is well-equipped with
a proven track record of effectively operating its sanitary sewer collection system with the highest levels of
service, complying with the WDR, and reducing/eliminating sewage spills.

EFFECTIVENESS

N/A

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

N/A

2 State Water Resources Control Board, Statewide Waster Discharge requirements, General Order for Sanitary Sewer Systems

Page 4 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 27


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

1.2. SSMP Update Schedule

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-1.2 (pg. D-3)

“The Plan Introduction section must include a schedule for the Enrollee to update the Plan, including the
schedule for conducting internal audits. The schedule must include milestones for incorporation of
activities addressing prevention of sewer spills.”

COMPLIANCE

The District utilizes the State Water Board’s online Lookup Tool to ensure compliance with all required due
dates? for updating its SSMP* and completing its required SSMP Audits (see chart below).

Figure 2 — Sewer System Management Plan, Subsequent Update and Audit Due Date

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Are SSMP Audits and SSMP Updates being performed as scheduled?

e Has the SSMP been approved by the governing board on the required schedule (i.e., every six
years)?

e Are specific internally established sewer program milestones being monitored?

3 The District should update this table after each deadline has passed.
4 The District’s most recent SSMP audit was completed for the period August 2021 through August 2024.

Page 5 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 28


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/sso/lookup/

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
1.2.1 Prepare for next SSMP Audit Begin 8/2/2027 X
1.2.2 Complete and Upload next SSMP Audit By 2/2/2028 X
Incorporate Audit Findings, update Change Begin after
123 " a‘r’]d e iate S &5, up g completion of SSMP X
8 P Audit
1.2.4 Prepare for next SSMP Audit Begin 8/2/2030 X
1.2.5 Complete and Upload next SSMP Audit By 2/2/2031 X
e Begin after
12,6 'L':)°°;2‘;r3te d’;;‘::;\'ﬂnf'”gs’ update Change o tion of SSMP X
8 P Audit
1.2.7 Prepare for next SSMP Update Begin 2/2/2031 X
1.2.8 Board Approval deadline for SSMP Update* By 8/2/2031 X
Page 6 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 29



GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

1.3. Sewer System Asset Overview

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-1.3 (pg. D-3)

“The Plan Introduction section must provide a description of the Enrollee-owned assets and service area,
including but not limited to:

e location, including county(ies);

e Service area boundary;

e Population and community served;

e System size, including total length in miles, length of gravity mainlines, length of pressurized
(force) mains, and number of pump stations and siphons;

e Structures diverting stormwater to the sewer system;

e Data management systems;

e Sewer system ownership and operation responsibilities between Enrollee and private entities for
upper and lower sewer laterals;

e Estimated number or percentage of residential, commercial, and industrial service connections;
and

e Unique service boundary conditions and challenge(s).

e Additionally, the Plan Introduction section must provide reference to the Enrollee’s up-to-date
map of its sanitary sewer system, as required in section 4.1 (Updated Map of Sanitary Sewer
System) of this Attachment.”

COMPLIANCE

The District serves a population of approximately 80,000 and provides sanitary sewer service for the Goleta
Valley community in Santa Barbara County, California. The District’s service area is the eastern portion of
the Goleta Valley from the Santa Barbara City limits on the east, the Goleta West Sanitary District to the
west and the Pacific Ocean to the south. The District owns and operates the regional wastewater treatment
plant which receives and treats wastewater from the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport, UCSB, Goleta West
Sanitary District and facilities of the County of Santa Barbara as well as from the District service area. The
District owns and maintains approximately 135 miles of gravity sewer pipes, ranging in size from 6-inch to
36-inch diameter, two (2) lift stations. One lift station, originally built in 1957, is in a residential area and
receives flows from 14 residential units. The second lift station, completed in 2010 replaced a lift station
originally built in 1961, receives flows of approximately 0.14 MGD from an industrial basin and portions of
the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport. There is a total of 2,300 linear feet of pressurized force main pipe from
these two lift stations, 2,000’ of which was installed in 2010. In addition, the system includes one siphon
and 9 aerial creek crossings. The system does not include stormwater diversion structures. The sewer
laterals are owned and maintained by the individual property owner.

The District converted from the Lucity CMMS to Mobile MMS in July of 2025 to manage asset inventory and
work orders. ArcGIS (ESRI) is used for mapping and WinCan Enterprise is the CCTV software.

The District does not own any portion of the service laterals.

Estimated customer connection flow classifications and connection data are presented in table 2, below, for
residential, commercial industrial, and institutional data.

Page 7 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 30


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

Connections by Percent (%)

Use Type
Residential 94
Commercial 4

Industrial 2

Table 2 — District Sewer Connection Flow Classifications and Connections Data

Overall, the District is in a good position to maintain its collection system and does not have operation and
maintenance challenges due to the service area conditions.
The District maintains up to date system maps. See Element 4.1 - Updated Map of Sanitary Sewer System

for more detail.

Figure 3 — District Vicinity Map and Service Area

Page 8 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 31



GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Are asset statistics periodically reviewed and updated as necessary?
e Are omissions or errors addressed in a timely manner?
e Are system maps up to date?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM  ENG

Review District-owned asset - .
. At the beginning of the audit cycle and
statistics and element

1.3.1 o when significant changes have been X
description; update as made

necessary

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 1 by:

o Adhering to an SOP for collecting and managing asset data.

e Redundancy: More than one member of staff is trained and able to retrieve and manage the data.
e Implementing a QA/QC process to help ensure information is accurate.

e Using Calendar Reminders to ensure compliance deadlines are met.

APPENDIX 1 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 9 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 32



GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

Specifications 5.2 — SSMP Development and Implementation

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Specification. 5.2 (pg. 18)

“To facilitate adequate local funding and management of its sanitary sewer system(s), the Enrollee shall
develop and implement an updated Sewer System Management Plan. The scale and complexity of the
Sewer System Management Plan, and specific elements of the Plan, must match the size, scale, and
complexity of the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system(s). The Sewer System Management Plan must
address, at minimum, the required Plan elements in Attachment D (Sewer System Management Plan —
Required Elements) of this General Order. To be effective, the Sewer System Management Plan must
include procedures for the management, operation, and maintenance of the sanitary sewer system(s).
The procedures must: (1) incorporate the prioritization of system repairs and maintenance to proactively
prevent spills, and (2) address the implementation of current standard industry practices through
available equipment, technologies, and strategies.”

COMPLIANCE

This SSMP has been completed updated to meet the requirements of Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ and
address all required Elements and Specifications required by the Order. The SSMP addresses management,
operations and maintenance procedures specific to the District’s collection system. The District maintains a
proactive O&M program to operate its system and identify defects, which are then prioritized for repair,
replacement, rehabilitation, or placed on modified maintenance schedules. (See Elements 4 and 8 and
Specifications 5.19 of this SSMP for more detail).

The District keeps up with current industry standards, technology and best practices by reviewing industry
periodicals, networking and attending industry conferences (CWEA and DKF Solutions Group) and
workshops. The District continuously evaluates emerging practices, equipment and technologies for
possible implementation to enhance operations.

Page 10 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 33


file:///C:/Users/cbracco/Desktop/SSMP%20Audits/Att.%20D-1%20(pg.%20D-2)

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

Specifications 5.7 — Allocation of Resources

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Specification. 5.7 (pg. 22)

“The Enrollee shall comply with the following requirements:

e Establish and maintain a means to manage all necessary revenues and expenditures related to
the sanitary sewer system; and
e Allocate the necessary resources to its sewer system management program for:
o Compliance with this General Order,
o Full implementation of its updated Sewer System Management Plan,
o System operation, maintenance, and repair, and
o Spill responses.”

COMPLIANCE

The District maintains various revenue sources to maintain financial stability, meet its operational needs and
manage all necessary expenditures to operate its sewer system. Significant sources of revenue include:

Sewer Service Charges

Allocated for:

e QOperations and Maintenance
e (Capital Reserve Fund

e Replacement Reserve Fund

e (Capacity Fees

Allocated for:

e Expansion of existing facilities
e Revenue from other Government Agencies

Allocated for:

e Expenses associated with the Santa Barbara Airport and Santa Barbara County for their share of
operations and maintenance of the Main Pump Station

For more information about District revenues, refer to most recent fiscal year budget.

The District has adequate staffing levels and the necessary equipment to properly manage the collection
system.

Page 11 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 34


https://fischercompliance-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jim_fischercompliance_com/Documents/2_Clients/04_Rosamond%20CSD/SSMP_final/Final%20Draft%201-29-24/Att.%20D-1%20(pg.%20D-2)

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

Provisions 6.1 — Enforcement Provisions

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Provisions 6.1 (pg. 27)

“The following enforcement provisions are based on existing federal and state regulations, laws and
policies, including the federal Clean Water Act, the state Water Code and the State Water Board
Enforcement Policy.”

COMPLIANCE

The District is aware of the consequences for noncompliance including associated penalties for violations.
The District maintains a proactive stance with full implementation of its SSMP.

Noncompliance with requirements of this General Order or discharging sewage without enrolling in this
General Order constitutes a violation of the Water Code and a potential violation of the Clean Water Act
and is grounds for an enforcement action by the State Water Board or the applicable Regional Water Board.
Failure to comply with the notification, monitoring, inspection, entry, reporting, and recordkeeping
requirements may subject the District to administrative civil liabilities of up to $10,000 a day per violation
pursuant to Water Code section 13385; up to $1,000 a day per violation pursuant to Water Code section
13268; or referral to the Attorney General for judicial civil enforcement. Discharging waste not in compliance
with the requirements of this General Order or the Clean Water Act may subject the District to
administrative civil liabilities up to $10,000 a day per violation and additional liability up to $10 per gallon
of discharge not cleaned up after the first 1,000 gallons of discharge; up to $5,000 a day per violation
pursuant to Water Code section 13350 or up to $20 per gallon of waste discharged; or referral to the
Attorney General for judicial civil enforcement.

Page 12 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 35


https://fischercompliance-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jim_fischercompliance_com/Documents/2_Clients/04_Rosamond%20CSD/SSMP_final/Final%20Draft%201-29-24/Att.%20D-1%20(pg.%20D-2)

GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

Provisions 6.3 — Sewer System Management Plan Availability

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Provisions 6.3 (pg. 31)

“The Enrollee’s updated Sewer System Management Plan must be maintained for public inspection at
the Enrollee’s offices and facilities and must be available to the public through CIWQS and/or on the
Enrollee’s website, in accordance with section 3.8 (Sewer System Management Plan Reporting
Requirements) of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements)
of this General Order.”

COMPLIANCE

The District has uploaded this SSMP to the CIWQS database and published it on its website. In addition, the
SSMP is available for public review at District offices, by appointment, during regular business hours.

Page 13 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 36


https://fischercompliance-my.sharepoint.com/personal/jim_fischercompliance_com/Documents/2_Clients/04_Rosamond%20CSD/SSMP_final/Final%20Draft%201-29-24/Att.%20D-1%20(pg.%20D-2)

ORGANIZATION

2. Organization

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-2 (pg. D-3)

“The Plan must identify organizational staffing responsible and integral for implementing the local
Sewer System Management Plan through an organization chart or similar narrative documentation that
includes:

e The name of the Legally Responsible Official as required in section 5.1 (Designation of a Legally
Responsible Official) of this General Order;

e The position titles, telephone numbers, and email addresses for management, administrative,
and maintenance positions responsible for implementing specific Sewer System Management
Plan Element;

e Organizational lines of authority; and

e Chain of communication for reporting spills from receipt of complaint or other information,
including the person responsible for reporting spills to the State and Regional Water Boards and
other agencies, as applicable. (For example, county health officer, county environmental health
agency, and State Office of emergency Services.)

COMPLIANCE

The above items are addressed below:
District’s Legally Responsible Officials (LRO) are listed below:

e Steve Wagner, General Manager
e Shamus Lauter-O’Donnell, Collection System Manager

Both meet the requirements set forth in Specifications 5.1 of the WDR.

Page 14 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 37


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

IMPLEMENTATION RESPONSIBILITIES

ORGANIZATION

Sewer System Management Plan Elements Responsible Position

1.

9.
10.

SSMP Plan, Goal and Introduction
1.1. Regulatory Context

1.2. SSMP Update Schedule

1.3. Sewer System Asset Overview
Organization

Legal Authority

Operations and Maintenance Program

4.1. Updated maps of Sanitary Sewer System
4.2. Preventive Operation & Maintenance
4.3. Training

4.4. Equipment Inventory

Design/Performance

5.1. Updated Design Criteria & Construction
Standards

5.2. Procedures and Standards

Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sewer Pipe Blockage Program

System Eval, Capacity Assurance, Capital Imp.
8.1. System Evaluation and Condition Assessment
8.2. Capacity Assessment and Design Criteria
8.3. Prioritization of Corrective Action
8.4. Capital Improvement Plan

Monitoring, Measurement & Program Modifications

Internal Audits

11. Communication Program

General Manager/District Engineer
General Manager/District Engineer
General Manager/District Engineer
General Manager/District Engineer
General Manager/District Engineer
General Manager/District Engineer
Collection System Manager

Collection System Manager

Collection System Manager and Facilities
Maintenance Manager

Collection System Manager

Collection System Manager and Facilities
Maintenance Manager

Engineering Manager
Engineering Manager

Engineering Manager
Collection System Manager
Industrial Waste Control Officer
Engineering Manager
Engineering Manager
Engineering Manager
Engineering Manager
Engineering Manager
Collection System Manager
Collection System Manager

Collection System Manager

Table 3 — Implementation Responsibilities

Page 15 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 38



RESPONSIBLE POSITION CONTACT INFORMATION

ORGANIZATION

Name

Steve Wagner

Title

General Manager / DE

Phone

805-967-4519

Email

swagner@goletasanitary.org

Shamus Lauter-O’Donnell

Collection System Magr.

805-967-4519

sodonnell@goletasanitary.org

Reese Wilson

Engineering Manager

805-967-4519

rwilson@goletasanitary.org

Teresa Kistner

Ind. Waste Control Officer

805-967-4519

tkistner@goletasanitary.org

Chuck Smolnikar

Facilities Maintenance.
Manager

805-967-4519

csmolnikar@goletasanitary.org

Table 4 — Responsible Position Contact Information

Page 16 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 39


mailto:swagner@goletasanitary.org
mailto:sodonnell@goletasanitary.org
mailto:rwilson@goletasanitary.org
mailto:tkistner@goletasanitary.org
mailto:csmolnikar@goletasanitary.org

ORGANIZATION

2.1. Organizational Chart

Figure 4 — Organization Chart

Page 17 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 40



ORGANIZATION

Organizational Staffing Responsibilities

Shamus Lauter-O’Donnell {LRO)

Collection System Manager
The Caollection System Manager is responsible for the management of the collection system division and is responsible
for 55MP implementation and maintenance and reporting and certification of spill reports in accordance with District
procedures. Is responsible for the following S5MP elements: Operation and Maintenance Program; Spill Emergency
Response Plan; and Monitoring, Measurement and Program Modifications.

Braden Stribling (Data Submitter)

Collection System Supervisor
The Collection System Supervisor performs day-to-day supervision of the collection system staff and assists in the
implementation and daily activities of the 55MP. Submits spill reports in the absence of the Collection System Manager.

Edgar Guerrero (Data Submitter)

Collection System Maintenance Tech. Il (CSMT 1)

The CSMT Il assists in the day-to-day operations of the department and submits spill reports in the absence of the
Collection System Supervisor.

Reese Wilson (Data Submitter)
Engineering Manager
The Engineering Manager is responsible for the Design and Performance Provisions and also the System Evaluation,

Capacity Aszurance and Capital Improvements elements of the 55MP. The Emgineering Manager submits spill reports in
the absence of the CSMT I

Teresa Kistner

Industrial Waste Control Officer
The Industrial Waste Control Officer is responsible for the Sewer Pipe Blockage Control Program.

Steve Wagner (LRO), P.E.

General Manager/District Engineer
The General Manager,/District Engineer is responsible for the overall operation and performance of the District and 55MP
development and implementation. s responsible forthe District’s overall implementation of the service policies adopted
by the Governing Board.

Figure 5 — Organizational Staffing Responsibilities

Page 18 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 41



2.3.

ORGANIZATION

Chain of Communication for Reporting Spills

-

District Receives Call for Service \

Service Calls during business hours are received by District administrative staff and
are forwarded to either the Collection System Manager or Collection System
Supervisor who respond or delegate as needed.

Service Calls after hours are received by an automated answering system (ECHO) and
routed to on-call staff who respond.

Alarms from pump stations or SmartCover devices are directed to the Standby phone,
which is always monitored by response staff.

See the District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan for more detail.

/

District’s Response to Spill Event \

District response staff respond to all calls, assesses the spill event, and take
appropriate actions to mitigate the spill. All spill events are mitigated in
accordance with the District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP) and are
documented in adherence to the WDR Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and
Recordkeeping requirements.

o

District Reports Spill Event \

The responding field staff document spill evets on the District’s form(s) and submit it
to supervisory personnel who review and verify data and submit the draft to the
CIWQS database. All reports are certified by the LRO, adhering to required timelines.

Figure 6 — Chain of Communication for Reporting Spills

/

/

Page 19 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 42



ORGANIZATION

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Have there been any changes requiring updates to the Organizational Chart?

e Have there been instances when a service call for a spill was not properly routed to response
personnel?

o Were all spill response activities documented and forwarded to the LRO?

e Have there been any changes in assigned responsibilities for implementing the SSMP?

e |sthere a process in place to ensure all contact information remains up to date?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG

21 Review rla.rlnfes, contact information and position Semi-Annually X
responsibilities. Update as necessary.
Revi hain of icati Il spill

29 eview Chain of Communication outcomes for all spi Each Spill Event X
responses

23 Review Organizational Chart for any changes. Update Semi-Annually X X
as necessary.

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 2 by:

e Ensuring that more than one person is capable and responsible for specific duties for SSMP
implementation, e.g., back-up personnel.

e Designation of more than one LRO to help ensure full and continuous coverage of duties.

e Testing the phone notification system to ensure calls are received and routed to appropriate
personnel.

APPENDIX 2 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 20 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 43



3.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Legal Authority

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-3 (pg. D-4)

“The Plan must include copies or an electronic link to the Enrollee’s current sewer system use ordinances,
service agreements and/or other legally binding procedures to demonstrate the Enrollee possesses the
necessary legal authority to:

e Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system from inflow and infiltration (I&1);
unauthorized stormwater; chemical dumping; unauthorized debris; roots; fats, oils, and grease;
and trash, including rags and other debris that may cause blockages;

e (Collaborate with storm sewer agencies to coordinate emergency spill responses, ensure access
to storm sewer systems during spill events, and prevent unintentional cross connections of
sanitary sewer infrastructure to storm sewer infrastructure;

e Require that sewer system components and connections be properly designed and constructed;

e Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, and/or repairs for portions of the service lateral
owned and/or operated by the Enrollee;

e Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances, service agreements, or other legally binding
procedures; and

e Obtain easement accessibility agreements for locations requiring sewer system operations and
maintenance, as applicable.

COMPLIANCE

District Summary and Evaluation of Legal Authority

e District Ordinance No. 92 is the legal authority regulating the use of the District’s Publicly Owned
Treatment Works (POTW). Ordinance 92 sets forth uniform requirements for users of the POTW
and enables the District to comply with all applicable State and Federal laws, including the Clean
Water Act (33 United States Code section 1251 et seq.) and the General Pretreatment Regulations
(Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 403). The objectives of Ordinance 92 are to prevent
the introduction of pollutants that will interfere with the operation of the POTW or pass through
the POTW inadequately treated or otherwise be incompatible with the POTW, to protect both the
POTWs personnel and the general public; to promote reuse and recycling of industrial wastewater
and biosolids from the POTW and to enable the District to comply with its National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit conditions, sludge use/disposal requirements and
any other Federal or State laws to which the POTW is subject. District Ordinance 92 applies to all
users of the POTW and provides for monitoring, compliance and enforcement activities as well as
establishes administrative review procedures.

Authority to Prevent lllicit Discharges into District’s Wastewater Collection System.

e The District has full authority and the responsibility to prevent the discharge of illicit discharges to
the sanitary sewer system. District Ordinance No. 92, an Order of the Governing Board of the
Goleta Sanitary District Adopting an Ordinance and Regulating the Use of the Goleta Sanitary
District Sewerage System, adopted by the District’s Governing Board on December 7, 2020, is the
current District sewer use ordinance. Section 4.1 Prohibited Discharge Standards list those
substances that shall not be discharged to the sewer or Publicly Owner Treatment Works (POTW).

Page 21 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 44


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Section 4.2 and 4.3 state that users shall comply with National Categorical Pretreatment Standards
and State Pretreatment Standards. Section 4.4 establishes local limits for discharges into the
District’s sewer system and treatment works.

The District's pre-planned collaboration and coordination with storm drain agencies.

e Historically, the District has accessed the City of Goleta, the County of Santa Barbara and Cal-Trans
storm drain systems during spill events where sewage has entered the storm drain. The procedure
has been to block the storm drain, retrieve the sewage, clean the storm drain and contact the
owner to inform of the event. The District endeavors to formalize this procedure with storm drain
owners and obtain system maps to improve compliance with this requirement.

Require that sewer system components and connections be properly desighed and constructed.

e District Ordinance No. 92, Section 3 addresses Building Sewers and Connections. Section 3.7 states
the Specifications of building sewers and requires that all sewers shall be constructed in accordance
with the Goleta Sanitary District Specifications for Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers
(2008). Section 3.8 states that all plumbing fixtures shall conform to the provisions and codes of
the City of Goleta, County of Santa Barbara and State of California. Goleta Sanitary District
Standards and Specifications for Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers (2008) address proper
construction and connection in the following sections: Section 4 Sewer Permit Application, Section
5 Sewer Feasibility Studies, Section 6 Improvement Plans, Section 7 Design Criteria, Section 8 Legal
Relations and Responsibilities, Section 9 Construction Materials, Section 10 Open Trench
Construction Methods, Section 11 Inspection and Testing.

Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, and/or repairs for portions of the service lateral owned and/or
operated by the Enrollee.

o The District does not maintain or own any portion of the sewer laterals. District Ordinance No. 92
specifies in Section 3.3 that “The property owner is responsible for maintaining the building sewer
from the building up to and including the WYE connection.” The District Standards and Specification
for the Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers Section 4.10 states that “The side sewer is
private from the connection to the public sewer, including the wye, to its connection with the
building. The Owner is responsible for maintaining the side sewer. The District is not responsible
for damage caused by breaks or leaks in the side sewer.”

Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances, service agreements, or other legally binding procedures.

e District Ordinance No. 92, Section 12 — Administrative Enforcement Actions list the actions that the
District may take to enforce compliance with this ordinance. These actions include but are not
limited to Consent Orders, Compliance Orders, Cease and Desist Orders and Termination of Service.
Section 13 —Judicial Enforcement Remedies provide the District the ability to seek civil and criminal
penalties for those actions that would require civil penalties and criminal prosecution.

Obtain _easement accessibility agreements for locations requiring sewer system operations and
maintenance, as applicable.

e The Goleta Sanitary District Standard Specifications, Section 7.11.1, Sewers in Streets, states
“whenever possible, sewers shall be located in public right of ways, alleys or other paved accessible
areas.” Section 7.12, Easements states “Sewers that are located outside of public right of ways shall
be located in areas that are accessible by maintenance vehicles. An all-weather access road at least
12 feet wide and within 15 feet of vertical clearance shall be provided to all manholes.” “Deeds for

Page 22 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 45


https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92

LEGAL AUTHORITY

easements shall provide for restrictions of permanent constriction within the easement to allow
ingress and egress for maintenance.”

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Are the District ordinances and standards adequate for fulfilling the SSMP Plan legal requirements?
e Does the District have a process in place for periodic review and evaluation of ordinances?
e Have there been instances when the code or ordinance did not address a need or circumstance?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM  ENG

Review Ordinance(s) to confirm all documents provide : Once per 6-year SSMP

X
necessary required legal authority. Update Cycle

3.1

Confer with storm drain owners to ensure current
3.2 . . . Annually X
practices and contact information are up to date.

Monitor and document occasions when Ordinance(s)

33 failed to address issues as intended.

Continuously X

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 3 by:

e Keeping abreast of industry trends and local ordinances that may affect operations.

APPENDIX 3 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 23 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 46



4.1.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

Operation and Maintenance Program

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-4 (pg. D-4)

“The Plan must include the items listed below that are appropriate and applicable to the Enrollee’s
system.”

Updated Map of Sewer System

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-4.1 (pg. D-4)

“An up-to-date map(s) of the sanitary sewer system, and procedures for maintaining and providing State
and Regional Water Board staff access to the map(s). The map(s) must show gravity line segments and
manholes, pumping facilities, pressure pipes and valves, and applicable stormwater conveyance facilities
within the sewer system service area boundaries.”

COMPLIANCE

The District maintains current system maps that include gravity mains, force mains, manholes, pump
stations, property boundaries, creek locations, and pipe asset information (ID number, diameter, and flow
direction). The District is currently working with storm drain agencies to include storm drain mapping.

Discoveries of errors or omissions by field staff are documented on a designated spreadsheet. The changes
are verified and then forwarded to the District’s GIS contractor for map updates.

Upon completion, new development project record drawings are submitted to the GIS contractor for map
updates.

The District’s system maps are made available to the State and Regional Water Boards staff upon request.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

o  Were all map updates completed in a timely manner?

o Are all staff trained in the procedure for providing map update information?

e Are newly installed sewer assets incorporated into the system maps?

e Are there terrain features or assets that should be incorporated in future map updates (e.g.
exposed pipe, siphons, ARVs, surface water, etc.)

Page 24 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 47


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

GM CSM ENG
41.1 Review map update procedures with all affected staff. Annually X
412 Review/ensure all newly installed facilities have been Annually X

updated and included in the system maps

Page 25 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 48



OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
4.2. Preventive Operation and Maintenance Activities

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-4.2 (pgs. D-4/D-5)

“A scheduling system and a data collection system for preventive operation and maintenance activities
conducted by staff and contractors. The scheduling system must include:

e Inspection and maintenance activities;

e Higher-frequency inspections and maintenance of known problem areas, including areas with
tree root problems;

e Regular visual and closed-circuit television (CCTV) inspections of manholes and sewer pipes.

The data collection system must document data from system inspection and maintenance activities,
including system areas/components prone to root-intrusion potentially resulting in system backup
and/or failure.”

COMPLIANCE

The purpose of a work order system is to program and track all required inspection and maintenance
activities within the collection system to help proactively prevent blockages/operational problems or spills.
The District currently utilizes the Lucity Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) to
document work activities and inspections. The District converted from the Lucity CMMS to Mobile MMS in
July of 2025 to manage asset inventory and work orders. The District currently utilizes WinCan CCTV
inspection software to manage data collected from CCTV inspections.

CCTV inspections, gravity main cleaning and manhole inspections are performed in a systematic manner,
working through an established basin. Maintenance staff are assigned a basin to clean or inspect. A work
order is created for the task (CCTV Inspection, Gravity Main Cleaning, or Manhole Inspections), that includes
all the assets in that basin. When a task is completed on an asset, it is indicated on the maps, allowing staff
to see what has been completed and what is left to be completed and update the work order with the
completion date. Staff input the completion date into the work order. Generally, staff work from upstream
to downstream through each basin, and they are allowed to use some discretion to help ensure efficiency
and thoroughness.

The CMMS and CCTV inspection software maintains historical data for all maintenance and inspection
activities and provides a basis for critical analysis and data-driven planning and decision-making today and
into the future. This allows for prioritizing and planning routine activities such as pipe cleaning, manhole
inspections and pump station maintenance activities.

In addition, the CMMS is used to plan and schedule higher-frequency inspection and maintenance activities
such as Hot Spot cleaning. The high-frequency lines are cleaned on 3, 4, 6, and 12-month intervals. Staff
continuously evaluate pipe performance and adjust intervals, as needed.

Pump stations are routinely inspected, on intervals specific to each station — typically one to two times per
week. Staff work from checklists, to help ensure a complete inspection has been performed. All work is
documented in the CMMS.

Page 26 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 49


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

Are the District’s maintenance, operations, and engineering work orders periodically audited for

accuracy and completeness?
Does the District monitor “open,
completion of tasks?

” u

Are inspection and maintenance activities reducing the number and volume of spills?

Is maintenance work being completed as scheduled?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

overdue,” or “not yet completed” work orders to ensure

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
491 !Vlon.itor “Past Due” work orders to ensure critical work Quarterly X
is being completed
42 Review scheduled PMs to ensure the prescribed Annually X

schedule remains appropriate.

Page 27 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 50



OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
4.3. Training

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-4.3 (pg. D-5)

“In-house and external training provided on a regular basis for sanitary sewer system operations and
maintenance staff and contractors. The training must cover:

e The requirements of this General Order;

e The Enrollee’s Spill Emergency Response Plan procedures and practice drills;
e Skilled estimation of spill volume for field operators; and

e Electronic CIWQS reporting procedures for staff submitting data.”

COMPLIANCE

The District’s training program covers several areas involving or associated with wastewater collection
systems and serves to develop and maintain highly qualified, knowledgeable, and capable staff. This training
is provided through a variety of modes (self-study, seminars, conferences, on-the-job, etc.) and begins from
the first day on the job and continues regularly thereafter.

District staff involved in responding to customer service calls, including sewage spills, receive annual training
on the District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan. This training is part classroom and part hands-on exercises
and drills for responding to spill events and includes containment, restoring flow, spill volume, volume
recovered, and spill start time estimations, clean up and completing the spill event data collection forms.

District Data Submitters and LROs are trained on the District’s procedures for submitting data to the CIWQS
database. In addition, these staff attend classes covering CIWQS and spill reporting offered by CWEA and
DKF Solutions Group.

The District has developed spill response procedures for Contract Service personnel who perform work for
the District are required to:

e Immediately notify the District of any sewage spill they encounter.
e Make attempts to contain the spill.

e Cordon off the area to keep the public safe.

e Remain onsite until District staff arrives and relieves them.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Has all training been completed as scheduled?

e Have records of training and attendance been documented and maintained?

o Have all staff demonstrated ability and knowledge after each training event?

e Have contractors received, at a minimum, direction for reporting and responding to spills?

Page 28 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 51


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

GM CcsSM ENG
Review training documentation to ensure all staff have
43.1 . .g . Quarterly X
received required training
Review agreements with contractors and/or pre-job
4.3.2 meeting minutes to ensure contract personnel have Each Contract X X
received instruction for responding to sewage spills

Page 29 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 52



4.4,

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
Equipment Inventory

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Att. D-4.4 (pg. D-5)

“An inventory of sewer system equipment, including the identification of critical replacement and spare
parts.”

COMPLIANCE

The District owns a variety of vehicles and equipment for both routine maintenance and for contingency or
emergency operations and maintains spare parts, including critical spare parts, to facilitate corrective
actions for the most common failure occurrences that might be encountered.

Included within this inventory are replacement nozzles, sewer hose mending kits, pump parts, pump hoses,
assorted vehicle replacement parts, CCTVI replacement parts and sewer pipe sections of various types and
sizes. The District owns and maintains equipment for sewer line repair, pump by-pass operations and spill
response. This equipment includes a backhoe, front-end loader, dump truck, trailer mounted air
compressor, shoring, trash pumps of various sizes, portable generators and various power tools.

The District maintains a resource list of contractors and vendors who stock materials and are available for
emergency and short notice deliveries. Materials and parts inventory is a crucial component of the District’s
maintenance program.

The District is working to improve its inventory by developing a more comprehensive list and documenting
the inventory list in writing so it can be audited and kept up to date.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Have inventory lists been audited as scheduled?
e Have any inventory deficiencies or omissions been discovered and rectified?
e Has the District experienced any equipment failure that inhibited a spill response?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM csm ENG

4.4.1 Audit inventory lists to ensure stock is adequate Annually X

Check with vendors to ensure lead times for
442 " Annually X
critical parts are as expected.

Ensure contracts with emergency support

4.2.3 .
services are current

Annually X

Page 30 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 53


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 4 by:

e Developing an SOP for updating maps when errors are discovered.

e Developing and using forms (paper or electronic) for data collection to help ensure all pertinent
information is consistently collected.

e Periodically evaluating inspection cycle intervals to help ensure they are optimized.

e Requiring staff to demonstrate ability and/or knowledge for all training activities.

e Monitoring equipment and critical spare parts usage for and trends.

e Performing periodic audits of the vehicle and equipment inventory List.

APPENDIX 4 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 31 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 54



OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
Specifications 5.19 — Operations and Maintenance

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Specification. 5.19 (pg. 27)

“To prevent discharges to the environment, the Enrollee shall maintain in good working order, and
operate as designed, any facility or treatment and control system designed to contain sewage and
convey it to a treatment plant.”

COMPLIANCE

The District is continuously improving and updating its proactive, condition-based sewer system
maintenance program. The District’s maintenance schedule allows staff to clean and inspect every sewer
line and manhole using a schedule that is flexible enough to adjust to conditions found during cleaning.
Every inspection and cleaning activity is documented and entered into the District’'s CMMS. The District’s
operations and maintenance programs have resulted in staff primarily being able to focus on proactive work
activities. The District maintains records in its CMMS, which meets the District’s needs as well as the needs
for reporting activities. This CMMS maintains District records in a readily available format for O&M and
management analysis and trending/predictive scenarios development.

The District has revised its 36-month (3-year) cleaning timeline for all sewer lines not identified as a high
frequency line. All pipe segments under 15 inch will remain on a 36-month cleaning timeline (approximately
77.73%). All pipe segments 15 inch and above are now scheduled on a 60-month (5-year) cleaning timeline
(approximately 6.27%). Historically, District crews have been able to complete the cleaning schedule within
a 36-month timeline on a routine basis. The remaining 16% of District sewer lines are “priority areas” and
are on an enhanced maintenance scheduled due to root intrusion, FOG or debris build up that require
additional cleaning. These District “priority areas” are on scheduled cleaning cycles designed to minimize
the occurrence of a spill. Approximately 12.4% are on a 12-month cycle, 3.3% are on a 6-month cycle, 0.2 %
are on a 4-month cycle and 0.23% are on a 3-month cycle. The work orders for these “priority areas” are
scheduled throughout the year and generated on cyclic basis. The District reviews monthly and annual
performance data to ensure the scheduled completion of routine cleaning and CCTVI cycles and the
completion of all priority area cleaning within its scheduled month.

The CCTV inspection schedule of the District collection system is on a 7-year timeline. CCTV inspections are
also done in conjunction with Capital Improvement projects and to verify the need for spot repairs.

The District utilizes contractors for specialized work such as chemical root treatment. Approximately 20,000
feet to 25,000 feet of sewer line are scheduled on an annual basis for chemical root treatment.

The two District lift stations are inspected by staff on a scheduled basis. Repairs are coordinated with the
District’s Facilities Maintenance Department.

The Goleta Sanitary District Collection System Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Procedures include the
following programs that the District utilizes as part of its Operation and Maintenance Program in an effort
to minimize the frequency and volume of spills:

e Lift Station Routine Maintenance

e Mechanical and Hydraulic Cleaning
e Hand Rods

e CCTV Operations

e Smoke Testing

Page 32 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 55


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

e Manhole Raising

e Excavation, Trenching and Point Repairs
e Creek and Bridge Crossing Inspections
e Easement Clearing

Given these enhanced maintenance programs and the addition of District owned and operated flow
monitors for &I identification, the District continues to be in a better position to make continuous
improvements and maintain the goal of zero spills.

Page 33 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 56



DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS

Design and Performance Provisions

Updated Design Criteria/Construction Standards/Specifications

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-5.1 (pg. D-5)

“Updated design criteria, and construction standards and specifications, for the construction,
installation, repair, and rehabilitation of existing and proposed system infrastructure components,
including but not limited to pipelines, pump stations, and other system appurtenances. If existing design
criteria and construction standards are deficient to address the necessary component-specific hydraulic
capacity as specified in section 8 (System Evaluation, Capacity Assurance and Capital Improvements) of
this Attachment, the procedures must include component-specific evaluation of the design criteria.”

COMPLIANCE

The District has adopted the Goleta Sanitary District Standard Specifications for the Design and Construction
of Sanitary Sewers (2008) for all new construction and rehabilitation of existing sewer facilities. The design
standards are detailed in Section 7, Design Criteria. Construction Materials are detailed in Section 9, Open
Trench Construction Methods are detailed in Section 10, Manhole Rehabilitation is detailed in Section 12
and Boring and Jacking is detailed in Section 13.

These standards govern the requirements, design and construction of sewer facilities within the jurisdiction
of the District for all sewer facilities under private and public contract. In addition, all developers, engineers
and contractors must comply with the applicable sections in the latest edition of the Standard Specifications
for Public Works Construction (SSPWC), “The Green Book”, the latest edition of the California Uniform
Plumbing Code and the District approved plans for the new sewer facilities. These Standards are reviewed
and updated on a periodic basis to ensure that current construction means and methods are included as
appropriate.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Are plan checking QA/QC processes helping to ensure adherence to the standards?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CcSM ENG

Ensure all project plans are approved in accordance

5.1.1
with the District’s Standard Specifications and Details.

Each Project X

Verify design standards and hydraulic model
5.1.2 previously completed are adequate and consistent TBD X
with current standards of practice.

Page 34 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 57


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/12-sewer-system/480-2008-standard-specs-pdf

5.2.

DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS
Procedures and Standards

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-5.2 (pg. D-5)

“Procedures, and standards for the inspection and testing of newly constructed, newly installed,
repaired, and rehabilitated system pipelines, pumps, and other equipment and appurtenances.”

COMPLIANCE

Inspection requirements for new and rehabilitated sewers are detailed in Section 11 (Inspection and Testing)
of the Goleta Sanitary District Standard Specifications for the Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers.
Section 4, Sewer Permit Application and Section 12, Manhole Rehabilitation also detail inspection
requirements. District Ordinance No. 92 provides additional procedures and standards in Section 3 Building
Sewers and Connections.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Were any design or installation deficiencies found during warranty inspections?
e Are deviations from standard procedures and/or specs, testing, etc., justified and documented?
e Does the District stay abreast of industry design standards and technical advances in the industry?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG

Verify inspection procedures are adequate and

5.2.1 ; . Y
consistent with current standards of practice

TBD X

Verify design standards and hydraulic model
5.2.2 previously completed are adequate and TBD X
consistent with current standards of practice.

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 5 by:

e  Staying abreast of industry trends and standards.

o Performing warranty inspections of newly installed or repaired assets to evaluate design and
installation practices.

e Evaluating as-built changes for trends and areas for design and performance improvements.

APPENDIX 5 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 35 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 58


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/12-sewer-system/480-2008-standard-specs-pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92

SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

6.  Spill Emergency Response Plan

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-6 (pg. D-6)

“The Plan must include an up-to-date Spill Emergency Response Plan to ensure prompt detection and
response to spills to reduce spill volumes and collect information for prevention of future spills. The Spill
Emergency Response Plan must include procedures to:

e Notify primary responders, appropriate local officials, and appropriate regulatory agencies of a
spill in a timely manner;

e Notify other potentially affected entities (for example, health agencies, water suppliers, etc.) of
spills that potentially affect public health or reach waters of the State;

e Comply with the notification, monitoring and reporting requirements of this General Order,
State law and regulations, and applicable Regional Water Board Orders;

e Ensure that appropriate staff and contractors implement the Spill Emergency Response Plan and
are appropriately trained;

e Address emergency system operations, traffic control and other necessary response activities;

e Contain a spill and prevent/minimize discharge to waters of the State or any drainage
conveyance system;

e  Minimize and remediate public health impacts and adverse impacts on beneficial uses of waters
of the State;

e Remove sewage from the drainage conveyance system;

e (Clean the spill area and drainage conveyance system in a manner that does not inadvertently
impact beneficial uses in the receiving waters;

e Implement technologies, practices, equipment, and interagency coordination to expedite spill
containment and recovery;

e Implement pre-planned coordination and collaboration with storm drain agencies and other
utility agencies/departments prior, during, and after a spill event;

e Conduct post-spill assessments of spill response activities;

e Document and report spill events as required in this General Order; and

e Annually, review and assess effectiveness of the Spill Emergency Response Plan, and update the
Plan as needed.”

COMPLIANCE

The District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP) is a stand-alone document that contains all the key
elements necessary for an appropriate Spill response: notification, emergency incident response, reporting,
and impact mitigation. The SERP, prepared by DKF Solutions Group, meets the requirements of the State
Water Resources Control Board’s reissued Waste Discharge Requirements (Order WQ-2022-0103-DWQ),
which became effective on June 5, 2023. Initial training has been provided to new staff and refresher training
is conducted annually.

Page 36 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 59


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

EFFECTIVENESS

SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

Have staff’s spill response efforts helped to prevent the discharge of sewage to surface waters?
Do post-spill assessments indicate staff are following the procedures outlined in the SERP?
Is SERP training effective and are trainees demonstrating adequate knowledge and abilities?

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
6.1 Perform SERP training including practice drills. Annually X
Review Post Spill Assessments to ensure adherence with
6.2 the SERP and to identify any trends that should be Annually X
addressed.
RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 6 by:

Multiple staff are trained to respond to spill events.

Post-spill assessments are conducted to evaluate staff’s adherence to the SERP and to identify areas

for improvement.

Data collection forms are used to direct staff to collect all the required data to be submitted to

CIWQS and are designed as a guide to a proper spill event response.

The District employees several different spill volume estimation methods to account for different

circumstances.

APPENDIX 6 INCLUSIONS

Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP)

Page 37 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 60



7.

SEWER PIPE BLOCKAGE PROGRAM

Sewer Pipe Blockage Program

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-7 (pg. D-7)

“The Sewer System Management Plan must include procedures for the evaluation of the Enrollee’s
service area to determine whether a sewer pipe blockage control program is needed to control fats, oils,
grease, rags and debris. If the Enrollee determines that a program is not needed, the Enrollee shall
provide justification in its Plan for why a program is not needed.

The procedures must include, at minimum:

e An implementation plan and schedule for a public education and outreach program that
promotes proper disposal of pipe-blocking substances;

o A plan and schedule for the disposal of pipe-blocking substances generated within the sanitary
sewer system service area. This may include a list of acceptable disposal facilities and/or
additional facilities needed to adequately dispose of substances generated within a sanitary
sewer system service area;

e The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and identify measures to prevent spills
and blockages.

e Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps or interceptors), design standards
for the removal devices, maintenance requirements, best management practices requirements,
recordkeeping and reporting requirements;

e Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement authorities, and whether the
Enrollee has sufficient staff to inspect and enforce the fats, oils, and grease ordinance;

e An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to fats, oils, and grease blockages
and establishment of a cleaning schedule for each section; and

e Implementation of source control measures for all sources of fats, oils, and grease reaching the
sanitary sewer system for each section identified above.”

COMPLIANCE

In many sanitary sewer collection systems, Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) is known to be a significant cause,
and or contributor, of sewer blockages in pipe and the cause of operational disruptions and damage to
sewage pump stations. Although service areas that include commercial and institutional food service
establishments (FSEs) are obvious sources of FOG, residential communities, especially those of medium and
high-density multi-family residences, can also be a significant source of FOG. It is the purpose of the FOG
Control Program to ensure all customers in our service area are following the District Ordinance, and state
and federal requirements, to prevent sewage overflows caused by FOG related blockages in our sewer
collection system.

Public Education and Outreach - The District has developed an extensive Public Outreach Program that has
greatly helped the District to reduce the amount of FOG within the collection system and treatment plant.
The District website and social media site have included proper FOG disposal methods. The District publishes
a newsletter in which the topic of FOG from residential and commercial establishments is discussed and
conducts a biennial open house in which information and demonstrations are provided to the public
regarding FOG disposal and District efforts to protect the environment from FOG related spills.

Page 38 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 61


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

SEWER PIPE BLOCKAGE PROGRAM

Plan and Schedule For Disposal of Pipe Blocking Substances - The District Industrial Waste Control Officer
and Collection System staff work together to inspect approximately 120 Food Service Establishments (FSEs)
within the District. District efforts include the monitoring of grease interceptor pump-outs to ensure that
the private disposal companies are cleaning grease interceptors as expected. Grease haulers dispose of
grease pumped from interceptors at area rendering companies.

Grease and other pipe blocking substances collected during the course of routine system maintenance are
disposed of at the District’s regional wastewater treatment facility, on an as-needed basis.

The Legal Authority to Prevent Discharges - District Ordinance No. 92 Section 4.1 (6) lists the FOG discharge
limitations for businesses within the District’s jurisdiction, currently at 100mg/L. This section also sets the
maximum FOG and solids accumulation of grease interceptors at 25% of design hydraulic depth.

Additionally, District Ordinance 92, Section 4.1 Prohibited Discharge Standards list those substances that
shall not be discharged to the sewer or Publicly Owner Treatment Works (POTW). Section 4.2 and 4.3 state
that users shall comply with National Categorical Pretreatment Standards and State Pretreatment
Standards. Section 4.4 establishes local limits for discharges into the District’s sewer system and treatment
works.

The Legal Authority to Require Grease Control Devices — District Ordinance No. 92, Section 5.2, C, requires
the installation of grease control devices and sampling locations for all FSEs. The District Standard
Specifications, Section 7.16 and Standard Drawing 25 describe the design, installation, and testing
procedures that shall be used for grease interceptors and sampling manholes. District Ordinance 92 Section
8.1 through 8.8 detail the reporting requirements, Section 8.13, Recordkeeping and Section 8.14,
Certification of Statements detail BMP requirements and record keeping requirements.

The Legal Authority to Inspect Grease Producing Establishments - The authority of the District to inspect the
sewer system, sewer connections and to inspect the appurtenances that are used for FOG control are
detailed in Section 1.1 of the Goleta Sanitary District Standard Specifications. District Ordinance No. 92,
Section 9.1 Right of Entry: Inspection and Sampling also details this requirement.

Identification of System Areas Subject to FOG - The District has identified those collection system areas that
are subject to FOG discharge. CCTV inspections and results from routine cleaning are used to ensure that
any collection system area that has FOG issues is included in the District’s priority area cleaning program.
FOG related priority cleaning areas are identified in the District’'s CMMS. The results of this priority cleaning
are adjusted as necessary to minimize FOG issues.

Implementation of Source Control Measures - The District has developed and implemented a
comprehensive FOG program. Currently, there are approximately 120 Food Service Establishments in the
District service area that are inspected on a regular basis by the District Industrial Waste Control Officer and
Collection System staff. The monitoring section of the fat, oil and grease program entails field inspections,
sample collection and analysis for grease and oil concentrations. Laboratory results are evaluated to
determine establishment compliance or noncompliance The inspection and laboratory results are used to
issue correction and/or enforcement actions as needed. Results of monthly grease and oil analyses on the
influent and final effluent indicate that the treatment plant is in compliance with all grease and oil
limitations.

Page 39 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 62


https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92
https://goletasanitary.org/downloads/send/13-pretreatment/855-ordinance-92

SEWER PIPE BLOCKAGE PROGRAM

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Have there been any blockages/spills from any identified problem area?

e Is the District receiving feedback on public outreach efforts?

e Are the debris and other sewage solids collected during cleaning activities being disposed of
appropriately?

e Have there been spills due to excessive fats, oil, grease, roots, or non-disposable wipes discovered
in the sewer system during the audit period?

o Are there repeat offenders among FSEs?

e Are enforcement trends decreasing?

e Are Source Control and Collection staff included in the plan check process?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM csM ENG

Review/evaluate enforcement and inspection findings
7.1 . Annually X
and implement changes as necessary.

Review spill rates and causes and make changes to

7.2 .
maintenance programs, as necessary.

Annually X

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 7 by:

e Inspection of select assets directly downstream of grease producing businesses to ensure source
control is effective.

e Residential FOG outreach and education program.

e Performance of regular assessments of system assets to monitor performance.

e QA/QC process for evaluating pipe cleaning effectiveness.

e Daily disposal of pipe blocking materials retrieved during maintenance activities.

APPENDIX 7 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 40 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 63



8.1.

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

System Evaluation, Capacity Assurance, Capital Improvements

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-8 (pg. D-)

“The Plan must include procedures and activities for:

e Routine evaluation and assessment of system conditions;
e (Capacity assessment and design criteria;

e Prioritization of corrective actions; and

e A capital improvement plan.”

System Evaluation and Condition Assessment

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-8.1 (pgs. D-7/D-8)

“The Plan must include procedures to:

Evaluate the sanitary sewer system assets utilizing the best practices and technologies available;
Identify and justify the amount (percentage) of its system for its condition to be assessed each
year;

Prioritize the condition assessment of system areas that:

Hold a high level of environmental consequences if vulnerable to collapse, failure, blockage,
capacity issues, or other system deficiencies;

Are located in or within the vicinity of surface waters, steep terrain, high groundwater
elevations, and environmentally sensitive areas;

Are within the vicinity of a receiving water with a bacterial-related impairment on the most
current Clean Water Act section 303(d) List.

Assess the system conditions using visual observations, video surveillance and/or other
comparable system inspection method;.

Utilize observations/evidence of system conditions that may contribute to exiting of sewage
from the system which can reasonably be expected to discharge into a water of the State;
Maintain documents and recordkeeping of system evaluation and condition assessment
inspections and activities; and

Identify system assets vulnerable to direct and indirect impacts of climate change, including but
not limited to: sea level rise; flooding and/or erosion due to increased storm volumes, frequency,
and/or intensity; wildfires; and increased power disruptions.”

Page 41 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 64


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

COMPLIANCE

The above requirements are addressed below:

The assessment of a collection system involves pipelines, manholes and pump stations. The assessment of
pipeline condition is the most significant condition assessment responsibility the District has. It is of key
importance to regularly perform pipeline condition assessments to initially establish a condition baseline
and to monitor condition changes over time. Gravity mains are inspected utilizing CCTV inspection
equipment. Manholes and pump stations are visually inspected. Level sensing devices are used inside
manholes to monitor flows is certain locations.

Historically, the District endeavored to inspect the entire gravity main system on a 5-year interval. District
staff has a good understanding of system performance and maintains a low spill rate of less than one spill
per year. The District’s gravity main cleaning cycle is 3 years for most pipes under 15-inch diameter and
under, 5 years for pipes 15-inch diameter and above, and high-frequency schedules are maintained for pipes
known to have performance issues. Staff has determined a 7-year CCTV inspection cycle to be an
appropriate cycle. Every line segment will be cleaned one to two times during this period. Staff will
continuously monitor pipe performance and maintenance and inspection results and adjust the schedules
as needed.

Generally, the District’s condition assessment program places the same risk value on all pipes. The District
has identified portions of the sewer system that are close to sensitive areas, such as surface waters, schools,
hospitals and emergency services, etc., and may place a higher maintenance priority on these assets for
public health, safety and environmental reasons. For example, the District implements Winter Storm
Emergency protocol, as needed and perform strategic maintenance in sensitive areas.

The District utilizes the NASSCO PACP defect coding system to rank defects found during CCTV inspections
of gravity mains. Manholes are visually inspected and documented by crews, employing a top-down
inspection method, during routine cleaning and CCTV activities. Pump stations are inspected, and findings
are documented and used when evaluating station life cycle status.

The District has not identified areas susceptible to erosion or landslides, as these are unlikely occurrences
due to service area conditions.

The District is not aware of exfiltration from the system. Any discoveries of exfiltration would be considered
high priority will be addresses accordingly.

The District maintains records and documentation of all system evaluation and condition assessment
inspections and activities in its CMMS. The District recognizes there are opportunities for improvement and
is working to enhance documentation and recordkeeping practice.

The District developed a Climate Adaptation Plan in 2022, that evaluated the effects of sea level rise and
coastal flooding. It included vulnerability assessment adaptation measures. This document is available upon
request. The District will continue to evaluate this, at a minimum, during each three-year audit cycle.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Has the District maintained its schedule for (information needed) and is data being reviewed in a
timely manner?
o CCTV Gravity Mains
o Laterals

Page 42 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 65



SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

o Manholes
o Pump Stations

Are inspection efforts discovering deficiencies in a timely manner?
Are maintenance and inspection activities being properly documented?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
8.1.1 Revu.ew/evaluate enforcement and inspection findings Annually X
and implement changes as necessary.
8.1.2 Rev'lew spill rates and causes and make changes to Annually X
maintenance programs, as necessary.
Hold meeting to discuss any issues that may result from
8.1.3 . v y Annually X

climate changes.

Page 43 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 66



SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
8.2. Capacity Assessment and Design Criteria

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-8.2 (pgs. D-8/D-9)

“The Plan must include procedures to identify system components that are experiencing or contributing
to spills caused by hydraulic deficiency and/or limited capacity, including procedures to identify the
appropriate hydraulic capacity of key system elements for:

e Dry-weather peak flow conditions that cause or contributes to spill events;

e The appropriate design storm(s) or wet weather events that causes or contributes to spill events.
e The capacity of key system components; and

e |dentify the major sources that contribute to the peak flows associated with sewer spills.

The capacity assessment must consider:

e Data from existing system condition assessments, system inspections, system audits, spill
history, and other available information;

e Capacity of flood-prone systems subject to increased infiltration and inflow, under normal local
and regional storm conditions;

e Capacity of systems subject to increased infiltration and inflow due to larger and/or higher-
intensity storm events as a result of climate change;

e Increases of erosive forces in canyons and streams near underground and above-ground system
components due to larger and/or higher-intensity storm events;

e Capacity of major system elements to accommodate dry weather peak flow conditions, and
updated design storm and wet weather events; and

e Necessary redundancy in pumping and storage capacities.”

COMPLIANCE

The sewer line segments that have been preliminarily identified as having hydraulic deficiencies by the
District’s hydraulic modeling program are reviewed by District staff to corroborate these initial assessments.
In-House flow monitoring in conjunction with field inspections conducted during routine CCTV inspections
and cleaning operations are used to verify the preliminary findings. Sewer line segments that have been
determined by the District to have hydraulic and or structural deficiencies are added to the Capital
Improvement Projects list based upon their assessment and their risk and consequence of failure.

The District had adopted the current edition of the Goleta Sanitary District Standards and Specifications for
the Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewers to govern the requirements, design and construction of
sewer facilities within the jurisdiction of the District. Used in conjunction with the Capital Improvement Plan
(see Sections 8.3 and 8.4) and the hydraulic modeling program, the District has established the design
criteria for sewer facility improvements required for hydraulic and structural deficiencies and projected
growth within the District service.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Number of capacity-related spills or surcharge condition during the audit period.
e Has the system responded to rain events as indicated by the hydraulic model?
e Has there been any changes to zoning designations (residential, commercial, industrial)?

Page 44 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 67


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/forward-focused/long-range-capital-planning-cip-masterplan

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

[\[o) Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG

Monitor/evaluate significant rain
8.2.1 events to see if they exceed the Each significant rain event X X
design storm in the hydraulic model.
Identify and monitor flood-prone

8.2.2 areas susceptible to erosion from rain After each significant rain event X
events
823 Monitor flows in each basin and Per Engineering Department X X
- update the hydraulic model schedule

Page 45 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 68



8.3.

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Prioritization of Corrective Action

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-8.3 (pg. D-9)

“The findings of the condition assessments and capacity assessments must be used to prioritize
corrective actions. Prioritization must consider the severity of the consequences of potential spills.”

COMPLIANCE

The District’s Capital Improvement Plan was developed by Hazen & Sawyer. Assessments of structural and
hydraulic conditions, risk of failure consequences, and operation and maintenance factors are used to
identify and prioritize rehabilitation and replacement of District facilities. A series of annual capital
improvement projects are created from these assessments to correct structural and hydraulic deficiencies
in the District collection system. Sewer lines are grouped into like categories based on the severity of the
defects. As annual Capital Improvement Projects are completed, the next ranking projects are moved up on
the list of scheduled projects.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Has the District adhered to its system evaluation/condition assessment schedule?

e Has the District adhered to its prioritization/corrective procedures for sewer repair and capacity
improvement projects?

e Have projects been completed before deficiencies caused failures?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CcSM ENG

Utilize all available data for prioritizing corrective
8.3.1 actions considering severity and consequences of Each CIP Update X
potential spills.

Maintain documents and recordkeeping of system
8.3.2 evaluation and condition assessment inspections Continuously X
and activities.

Page 46 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 69


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/forward-focused/long-range-capital-planning-cip-masterplan

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
8.4. Capital Improvement Plan

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-8.4 (pg. D-9)

“The capital improvement plan must include the following items:

e Project schedules include completion dates for all portions of the capital improvement program;

e Internal and external project funding sources for each project; and

e Joint coordination between operation and maintenance staff, and engineering staff/consultants
during planning, design, and construction of capital improvement projects; and Interagency
coordination with other impacted utility agencies.”

COMPLIANCE

The District’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP or the Plan) has been designed to correct structural and
hydraulic deficiencies in the collection system. The sewer system was evaluated using criteria based on
operation costs, frequency of maintenance, structural conditions, risk of failure and hydraulic adequacy.
Pipelines within the system are compared and those exhibiting a higher risk of failure based on the
evaluation criteria are given a higher priority for repair.

The District’s Plan is also used to determine which pipelines in the system may be approaching the end of
their useful lives. Pipelines with a higher priority rating are placed on an increased maintenance schedule
and are monitored more closely by the District. The Plan is being used to identify life cycle expectancies for
equipment and structures at the Treatment Plant as well.

The District’s website has an Interactive Roadmap (see Appendix 8) that shows the proposed Capital
Improvement Projects (CIPs) for the for both the Collection System and the Treatment Plant. These
improvements reflect the District’s mission and vision statements, and ensure a safe, healthy environment
for all in the Goleta Valley.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Has the District’s capital improvement plan schedule been adhered to?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG

Hold regular coordination meetings, with all
8.4.1 parties, to help keep the projects on track and Annually X X
resolve issues that may arise in a timely manner.

For schedules that are not followed, justify and Each Delayed

8.4.2 .
document the reason. Project

Page 47 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 70


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://goletasanitary.org/forward-focused/long-range-capital-planning-cip-masterplan

SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 8 by:

e Isthere an annual review of the Capital Improvement Plan by all appropriate individuals including
both Engineering and Operations?

APPENDIX 8 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 48 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 71



MONITORING, MEASUREMENT, AND PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS

9. Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-9 (pg. D-9)

“The Plan must include an Adaptive Management section that addresses Plan-implementation
effectiveness and the steps for necessary Plan improvement, including:

e Maintaining relevant information, including audit findings, to establish and prioritize
appropriate Plan activities;

e Monitoring the implementation and measuring the effectiveness of each Plan element;

e Assessing the success of the preventive operation and maintenance activities:

e Updating Plan procedures and activities, as appropriate, based on results of monitoring and
performance evaluations; and

e [dentifying and illustrating spill trends, including spill frequency, locations, and estimated
volumes.”

COMPLIANCE

The above requirements are addressed below:

e The District maintains accurate and relevant inspection and maintenance records for the collection

system. Much of the documentation today is maintained electronically, which allows for ease of
access and analysis. This helps District staff to make sound decisions and prioritize activities when
dealing with the routine and the unexpected.
Monitoring of the District’s SSMP focuses on each element in terms of its implementation and
effectiveness. The SSMP has been designed to include key performance indicators for each
element, which are used to measure effectiveness. In addition, implementation responsibilities are
included for each element to help ensure the SSMP is being implemented as intended.

o The District assesses the success of maintenance and operation activities by ensuing activities are
being performed as expected, by monitoring actual outcomes compared to intended outcomes, as
well as monitoring spill trends.

o The District is committed to continuous improvement and monitors and evaluates performance of
work programs and SSMP elements to ensure intended outcomes are achieved while looking for
areas for improvement. Although the SWRCB requires that the SSMP be updated every six years,
the SSMP should be considered as a dynamic document and may require updating on a more
frequent basis. Routine changes to administrative information, notwithstanding, minor changes
will likely be required to address improvements identified through the SSMP Audit or through
modifications required as conditions change.

e The District monitors spill trends, at a minimum every three years during required audits, utilizing
the CMMS database, inspection records and CIWQS data. These resources are helpful in planning
and programing work, and adjusting as needed, enabling the District to be adaptive and capitalize
on lessons learned.

Page 49 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 72


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

MONITORING, MEASUREMENT, AND PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

Are SSMP Elements being periodically evaluated for effectiveness?
Are work activities and spill events being documented?

Has a plan and schedule been established to address audit findings/deficiencies from the last

audit?

Is Trend Analysis being performed on spill causes?

Have work programs been assessed and updated as necessary?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

| Schedule

No. Plan Responsible Party
GM CcsSM ENG

9.1 Assess work programs to ensure Annually X
outcomes are as intended.
Prepare updates to work programs

9:2 and the SSMP based on assessments. S G X

93 Monitor and evaluate spill trends. Annually X
Document efforts.

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 9 by:

Development of key performance indicators to measure effectiveness of the SSMP.
Performing periodic reviews of the SSMP to help ensure it is being properly implemented.
Developing and adhering to a timeline to correct deficiencies found during the audit process.

Periodically evaluating work programs to help ensure effectiveness.

APPENDIX 9 INCLUSIONS

None

Page 50 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 73



10.

INTERNAL AUDITS

Internal Audits

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-10 (pg. D-10)

“The Plan shall include internal audit procedures, appropriate to the size and performance of the system,
for the Enrollee to comply with section 5.4 (Sewer System Management Plan Audits) of this General
Order.”

COMPLIANCE

The District completed its last audit in August 2024 and will complete audits every three (3) years moving
forward. The objective of the audit is to evaluate compliance, implementation and effectiveness of the
SSMP. Additionally, the SSMP includes a description of how the District will comply with the requirements
of each Element. The audit review includes an evaluation to determine if compliance has been met.

Implementation is evaluated by determining if the District is executing the SSMP as stated.

Effectiveness is evaluated by using key performance indicators, which have been developed specifically for
each element.

Resilience is addressed for each Element and is built-in to the District’s collection system procedures and
practices.

Any deficiencies discovered through the audit process are noted and a plan and schedule to implement
corrective measures are established.

A copy of the most recent SSMP audit is available upon request.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Have audits been performed as required?

e Have the audits assessed compliance, implementation, and effectiveness?
e Have deficiencies been identified?

e Has a plan and schedule to rectify the deficiencies been established?

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
Schedule audits in advance of due dates to
ensure adequate time to complete. District Beginning at end of
10.1 . . - X
has 6 months to complete the audit from the audit period
end of the audit period.
Ensure a plan and schedule is developed to Once the Audit is
10.2 o X
address deficiencies. completed

Page 51 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 74


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

INTERNAL AUDITS

RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 10 by:

e Periodically evaluating key performance indicators during the audit period to assess effectiveness
and make corrections, if necessary, prior to the audit.

e Evaluating previous audits to ensure deficiencies have been rectified.

e Scheduling the audit due dates and completing the audit on time.

APPENDIX 10 INCLUSIONS

e None

Page 52 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 75



COMMUNICATION PROGRAM

11. Communication Program

WDR REQUIREMENTS

Attachment D-11 (pg. D-10)

“The Plan must include procedures for the Enrollee to communicate with:

e The public for:
o Spills and discharges resulting in closures of public areas, or that enter a source of drinking
water; and
o The development, implementation, and update of its Plan, including opportunities for
public input to Plan implementation and updates.
e Owners/operators of systems that connect into the Enrollee’s system, including satellite systems,
for:

o System operation, maintenance, and capital improvement-related activities.”

COMPLIANCE

When the District experiences a spill, it is standard procedure to secure the affected area and keep the
public away. This is generally done using barricades, cones and caution tape. The District will notify Santa
Barbara County Environmental Health Services to report the unauthorized release of any volume of sewage,
when it is likely to reach water of the State, as required by California Health & Safety Code (HSC) § 5411.5.

In an effort to facilitate public awareness of the District’s SSMP, the SSMP is available to the general public
on its website. The District routinely communicates with the general public through a variety of methods
including District newsletters, mailings, website and Proposition 218 public notices that seek and encourage
public input for the various operations of the District. The District newsletters have focused on specific topics
that comprise the SSMP such as Capital Improvement Projects and funding. The District has historically
maintained an “Open Door” policy in which members of the public can discuss issues of concern with District
staff, District management and Governing Board members during District special events, normal business
hours and at regularly scheduled meetings of the District’s Governing Board. Every 6 years the SSMP is
updated and approved by the Board of Directors. All Board agenda items are advertised to the public prior
to the meetings and there is opportunity for comment from the public on each agenda item. The District
also utilizes social media as a portal to communicate issues of concern with the public.

The District routinely communicates with the four contractual users of the District (the County of Santa
Barbara, UCSB, Goleta West Sanitary District and Santa Barbara Municipal Airport) on a regular and on-going
basis. This communication is in the form of telephone calls, letters and regularly scheduled meetings.

The Santa Barabra Municipal Airport Collection System is the District’s only satellite agency (WDID:
355011455). The District has regular communication with airport staff.

EFFECTIVENESS

The District utilizes the following Key Performance Indicators for measuring effectiveness of this Element:

e Does the District place all SSMP action items on the agenda for regular counsel/board meetings?
e Does the District have signage, or other means, readily available to notify the public of
environmental or public risk factors related to a sewage spill?

e Does the District perform outreach to residential customers?

Page 53 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 76


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2022/wqo_2022-0103-dwq.pdf

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN/SCHEDULE

COMMUNICATION PROGRAM

No. Plan Schedule Responsible Party
GM CSM ENG
111 Ensure the Board of Directors approves the SSMP per Every 6 years X
schedule.
11.2 Ensu.re the SS_MP is posted on the District website and Annually X
the link functions properly.
113 Ensure Sew‘.a\ge Spl!| Warning s!gns are readily available Annually X
to communicate with the public when necessary
RESILIENCE

Resilience is addressed in Element 11 by:

Use the SSMP as a tool to communicate to the public how the District is managing the system.
Maintain a consistent presence in the service area by attending community events or issuing
periodic newsletters or other communications to the public.
Make it clear and easy for the public to contact the District.

APPENDIX 11 INCLUSIONS

None

Page 54 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 77



LIST OF APPENDICIES

APPENDIX 1

APPENDIX 2

APPENDIX 3

APPENDIX 4

APPENDIX 5

APPENDIX 6

APPENDIX 7

APPENDIX 8

APPENDIX 9

APPENDIX 10

APPENDIX 11

APPENDICIES

None

None

None

None

None

Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP)

None

None

None

None

None

Page 55 of 55

Agenda Packet Page 78



Agenda Packet Page 79



Goleta Sanitary District

Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25
TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. Purpose
2. Policy
3. Definitions as used in this Spill Emergency Response Plan
4. State Regulatory Requirements for Element 6, Spill Emergency Response Plan
5. Spill Emergency Response Plan Objectives
6. Spill Detection and Notification
7. Lift Stations
8. Spill Response Procedures
9. Recovery and Cleanup
10. Water Quality
11. Notification, Reporting, Monitoring and Recordkeeping Requirements
12. Post-Spill Assessments of Spill Response Activities
13. Spill Response Training
14. Sewer Backup Into/Onto Private Property Claims Handling Policy
15. Authority
16. Appendices
A. Appendix A: Reporting Requirements by Spill Category
B. Appendix B: Service Call Form
Appendix C: Door Hanger
D. Appendix D: Sanitary Sewer Spill Response Instructions for Contractors
E. Appendix E: Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook
Section 1:
0 Spill/Backup Response Flowchart........ccccievieiiiienee e A-1
O WOrkbook INStrUCLIONS ...cccuveieiiiieiiiee et -2
(o T o | | V7T o @ o 1Yol ] PR -3
O Contact INfOrmation .......cooceeeiiiieiie e e e -4
0 Key Definitions and Category Determination ...........ccccceeeveeeeeecieeeceennneen. -5
Section 2: Sanitary Sewer Spill Field REpOrt ........cooeiiiiiiiiiiee e, B-1
Section 3: Volume Estimation
(o] Miscellaneous Computations and Examples.......ccccoeeeceviviieeeeeeeeenn. C-1
(o] Eyeball Estimation Method ..o, -2
(o] Duration and Flow Rate Comparison Method............cccccovvvvveeeeeennnn. -3
o Area/Volume METNOT .......ueeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e -4
(o] Upstream Connections Method..........ccccccciiiiieieeiicccceeeeeee e, -5
Page 2 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 80



Goleta Sanitary District

Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25
(o] Drawing WoOrksheet........ccoovvciieiiiiiiiiie et -6
Section 4: Backup Forms
0 Backup FOrms Checklist ........ccoovciiiiiiiiiiiii e D-1
O First RESPONAEr FOrM ..ccciiviiiiiiiiiee sttt e e e s -2
0 Declination of Cleaning ServiCesS....ccccciieiiiecciiiiiiiieeee e -3
0 Lodging AUthorization..........cccuiiiiiiiiii e -4
0 Customer Information Letter......ccocvviiiieeiciee e -5
O Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner..........ccccccvvveeeeeeeeeenn. -6
(o I 1= Y10 T o o o PRSP -7

Section 5: Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response
(0 T o =15 (o] U= OO TP U P TTPPPPPPTPON E-1
[0 T o YU T=Y oo T PP PPP -2

Section 6: Field Sampling

O Field Sampling Kit OVEIVIEW ........uueeeiieiiiiiccciiiieieee e eccvrrree e e e F-1
0 Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling Requirements and Timelines... -2
0 Spill Sampling Field REPOIt .......uviiiiiiieeie e e e -3
O Sampling ProCeAUIES ......cooeiiiiiiieeee et e e e e e e e e e -4
0 Surface Water Sampling Worksheet..........ccocooeeiiiiiiieiicccee e, -5
0 Surface Water Sample Chain of Custody Record .........ccccveieeecvieecennneen. -6
Section 7: Regulatory Reporting
0 Regulatory Reporting GUIE ........cceeeeeeiii i e G-1
0 Regulatory Reporting Contacts and Authorization..........ccccccvvveeeeeennnnnnn. -2
O Regulatory Reporting Lo .....cccuuviiiiiiiieeie et eeecerree e e e e -3
Section 8: Post Spill
0 Post Spill Assessment Information .........ccccccveeeieeiiiee e e, H-1
O Failure ANAlYSiS cooeii i e e e -2
Page 3 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 81



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP) is to support a prompt, orderly and
effective response to spills (sanitary), reduce spill volumes, and collect information for prevention of future spills. A “spill”
in this document is defined, by State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ as a discharge of sewage from any
portion of a sewer system due to a sewer system overflow, operational failure, and/or infrastructure failure.

The SERP provides guidelines for District personnel to follow in responding to, cleaning up, reporting, and properly doc-
umenting spills that may occur within the District’s service area. This SERP satisfies the State Water Board Order No. WQ
2022-0103-DWAQ, which require wastewater collection agencies to have a Spill Emergency Response Plan.

Additionally, the SERP outlines procedures for responding to sewer spill backups into structures as required by the Dis-
trict’s insurer. “Backup” is a term typically used by insurers to describe property damage resulting from exposure and
contact to untreated or partially treated sewage.

2. POLICY

The District’s employees are required to report all spills from agency owned sewer mains and to take the appropriate
action to secure the spill area, properly report to the appropriate regulatory agencies, relieve the cause of the spill, and
ensure that the affected area is cleaned as soon as possible to minimize health hazards to the public and protect the
environment. The District’s goal is to respond to sewer system spills as soon as possible following notification. The District
will follow reporting procedures regarding sewer spills as set forth by the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control
Board (Region 3) and the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ.

3. DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS SERP

ANNUAL REPORT: An Annual Report (previously termed as Collection System Questionnaire in previous State Water
Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ) is a mandatory report in which the District provides a calendar-year update of its
efforts to prevent spills.

BASIN PLAN: A Basin Plan is a water quality control plan specific to a Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional
Water Board), that serves as regulations to: (1) define and designate beneficial uses of surface and groundwaters, (2)
establish water quality objectives for protection of beneficial uses, and (3) provide implementation measures.

BENEFICIAL USES: The term “Beneficial Uses” is a Water Code term, defined as the uses of the waters of the State that
may be protected against water quality degradation. Examples of beneficial uses include but are not limited to, municipal,
domestic, agricultural, and industrial supply; power generation; recreation; aesthetic enjoyment; navigation; and preser-
vation and enhancement of fish, wildlife, and other aquatic resources or preserves.

CALIFORNIA INTEGRATED WATER QUALITY SYSTEM (CIWQS): CIWQS is the statewide database that provides for man-
datory electronic reporting as required in State and Regional Water Board-issued waste discharge requirements.

DATA SUBMITTER: A Data Submitter is an individual designated and authorized by the District’s Legally Responsible
Official to enter spill data into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database. A Data Submitter does not have the

Page 4 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 82



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

authority of a Legally Responsible Official to certify reporting entered into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Da-
tabase.

DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE SYSTEM: A drainage conveyance system is a publicly- or privately-owned separate storm sewer
system, including but not limited to drainage canals, channels, pipelines, pump stations, detention basins, infiltration
basins/facilities, or other facilities constructed to transport stormwater and non-stormwater flows.

ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREA: An environmentally sensitive area is a designated agricultural and/or wildlife area
identified to need special natural landscape protection due to its wildlife or historical value.

EXFILTRATION: Exfiltration is the underground exiting of sewage from a sanitary sewer system through cracks, offset or
separated joints, or failed infrastructure due to corrosion or other factors.

FOG - Fats, Oils, and Grease: Refers to fats, oils, and grease typically associated with food preparation and cooking
activities that can cause blockages in the sanitary sewer system.

HYDROLOGICALLY CONNECTED: Two waterbodies are hydrologi-
cally connected when one waterbody flows, or has the potential to
flow, into the other waterbody. For the purpose of the State Water
Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ, groundwater feeds into the
surface water. The surface waterbody in this example is termed a
gaining stream as it gains flow from surrounding groundwater. See
image, right.

LATERAL (INCLUDING LOWER AND UPPER LATERAL): A lateral is an

underground segment of smaller diameter pipe that transports sew-

age from a customer’s building or property (residential, commercial,

or industrial) to the District’s main sewer line in a street or easement. Upper and lower lateral boundary definitions are
subject to local jurisdictional codes and ordinances, or private system ownership. A lower lateral is the portion of the
lateral located between the sanitary sewer system main, and either the property line, sewer clean out, curb line, estab-
lished utility easement boundary, or other jurisdictional locations. An upper lateral is the portion of the lateral from the
property line, sewer clean out, curb line, established utility easement boundary, or other jurisdictional locations, to the
building or property.

LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL: A Legally Responsible Official is an official representative, designated by the District,
with authority to sign and certify submitted information and documents required by this General Order.

MAINLINE SEWER: Refers to District wastewater collection system piping downstream of the sewer laterals that is not a
private sewer lateral connection to a building.

MAINTENANCE HOLE OR MANHOLE: Refers to an engineered structure that is intended to provide access to a sanitary
sewer for maintenance and inspection

NOTIFICATION OF A SPILL: Refers to the time at which the District becomes aware of a spill event through observation
or notification by the public or other source.

NUISANCE: For the purpose of the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ, a nuisance, as defined in Water
Code section 13050(m), is anything that meets all of the following requirements:

Page 5 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 83



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Isinjurious to health, or is indecent or offensive to the senses, or an obstruction to the free use of property, so as
to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property;

o Affects at the same time an entire community or neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, although
the extent of the annoyance or damage inflicted upon individuals may be unequal; and

e Occurs during, or as a result of, the treatment or disposal of wastes.

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE: Refers to maintenance activities intended to prevent failures of the wastewater
collection system facilities (e.g. cleaning, CCTV, inspection).

PRIVATE LATERAL SEWAGE SPILL — Spills that are caused by blockages or other problems within a privately-owned lateral.

PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM: A private sanitary sewer system is a sanitary sewer system of any size that is owned
and/or operated by a private individual, company, corporation, or organization. A private sanitary sewer system may or
may not connect into a publicly owned sanitary sewer system.

PRIVATE SEWER LATERAL: A private sewer lateral is the privately-owned lateral that transports sewage from private
property(ies) into a sanitary sewer system.

POTENTIAL TO DISCHARGE, POTENTIAL DISCHARGE: Potential to Discharge, or Potential Discharge, means any exiting
of sewage from a sanitary sewer system which can reasonably be expected to discharge into a water of the State based
on the size of the sewage spill, proximity to a drainage conveyance system, and the nature of the surrounding environ-
ment.

RECEIVING WATER: A receiving water is a water of the State that receives a discharge of waste.

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM: A sanitary sewer system is a system that is designed to convey sewage, including but not
limited to, pipes, manholes, pump stations, siphons, wet wells, diversion structures and/or other pertinent infrastructure,
upstream of a wastewater treatment plant headworks, including:

e Laterals owned and/or operated by the District;
e Satellite sewer systems; and/or

e Temporary conveyance and storage facilities, including but not limited to temporary piping, vaults, construction
trenches, wet wells, impoundments, tanks, and diversion structures.

For purpose of the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWAQ, sanitary sewer systems include only systems
owned and/or operated by the District.

SATELLITE SEWER SYSTEM: A satellite sewer system is a portion of a sanitary sewer system owned or operated by a
different owner than the owner of the downstream wastewater treatment facility ultimately treating the sewage.

SEWAGE: Sewage, and its associated wastewater, is untreated or partially treated domestic, municipal, commercial
and/or industrial waste (including sewage sludge), and any mixture of these wastes with inflow or infiltration of storm-
water or groundwater, conveyed in a sanitary sewer system.

Page 6 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 84



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

SEWER BACKUP A sanitary sewer spill resulting from a sanitary sewer system overflow, operational failure, and/or infra-
structure failure in a publicly owned sewer system, with an appearance point and subsequent discharge into a structure.

SPILL: A spill is a discharge of sewage from any portion of a sanitary sewer system due to a sanitary sewer system over-
flow, operational failure, and/or infrastructure failure. Exfiltration of sewage is not considered to be a spill under the
State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ if the exfiltrated sewage remains in the subsurface and does not reach
a surface water of the State.

e Category 1 Spill:

A Category 1 spill is a spill of any volume of sewage from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated under
the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ that results in a discharge to:

O Asurface water, including a surface water body that contains no flow or volume of water; or

O Adrainage conveyance system that discharges to surface waters when the sewage is
not fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer system or disposed of properly.

Any spill volume not recovered from a drainage conveyance system is considered a discharge to surface
water, unless the drainage conveyance system discharges to a dedicated stormwater infiltration basin
or facility.

A spill from an District-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a surface water is a Category 1
spill; the District shall report all Category 1 spills per section 3.1 of Attachment E1 (Notification,
Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General Order.

* Category 2 Spill

A Category 2 spill is a spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated under
the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ that does not discharge to a surface water.

A spill of 1,000 gallons or greater that spills out of a lateral and is caused by a failure or blockage in the sanitary
sewer system, is a Category 2 spill.

* Category 3 Spill

A Category 3 spill is a spill of equal to or greater than 50 gallons and less than 1,000 gallons, from or caused by a
sanitary sewer system regulated under the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ that does not dis-
charge to a surface water. A spill of equal to or greater than 50 gallons and less than 1,000 gallons, that spills out
of a lateral and is caused by a failure or blockage in the sanitary sewer system is a Category 3 spill.

* Category 4 Spill

A Category 4 spill is a spill of less than 50 gallons, from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated
under the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR) that does not discharge to a
surface water. A spill of less than 50 gallons that spills out of a lateral and is caused by a failure or
blockage in the sanitary sewer system is a Category 4 spill.

* Non-Category 1 Enrollee Owned/Operated Lateral Spills

A spill of any volume from an Enrollee’s owned and/or operated lateral that is caused by a failure or blockage in
the lateral and that do not discharge to a surface water.

TRAINING: Training is in-house or external education and guidance needed that provides the knowledge, skills, and abil-
ities to comply with the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ.

WASH DOWN WATER: Wash down water is water used to clean a spill area.

Page 7 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 85



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

WASTE: Waste, as defined in Water Code section 13050(d), includes sewage and any and all other waste substances,
liquid, solid, gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or of human or animal origin, or from any pro-
ducing, manufacturing, or processing operation, including waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to,
and for purposes of, disposal.

WATERS OF THE STATE: Waters of the State are surface waters or groundwater within boundaries of the state as defined
in Water Code section 13050(e), in which the State and Regional Water Boards have authority to protect beneficial uses.
Waters of the State include, but are not limited to, groundwater aquifers, surface waters, saline waters, natural washes
and pools, wetlands, sloughs, and estuaries, regardless of flow or whether water exists during dry conditions. Waters of
the State include waters of the United States.

WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES: Waters of the United States are surface waters or waterbodies that are subject to
federal jurisdiction in accordance with the Clean Water Act.

WATER QUALITY OBJECTIVE: A water quality objective is the limit or maximum amount of pollutant, waste constituent
or characteristic, or parameter level established in statewide water quality control plans and Regional Water Boards’
Basin Plans, for the reasonable protection of beneficial uses of surface waters and groundwater and the prevention of
nuisance.

4. STATE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR ELEMENT 6, SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

The Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) must include an up to date Spill Emergency Response Plan (SERP) to ensure
prompt detection and response to spills to reduce spill volumes and collect information for prevention of future spills.
The SERP must include procedures to:

* Notify primary responders, appropriate local officials, and appropriate regulatory agencies of a spill in a
timely manner;

* Notify other potentially affected entities (for example, health agencies, water suppliers, etc.) of spills that
potentially affect public health or reach waters of the State;

e Comply with the notification, monitoring and reporting requirements of State Water Board Order No. WQ
2022-0103-DWAQ, State law and regulations, and applicable Regional Water Board Orders;

* Ensure that appropriate staff and contractors implement the SERP and are appropriately trained;

e Address emergency system operations, traffic control and other necessary response activities;

e Contain a spill and prevent/minimize discharge to waters of the State or any drainage conveyance system;
* Minimize and remediate public health impacts and adverse impacts on beneficial uses of waters of the State;
* Remove sewage from the drainage conveyance system;

e Clean the spill area and drainage conveyance system in a manner that does not inadvertently impact bene-
ficial uses in the receiving waters;

* Implement technologies, practices, equipment, and interagency coordination to expedite spill containment
and recovery;

* Implement pre-planned coordination and collaboration with storm drain agencies and other utility agen-
cies/departments prior, during, and after a spill event;

Page 8 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 86



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

* Conduct post-spill assessments of spill response activities;
* Document and report spill events as required in this General Order; and

= Annually, review and assess effectiveness of the Spill Emergency Response Plan, and update it as needed.

The Sewer System Management Plan is available to the public at https://goletasanitary.org.

5. SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN OBJECTIVES

The Spill Emergency Response Plan includes measures to protect public health and the environment. The District will
respond to spills from its system(s) in a timely manner that minimizes water quality impacts and nuisance by:

* Immediately stopping the spill and preventing/minimizing a discharge to waters of the State;
* Intercepting sewage flows to prevent/minimize spill volume discharged into waters of the State;
* Thoroughly recovering, cleaning up and disposing of sewage and wash down water; and

* Cleaning publicly accessible areas while preventing discharges to waters of the State.

Additionally, District Staff will:

o Work safely;

Properly document each spill event in a separate file including photos and/or video where applicable;

Collect information for prevention of future spills;

e Minimize public contact with the spilled wastewater;

Mitigate the impact of the spill;

Meet the regulatory reporting requirements;

Evaluate the causes of failure related to spills;
e Perform post-spill response evaluation for adherence to procedures and effectiveness of response; and

® Revise response procedures, modify maintenance practices or provide additional training based on the re-
sults from the debrief and failure analysis of spills, if needed.

6. SPILL DETECTION AND NOTIFICATION
ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), ATTACHMENT D, Element 6, Page D-6

The processes that are employed to notify the District of the occurrence of a spill include: observation by the public,
receipt of an alarm, or observation by District staff during the normal course of their work.

6.1 LIFT STATION ALARMS

The District operates two wastewater lift stations, which are inspected on a scheduled basis. In the event of a
station failure the SCADA alarm system is activated and the District is contacted. To prevent spills, emergency
generators are activated to provide power to the pumps, back up pumps are connected to convey flows through

Page 9 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 87



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

the force mains or through bypass lines, or the stations can be pumped into a vacuum truck. Refer to Section 7
below for lift station alarm and spill response details.

6.2 PUBLIC OBSERVATION

Public observation is the most common way that the District is notified of blockages and spills. Contact numbers
and information for reporting sewer spills and backups are on the District’s website: https://goletasanitary.org.
The District’s telephone number for reporting sewer problems during business hours is (805) 967-4519 (Mon-
day-Friday 8am- 5pm). On Saturdays, Sundays, or weekdays after 5:00 pm the emergency reporting number is
(805) 564-7259.

Normal Work Hours

The front office staff will forward the call to the Collection System Manager or designee. The Collection
System Manager or designee will collect the caller’s name, address, and the nature of the problem. The
Collection System Manager or designee will dispatch an available Collections System Crew and the Col-
lections System Crew will respond to the caller’s address.

Collections System Crew will perform an investigation to determine the nature of the problem. If it is
determined to be a District issue, the Collections System Crew will address the issue. If it is not a District
issue, the Collections System Crew will notify the resident that the problem is with their lateral. The Col-
lections System Crew will also notify Public Health if it is a Private Lateral Sewage Discharge (PLSD). If
the problem is in another public agency’s service area, the Collections System Crew will notify that
agency.

The Collections System Crew will complete a Field Report detailing the caller, nature of the problem re-
ported, nature of the problem discovered, and any actions taken.

If the service request is a District spill, the Collections System Crew will complete the Overflow Emergency
Response Plan workbook and open a spill file.

After Hours

After hours service calls rolls over to an answering service and the answering service will notify the
standby employee.

The standby employee will respond and notify the Collection System Manager. The standby employee
will complete the Field Report and if the request is for a spill, the standby employee will complete the
Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook. The standby employee will notify the Collection System Man-
ager if they need additional assistance addressing the spill or other problem.

The completed Field Report will be forwarded to the Collection System Manager the next day (and the
Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook if this was for a spill).

The Collections System Crew may be dispatched to CCTV the area of the spill regardless of the reason for
the call out.

When calls are received, either during normal work hours or after hours, the individual receiving the call will
collect and include in the spill event file, at a minimum, the following information to record the complaint:

e Date, time, and method of notification,

Page 10 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 88



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Date and time the complainant first noticed the spill, if available,

e Narrative description of the complaint, including any information the caller provided regarding
whether the spill has reached surface waters or a drainage conveyance system, if available,

e Complainant’s contact information, if available, and
e Final resolution of the complaint.

If the spill or backup is not in the District’s service area they provide the customer with the contact information
for the responsible agency, and then notify that agency.

6.3 DISTRICT STAFF OBSERVATION

District staff conducts periodic inspections of its sewer system facilities as part of their routine activities. Any
problems noted with the sewer system facilities are reported to appropriate District staff that, in turn, responds
to emergency situations. Work orders are issued to correct non-emergency conditions.

6.4 CONTRACTOR OBSERVATION

Contractors working on the District sewer system will be informed of contractor spill response procedures. Con-
tractors working on behalf of property owners will be provided spill response information when they pull a per-
mit. The following procedures are to be followed in the event that a contractor/plumber causes or witnesses a
sanitary sewer spill. If the contractor/plumber causes or witnesses a spill they should:

1. Immediately notify the District during business hours at (805) 967-4519 (Monday-Friday 8am- 5pm.)
On Saturdays, Sundays, or weekdays after 5:00 pm the emergency reporting number is (805) 564-7259.
Provide the following information if available:

a. Date, time contractor first noticed the spill;

b. Description of the contractor’s observation, including any information regarding whether the
spill has reached surface waters or a drainage conveyance system;

c. Contractor’s contact information.
2. Protect storm drains.
3. Protect the public.
4. Direct ALL media and public relations requests to the General Manager/District Engineer at (805) 967-
4519 or (805) 896-5395 (cell).
6.5 NO OBSERVATION

If there are no witnesses or no call was received for a spill, the District staff will contact nearby residences or
business owners in the vicinity of the spill, in an attempt to obtain information that brackets a given start time
that the spill began. This information will be collected and documented on the Sanitary Sewer Spill Report in the
Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

Page 11 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 89



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

7. LIFT STATIONS
7.1 Firestone Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response

1. The Firestone Lift Station is equipped with power outage and high-level alarms and an emergency
generator. Upon receipt of these alarms, immediately proceed to the Lift Station, verify flow condi-
tions and acknowledge the alarm.

2. The emergency generator is designed to provide electrical power to the station in case of loss of Edi-
son power. The station pumps will automatically switch from one power source to the other. The
noise of the generator will indicate that it is operating, verify that the level of the wet well corresponds
with the level indicated on the control panel.

3. If there is no Edison power to the lift station and the standby generator is not providing electrical
power to the station, contact the District Facilities Maintenance Manager. Monitor the level in the
wet well and connect suction hose from the wet well to the 4” Pioneer trash pump and connect suc-
tion hose from the trash pump to the by-pass valve located in the valve pit. Additional personnel will
be required for this operation. Contact additional District personnel.

4. |If electrical power cannot be restored to the station, turn off the electrical breakers for the pumps in
the control room, close the valves from the station pumps and open the by-pass valves in the valve
pit. Operate the 4” trash pump as required to maintain normal levels in the wet well.

5. If a spill has or is occurring at the Firestone Lift Station, take immediate action to prevent the spill
from entering into the drainage channel adjacent to the station. The perimeter walls of the Station
will contain the spill, use sandbags and/or tarps to contain the gate area. Notify the Collection System
Manager, Supervisor or CSMT Il and begin to pump down the wet well as described above in Items 3-
4. Begin initial calculation of the spill and begin the notification process as required for the spill Cate-
gory that has occurred.

6. Once the spill has been contained and normal operations have resumed at the station, begin clean up
of the spill and pump or vacuum all water back into the District sewer system. Prepare an spill Report
for review by the Supervisor and continue calculation of the spill volume.

7. The Manager or Supervisor will continue with the notification process.
7.2 El Sueno Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response

1. The El Sueno Lift Station is equipped with a power outage and a high-level alarm. Upon receipt of
these alarms, immediately proceed to the Lift Station and verify flow conditions. Acknowledge the
alarm and determine if power has been restored.

2. |If there is no power at the lift station and an spill has not occurred, take or have brought a 3” trash
pump with sections of suction and discharge hose to the lift station. Connect the suction hose from
the pump to the by-pass pipe at the wet well and connect the discharge hose from the pump to the
force main by-pass valve. Operate the trash pump as needed to maintain normal levels in the wet well
until such time that power is restored. Contact Southern California Edison at 1-800-656-4555 and in-
form them of the power outage affecting the District lift station located at 419 El Sueno Road, Santa

Page 12 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 90



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Barbara, Service Account # 3-000-5321-34. Notify the Collection System Manager, Supervisor or a
CSMT |l of the power outage.

3. Continue to maintain normal levels in the wet well until power is restored and the lift station is oper-
ating normally. Return all pumps and equipment used to the District plant for cleaning and storage.

4. |If there is power at the station but the pump does not appear to be working, check the breakers in
the control power. Reset the breakers if needed and turn off the power to the pump to check if the
pump is clogged. Verify that power to the pump has been disconnected and clear the pump of any
blockage. Turn the power back on and verify that the pump is working. Run the pump in the “Manual
Position” until normal levels in the wet well is maintained and the lift station is operating normally.

5. Ifthe pump will not operate, take or have a 3” trash pump with sections of suction and discharge hose
taken to the lift station. Connect the suction hose from the pump to the by-pass pipe at the wet well
and connect the discharge hose from the pump to the force main by-pass valve. Operate the trash
pump as needed to maintain normal levels in the wet well until such time that the pump can be fixed
or replaced.

6. If there appears to be a blockage in the force main, disconnect the force main piping in the wet well
to expose the force main outlet. Clean the force main using the Vactor/Ramjet without skids from
District manhole 05T46 at Sherwood Drive towards the lift station. If a blockage is cleared, reassemble
the wet well piping and pump the wet well to normal operating levels. If the blockage cannot be
cleared, connect discharge hose from the 3” trash pump to manhole 05T46 at Sherwood Drive or to
a District Vactor/Ramjet truck. Maintain normal levels in the wet well until the blockage in the force
main can be cleared and the lift station is operating normally.

7. If aspill has oris occurring at the El Sueno Lift Station, take immediate action to prevent the spill from
entering into the drainage channel adjacent to the station. Notify the Collection System Manager and
begin to pump down the wet well as described above in Items 1-6. Begin initial calculation of the spill
and begin the notification process as required for the spill category that has occurred.

8. Once the spill has been contained and normal operations have resumed at the station, begin clean up
of the spill and pump or vacuum all water back into the District sewer system. Prepare a spill Report
for review by the Supervisor and continue calculation of the spill volume.

9. The Manager or Supervisor will continue with the notification process.

8. SPILL RESPONSE PROCEDURES (Ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), ATTACHMENT
D Element 6 page D-6)

8.1 SEWER OVERFLOW/BACKUP RESPONSE SUMMARY
The District will respond to spills as soon as feasible following notification of a spill/backup.

If it is not possible that the spill/backup is due to a failure in the District-owned/maintained sewer lines the Col-
lections System Crew performs the following:

Page 13 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 91



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Follows the instructions in the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

e [fthe customer is not home the Collections System Crew completes the Door Hanger and leaves it on the
customer’s door.

e |[f the customer is home the Collections System Crew:

0 Explains that the blockage is in the customer’s lateral and the District does not have legal author-
ity to maintain or perform work on privately owned laterals.

0 Recommends to the customer that they hire a licensed contractor to clear their line.

0 Givesthe customer the Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner pages from the Sanitary
Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

If it is possible that the spill/backup is due to a failure in the District-owned/maintained sewer lines the Collec-
tions System Crew:

e Follows the instructions in the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.
e Notifies Collection System Manager of the incident.
e Relieves blockage and cleans impacted areas.

e Forwards the completed Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook to the Collection System Man-
ager.

The Collection System Manager performs required regulatory reporting in accordance with the Sanitary Sewer
Spill/Backup Response Workbook’s Regulatory Reporting section.

If the overflow has impacted private property, the Collections System Crew:
e Follows the instructions in the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

e Provides the customer with forms and information as indicated in the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Re-
sponse Workbook.

e Forwards the completed Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook to the Collection System Man-
ager.

The Collection System Manager or designee reviews incident reports, claim form and other incident information
and forwards, as appropriate, to the Board Secretary.

The Board Secretary reviews incident reports, claim form and other incident information and forwards, as appro-
priate, to Carl Warren and Company.

The General Manager:

e Communicates with Carl Warren and Company to adjust and administer the claim to closure.

e Properly documents in writing all activities and communications before approving the final event file.

Page 14 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 92



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

8.2

FIRST RESPONDER PRIORITIES

The first responder’s priorities are:

8.3

Prompt response to spills.

To follow safe work practices.

To respond promptly with the appropriate and necessary equipment.
To reduce spill volume and contain the spill wherever feasible.

To restore the flow as soon as practicable.

To minimize public access to and/or contact with the spilled sewage.

To promptly notify the Collection System Manager of any spill. Upon confirmation of a spill, and if the
Collection System Manager or the Collections System Supervisor has not been contacted the first re-
sponder will inform the District General Manager of the spill.

To return the spilled sewage to the sewer system.

To restore the area to its original condition (or as close as possible). Collect information for the prevention
of future spills.

Properly document the spill and response activities on the forms provided in the Sanitary Sewer
Spill/Backup Response Workbook, including photos and/or video where practicable.

SAFETY

The first responder is responsible for following safety procedures at all times. Special safety precautions must be
observed when performing sewer work. There may be times when District personnel responding to a sewer sys-
tem event are not familiar with potential safety hazards. In all cases it is appropriate to take the time to discuss
safety issues, consider the order of work, and check safety equipment before beginning response activities.

If the first responders encounter access restrictions or unsafe conditions that prevent its compliance with spill
response requirements or monitoring requirements in this General Order, the District provides written documen-
tation of access restrictions and/or safety hazards in the corresponding required report.

8.4

INITIAL RESPONSE

The first responder must respond to the site of the spill/backup and visually check for potential sewer stoppages.
The first responder will:

Note arrival time at the site of the spill/backup.
Verify the existence of a public sewer system spill or backup.
Identify and assess the affected area and extent of spill.

Assess the spill location(s) and spread using photography, global positioning system (GPS), and other best
available tools.

Page 15 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 93



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Contact caller if time permits.

e Document the spill according to the requirements described in Section 10 of this SERP, including taking
photos and/or videos of overflowing manhole(s)/cleanout(s).

e Take steps to contain, recover, and return the spill to the sanitary sewer as feasible. For procedures refer
to the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

e Protect surface waters to the extent practicable. For procedures refer to the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup
Response Workbook.

e |Implement pre-planned coordination and collaboration with storm drain agencies and other utility agen-
cies/departments prior, during, and after a spill event.

8.5 INITIATE SPILL CONTAINMENT MEASURES

The first responder will attempt to contain as much of the spilled sewage as possible using the following steps:
e Determine the immediate destination of the overflowing sewage.

e Plug storm drains using air plugs, sandbags, and/or plastic mats to contain the spill, whenever appropriate.
If spilled sewage has made contact with the storm drainage system, attempt to contain the spilled sewage
by plugging downstream storm drainage facilities.

e Contain/direct the spilled sewage using dike/dam or sandbags.

e Vacuum retrieve sewage whenever practicable.

e Pump around the blockage/pipe failure.
Containment efforts will be documented. For procedures refer to the Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response
Workbook, form C-1.
8.6 RESTORE FLOW

Using the appropriate cleaning equipment, set up downstream of the blockage and hydro-clean upstream from
a clear manhole. Attempt to remove the blockage from the system and observe the flows to ensure that the
blockage does not reoccur downstream. If the blockage cannot be cleared within a reasonable time from arrival,
or sewer requires construction repairs to restore flow, then initiate containment and/or bypass pumping. If other
assistance is required, immediately contact the Collections System Manager. For procedures refer to the Sanitary
Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook.

8.7 EQUIPMENT

This section provides a list of specialized equipment that may be used to support this Spill Emergency Response

Plan.
Equipment Quantity Location
Ramjet 1 Vehicle Garage
Vactor 1 Vehicle Garage
Utility Truck 1 Vehicle Garage
F-250 Truck 1 Vehicle Garage

Page 16 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 94



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Flat Bed Truck with Crane 1 Vehicle Garage

Dump Trailer 1 Vehicle Garage

Silverado % Ton Pickup 1 Vehicle Garage

6" Trash Pump 2 Vehicle Garage

4” Trash Pump (Pioneer) 1 Firestone LS

3" Trash Pump 1 Vehicle Garage

2" Sump Pump 1 Vehicle Garage

Easement Machine 1 Vehicle Garage

Sandbags 100 Vehicle Garage

Hose for Trash Pump Various Sizes Vehicle Garage and Firestone LS
Gas & Diesel Cans Various Vehicle Garage

Hand Rods 200 Feet Vehicle Garage and Utility Truck
CCTVIVan 1 Vehicle Garage

Push/Portable Camera 1 C/S Storage Office

Spill Containment Kits Various Vehicle Garage and Vehicles

Standard operating procedures for equipment that may be necessary in the event of a sanitary sewer overflow or
backup can be found on the Smart SOP application and at various facility locations.

9. RECOVERY AND CLEANUP (Ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6,
ATTACHMENT D, Page D-6)

The recovery and cleanup phase begins immediately after the flow has been restored and the spilled sewage has been
contained to the extent possible. The spill recovery and cleanup procedures are described in the following sections.

9.1 ESTIMATE THE FLOW AND VOLUME OF SPILLED SEWAGE

A variety of approaches exist for estimating the volume of a sanitary sewer spill. The Collections System Crew
members should use the method most appropriate to the sewer overflow in question and reference the Sanitary
Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook which provides four (4) methods:

e Eyeball Estimation Method
e Duration and Flow Rate Calculation Method
e Area/Volume Method

e Upstream Connections Method
In addition, the following will be documented on the Sewer Spill Report form:

1. Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates of the system location where the spill originated. If a
single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates for the appearance
point closest to the failure point and describe each additional appearance point in the spill appearance
point explanation field;

Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;
Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;

Page 17 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 95



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

4. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If yes:
e Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;

e Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry location(s);

e Estimated spill volume that reached the drainage conveyance system;

e Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system;

e Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system

e Estimated spill volume discharged to a groundwater infiltration basin or facility, if applicable;

e Estimated spill travel time from the point of entry into the drainage conveyance system to the
point of discharge into the receiving water.

5. Estimated total spill volume recovered.
9.2 RECOVERY OF SPILLED SEWAGE

Vacuum up and/or pump the spilled sewage and wash down water and discharge it back into the sanitary sewer
system. Thoroughly recover and dispose of sewage and wash down water.

9.3 CLEAN-UP AND DISINFECTION

Clean up procedures will be implemented to reduce the potential for human health issues and adverse environ-
mental impacts associated with a spill event. The procedures described are for dry weather conditions and will
be modified as required for wet weather conditions. Where cleanup is beyond the capabilities of District staff, a
cleanup contractor will be used.

Private Property

District crews clean up when the property damage is minor in nature and is outside of private building
dwellings, such as in front, side and backyards, easements, etc. The District will offer the services of a
professional cleaning company to provide “clean and sanitize services” when areas such as showers and
tubs have been affected. In all other cases, affected property owners can call a water damage restoration
contractor to complete the cleanup and restoration. If the overflow into property is the definite cause of
District system failure, the property owner can call out a water damage restoration contractor to complete
the cleanup and restoration. In all cases, property owners may file a claim with the District.

Hard Surface Areas

Collect all signs of sewage solids and sewage-related material either by protected hand or with the use
of rakes and brooms. Wash down the affected area with clean water and/or deozyme or similar non-
toxic biodegradable surface disinfectant until the water runs clear. The flushing volume will be approxi-
mately three times the estimated volume of the spill. Take steps to contain and vacuum up the
wastewater. Allow area to dry. Repeat the process if additional cleaning is required.

Landscaped and Unimproved Natural Vegetation

Collect all signs of sewage solids and sewage-related material either by protected hand or with the use
of rakes and brooms. Wash down the affected area with clean water until the water runs clear. The
flushing volume will be approximately three times the estimated volume of the spill. Either contain or
vacuum up the wash water so that none is released. Allow the area to dry. Repeat the process if addi-
tional cleaning is required.

Page 18 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 96



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Natural Waterways

For spills of any volume of sewage that are likely to reach water of the State, immediately notify Santa
Barbara County Environmental Health Services. For spills of 1,000 gallon or more that are likely to reach
water of the State, immediately notify CalOES.

Wet Weather Modifications

Collect all signs of sewage solids and sewage-related material either by protected hand or with the use
of rakes and brooms. Omit flushing and sampling during heavy storm events (i.e., sheet of rainwater
across paved surfaces) with heavy runoff where flushing is not required and sampling would not provide
meaningful results.

9.4 PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

The District shall post and maintain appropriate public notification signs and place barricades to keep vehicle and
pedestrian traffic away from contact with the spilled sewage as necessary. The signs and other public notices will
not be removed until the Santa Barbara County Department of Public Health or other agency with jurisdiction over
the matter has determined there is no further risk to public health and the environment.

The area and warning signs, once posted, will be checked every day to ensure that they are still in place. Photo-
graphs of sign placement will be taken.

The District will provide notification to members of the for any spill in excess of fifty thousand (50,000) gallons if
the spill reaches a surface water.

When contact with the local media is deemed necessary by regulating agencies, the General Manager/District
Engineer or their designee will provide the media with all revelvant information.

10. WATER QUALITY (Ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6, Attachment A -
DEFINITIONs page A-5, Attachment E1 2.3 through 2.4 pages E1-5 through E1-8)

10.1  SURFACE WATERS OF CONCERN

There are several identified Waters of the State within the District service area. The following are of particular
concern as several may have flow during the summer and extended periods of little to no rain. All will flow during
and immediately after a rain event.

Surface waters of particular concern are:

e Goleta Beach

o Goleta Slough

e Pacific Ocean

e Atascadero Creek
e SanJose Creek

e las Vegas Creek

e Cieneguitas Creek

Page 19 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 97



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Hospital Creek

e San Antonio Creek

e Maria Ygnacio Creek
e San Pedro Creek

10.2 WATER QUALITY SAMPLING AND TESTING

For sewage spills in which an estimated 50,000 gallons or greater are discharged into a surface water, the District
will conduct the following water quality sampling as soon as possible but no later than 18 hours after the District’s
knowledge of a potential discharge to a surface water. Collect one water sample, each day of the duration of the
spill, at:

e The DCS-001 location as described in section 10.7 (Receiving Water Sampling Locations) below, if sewage
discharges to a surface water via a drainage conveyance system; and/or

e Each of the three receiving water sampling locations in section 10.7 (Receiving Water Sampling Locations)
below;

If the receiving water has no flow during the duration of the spill, the District must report “No Sampling Due To No
Flow” for its receiving water sampling locations.

The District staff collecting the samples will complete the Chain of Custody prior to transferring ownership of the
samples to the District Laboratory or FGL Environmental or Qilfield Environmental and Compliance (OEC).

The lab shall analyze the collected receiving water samples for the following constituents:

e Ammonia

e Total and fecal coliforms
e Enterococcus

e E.coli

Dependent on the receiving water(s), sampling of bacterial indicators shall be sufficient to determine post-spill
(after the spill) compliance with the water quality objectives and bacterial standards of the California Ocean Plan
or the California Inland Surface Water Enclosed Bays, and Estuaries Plan, including the frequency and/or number
of post-spill receiving water samples as may be specified in the applicable plans.

The District shall collect and analyze additional samples as required by the applicable Regional Water Board Exec-
utive Officer or designee.

10.3  LAB SELECTION

Analytical Lab

Samples collected for spill response and background monitoring purposes will be analyzed at the District Labora-
tory or FGL Environmental or Qilfield Environmental and Compliance (OEC), which are accredited through the
California State Water Resources Control Board Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP). ELAP
provides evaluation and accreditation of environmental testing laboratories to ensure the quality of analytical
data used for regulatory purposes to meet the requirements of the State's drinking water, wastewater, shellfish,
food, and hazardous waste programs. The State agencies that monitor the environment use the analytical data
from these accredited labs. The ELAP-accredited laboratories have demonstrated capability to analyze environ-
mental samples using approved methods.

Page 20 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 98



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Getting Samples to the Lab
At all times, sample hold times identified below will be observed in accordance with the following:

. . Required Mini-
Analytical Maximum . . .
. . Container Required Preservative mum
Parameter Holding Time
Type Amount
Ammonia (NH3 as N); 28 days Plastic / Glass | H,SO4 pH <2 +0-6°C 200 mL
SM 4500NH3 B/C or B/G
Coliform, Total / Fecal; 8 hours — Plastic (sterile) | Na,S,03 + 0-10°C; 100 mL
SM 9221 B/E wastewater/storm- No regulatory temp.
water req. for drinking water)
30 hours — drinking
water
Coliform, Total / E.Coli; 30 hours — drinking Plastic (sterile) | Na,S,03 + 0-10°C; 100 mL
SM 9223 B (Present/Ab- | water No regulatory temp.
sent or Quantitray) req. for DW
Enterococcus by Enter- 8 hours Plastic (sterile) | Na;S,03 + 0-10°C 100 mL
olert

Once samples are collected, they will be transported by the Collections System Crew to the lab to be processed.

10.4 WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS SPECIFICATIONS

Spill monitoring must be representative of the monitored activity (40 Code of Federal Regulations section
122.41(j)(1)).

Sufficiently Sensitive Methods

Sample analysis must be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test methods approved under 40 Code of
Federal Regulations Part 136 for the sample analysis of pollutants. For the purposes of this General Order, a
method is sufficiently sensitive when the minimum level of the analytical method approved under 40 Code of
Federal Regulations Part 136 is at or below the receiving water pollutant criteria.

Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program-Accredited Laboratories

The analysis of water quality samples required per this General Order must be performed by a labora-

tory that has accreditation pursuant to Article 3(commencing with section 100825) of Chapter 4 of Part 1 of
Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code. (Water Code section 13176(a).) The State Water Board accredits
laboratories through its Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP).

10.5 RECEIVING WATER SAMPLING LOCATIONS

The District shall collect receiving water samples at the following locations.

Sampling of Flow in Drainage Conveyance System (DCS) Prior to Discharge

Sampling Location Sampling Location Description

DCS-001 A point in a drainage conveyance system before the drainage con-
veyance system flow discharges into a receiving water.

Page 21 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 99



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Receiving Surface Water Sampling (RSW)*

Sampling Location Sampling Location Description

RSW-001: A point in the receiving water where sewage initially enters the re-
Point of Discharge ceiving water.

RSW-001U: A point in the receiving water, upstream of the point of sewage dis-
Upstream of Point of charge, to capture ambient conditions absent of sewage discharge
Discharge impacts.

Sampling Location Sampling Location Description

RSW-001D: A point in the receiving water, downstream of the point of sew-
Downstream of age discharge, where the spill material is fully mixed with the receiv-
Point of Discharge ing water.

10.6 STREAM VELOCITY MEASUREMENTS

If sampling is performed after the spill has stopped, the velocity of the impacted surface water must be deter-
mined to estimate spill travel time and select an accurate Downstream sample location.

10.7 SAMPLE TYPES

Grab Samples

Grab samples are appropriate for the characterization of surface waters at a particular time and place, to provide
information about minimum and maximum concentrations, and to allow for the collection of variable sample
volume.

Grab samples may be collected directly into the sample container, or a clean decontaminated intermediate con-
tainer may be used if a wading sample is not possible or safe. If an intermediate container is used, when in the
field, double rinse the sampling device (bucket, automatic sampler) with sample water prior to collecting the sam-
ple and be sure to discard rinse water downstream of where sample will be collected. If samples are collected in
a bucket and distributed into a consolidation collection container, swirl the contents of the bucket as it is being
poured into the consolidation collection container to avoid settling of solids (and pour in back-and-forth pattern
-e.g., 1-2-3-3-2-1).

e Grab Sample: A grab sample is defined as an individual sample collected at a given time. Grab samples
represent only the condition that exists at the time the sample is collected (US EPA 1977).
e Surface Grab Sample: A sample collected at the water surface (i.e., skimming) directly into the sample

container or into an intermediate container such as a clean bucket. A single or discrete sample collected
at a single location.

! The District must use its best professional judgment to determine the upstream and downstream distances based on
receiving water flow, accessibility to upstream/downstream waterbody banks, and size of visible sewage plume.

Page 22 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 100



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

10.8 SAMPLE LABELING AND CHAIN OF CUSTODY PROCEDURES

At a minimum, the following grab samples will be collected:

e Upstream: A pointin the receiving water, upstream of the point of sewage discharge, to capture ambi-
ent conditions absent of sewage discharge impacts.

e Source: A point in the receiving water where sewage initially enters the receiving water.

e See Section 10.6 for information on determining velocity of the surface water in order to determine the
Source sample location.

e “Downstream” of spill: A point in the receiving water, downstream of the point of sewage dis-
charge, where the spill material is fully mixed with the receiving water. This location will vary with the
velocity of the surface water to be sampled (see Section 10.6).

Sample labels shall be completed for each sample, using waterproof ink, as described in Section 10.5.

Photos or video of each sample location will be taken, properly labeled with date, time, and view direction and a
map of the photo locations completed. Photos and videos shall include relevant landmarks to identify sampling
locations and their surroundings.

Due to the evidentiary nature of samples collected during enforcement investigations, possession must be trace-
able from the time the samples are collected until they are analyzed. To maintain and document sample posses-
sion, a Surface Water Sample Chain of Custody Record (see Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook) must be
completed. A sample is under custody if:

e |tisin your possession, or
e Itisin your view, after being in your possession, or
e It was in your possession and under your control to prevent tampering, or

e ltisin a designated secure area.

As few people as possible should handle samples. The person taking the samples is personally responsible for the
care and custody of the samples collected until they are transferred or dispatched properly.

Samples are accompanied by a chain of custody record. When transferring the possession of samples, the indi-
viduals relinquishing and receiving will sign, date, and note the time on the record. This record documents sample
custody transfer from the sampler, often through another person, to the analyst at the laboratory. The samples
are typically transferred to the sample-receiving custodian at the laboratory.
10.9 SAMPLING EQUIPMENT
The following are examples of sampling equipment used by the District:

e Sampling pole with fixed container

e Sampling pole with removable container

e Sampling pail and rope

e Stream velocity meter

Page 23 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 101



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

e Spill Sampling Kit

10.10 SPILL SAMPLING KIT
Spill Sampling Kit Inventory:
e Cooler
e Sampling SOP from Sewer Spill Workbook
e  Sampling Workbook
e Pen/marker
e labels
e Chain of Custody forms
e Ice Packs
e  Ammonia Sample Bottles - 500mL minimum of 4
e Coliform, Enterococcus & E Coli Bottles - 125 mL -minimum of 12
e Latex/rubber gloves
e Safety glasses/goggles
e Sampling pole
e Verify that the District phone is on hand and ready to take pictures

10.11 DECONTAMINATION PROCEDURES

Removing or neutralizing contaminants from sampling equipment minimizes the likelihood of sample cross
contamination, reduces or eliminates transfer of contaminants to clean areas, and prevents the mixing of
incompatible substances.

Gross contamination can be removed by low pressure water cleaning and physical removal. Decontamination will
consist of physical removal, low pressure rinse with use of brushes as needed and air dry.

10.12 SAMPLING PROCEDURES
10.12.1. Sample Location and Identification Procedures

Samples will be collected by the Collections System Crew or other designated persons. It is impossible to
establish hard and fast rules concerning sampling locations. However, the following general guidelines
should be applied whenever surface waters are sampled:

e The sampling location should be far enough upstream or downstream of confluences or point
sources so that the surface water and spill volume is well mixed. Natural turbulence can be used
to provide a good mixture.

e Samples should be collected at a location where the velocity is sufficient to prevent deposition of
solids, and to the extent practical, should be in straight reach having uniform flow. All flow in the
reach should be represented, so divided flow areas should be avoided and samples should be
taken towards the middle of the reach where feasible.

e Sampler must always stand downstream of the collection vessel, and sample “into the current.”
Care must be taken to avoid introducing re-suspended sediment into the sample.

Page 24 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 102



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

10.12.2 Surface Water Sampling Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)

The Surface Water Sampling SOP, Section F in the Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook, provides step-
by-step procedures to collect samples and deliver them for analysis in accordance with State Water
Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6.

10.12.3 Follow Up Sampling

Sampling will be repeated as deemed necessary, or as directed by the RWQCB or the Santa Barbara County
Department of Public Health, until such time as one of the following criteria have been met:
e The Santa Barbara County Department of Public Health or the RWQCB indicates follow up
sampling is no longer required, or
e Both the ammonia and bacteria levels downstream are approximately equal to or less than
the upstream levels.

10.13 SAFETY AND ACCESS EXCEPTIONS

If the District encounters access restrictions or unsafe conditions that prevents its compliance with spill response
requirements or monitoring requirements in this General Order, the District shall provide documentation of
access restrictions and/or safety hazards in the corresponding required report.

Personal safety of staff engaged in any fieldwork activity (e.g. in transit, walking or hiking, and any field activities
while at the sample site) is of primary importance. Staff should never place themselves in dangerous or risky
situations. Any hazards that are known by field personnel should be communicated to other members of the field
crew.

Fieldwork should be postponed if there is indication that engagement in the field activity could cause bodily harm.
Working during lightning storms, in heavy vegetation or poison oak, near aggressive wildlife or domestic animals,
traversing steep or rugged terrain, unstable slopes or creek banks, near swiftly moving water or potential flash
flood conditions, or during severe weather conditions or evacuation warnings/orders is not considered "normal
risk." If any member of the field crew is uncomfortable with a reasonable self-determined hazardous field condi-
tion, it is that person’s responsibility to bring this to the attention of the onsite field supervisor or their supervisor.
A “reasonable self-determined hazardous field condition” is defined as other than normal risk. Supervisors shall
not dismiss any person’s spoken concerns that field conditions are too hazardous to complete the work assign-
ment.

The person taking the samples must have adequate protection, including protective clothing. They must wear
gloves, as protection against chemical and/or bacteriological hazards, while they are sampling or handling samples
that are known or suspected to be hazardous (e.g. visible solids or sheens, downstream from sewage spills, etc.),
or if hands have open wounds. The type of gloves worn shall be determined by the sampling circumstance and
type of pollutants expected — for instance longer gloves are needed when samples must be taken well below the
surface.

When in a boat or wading in a stream and where the danger of drowning exists, a personal floatation device shall
be worn at all times in addition to following the other requirements of Title 8 CCR 1602 Working Over or Near
Water. Other protective measures shall be taken in accordance with District safety procedures.

Page 25 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 103



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Upon arrival at a sampling site, safety equipment such as signs, cones, lights, etc. shall be set out as appropriate.
Vehicles shall be parked in locations and directions to minimize traffic disruption and avoid sample contamination.
Photos should be ultimately taken of the placement of all safety equipment and signage.

The following guidelines apply to all fieldwork by District staff.

e No sample or measurement is worth the risk of injury.

e All staff shall use proper personnel protective gear as appropriate for the incident (e.g., life preservers,
gloves, goggles, etc.)

e Field sampling crews should consist of at least two members unless otherwise approved by a supervisor.
e Be conscious of the whereabouts of rattlesnakes, mountain lions, and other dangerous animals.

e Open body wounds are entry sites for infection; take the necessary precautions for self-protection.
e If there is storm activity in the work area, wait for safer conditions to develop or postpone the sampling.
e Do not sample at night without approval from your supervisor.

e Do not trespass on private property or posted restricted public lands without prior permission and
written approval from property owner or administrator.

e |f strange or suspicious looking people are in the work area, either wait for them to leave or postpone
the work to a later time. Do not force confrontations with strangers and back away from any confron-
tations with the public. Be courteous and understanding of public concerns of the situation.

e Take the necessary precautions against exposure to harmful weather conditions such as heat, wind,
cold, rain, etc.

e Carefully evaluate a given on-site situation to determine if the task can be performed safely.

e Streams will not be entered unless the responding employees have the necessary protective footwear
(e.g. rubber boots, waders) and the footwear does not pose an additional risk to worker safety (e.g. wad-
ers filling with water if the employee slips in the stream).

e Streams will not be entered if deemed unsafe to so by the most senior employee on the responding crew
and if entered, will only be done so in accordance with Title 8 CCR Section 1602 Work Over or Near Water.

10.14 SPILL TECHNICAL REPORT: Spill Technical Report for Individual Category 1 Spill in which 50,000 Gallons
or Greater Discharged into a Surface Water

For any spill in which 50,000 gallons or greater discharged into a surface water, within 45 calendar days of the
spill end date, the Collection System Manager shall submit a Spill Technical Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database. The Spill Technical Report, at minimum, must include the following information:

1. Spill causes and circumstances, including at minimum:
e Complete and detailed explanation of how and when the spill was discovered,;

¢ Photographs illustrating the spill origin, the extent and reach of the spill, drainage conveyance
system entrance and exit, receiving water, and post-cleanup site conditions;

Page 26 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 104



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

¢ Diagram showing the spill failure point, appearance point(s), the spill flow path, and ultimate
destinations;

¢ Detailed description of the methodology employed, and available data used to calculate the
discharge volume and, if applicable, the recovered spill volume;

e Detailed description of the spill cause(s);

e Description of the pipe material, and estimated age of the pipe material, at the failure location;
e Description of the impact of the spill;

e Copy of original field crew records used to document the spill; and

e Historical maintenance records for the failure location.

2. District’s response to the spill:
e Chronological narrative description of all actions taken by the District to terminate the spill;

e Explanation of how the Sewer System Management Plan Spill Emergency Response Plan was
implemented to respond to and mitigate the spill; and

e Final corrective action(s) completed and a schedule for planned corrective actions, including:

O Local regulatory enforcement action taken against an illicit discharge in response to this
spill, as applicable,

0 Identifiable system modifications, and operation and maintenance program modifica-
tions needed to prevent repeated spill occurrences, and

0 Necessary modifications to the Emergency Spill Response Plan to incorporate lessons
learned in responding to and mitigating the spill.

3. Water Quality Monitoring, including at minimum:
e Description of all water quality sampling activities conducted;
e List of pollutant and parameters monitored, sampled and analyzed; as required in Section 10.2.
e Laboratory results, including laboratory reports;
e Detailed location map illustrating all water quality sampling points; and
e Other regulatory agencies receiving sample results (if applicable).

5. Evaluation of spill impact(s), including a description of short-term and long-term impact(s) to beneficial
uses of the surface water.

Page 27 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 105



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

10.15 TRAINING

Training will be provided in accordance with the table below:

Surface Water Sampling Training Program

Who Is Trained to Collect Sur- | Collection System staff / Laboratory and authorized Operations staff

face Water Samples?

Training Curriculum At a minimum, training shall include:

e The Goleta Sanitary District Water Quality Monitoring Plan

e Sampling technique, including hands on practice

o Applicable sampling equipment calibration, use and decontami-
nation procedures, including hands on practice

e Sampling safety

e Completion of applicable Sampling Equipment Calibra-
tion/Maintenance Log, Surface Water Sampling Report and
Chain of Custody

Training Documentation CBT records for Collection System staff / ELAP & TNI records for Labora-

tory and Operations staff.

Refresher Training Frequency | Annual

Who is Responsible for Ensur- | Collection System Manager for Collection System staff / Lab Director

ing Training Occurs? for Laboratory and Operations staff

Required Training Records CBT records for Collection System staff / ELAP & TNI records for Labora-

tory and Operations staff.

Who is Responsible for Main- | Collection System Manager for Collection System staff / Lab Director

taining Records? for Laboratory and Operations staff

11. NOTIFICATION, REPORTING, MONITORING AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS
ref. ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ Attachment E-1 and E-2

11.1 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

All reporting required in this General Order must be submitted electronically to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database (https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov), unless specified otherwise in this General Order. Electronic
reporting may solely be conducted by a Legally Responsible Official or Data Submitter(s) previously designated by
the Legally Responsible Official, as required in section 5.8 (Designation of Data Submitters) of the State Water
Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR).

The District shall report any information that is protected by the Homeland Security Act, by email to
SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov, with a brief explanation of the protection provided by the Homeland
Security Act for the subject report to be protected from unauthorized disclosure and/or public access, and for
official Water Board regulatory purposes only.

Refer to APPENDIX A for detailed reporting requirements by spill category.

Page 28 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 106



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan

7-17-25

11.2 REGULATOR REQUIRED NOTIFICATIONS

11.2.1 Spill Category 1: Spills to Surface Waters

Spill Requirement

Due

Method

Notification

Within two (2) hours of the District’s
knowledge of a Category 1 spill of 1,000 gal-
lons or greater, discharging or threatening
to discharge to surface waters notify the
California Office of Emergency Services and
obtain a notification control number.

California Office of Emergency
Services at: (800) 852-7550

(Section 1 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

Monitoring

* Conduct spill-specific monitoring;

* Conduct water quality sampling of the
receiving water within 18 hours of initial
knowledge of spill of 50,000 gallons or
greater to surface waters.

(Section 2 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

Reporting

e Submit Draft Spill Report within three
(3) business days of the District’s
knowledge of the spill;

* Submit Certified Spill Report within 15
calendar days of the spill end date;

¢ Submit Technical Report within 45 cal-
endar days after the spill end date for a
Category 1 spill in which 50,000 gallons
or greater discharged to surface waters;
and

¢ Submit Amended Spill Report within 90
calendar days after the spill end date.

(Section 3.1 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

11.2.2 Spill Category 2: Spills of 1,000 Gallons or Greater That Do Not Discharge to Surface Waters

Spill Require-
ments

Due

Method

Notification

Within two (2) hours of the District’s
knowledge of a Category 2 spill of 1,000 gal-
lons or greater threatening to discharge to
waters of the State: Notify California Office
of Emergency Services and obtain a notifi-
cation control number.

California Office of Emergency
Services at: (800) 852-7550

(Section 1 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

Monitoring

Conduct spill-specific monitoring.

(Section 2 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

Page 29 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 107



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan

7-17-25

Reporting

Submit Draft Spill Report within three
(3) business days of the District’s
knowledge of the spill;

Submit Certified Spill Report within 15
calendar days of the spill end date; and

Submit Amended Spill Report within 90
calendar days after the spill end date.

(Section 3.2 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

11.2.3 Spill Category 3: Spills of Equal or Greater than 50 Gallons and Less than 1,000 Gallons That
Does Not Discharge to Surface Waters

Spill Requirements

Due

Method

Notification Not Applicable Not Applicable
Monitoring Conduct spill-specific monitoring. (Section 2 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)
Reporting Submit monthly Certified Spill Report | (Section 3.3 and 3.5 of At-

to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database within 30 calendars
days after the end of the month in
which the spills occur; and

¢ Submit Amended Spill Reports within 90

calendar days after the Certified Spill
Report due date.

tachment E1 of the State Wa-
ter Board ORDER WQ 2022-
0103-DWQ)

Page 30 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 108



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan

7-17-25

11.2.4 Spill Category 4: Spills Less Than 50 Gallons That Do Not Discharge to Surface Waters

Spill Requirements

Due

Method

Notification Not Applicable Not Applicable

Monitoring Conduct spill-specific monitoring. (Section 2 of Attachment E1
of the State Water Board
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ)

Reporting ¢ If, during any calendar month, Cate- (Section 3.4, 3.6, 3.7 and 4.4

gory 4 spills occur, certify monthly, the
estimated total spill volume exiting the
sanitary sewer system, and the total
number of all Category 4 spills into the
online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database, within 30 days after the end
of the calendar month in which the
spills occurred.

* Upload and certify a report, in an ac-
ceptable digital format, of all Category
4 spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database, by February
1 after the end of the calendar year
in which the spills occur.

of Attachment E1 of the State
Water Board ORDER WQ
2022-0103-DWQ)

11.3 COMPLAINT RECORDS

The District maintains records of all complaints received whether or not they result in sanitary sewer overflows.
These complaint records include, but are not limited to, records documenting how the District responded to no-
tifications of spills. Each complaint record must, at a minimum, include the following information:

e Date, time, and method of notification,

e Date and time the complainant first noticed the spill, if available,

e Narrative description of the complaint, including any information the caller provided regarding whether
the spill has reached surface waters or a drainage conveyance system, if available,

e Complainant’s contact information, if available, and

e Final resolution of the complaint;

All complaint records will be maintained for a minimum of five years whether or not they result in a spill. Spill
files (field notes, spill/Backup Response Workbook) are kept electronically and in hard copy in the Collection

System Manager’s office.

Page 31 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 109



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

12. POST-SPILL ASSESSMENTS OF SPILL RESPONSE ACTIVITIES
(ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6, ATTACHMENT D, Page D-6)

Every spill event is an opportunity to evaluate the District adherence to response and reporting procedures and effec-
tiveness of the response. Each spill event is unique, with its own elements and challenges including volume, cause, loca-
tion, terrain, climate, and other parameters.

As soon as possible after spill events all the participants, from the person who received the call to the last person to leave
the site, will meet to review the procedures used and to discuss what worked and where improvements could be made
in responding to and mitigating future spill events. The results of the debriefing will be documented and tracked to ensure
the action items are completed as scheduled.

12.1

FAILURE ANALYSIS INVESTIGATION

The objective of the failure analysis investigation is to determine the “root cause” of the spill and to identify
corrective action(s) needed that will reduce or eliminate future potential for the spill to recur or for other spills
to occur.

The investigation will include reviewing all relevant data to determine appropriate corrective action(s) for the
line segment. The investigation may include:

Reviewing and completing the Sanitary Sewer Spill Report and any other documents related to the inci-
dent

Reviewing the incident timeline and other documentation regarding the incident
Reviewing communications with the reporting party and witness

Reviewing volume estimate, volume recovered estimate, volume estimation assumptions and associated
drawings

Reviewing available photographs
Interviewing staff that responded to the spill
Reviewing past maintenance records
Reviewing past CCTV records,

Conducting a CCTV inspection to determine the condition of all line segments immediately following the
spill and reviewing the video and logs,

Reviewing any Fats, Qils, and Grease (FOG) and/or root-related information or results
Post spill debrief records

Interviews with the public at the spill location

The product of the failure analysis investigation will be the determination of the root cause and the identification
and scheduling of the corrective actions. The Collection System Failure Analysis Form (in Sanitary Sewer
Spill/Backup Response Workbook) will be used to document the investigation.

Page 32 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 110



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

13. SPILL RESPONSE TRAINING
(ref. State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6, Attachment D 4.3 page D-5 and
Element 6 page D-6

This section provides information on the training that is required to support this Spill Emergency Response Plan.

13.1 INITIAL AND ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING

All District personnel who may have a role in responding to, reporting, and/or mitigating a sewer system overflow
will receive training on the contents of this SERP. All new employees will receive training before they are placed
in a position where they may have to respond. Current employees will receive annual refresher training on this
SERP and the procedures to be followed. The District will document all training.

Affected employees will receive annual training on the following topics by knowledgeable trainers:

The requirements of State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR), Element 6
The District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan procedures and practice drills

Containment and cleanup methods

Researching and documenting Sanitary Sewer Spill Start Times

Skilled estimation of spill volume for field operators

Impacted Surface Waters: Sample location selection, sampling, and documentation procedures
Electronic CIWQS reporting procedures for staff submitting data

State Water Resources Control Board Employee Knowledge Expectations

Through SWRCB Employee Knowledge Expectations training, the employee will be able to answer the following:

1.

2.

Please briefly describe your name and job title.

Please describe for us approximately when you started in this field and how long you have worked
for your agency.

Please expand on your current position duties and role in responding in the field to any spill com-
plaints.

Please describe your SOPs used to respond/mitigate spills when they occur.

Describe any training your agency provides or sends you to for conducting spill volume estimates.
We are interested in learning more about how your historical spill response activities have worked
in the field. We understand from discussions with management earlier that you use the SERP from

the SSMP. Please elaborate on how you implement and utilize the procedures in the plan.

Historically, before any recent changes, can you please walk us through how you would typically
receive and respond to any spill complaints in the field?

Page 33 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 111



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

8. Can you tell us who is responsible for estimating spill volumes discharged? If it is you, please de-
scribe how you go about estimating the spill volume that you record on the work order/service
request forms?

9. What other information do you collect or record other than what is written on the work order form?

10. Describe if and when you ever talk with people that call in spills (either onsite or via telephone) to
further check out when the spill might have occurred based on what they or others know? If you
do this, can you tell us where this information is recorded?

11. We understand you may be instructed to take pictures of some sewer spills/backups into struc-
tures. Other than these spills, when else would you typically take any pictures of a spill?

12. Please walk us through anything else you’d like to add to help us better understand how your field
crews respond and mitigate spill complaints.

13.2 SPILL RESPONSE DRILLS

Periodic training drills or field exercises will be held to ensure that employees are up to date on these proce-
dures, equipment is in working order, and the required materials are readily available. The training drills will
cover scenarios typically observed during sewer related emergencies (e.g. mainline blockage, mainline failure,
and lateral blockage). The results and the observations during the drills will be recorded and action items will
be tracked to ensure completion.

13.3 SPILL TRAINING RECORD KEEPING
Records will be kept of all training that is provided in support of this SERP for 5 years. The records for all sched-
uled training courses and for each overflow emergency response training event will include date, time, place,
content, name of trainer(s), names and titles of attendees, brief narrative description of the training, including
training method(s) and training materials and/or equipment used.
13.4 CONTRACTORS WORKING ON DISTRICT SEWER FACILITIES
All contractors working on District sewer facilities will be required to follow the spill response instructions on
the Sanitary Sewer Spill Response Instructions for Contractors (Appendix D). Additional training may be
required depending on the nature of the work on any or all of the following:
* The requirements of State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR, Element 6
* Communication procedures to District in the event a spill is caused or witnessed
* The District’s Spill Emergency Response Plan procedures and practice drills

e Skilled estimation of spill volume for field operators

* Electronic CIWQS reporting procedures for staff submitting data

Page 34 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 112



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

14. SEWER BACKUP INTO/ONTO PRIVATE PROPERTY CLAIMS HANDLING POLICY

Itis the policy of the District that a claims form shall be offered to anyone wishing to file a claim. The following procedures
will be observed for all sewer overflows/backups into/onto private property:

e District staff will offer a District claim form irrespective of fault whenever it is possible that the sanitary sewer
backup may have resulted from an apparent blockage in the District-owned sewer lines or whenever a District
customer requests a claim form. The claim may later be rejected if subsequent investigations into the cause of
the loss indicate the District was not at fault.

e |tisthe responsibility of the Collections System Crew to gather information regarding the incident and notify the
Collection System Manager or his/her designee.

e |t is the responsibility of the General Manager or their designee to review all claims and to oversee the adjust-
ment and administration of the claim to closure.

15. AUTHORITY

This SERP is written in accordance with the State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ (SSSWDR).

16. APPENDICES

Reporting Requirements by Spill Category
Service Call Form
Door Hanger

Sanitary Sewer Spill Response Instructions for Contractors

m o 0O ® >

Sanitary Sewer Spill/Backup Response Workbook

Page 35 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 113



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

APPENDIX A:

Reporting Requirements by Spill Category

Page 36 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 114



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL CATEGORY 1 SPILL REPORTING

Draft Spill Report

Within three (3) business days of the District’s knowledge of a Category 1 spill, the District shall submit a Draft
Spill Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.
The Draft Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following items:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of District contact person to respond to spill-specific
questions;

Spill location name;
Date and time the District was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
Operator arrival time;

Estimated spill start date and time;

o vk~ w N

Date and time the District notified the California Office of Emergency Services, and the assigned control
number;

7. Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates of the system location where the spill originated; If a sin-
gle spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates for the appearance point
closest to the failure point and describe each additional appearance point in the spill appearance point
explanation field;

8. Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;
9. Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;
10. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:
a. Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;
b. Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry location(s);
c. Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system;
d. Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system;
e. Description and photographs of all discharge point(s) into the surface water;
f. Estimated spill volume that discharged to surface waters; and
g. Estimated total spill volume recovered.

Certified Spill Report

Within 15 calendar days of the spill end date, the District shall submit a Certified Spill Report for Category 1
spills, to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Upon completion of the Certified Spill Report, the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will issue a
final spill event identification number.

Page 37 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 115



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

(Category 1 continued)

The Certified Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following mandatory information in addition to all
information in the Draft Spill Report:

1.

© 0 N vk

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

16.
17.

Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates if available, that represent the
full spread and reach of the spill;

Spill end date and time;

Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including at a minimum:

a. The methodology, assumptions and type of data relied upon, such as supervisory control and
data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information used to esti-
mate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill recovered (if any volume of
the spill was recovered), and

b. The methodology(ies), assumptions and type of data relied upon for estimations of the spill start
time and the spill end time;

Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);

System failure location (for example, main, lateral, pump station, etc.);

Description of the pipe material, and estimated age of the pipe material, at the failure location;
Description of the impact of the spill;

Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill containment and cleanup
efforts;

. Description of spill corrective action, including steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent

reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of major milestones for those steps;
Spill response completion date;
Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill;
Reasons for an ongoing investigation (as applicable) and the expected date of completion;
Name and type of receiving water body(s);
Description of the water body(s), including but not limited to:
a. Observed impacts on aquatic life,
b. Public closure, restricted public access, temporary restricted use, and/or posted health warnings
due to spill,
c. Responsible entity for closing/restricting use of water body, and
d. Number of days closed/restricted as a result of the spill.
Whether or not the spill was located within 1,000 feet of a municipal surface water intake; and
If water quality samples were collected, identify sample locations and the parameters the water quality
samples were analyzed for. If no samples were taken, Not Applicable shall be selected.

Page 38 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 116



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

(Category 1 continued)

Amended Certified Spill Reports

The District shall update or add additional information to a Certified Spill Report within 90 calendar days of the
spill end date by amending the report or by adding an attachment to the Spill Report in the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System Database. The District shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the District shall contact the State Water Board at SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov
to request to amend a Spill Report. The Legally Responsible Official shall submit justification for why the
additional information was not reported within the Amended Spill Report due date.

Page 39 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 117



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

Draft Spill Report

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL CATEGORY 2 SPILL REPORTING

Within three (3) business days of the District’s knowledge of a Category 2 spill, the District shall submit a Draft
Spill Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

The Draft Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following items:

1.

o vk~ w N

8.
9.

Contact information: Name and telephone number of District contact person to respond to spill-specific
questions;

Spill location name;

Date and time the District was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
Operator arrival time;

Estimated spill start date and time;

Date and time the District notified the California Office of Emergency Services, and the assigned control
number;

Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates of the system location where the spill originated;
If a single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates for the appearance
point closest to the failure point and describe each additional appearance point in the spill appearance
point explanation field;

Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;

Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;

10. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:

e Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;
e Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry location(s);
e Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system;

e Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system;

11. Estimated spill volume discharged to a groundwater infiltration basin or facility, if applicable; and

12. Estimated total spill volume recovered.

Certified Spill Report

Within 15 calendar days of the spill end date, the District shall submit a Certified Spill Report for the Category 2
spill, to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database (https://ciwqgs.waterboards.ca.gov). Upon completion
of the Certified Spill Report, the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will issue a final spill event
identification number.

Page 40 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 118



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

(Category 2 continued)

The Certified Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following mandatory information in addition to all
information in the Draft Spill Report:

1. Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates if available, that represent the
full spread and reach of the spill;

2. Spill end date and time;
3. Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including at a minimum:

e The methodology, assumptions and type of data relied upon, such as supervisory control and
data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information used to es-
timate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill recovered (if any volume
of the spill was recovered), and

e The methodology(ies), assumptions and type of data relied upon for estimations of the spill
start time and the spill end time;

4. Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);
5. System failure location (for example, main, pump station, etc.);

6. Description of the pipe/infrastructure material, and estimated age of the pipe material, at the failure
location;

7. Description of the impact of the spill;
8. Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

9. Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill containment and cleanup
efforts;

10. Description of spill corrective action, including steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent
reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of major milestones for those steps;

11. Spill response completion date;
12. Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill;
13. Reasons for an ongoing investigation (as applicable) and the expected date of completion; and

14. Whether or not the spill was located within 1,000 feet of a municipal surface water intake.

Amended Certified Spill Reports

The District shall update or add additional information to a Certified Spill Report within 90 calendar days of the
spill end date by amending the report or by adding an attachment to the Spill Report in the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database. The District shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the District shall contact the State Water Board at SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov to
request to amend a Spill Report. The Legally Responsible Official shall submit justification for why the additional
information was not reported within the Amended Spill Report due date.

Page 41 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 119



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL CATEGORY 3 SPILL REPORTING
Monthly Certified Spill Reporting

The District shall report and certify all Category 3 spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database
within 30 calendar days after the end of the month in which the spills occurred. (For example, all Category 3 spills
occurring in the month of February shall be reported and certified by March 30™). After the Legally Responsible
Official certifies the spills, the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will issue a spill event identification
number for each spill.

The monthly reporting of all Category 3 spills must include the following items for each spill:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of District contact person to respond to spill-specific
questions;

Spill location name;
Date and time the District was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;

2

3

4. Operator arrival time;

5. Estimated spill start date and time;
6

Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates where the spill originated. If a single spill event results in
multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates for the appearance point closest to the failure point
and describe each additional appearance point in the spill appearance point explanation field;

7. Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;

8. Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;

o

Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:

a. Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;

b. Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry locations(s);

c. Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system; and

d. Estimated spill volume discharged to a groundwater infiltration basin or facility, if applicable.
10. Estimated total spill volume recovered;

11. Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates, if available, that represent the full
spread and reaches of the spill;

12. Spill end date and time;

13. Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including, at minimum:

a. The methodology and type of data relied upon, including supervisory control and data acquisition
(SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information used to estimate the volume
of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill recovered (if any volume of the spill was re-
covered), and

b. The methodology and type of data relied upon to estimate the spill start time, on-going spill rate
at time of arrival (if applicable), and the spill end time;

14. Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);

Page 42 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 120



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

(Category 3 Continued)

15. System failure location (for example, main, pump station, etc.);

16. Description of the pipe/infrastructure material, and estimated age of the pipe/infrastructure material, at
the failure location;

17. Description of the impact of the spill;
18. Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

19. Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill containment and cleanup
efforts;

20. Description of spill corrective actions, including steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent
reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of the major milestones for those steps; including, at minimum:

a. Local regulatory enforcement action taken against an illicit discharge in response to this spill, as
applicable, and

b. Identifiable system modifications, and operation and maintenance program modifications
needed to prevent repeated spill occurrences at the same spill event location, including:

= Adjusted schedule/method of preventive maintenance,

®  Planned rehabilitation or replacement of sanitary sewer asset,
® Inspected, repaired asset(s), or replaced defective asset(s),

= Capital improvements,

=  Documentation verifying immediately implemented system modifications and operat-
ing/maintenance modifications,

= Description of spill response activities,
= Spill response completion date, and

= Ongoing investigation efforts, and expected completion date of investigation to deter-
mine the full cause of spill;

21. Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill.

Amended Certified Spill Reports

Within 90 calendar days of the certified Spill Report due date, the District may update or add additional
information to a certified Spill Report by amending the report or by adding an attachment to the Spill Report in
the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database. The District shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the Legally Responsible Official shall contact the State Water Board at
SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov to request to amend a certified Spill Report. The Legally Responsible Official
shall submit justification for why the additional information was not reported within the 90-day timeframe for
amending the certified Spill Report, as provided above.

Page 43 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 121



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR INDIVIDUAL CATEGORY 4 SPILL REPORTING

Monthly Certified Spill Reporting

The District shall report and certify the estimated total spill volume exiting the sanitary sewer system, and the
total number of all Category 4 spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, within 30 calendar
days after the end of the month in which the spills occurred.

Annual Certified Spill Reporting of Category 4 and/or Lateral Spills

For all Category 4 spills and spills from its owned and/or operated laterals that are caused by a failure or
blockage in the lateral and that do not discharge to a surface water, the District shall:

* Maintain records per section 4.4. of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping
Requirements) of this General Order. The District shall provide records upon request by State Water Board
or Regional Water Board staff.

* Annually upload and certify a report, in an appropriate digital format, of all recordkeeping of spills to the
online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, by February 1st after the end of the calendar year in which
the spills occurred.

A spill from an District-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a surface water is a Category 1 spill;
the District shall report all Category 1 spills per section 3.1 of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting
and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General Order.

Monthly Certification of “No-Spills” Or “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills”

If either (1) no spills occur during a calendar month or (2) only Category 4, and/or District-owned and/or
operated lateral spills (that do not discharge to a surface water) occur during a calendar month, the District shall
certify, within 30 calendar days after the end of each calendar month, either a “No-Spill” certification statement,
or a “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills” certification statement, in the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System Database, certifying that there were either no spills, or Category 4 and/or Non-Category
1 Lateral Spills that will be reported annually (per section 3.6 of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring,
Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General Order) for the designated month.

If a spill starts in one calendar month and ends in a subsequent calendar month, and the District has no further
spills of any category, in the subsequent calendar month, the District shall certify “no-spills” for the subsequent
calendar month.

If the District has no spills from its systems during a calendar month, but the District voluntarily reported a spill
from a private lateral or a private system, the District shall certify “no-spills” for that calendar month.

If the Districts has spills from its owned and/or operated laterals during a calendar month, the District shall not
certify “no spills” for that calendar month.

Page 44 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 122



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

APPENDIX B:

Service Call Form

Page 45 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 123



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

SERVICE CALL / COMPLAINT FORM

CALL RECEIVED:

Received by (name):

Date: Time:

CALLER’S INFORMATION

Name: Phone:

Address:

NATURE OF CALL (COMPLAINT)

Date and time caller first noticed the spill:

LOCATION OF POTENTIAL PROBLEM

CALLER’S OBSERVATION

(e.g., odor, duration, location on property, known impacts, indication if surface water impacted, appearance at cleanout or manhole)

In case of spill, estimated start time:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS/INFORMATION

RESPONSE ACTION TAKEN/FINAL RESOLUTION

Page 46 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 124



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

APPENDIX C:

Door Hanger

Page 47 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 125



Goleta Sanitary District

On (date)

at (location)

we responded to a reported blockage of the
sanitary sewer service to your property.

We discovered a blockage in:

[0 The sanitary sewer main and cleared
the line

0 Your sanitary sewer lateral, which is
your responsibility to maintain.

If you require assistance to clear your portion
of the lateral you can search the internet for
“Sewer Contractors” or “Plumbing Drains &
Sewer Cleaning.” If you plan to hire a con-
tractor, we recommend getting estimates
from more than one company.

District representative notes:

District representative name:

For questions or comments, please call:
Goleta Sanitary District

(805) 967-4519
Monday-Friday 8am- 5pm

Weekends and after hours emergencies:
(805) 564-7259

Goleta Sanitary District

On (date)

at (location)

we responded to a reported blockage of the
sanitary sewer service to your property.

We discovered a blockage in:

[0 The sanitary sewer main and cleared the
line

[0 Your sanitary sewer lateral, which is your
responsibility to maintain.

If you require assistance to clear your portion
of the lateral you can search the internet for
“Sewer Contractors” or “Plumbing Drains &
Sewer Cleaning.” If you plan to hire a contrac-
tor, we recommend getting estimates from
more than one company.

District representative notes:

District representative name:

For questions or comments, please call:
Goleta Sanitary District

(805) 967-4519
Monday-Friday 8am- 5pm

Weekends and after hours emergencies:
(805) 564-7259

Agenda Packet Page 126



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

APPENDIX D:

Sanitary Sewer Spill Response Instructions for Contractors

Page 49 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 127



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Response Instructions for Contractors

For contractors working on the sanitary sewer system the District expects them to have, at all
worksites, spill response materials necessary to block drainage conveyance system entry points near
the work area and surface waters.

Additionally, contractor must be trained on spill response materials and equipment.

The following procedures are to be followed in the event that a contractor/plumber causes or wit-
nesses a sanitary sewer spill. If the contractor/plumber causes or witnesses a spill they should:

Immediately notify the District during business hours at (805) 967-4519 (Mon-
day-Friday 8am- 5pm). On Saturdays, Sundays, or weekdays after 5:00 pm the
emergency reporting number is (805) 564-7259. Provide the following infor-
mation if available:

e Date, time contractor first noticed the spill

e Description of the contractor’s observation, including any information
regarding whether the spill has reached surface waters or a drainage
conveyance system

Contractor’s contact information

v

Protect storm drains.

v

Protect the public.

v

Direct ALL media and public relations requests to the General Manager/District
Engineer at (805) 967-4519 or (805) 896-5395 (cell).

([ ]

Agenda Packet Page 128



Goleta Sanitary District
Spill Emergency Response Plan 7-17-25

APPENDIX E:

Sanitary Sewer Overflow/Backup Response Workbook

Page 51 of 51

Agenda Packet Page 129



Goleta Sanitary District

Sewer Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sewer Spill/Backup Response
Workbook

Agenda Packet Page 130




Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Table of Contents

Section
o]

o]
o]
o]
o]
Section

Section
o]

O O 0O o0 O

Section
o]

O OO0 0 0O

Section
o
o

Section
o]

O O 0O O O

Section
o]

o]
o]
o]
Section

(0}
(0}

Form Page
1:
Spill/Backup Response FIowchart..........cccceeviiiiiie i A1 4
WOorkbook INStruCtioNS........oooiiie e "2 e 8
Spill Event CheCKIist.........coocviiieiiiiie et o TR 9
Contact INfOrmMation ..........coocuiii e SR 10
Key DEfiNItiONS .....ociiiiiiie et B 11
2: Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report ........coooovciiiiiiiee e B-1.. 13
3: Volume Estimation
Miscellaneous Computations and Examples...........cccccveveiiiereeeicieeeeeenee, C-1eeee 28
Eyeball Estimation Method..............oooiiii e "2 e 30
Duration and Flow Rate Comparison Method ...........cccccooevivieiiciiee e, S, 31
Area/Volume Method............oooiiiiiii e SR 33
Upstream Connections Method............ccccvveiiiiiiii i S, 36
Drawing WOrKSNEet ........coouiiiiiii e B 37
4: Backup Forms
Backup Forms Checklist ............ccooiiiiiiiiieiie e D-1.ie 39
First Responder FOIM ... ..o 2, 40
Declination of Cleaning ServiCes...........ccocvaiiiiiiiieiiie e T 42
Lodging AUtNOMZAtION...........eiiiiiiiiei e SRR 43
Customer Information Letter..........c.ooviiiiiiiieiicee e B 44
Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner...........ccccoccveevevicnnennnn. L T 46
(@3- 100 T o] 3 o PR Y (R 50
5: Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response
FIrEStONE ... e I 54
101 o o 22 e 55
6: Field Sampling
Field Sampling Kit OVEIVIEW ...........coioiiiiiiieeiere e F-1 o 57
Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling Requirements and Timelines...... "2 e 58
Spill Sampling Field REPOIt.........cccuviiieiiiiie e o SR 59
Surface Water Sampling Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) ............ SRS 60
Surface Water Sampling Worksheet .............ccocooiiiiiiiiiee e B 69
Surface Water Sample Chain of Custody Record ...........ccccooiiiiiiieiinne B 70
7: Regulatory Reporting
Regulatory Reporting Guide............cceiiiiiiiiieiee e G-1 o, 72
Regulatory Reporting Contacts and Authorization .............c.ccceviiieiieene w2 73
Regulatory Reporting LOg ......c.oooueieiiiiiiiiee e o SR 74
Regulatory Reporting/Notifications Log...........c.covvieiiiiiiiiiiiiiienes Ao 76
8: Post Spill
Post Spill Assessment Information.............ccccvveiiiieie e, H-1 78
Failure ANaIYSIS........ooiiiiiiii e 22 80

Workbook Page 2 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 131



INSERT TAB:

Section 1: Spill Response

Workbook Page 3 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 132



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill/Backup Response Flowchart A-1: Page 1

Complete highlighted items on Spill Event Checklist (A-3) during the response to confirm key information and activities.
For any media inquiries/requests contact the General Manager/District Engineer at (805) 967-4519 or (805) 896-5395 (cell).

This is a Private Spill

1. Photograph the extent of the discharge and the discharge boundaries

if possible.
Does the 2. Notify the property owner that the blockage is in their lateral and
spill/backup appear that the District does not have legal authority to maintain or perform
to be due to a problem NO work on privately-owned laterals.
in the D'f’t"c.t' 3. Give customer the “Your Responsibilities as a Private Property
owned/maintained Owner” pages from this Workbook (D-6, Workbook).
sewer line?
4. Recommend to customer they hire a contractor to clear their line.
YES 5. If customer is not home:

* Complete Door Hanger and leave on customer’s door.
* Leave a message on the customer’s voicemail.

6. If the property owner is unable or unwilling to address the cause of
the Spill, immediately contact your supervisor and discuss whether
Code Enforcement, the County Department of Environmental Health
or Regional Water Quality Control Board should be notified.

7. If you are directed to, break the stoppage and clean up the private
spill. Be sure to document District staff time and equipment used for
potential billing purposes and take pictures.

1. Document the service call according to District procedures.

2. STOP. Do not continue to PAGE 2

1. Document arrival time.
2. Consider the need to call out additional staff, contractor or mutual aid assistance.

3. If it is possible that this is a Category 1 spill greater than or equal to 1,000 gallons or a Category 2 spill that is threatening to
discharge to waters of the State, immediately make the 2-hour notification to Cal-OES and obtain a control number. Record
this number on the Regulatory Reporting Log (G-3).

4. Take pictures to help estimate and document the rate of flow.

\4

1. Record manhole number or cleanout location of the spill appearance point closest to the failure point, and describe each
additional appearance point on the Spill Report (B-1).

2. Take photographs of all spill appearance points, the extent of the spill, and spill boundaries.

Go to PAGE 2

Workbook Page 4 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 133



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill/Backup Response Flowchart A-1: Page 2

Continue from PAGE 1

BEGIN DIVERSION AND CONTAINMENT, AS NECESSARY
1. DIVERT AWAY FROM SENSITIVE AREAS:

a. Cover unplugged storm drains w/mats, or use dirt/other material to divert sewage away from sensitive areas (e.g.,
schools, playgrounds, intersections, etc.)

b. ENSURE PUBLIC CONTACT DOES NOT OCCUR. Use cones/barricades to isolate area.
2. CONTAIN SPILL & RETURN TO SYSTEM, IF POSSIBLE:
a. As practical, plug or block drainage conveyance system entry locations or use rubber mats to cover basin inlet and
divert flow to a downstream sanitary sewer manhole (barricade manhole if left open and monitor after barricade) or

area suitable to capture the spill for later collection.

If any amount has already reached the drainage conveyance system, trace it downstream to a dry manhole and block
it from entering surface waters. i.e. plugs, sandbags, or vacuum truck

b. If you are confident that you can capture the spill in the drainage conveyance system, trace it downstream to a dry
manhole and then divert the spill to the drainage conveyance system for later recovery and return to the sanitary
sewer.

c. Use bypass pumps to pump around blockage until it can be removed.

d. Divert to low area of ground where it can be collected later.

3. PHOTOGRAPH each drainage conveyance system entry location.

ADDRESS CAUSE OF SPILL/BACKUP ASAP

1. For lift station related SSO/Backups refer to that station’s Emergency Response Plan (E1 & E2, Workbook pages 50-51) to
return the station to operation if possible.

2. For SSO/Backups not related to a pump station, relieve the stoppage. Note the distance from the manhole and
catch/remove debris that could cause another stoppage. After flow has returned to normal, clean the pipe thoroughly.

3. Photograph staff activities while clearing the blockage, as appropriate. Note time and distance if possible

Workbook Page 5 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 134



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill/Backup Response Flowchart A-1: Page 3

1. Sample surface waters the spill has reached if safe and if the property owner allows
Continue from PAGE 2 (if the surface water access point is on private property):

* |If preliminary volume estimates of the spill are 50,000 gallons or greater, begin
collecting as soon as possible but no later than 18 hours after becoming aware

of the spill.
* |If people are fishing or swimming in the waters, collect samples regardless of
Has the spill YES the volume of the spill.
reached surface >
ters? 2. Refer to and follow the sampling standard operating procedure (SOP). Refer to
waters: Section F, starting on Workbook page 51.
NO v
NO Is it feasible/practical
< to contain/recover any of the spill from
the surface waters?
YES \L
Contain/recover/clean up as much of the spill in the waters and shoreline as possible. Contact the
Collections System Manager at (805) 967-4519, ext. 112 or (805) 570-0207 to request outside
assistance, as appropriate.
DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE SYSTEM CLEANING SOP
1. Seal or berm the drainage conveyance system immediately downstream of point the
spill reached.
\ %
2. Photograph impacted drainage conveyance system before cleaning.
Was drainage YES 3. Vacuum any visible sewage — Record the volume of sewage recovered. Record volume
SIS IS g on the spill report.

system impacted?

4. Flush impacted sections of the drainage conveyance system with 3X amount of spill,
if possible, and contain. Record volume of flush water used and volume of flush

NO water returned to the sanitary sewer on Spill Report.

5. Ensure all visible signs of sewage have been removed.

6. Photograph drainage conveyance system after cleaning is completed.

A4 A4
IMPACTED AREA CLEANUP, AS NECESSARY

1. Assign staff to begin cleanup. If you might use the area measured volume method to estimate the
volume, draw a sketch of the spill footprint and capture dimensions before washing it down. You may
sketch using C-6, Workbook page 33.

2. Remove all signs of gross pollution with a shovel, broom, rake, and bucket.
(toilet paper, solids, grease, etc.)

3. Flush impacted area with 3X amount of spill, if possible, and contain. Record volume of flush water used
and volume of flush water returned to the sanitary sewer on the Spill Report (B-1).

4. Setup berm/other means to contain all water so it can be returned to sewer

5. Don’t use disinfectants if they may enter storm drain system and not be fully recovered or if they may
enter surface waters.

6. Address saturated soil with removal and/or in-place treatment, depending on the extent of the
contamination, the location, and land use. Take measures to prevent accidental contact by the public.
NOTE: addressing saturated soil may involve returning to the site one or more days after the spill event.

7. Photograph the area when cleanup operations are complete

Workbook Page 6 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 135



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill/Backup Response Flowchart A-1: Page 4

Continue from PAGE 3 \L

DOCUMENTATION AND VOLUME ESTIMATION
1. Complete the Spill Field Report (B-1, Workbook pages 13-24).

Did this 2. Inthe Start Time Determination section for the Spill Field Report
spill cause a NO remember that the spill was probably occurring for a period of
sewer backup > time before it was reported.
impacting private 3. Estimate and document spill volume using two or more of the
property? worksheets provided in the Spill/Backup Response Workbook

(Section C, Workbook pages 25-33).

YES \L |’

Complete the First Responder Form L Ot
(D-2, Workbook pages 36-37). Make notifications indicated in the Regulatory Reporting Guide (G-1).

1. Forward this Workbook to Collection Systems Manager.
Does the YES 2

customer want
cleaning service?

} !

1. Contact the Collection System Supervisor or
Collection System Manager at (805) 967-4519
or (805) 570-0207 and relay the information
from the First Responder Form. They will
contact Teresa Collier at Carl Warren and
Company at (818) 265-6721 and relay
information from the First Responder Form as
applicable. Contact Carl Warren and Company
directly if Collection System
Supervisor/Manager cannot be reached.

Include any photos and/or notes related to this event.

3. Document the service call according to District procedures

Y

1. Contact the Collection System Supervisor or Collection System
Manager at (805) 967-4519 or (805) 570-0207 and relay the
information from the First Responder Form. They will contact Alan
Dialon at Carl Warren and Company at (855) 763-5898 and relay
information from the First Responder Form as applicable. Contact
Carl Warren and Company directly if Collection System
Supervisor/Manager cannot be reached.

2. Complete the Cleaning Declination form (D-3, Workbook page 38).

3. Ask for permission to photograph the affected area or ask the 2. The Collection System Manager or Collection
customer to take photos. If they decline, note on the First System Supervisor if available will contact
Responder form. ServiceMaster (805) 963-1365 for a

. —— restoration/remediation team.
4. Take a photo of the Cleaning Declination form to document what Jou] atl

was given to the customer. 3. Wait for restoration team outside of the
building. Note: DO NOT allow any

5. Give the Cleaning Declination form to the Customer. .. .
disinfectants to escape to storm drains.

\\'4
1. If the Livability Assessment on the First Responder form indicates a need for temporary
relocation contact the General Manager/District Engineer at (805) 967-4519 or (805) 896-5395 Photograph the
(cell). backwater
2. Give the Customer the following documents: | prevention device or
7| .
1. Customer Information letter (D-5, Workbook pages 40-41) cleanout if you can
locate one on the
2. Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner (D-6, Workbook pages 42-45) affected building

3. Claim Form (D-6, Workbook pages 46-49)

Workbook Page 7 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 136



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Workbook Instructions

A-2

See page A-4 for contact information as needed.

0 Make immediate notifications:

0]

0]

If this spill is discharging or threatening to discharge greater than or equal to 1,000 gallons to surface

waters, immediately contact CalOES at (800) 852-7550 within 2 hours and obtain a control number.

Record this number on the following pages: A-3, B-1 Page 1, and G-3.

Carl Warren and Company and the Collection Systems Manager.

O For media inquiries/requests contact the General Manager/District Engineer.

If there is a backup into a residence/business that may be due to a problem in the District’s sewer, notify

[0 Refer to the Regulatory Reporting Guide in this Workbook for additional reporting requirements.

O

O

CHAIN OF CUSTODY

COLLECTIONS SYSTEM CREW:
Print Name:
Follow the instructions on the Spill/Backup Response Flowchart and
complete forms in this Workbook as indicated. P
nitial:
Complete the chain of custody record (to the right) and deliver this
workbook to the Collections System Manager. Date:

O

O
O
O
O

COLLECTIONS SYSTEM MANAGER:

Review the Spill Event Checklist (A-3) and the forms in this Workbook. Contact the
Collections System Crew for additional information if necessary.

Confirm that all required regulatory notifications have been made (G-1).
If this was a Sewer Backup, follow instructions on the Backup Forms Checklist (D-1).

Complete the Post Spill Assessment (H-1) and Collection System Failure Analysis
Form (H-2).

Complete the Chain of Custody record (right) and forward Workbook to Data
Submitter

CHAIN OF
CUSTODY

Print Name:

Initial:

Date:

O
O

DATA SUBMITTER:

CHAIN OF CUSTODY

. . . N Print Name:
Refer to Spill Event Checklist (A-3) Data Submitter Responsibilities
Initial:
Complete the chain of custody record (to the right) and deliver this
workbook to a Legally Responsible Official (see G-2 for LROs). Date:

O
O

LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL:

CHAIN OF CUSTODY

. . . . Print Name:
Refer to Spill Event Checklist (A-3) Data Submitter Responsibilities
Initial:
Complete the chain of custody record (to the right) and file this
Workbook with the spill file. Date:

Workbook Page 8 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 137



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill Event Checklist

z
w

Date of Spill:
CIWQS Event ID #:
Property Damage? [1Yes [1No

COLLECTIONS SYSTEM CREW RESPONSIBILITIES:

Spill Location/Name:
Category? (11 [2 [3 [CINon-Cat1 Lat OESH:
Service Request #:

O

Effort made to contain and return a portion/all to the
sanitary sewer

Pictures/video taken of spill

Pictures taken of affected/unaffected area
If property damage, start that process
Pictures taken of containment efforts

If spill is Cat 1 > 1000 gallons or Cat 2 > 1000 gal
threatening to discharge to waters of the State:
OES Control #

Were surface waters impacted waters?

OoOoOooano
OO0 O OO0

O

COLLECTIONS SYSTEM MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES

Impacted waters identified?

Assess and document spill location and spread
including photos

Spill Report Form Complete (includes fields for all
required fields in CIWQS, and a sketch of spill)

Volume Estimation Worksheet(s) done
Start Time Determination Form done

Follow Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling
procedures

Review of photos and videos (label/date)

O Map of where samples were taken, if applicable

O rorcat1 Spills 50,000 gallons or larger, obtain sampling O
results

O Ensure Technical Report is written

O initial review of forms is complete (ensure O
consistency of dates, times, volumes, and other data) O

O

O

O conduct Post Spill Assessment & complete form (H-1)

Failure Analysis
0 TV to determine cause
0 Review Asset History

Determine next steps to prevent recurrence
Document findings and next steps on Spill Report

Start folder for all documentation for this spill event. Put everything in it (Spill Report, Field Reports,

Worksheets/Forms, follow-up work orders, notes, photos, drawings, CIWQS print outs, emails, etc.)

DATA SUBMITTER RESPONSIBILITIES

Submit Draft in CIWQS w/in 3 business days (for
Categories 1 and 2 only)

Print CIWQS Draft hard copy and email

Review CIWQS, spill Report, Worksheets, CMMS, and
any other documentation to ensure data is consistent
(e.g. dates, times, volumes, cause, follow-up action, etc.

Attach photos, forms etc. to CIWQS

OO0 OO0

Attach Technical Report to CIWQS, if applicable
Submit Ready to Certify in CIWQS (with sufficient time
for LRO review)

Print CIWQS Ready to Certify and email

Hand Workbook to LRO and complete Chain of Custody
form

LRO RESPONSIBILITIES

O
O

LRO review Workbook and CIWQS verify accurate and
consistent data

Certify in CIWQS (within 15 calendar days for
Categories 1 & 2, 30 days after the month for Category
3&4)

Print Certified CIWQS and email

Any changes? Change in CIWQS and hard copies and
explain changes, print our current version

OO

Move completed Workbook and spill folder to spill files

If any changes are made to SSMP
0 Update SSMP and link on CIWQS to SSMP
O Add change to SSMP Change Log
0 Consider need to re-certify SSMP

Workbook Page 9 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 138



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Contact Information

A-4

Contact

CAL/OES

Description

California Office of Emergency
Services

Telephone/Email/Address

(800) 852-7550

Carl Warren and Company
Attention: Alan Dialon

Sewer backup claims

2300 Clayton Road, Concord, CA 94520
(855) 763-5898
csrmaclaims@carlwarren.com

Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control
Board

E-mail: info3@waterboards.ca.gov
Tel: (805)549-3147
Fax: (805)543-0397

Collections System Manager

Outside Assistance / Mutual Aid

(805) 967-4519 ext. 112
(805) 570-0207

General Manager/District Engineer

Media inquiries/requests

(805) 967-4519

Lab: GSD Lab

Water quality sample analysis

1 William Moffett Place, Goleta CA
(805) 967-4519 or
(805) 291-1644 (cell)

Lab: FGL Environmental

Water quality sample analysis

853 Corporation St., Santa Paula CA
(805) 392-2000

Lab: Qilfield Environmental and Compliance

Water quality sample analysis

307 Roemer Way #300
Santa Maria CA (805) 922-4772

Santa Barbara County Environmental Health
Services (EHS)

*See Sewage Release Reporting Guidelines
Section G-1: Page 3 and Page 4

Spill notification

(805) 681-4927

Workbook Page 10 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 139



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Key Definitions & Category Determination A-5: Page 1

NOTE: All references to “SSWDR” refer to State Water Board Order No. WQ 2022-0103-DWQ.

DRAINAGE CONVEYANCE SYSTEM: A drainage conveyance system is a publicly- or privately-owned separate storm sewer
system, including but not limited to drainage canals, channels, pipelines, pump stations, detention basins, infiltration
basins/facilities, or other facilities constructed to transport stormwater and non-stormwater flows.

SPILL: A spill is a discharge of sewage from any portion of a sanitary sewer system due to a sanitary sewer system overflow,
operational failure, and/or infrastructure failure. Exfiltration of sewage is not considered to be a spill under SSWDR if the
exfiltrated sewage remains in the subsurface and does not reach a surface water of the State.

e Category 1 Spill:
A Category 1 spill is a spill of any volume of sewage from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated under
SSWDR that results in a discharge to:

O Asurface water, including a surface water body that contains no flow or volume of water; or

O Adrainage conveyance system that discharges to surface waters when the sewage is

not fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer system or disposed of properly.
Any spill volume not recovered from a drainage conveyance system is considered a discharge to surface
water, unless the drainage conveyance system discharges to a dedicated stormwater infiltration basin or
facility.
A spill from an District-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a surface water is a Category 1
spill; the District shall report all Category 1 spills per section 3.1 of Attachment E1 (Notification,
Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of SSWDR.

* Category 2 Spill
A Category 2 spill is a spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated under
SSWDR that does not discharge to a surface water. A spill of 1,000 gallons or greater that spills out of a lateral and
is caused by a failure or blockage in the sanitary sewer system, is a Category 2 spill.

* Category 3 Spill
A Category 3 spill is a spill of equal to or greater than 50 gallons and less than 1,000 gallons, from or caused by a
sanitary sewer system regulated under SSWDR that does not discharge to a surface water. A spill of equal to or
greater than 50 gallons and less than 1,000 gallons, that spills out of a lateral and is caused by a failure or
blockage in the sanitary sewer system is a Category 3 spill.

* Category 4 Spill
A Category 4 spill is a spill of less than 50 gallons, from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated
under SSWDR that does not discharge to a surface water. A spill of less than 50 gallons that spills out of
a lateral and is caused by a failure or blockage in the sanitary sewer system is a Category 4 spill.

* Non-Category 1 Enrollee Owned/Operated Lateral Spills

A spill of any volume from an Enrollee’s owned and/or operated lateral that is caused by a failure or blockage in
the lateral and that do not discharge to a surface water.

® Private Spills
A spill from a private sewer lateral or private sanitary sewer system that is not owned/operated by the Enrollee.

WATERS OF THE STATE: Waters of the State are surface waters or groundwater within boundaries of the state as defined
in Water Code section 13050(e), in which the State and Regional Water Boards have authority to protect beneficial uses.
Waters of the State include, but are not limited to, groundwater aquifers, surface waters, saline waters, natural washes
and pools, wetlands, sloughs, and estuaries, regardless of flow or whether water exists during dry conditions. Waters of

the State include waters of the United States.
Workbook Page 11 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 140



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Key Definitions & Category Determination A-5: Page 2

INSTRUCTIONS: Answer each question in order and stop at the red box once you have determined the category.

The District is not required to

Was the sewage spill from or caused by the District’s
8e P y NO report spills that are not from or

sanitary sewer system, which is regulated under the
Sanitary Sewer Systems General Order?

caused by its regulated sewer
system.

YES

Vv

Did the spill result in a discharge to surface water, includinga | YES
surface water body that contains no flow or volume of water?

Y

NO

A4

NO Did the spill result in a discharge to a drainage
conveyance system that discharges to surface water?

N

YES

y

YEs| Was the sewage in the drainage conveyance system
fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer
system or disposed of properly?

y NO

Category
Does the drainage conveyance system discharge to a NO 1

dedicated stormwater infiltration basin or facility?

Spill

\l, YES
Non-Category

YES
Was the failure in the lateral? 1

Vv

Lateral Spill

NO

A4

What is the estimated spill volume?

Less than 50 Between 50 gallons 1,000 gallons or
gallons and 999 gallons greater

Category Category Category

4 3 p.

Spill Spill Spill

Workbook Page 12 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 141



INSERT TAB:
Section 2: Spill Report

Workbook Page 13 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 142



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 1

Check spill category (see A-3 for definitions): CICATEGORY 1 [ICATEGORY2 [ICATEGORY3 [ICATEGORY4 [INON-CAT 1 Lat

CalOES NOTIFICATION®
Date: Time: Assigned Control Number:

Names of the Persons Participating in Spill Event Contact Information

PHYSICAL LOCATION DETAILS

Spill location name:

Location description:

Address of spill:
City: Cross Street:
Regional Water Quality Control Board: County:

DATE/TIME

Date and time the District was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill:

Operator arrival time:

PHOTOGRAPHS

Photos must be taken during the spill event. At a minimum, the following photos must be taken:

O Appearance point closest to the failure point O All discharge points into surface waters
O Extent of the spill and spill boundaries O Location(s) of clean up

O Entry location of each drainage conveyance
system the sewage entered

Where are photographs stored?

Within two (2) hours of the District’s knowledge of a Category 1 or Category 2 spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, discharging or threatening to discharge to waters
of the State, notify CalOES and obtain a notification control number.

Workbook Page 14 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 143



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report

B-1: Page 2

SPILL ORIGINATION

Description and GPS coordinates of the system location where the spill originated™:
Include manhole number or cleanout location of the spill appearance point closest to the failure point as applicable.

Latitude:

Longitude:

Number of additional appearance points:

Spill appearance points: (Check all that apply)

O Backflow Prevention Device

O Combined Sewer Drain Inlet (Combined Collection System Only)

O Force Main

[ Gravity Mainline

O Inside Building/Structure
[ Lateral Clean Out (Private)
O Lateral Clean Out (Public)
O Lower Lateral (Private)

O Lower Lateral (Public)

O Manhole

O Other Sewer System Structure
0 Pump Station

[0 Upper Lateral (Private)

[0 Upper Lateral (Public)

O Other, describe:

Describe each spill appearance point:

Check to confirm photos were taken of all appearance points: [J

" Note: If a single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates for the appearance point
closest to the failure point and describe each additional appearance point in the “Describe each spill appearance point”
description section above. Take photos of spill appearance point(s).

Workbook Page 15 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 144



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 3

SPILL DESTINATION (Check all that apply)

Final spill destination(s):

[ Drainage Conveyance System That Discharges to Surface Water
[ Surface Water

[ Building or Structure

[ Drainage Conveyance System

[0 Groundwater Infiltration Basic or Facility

[0 Paved Surface

O Street/Curb and Gutter

[0 Unpaved Surface

O Other, describe:

Description of the spill event destination(s) including GPS coordinates if available that represent the full
spread and reach of the spill.

Latitude: Longitude:

Latitude (if needed): Longitude (if needed):
Latitude (if needed): Longitude (if needed):
Latitude (if needed): Longitude (if needed):

Check to confirm photos were taken of spill destination/boundaries: [

Workbook Page 16 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 145



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 4

SPILL VOLUME

Estimated total spill volume exiting the system: gallons

Method used to determine estimated spill volume exiting the system:

Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? [0 YES O NO If yes:
e Estimated time the spill reached the drainage conveyance system:

e Distance from drainage conveyance system to entry point to surface waters: feet

e Method to determine travel time from point of entry to drainage conveyance system to receiving waters:

e Describe the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill:

Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system: gallons

Method used to determine estimated spill volume recovered:

Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system: gallons

Method used to determine est. spill vol. remaining in drainage conveyance system:

Check to confirm photos taken of entry location of drainage conveyance system the sewage entered: [J

Did the spill reach surface water? OO YES [0 NO
If yes:

e Estimated time the spill entered the surface water:

e Distance from spill appearance point to entry point to surface water: feet

e Method to determine travel time to receiving waters:

e Describe all discharge points:

Estimated spill volume that discharged to surface waters: gallons

Method used to determine estimated spill volume discharged to surface waters:

Estimated total spill volume recovered: gallons

Method used to determine estimated total spill volume recovered:

Check to confirm photos were taken of the following, as applicable: all discharge points into surface waters,
waterbody bank erosion, floating matter, water surface sheen, discoloration of receiving water, any notable
impacts to the receiving water: [

Did the spill discharge to a groundwater infiltration basin or facility? O YES [0 NO
If yes, below section does not need to be completed since spill did not reach surface waters.

e Estimated time the spill entered the groundwater infiltration basin or facility:

e Estimated spill volume discharged to the groundwater infiltration basin or facility: gallons

e Method used to determine estimated spill volume discharged:

Workbook Page 17 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 146



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 5

SPILL VOLUME (continued)

Estimated spill volume that did NOT reach drainage conveyance system, surface water, or groundwater
infiltration basin or facility: gallons
Method used to determine estimated spill volume that did NOT reach drainage conveyance system,

surface water, or groundwater infiltration basin or facility:

Estimated Total Spill Volume Recovered: gallons
Method used to determine estimated total spill volume recovered:

Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including at a minimum, the
methodology, assumptions and types of data relied upon, such as supervisory control and data
acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information, used to estimate the
volume of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill recovered (if any volume of the spill was
recovered):

Workbook Page 18 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 147



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 6

SPILL START TIME and END TIME DETERMINATION

Were there witnesses to the spill? OO YES [0 NO If yes, provide Spill Witness Statements below:

Witness 1 Name: Witness 1 Contact Information:

Where did they see sewage spill from? [ |Manhole [ ]Inside Building [ ]Vent/Clean Out [ ]Catch Basin [_]Wet Well/Lift Station
[]Other (describe):

When did the witness notice the sewage spilling? AM/PM Date / /

Witness description of spill and affected area:
Is it currently spilling? O YES OO NO
When did the witness last observe NO Spill occurring? AM/PM Date / /

Did the witness notice if the spill had reached the storm drain or surface waters?

Comments:

Witness 2 Name: Witness 2 Contact Information:

Where did they see sewage spill from? [ |Manhole [ ]Inside Building [ ]Vent/Clean Out [ ]Catch Basin [ ] Wet Well/Lift Station
[]Other (describe):

When did the witness notice the sewage spilling? AM/PM Date / /

Witness description of spill and affected area:
Is it currently spilling? O YES OO NO
When did the witness last observe NO Spill occurring? AM/PM Date / /

Did the witness notice if the spill had reached the storm drain or surface waters?

Comments:

Witness 3 Name: Witness 3 Contact Information:

Where did they see sewage spill from? [ |Manhole [ ]Inside Building [ ]Vent/Clean Out [ ]Catch Basin [_]Wet Well/Lift Station
[]Other (describe):

When did the witness notice the sewage spilling? AM/PM Date / /

Witness description of spill and affected area:
Is it currently spilling? O YES OO NO
When did the witness last observe NO Spill occurring? AM/PM Date / /

Did the witness notice if the spill had reached the storm drain or surface waters?

Comments:

Workbook Page 19 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 148



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 7

SPILL START TIME and END TIME DETERMINATION (continued)

Are the volume of the spill and rate of flow known? OO YES [0 NO

If yes, divide volume by rate of flow to get duration of spill event:

Gallons =+ GPM = Minutes
Spill Volume Flow Rate Spill Duration

Subtract the duration from the spill end date/time to establish the spill start date/time:

Spill End Date/Time Duration Spill Start Time

Method to determine flow rate:

Solids Present? [ None or small amount (indicates recent start)
[ Significant amount of buildup

Staining? [ None (indicates recent start)
O Minor
[ Significant

Distance sewage has traveled from spill point:

Spill Start Time:

Spill End Date and Time:

How was end time determined?
O Broke stoppage

[0 Turned pump station back on
[ Other, explain:

Description of the methodology(ies), assumptions and type of data relied upon for estimations of the
spill start time and the spill end time.

Workbook Page 20 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 149



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report

B-1: Page 8

SPILL CAUSE (check all that apply)

Debris from Construction
Debris from Lateral
Debris-General
Debris-Rags

Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG)

OO000O00000000O000000

Root Intrusion
[ Siphon Failure

[0 vandalism (Specify Below)
[0 Other, specify:

Pump Station Failure — Power

O Air Relief Valve (ARV)/Blow Off Valve (BOV)/Backwater Valve Failure

[0 Construction Diversion Failure

O collection System Maintenance Failure (Specify Below)

Damage by Others Not Related to CS Construction/Maintenance (Specify Below)

Debris-wipes/Non-disposables
Flow Exceeded Capacity (Separate CS Only)

Inappropriate Discharge to CS

Natural Disaster (Specify Below)

Operator Error (Specify Below)

Pipe Structural Problem/Failure — Installation
Pipe Structural Problem/Failure — Controls

Pump Station Failure — Mechanical

Pump Station Failure — Controls
Rainfall Exceeded Design, | and | (Separate CS Only)

[0 Surcharged Pipe (Combines CS Only)

Workbook Page 21 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 150



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 9

SYSTEM FAILURE LOCATION

System failure location:

O Air Relief Valve (ARV)/Blow Off Valve (BOV) Failure
[ Force Main

[ Gravity Mainline

O Lower Lateral

0 Manhole

0 Pump Station Failure — Controls

[0 Pump Station Failure — Mechanical
[0 Pump Station Failure — Power

O Siphon

[0 Upper Lateral (Specify Below)

O Other, specify:

Description of the pipe material at the failure location:
O Copper
O Galvanized Steel

O Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)

O Acrylonitrile Butadiene Styrene (ABS)
[ Cross-Linked Polyethylene (PEX)

O Cast Iron

O vitrified Clay

[ Concrete

O Ductile Iron

O Fiberglass

O Other, specify:

Estimated age of sewer asset at the point of blockage or failure (if
applicable):
years

Diameter of sewer pipe at the point of blockage or failure:

inches

Workbook Page 22 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 151



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 10

SPILL IMPACT

Description of the impact of the spill:

STORM EVENT

Was spill associated with a storm event? O YES OO NO

SPILL RESPONSE ACTIVITIES (check all that apply)

O Cleaned Up (Specify Below)

[0 Mitigated Effects of Spill (Specify Below)

[ Contained All or Portion of Spill

[ Restored Flow

O Returned All Spill to Sanitary Sewer System

O Returned Portion of Spill to Sanitary Sewer System
O Property Owner Notified

O Other Enforcement Agency Notified

O Other, specify:

Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill containment and
cleanup efforts:

Workbook Page 23 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 152



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report

B-1: Page 11

SPILL CLEAN UP

PM

Date and Time Spill Clean Up Began: Date: Time: AM /
PM
Date and Time Spill Clean Up Completed: Date: Time: AM /

Clean Up Method: (select all that apply)
O Fresh Water Washdown
0 Broom/Rake/Retrieve Solids

O Vacuum Retrieval
O Soil Removal

[ Building Restoration
[ Disinfectants
O Other, specify:

O Hydro-Jet/Vacuum Retrieve from Storm Conveyance System

Description of Clean Up Activities:

Gallons of Water Washdown Used:

(gals)

SPILL CONTAINMENT

Containment Location: (select all that apply)
O Curb and Gutter
[ Street

[0 Open Space

O Storm Drain System

[ Drainage Channel

O Inside Building

O Lawn/Landscaped Area
O Creek/Stream

0 Wetland

[ Other, specify:

Containment Method: (select all that apply)
[ Photos of Containment in Place
O Inlet Mats

O Sandbags

[0 Naturally Contained

[0 Hand Dig Trench

[0 Dry Sweep

O Pneumatic Plugs

[ Divert to Sewer System
[0 Absorbent Waddles

[ Other, specify:

Workbook Page 24 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 153



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report B-1: Page 12

SURFACE WATERS (Complete for Category 1 Spills Only)

Name of receiving Type of receiving Description of the water body(s), including but not limited
water body water body: Stream, | to:

Ocean, Wetland, O Observed impacts on aquatic life,

Slough, Estuary, River, O Public access impact(s): public closure, restricted public access,
Lake, Reservoir, Vernal temporary restricted use, and/or other (specify below)
:)S(:;:éivf:,/;sh or Other O Responsible entity for closing/restricting use of water body, and

O Number of days closed/restricted as a result of the spill.

MUNICIPAL INTAKE (Complete for Category 1 and 2 Spills Only)

Was the spill located within 1,000 feet of a municipal surface water
intake? I ves O no

Describe:

Workbook Page 25 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 154



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Sanitary Sewer Spill Field Report

B-1: Page 13

WATER SAMPLING

If yes, identify sample locations:

Were water quality samples collected? [0 YES [0 NO OO0 N/A

[0 Total Coliform Bacteria
[J Fecal coliform bacteria
O E-coli

[0 Ammonia

[0 Other, specify:

Identify parameters the water quality samples were analyzed for: (Check all that apply)

Workbook Page 26 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 155



INSERT TAB:
Section 3: Volume Estimation

Workbook Page 27 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 156



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Volume Estimation Computations & Examples

C-1: Page 1

Miscellaneous Computations & Examples

To convert inches to feet

(NOTE: for the purposes
of this worksheet, the
unit of measurement will
be in feet for formula
examples)

Divide the inches by 12 or use the chart on the right.

Example1: 27" +12 = 2.25'

Example 2: 1%" =7

1" (0.08') + %" (0.06') = 0.14'

Volume of one cubic foot

7.48 gallons of liquid

Area:

Square/rectangle: Area = Length x Width

Two-dimensional Circle: Area = T X r2

measurement (where = 3.14 and r = radius = % diameter)
represented in square Triangle:  Area =7 (Base x Height)

feet (SQ/FT or ft?)

Volume: Rectangle/square footprint: Volume = Length x Width x Depth

Three-dimensional

Circle footprint (cylinder): Volume = mx r? x Depth
(where mt = 3.14 and r = radius = % diameter)

measurement

represented in cubic feet | Triangle footprint: Volume =% (Base x Height) x Depth
(CU/FT or ft3)

Depth: If the depth is not measurable because it is only a wet stain, use the

Wet Stain on Concrete or
asphalt surface

following estimated depths:
O Depth of a wet stain on concrete surface: 0.0026' (1/32")
O Depth of a wet stain on asphalt surface: 0.0013' (1/64")

These were determined to be a reasonable depth to use on the respective
surfaces through a process of trial and error. One gallon of water was
poured onto both asphalt and concrete surfaces. Once the area was
determined as accurately as possible, different depths were used to
determine the volume of the wetted footprint until the formula produced
a result that (closely) matched the one gallon spilled. This process was
repeated several times.

Depth:

Contained or “Ponded”
sewage

Measure actual depth of standing sewage whenever

possible. When depth varies, measure several representative sample
points and determine the average. Use that number in your formula to
determine volume.

Workbook Page 28 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 157




Agenda Packet Page 158



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Volume Estimation: Eyeball Estimation Method (for <50 gallons) C-2

Spill Date: Location:

This method is invalid if surface conditions are wet (due to rainfall, irrigation, etc.) DO NOT use this method under these circumstances.

STEP 1: Position yourself so that you have a vantage point where you can see the entire spill.

STEP 2: Imagine one or more buckets or barrels of water tipped over. Depending on the size of the spill, select a
bucket or barrel size as a frame of reference. It may be necessary to use more than one bucket/barrel
size.

STEP 3: Estimate how many of each size bucket or barrel it would take to make an equivalent spill. Enter those
numbers in Column A of the row in the table below that corresponds to the bucket/barrel sizes you are
using as a frame of reference.

STEP 4: Multiply the number in Column A by the multiplier in Column B. Enter the result in Column C.

A B C
Size of bucket(s)/barrel(s) | How many of this Multiplier Estimated Spill Volume
size?

x 1 gallon
x 5 gallons
x 32 gallons
x ___gallons

Estimated Total Spill Volume:

STEP 5: List assumptions made to arrive at the total estimated spill volume:

STEP 6: Take photographs. Where are photographs stored?

The following photos must be taken: appearance point closest to the failure point, extent of the
spill and spill boundaries, the entry location of each drainage conveyance system the sewage
entered, all discharge points into surface waters (Category 1 spill only), and location(s) of clean

up.

Workbook Page 30 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 159



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Volume Estimation: Duration and Flow Rate Comparison Method C-3:Page 1

Spill Date: Location:

Compare the spill to reference images below to estimate flow rate of the current spill. NOTE: If the manhole cover
in your picture has vent holes or more than one pry hole, do not use these pictures for comparison.

5gpm 25 gpm 50 gpm 100 gpm
Near View
Far View
150 gpm 200 gpm 300 gpm 400 gpm
Near View
Far View

SSCSC Manhole Spill Gauge: CWEA Southern Section Collections Systems Committee. Spill Simulation courtesy of Eastern Municipal Water District.

Describe which reference photo(s) were used and any additional factors that influenced applying the reference
photo data to the actual spill:

Flow Rate Based on Photo Comparison: gallons per minute (gpm)

(Continued on next page)

Workbook Page 31 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 160



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Volume Estimation: Duration and Flow Rate Comparison Method C-3: Page 2
Start Date and Time 1.
End Date and Time 2.
Spill Event Total Time Elapsed 3.
(subtract Line 1 from Line 2. Show in
minutes.)
Average Flow Rate GPM 4.

(Account for diurnal flow pattern)

Total Volume Estimated Using Duration and 5.
Flow Method (Line 3 x Line 4)

List assumptions made to arrive at the total estimated spill volume:

Take photographs. Where are photographs stored?

The following photos must be taken: appearance point closest to the failure point, extent of the spill and
spill boundaries, the entry location of each drainage conveyance system the sewage entered, all discharge
points into surface waters (Category 1 spill only), and location(s) of clean up.

Workbook Page 32 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 161



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Volume Estimation: Area/Volume Method C-4: Page 1

Spill Date: Location:

STEP 1: Describe spill area surface: [ ]Asphalt [ ]Concrete [ |Dirt [ ]Landscape [ ]Inside Building

[_]Other:

STEP 2: Draw/sketch the outline (footprint) of the spill. Then break the footprint down into recognizable shapes.
Label/identify each sketch outline area (Area 1, Area 2, etc.) See example below.

Workbook Page 33 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 162



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Volume Estimation: Area/Volume Method

C-4: Page 2

STEP 3: Calculate the area of the footprint by completing the table below for each area in Step 2. Measure actual
depth of standing sewage whenever possible. When depth varies, measure several representative sample
points and determine the average. If the depth is not measurable because it is only a wet stain, use the

following estimated depths:

Depth of a wet stain on concrete surface: 0.0026' (1/32")

Depth of a wet stain on asphalt surface: 0.0013' (1/64")

Rectangles:
Area #
I(:Olmd Length X Width X % Wet = Area X Depth Volume
abele
drawing)
> ft | X ft | X % | = ft2 | X ft ft3
> ft | X ft | X % | = ft2 | X ft ft3
> ft | X ft | X % | = ft2 | X ft ft3
Circles:
Area #
I(fk:olmd Tt X Radius X | Radius | X | %$Wet | = Area X | Depth | =| Volume
abele
drawing)
2> | 314 X ftlx ftlx % | = ft2 | X ft | = ft3
> 314 | X ft]x ft | x % | = ft2 | X ft | = ft3
> | 314 | X ft | x ft | x % | = ft2 | X ft | = ft3
STEP 4: If part of the spill is in a gutter, use the formula
below to calculate the volume:
X X X 05 = ft3
Length Depth Width Volume
STEP 5: Calculate Total Spill Volume (sum of all of the volume calculations above): ft3
STEP 6: Convert from cubic feet to gallons by multiplying by 7.48.
ft2 x  7.48 gallons = gallons
spill volume in cubic feet Total estimated volume
Workbook Page 34 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 163




Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Volume Estimation: Area/Volume Method C-4: Page 3

STEP 7: List assumptions made to arrive at the total estimated spill volume. Adjust estimation up for moderate to
severe cracking and/or roughness of surface (General Rule 20% to 40%):

STEP 8: Take photographs. Where are photographs stored?

The following photos must be taken: appearance point closest to the failure point, extent of the
spill and spill boundaries, the entry location of each drainage conveyance system the sewage
entered, all discharge points into surface waters (Category 1 spill only), and location(s) of clean
up.

Workbook Page 35 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 164



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Volume Estimation: Upstream Connections Method C-5

Spill Date: Location:

Attach and/or reference system map and identify location of spill and buildings contributing to spill.

STEP 1:

STEP 2:

STEP 3:

STEP 4:

STEP 7:

STEP 8:

Determine the number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) for this spill: EDUs
NOTE: A single-family residential home = 1 EDU. For commercial buildings, refer to agency documentation.

This volume estimation method utilizes daily usage data based on flow rate studies of several
jurisdictions in California. Column A shows how an average daily usage of 180 gallons per day is
distributed during each 6-hour period. Adjust the table as necessary to accurately represent the actual
data.

Complete Column E by entering the number of minutes the spill was active during each 6-hour time
period. Multiply column D times Column E to calculate the gallons spilled during each time period. Add
the numbers in Column F together for the Total Estimated spill Volume per EDU.

Flow Rate Per EDU Spill
A B C D E F

Gallons Hours A+B = C+60 = Minutes spill D x E = Gallons

per per Gallons Gallons per | was active spilled per
Time Period | Period period | per Hour | Minute during period period
6am-noon 72 6 12 0.20
noon-6pm 36 6 6 0.10
6pm-midnight 54 6 9 0.15
midnight-6am 18 6 3 0.05

Total Estimated spill Volume per EDU:

Multiply the Estimated spill Volume per EDU from Step 2 by the number of EDUs from Step 1.

gallons X = gallons
Volume per EDU # of EDUs Estimated spill Volume

Adjust spill volume as necessary considering other factors, such as activity that would cause a fluctuating
flow rate (doing laundry, taking showers, etc.). Explain rationale below and indicate adjusted spill
estimate (attach a separate page if necessary).

Total Estimated spill Volume: gallons

List assumptions made to arrive at the total estimated spill volume:

Take photographs. Where are photographs stored?

The following photos must be taken: appearance point closest to the failure point, extent of the
spill and spill boundaries, the entry location of each drainage conveyance system the sewage
entered, all discharge points into surface waters (Category 1 spill only), and location(s) of clean

up.
Workbook Page 36 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 165



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Drawing Worksheet C-6

Workbook Page 37 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 166



INSERT TAB:
Section 4: Backup Forms

Workbook Page 38 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 167



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Backup Forms Checklist D-1

Complete this form only if there is a backup into a residence or business.

Instructions to Collections System Crew:

1. Take photo of each form before giving it to the customer for documentation.
2. Take pictures, as allowed by resident, of impacted areas/items.

3. Tear forms listed below out of this workbook and hand to customer. Leave the First Responder Form (D-2) in this
workbook, do not give to Customer.

4. Check each item that was provided to the customer.

5. Have customer sign below.

Forms/Documents: Formularios / Documentos:

O Form D-3: Declination of Cleaning Services O D-3: Declinacién de los Servicios de Limpieza

Form D-4: Lodging Authorization O D-4: Autorizacion de Alojamiento

Form D-5: Customer Information Letter LID-5: Carta de Informacién del Cliente

O 0o o

OO D-6: Sus Responsabilidades Como Propietario

Form D-6: Your Responsibilities as a Private
P de Una Propiedad Privad

Property Owner

O Form D-7: Claim Form O D-7: Formulario de Reclamacién

. Formularios Proporcionados a:
Forms Provided to: P

Customer Name Nombre del cliente

Customer Signature Firma del cliente

Date Fecha

Check here if customer declines to sign: O Marque aqui si el cliente se niega a firmar: O

Forms Provided by:

Employee Name Initial Date

Instructions to Collection System Manager:

Send photos, including the photos of the documents given to the customer,
and a copy of the First Responder form to the Board Secretary.

Workbook Page 39 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 168



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

First Responder Form D-2: Page 1

Complete this form only if there is a backup into a residence or business.

Fill out this form as completely as possible.
Ask customer if you may enter the home. If so, take photos of all damaged and undamaged areas.

DATE: TIME: DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE:

PARCEL #: CREW:

RESIDENT: PROPERTY MANAGERS:

STREET ADDRESS: STREET ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE & ZIP: CITY, STATE & ZIP

PHONE: PHONE:

CLEANING CONTRACTOR INSURANCE ADJUSTOR CALLED/TIME:
CALLED/TIME:

CAUSE OF BACKUP:

LOCATION/SEWER: 0O STREET O REAR EASEMENT O MANHOLE ID:
O MAINLINE O SERVICE LINE

DAMAGE: O RAW SEWAGE

COMMENTS:

CLEANING SERVICES:
O REQUIRED 0O NOT REQUIRED [O ASSIGNED BY OWNER [ ASSIGNED BY DISTRICT

SECTION B LIVABILITY ASSESSMENT

Does any resident have asthma or allergies? Yes O No O
If so, please list:

Does any resident have sensitivity to any chemicals? Yes O No O
If so, please list:

Did any resident come in contact with the sewage? Yes O No OO
If so, please list:

Are there any residents that are under the age of 6 years old? Yes O No O
Are there any residents that are over the age of 65 years old? Yes O No O
Is any resident currently under a doctor’s care? Yes O No O
Are there any residents that have other respiratory problems? Yes O No O
Are there any residents that have a deficient immune system? Yes O No OO
Is the residence used as a childcare or extended care facility? Yes O No OO
Is there any resident that is pregnant? Yes O No O
Is there a functioning and non-contaminated bathroom available? Yes O No O

If the answer to any of the questions above is YES, complete the Lodging Authorization form (D-4).

If temporary lodging was offered by the District check one: [0 Accepted [ Rejected

GO TO PAGE 2

Workbook Page 40 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 169



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

First Responder Form D-2: Page 2

SECTION C: DAMAGE ASSESSMENT (continued)

Approximate age of home: # of Bathrooms: # of Rooms Affected:
Approximate Amount of Spill: Gallons

Approximate Time Sewage Has Been Sitting: Hours/Days

Number of Pictures Taken: Digital or Film:

Does customer have a Backflow Prevention Device (BFD)? Yes O NoO

If yes, was the BFD operational at the time of the overflow? Yes O No[O

Is a BFD required for this address per District Ordinance or Plumbing Code, based on the age of the building?
YesO NoO

When was the section of line where the stoppage occurred last cleaned?
Have there ever been any previous spills at this location? Yes O No O
Type of Flooring in the rooms affected:

O Tile - Condition of tile and seams (cracking, visible open spaces, efc.):
O Carpet

O Wood - Condition of Flooring and Joints (cracking, visible open spaces, etc.):
O Other - Please identify:

Are there baseboards? No [ Yes 0 Baseboard Material:
Condition of Baseboards:
O Baseboard bottom has tight seal with floor O Baseboard top has tight seal with wall

O Baseboard has gap between bottom and the floor [ Baseboard has gap between baseboard and wall

Please diagram the rooms affected (shade the areas most heavily affected):

SECTION D CLEANING CONTRACTOR INTERVIEW
COMPANY: PHONE:
ADDRESS: ARRIVAL TIME:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

Estimated Cost: 1 $0 to $1000 1 $1000 to $2500 0 $2500 to $5000 {1 Over $5000

Workbook Page 41 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 170



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Declination of Cleaning Services D-3
Customer Information
NAME: ADDRESS: TELEPHONE:
ON AT Approximately GALLONS OF:
(date) (time) (quantity) [ Sewage O Grey Water [ Toilet Bowl Water [ odor

[ Other (describe):

Spilled from (or odor emanating from) The spill affected the following areas (check one):
O Toilet [ Shower/Tub [ Washer [ Other (describe): | O Bathroom [ Bedroom O Hallway O Garage
O Kitchen O Crawlspace [ Other (specify):

The spill affected the following flooring: and/or additional materials:
O Tile 0 Wood Flooring [ Area Rugs O Towels
O Linoleum O Carpet [ Clothing [ Other (specify):
[ Other (specify):
This Form Completed By: Name: Date:
(Write legibly) Title: Time:

CUSTOMER, please read the following and sign below. I/We acknowledge that Goleta Sanitary District (District) has
offered to provide professional cleaning and decontamination services to remediate the sewage backup and/or spill
described above and that we declined the offer. We further understand and acknowledge that because we have
declined, any necessary remediation activities will be conducted without District assistance, and that the District will
not accept responsibility for work performed by persons other than those engaged by the District. The District will also
not accept responsibility for any charges related to this incident that are not usual and customary. Refer to “Your
Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner” (Page D-6) for recommendations regarding spill cleanup.

CLIENTE, por favor lea lo siguiente y firme a continuacién. Reconozco que el Distrito Sanitario de Goleta (Distrito) se
ha ofrecido a proporcionar servicios profesionales de limpieza y descontaminacidn para remediar el respaldo de aguas
residuales y / o derrame descrito anteriormente y que rechazamos la oferta. Ademas, entendemos y reconocemos
que debido a que hemos rechazado, cualquier actividad de remediacién necesaria se llevara a cabo sin la asistencia
del Distrito, y que el Distrito no aceptard responsabilidad por el trabajo realizado por personas que no sean las
contratadas por el Distrito. El Distrito tampoco aceptara responsabilidad por ninglin cargo relacionado con este
incidente que no sea habitual y habitual. Consulte "Sus responsabilidades como propietario de una propiedad
privada" (Pagina D-6) para obtener recomendaciones sobre la limpieza de derrames.

Customer Signature / Firma del cliente *: Date:

The information above was Name: Title:
explained to the customer by
the following employee:

Signature: Date:

*Note to responders: if customer declines to sign this form, then have a co-worker sign here as a witness:
Name: Signature: Date:

Workbook Page 42 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 171



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Lodging Authorization D-4

INSTRUCTIONS TO EMPLOYEE:

1. Complete this form if the Livability Assessment on the First Responder Form indicates a need for temporary relocation
and the customer accepts the offer.

2. Notify the Collections System Manager who will make arrangements via telephone and pay for the hotel with a credit
card.

3. Complete the voucher as instructed by the Collections System Manager.
Take a photo of the form for records and then give it to the customer.

5. Indicate on the First Responder Form if the customer accepts or rejects the offer of temporary relocation.

INSTRUCTIONS TO RESIDENT:

Goleta Sanitary District recommends that you temporarily relocate to one of the hotels listed below for your safety and
convenience while your residence is being cleaned. Please note that this emergency authorization is granted under the
following conditions:

1. This authorization provides for one (1) night’s lodging at one of the hotels listed below.

2. The authorization is good for room and tax ONLY. Phone, food, mini-bar and other incidental charges will be your
responsibility.

3. Additional nights and/or other allowances/incidentals may be discussed by contacting the Board Secretary at (805)
967-4519.

INSTRUCCIONES PARA EL RESIDENTE:

Goleta Sanitary District recomienda que se traslade temporalmente a uno de los hoteles enumerados a continuacién por
su seguridad y comodidad mientras se limpia su residencia. Tenga en cuenta que esta autorizacidn de emergencia se
concede bajo las siguientes condiciones:

1. Esta autorizacidn prevé una (1) noche de alojamiento en uno de los hoteles que se enumeran a continuacion.

2. Laautorizacion es vélida para habitacién e impuestos SOLAMENTE. Teléfono, comida, minibar y otros cargos
incidentales serdn su responsabilidad.

3. Las noches adicionales y / u otras asignaciones / imprevistos pueden discutirse comunicandose con el Secretario
de la Junta al (805) 967-4519.

VOUCHER
Good for one (1) night’s stay on (date): Number of Affected Residents:
Customer’s Name:
Field Supervisor’s Name: Phone Number:

Hotel Choices:
0 Residence Inn by Mariott, 6350 Hollister Ave, Goleta, CA 93117, (805) 770-5031

0 Hampton Inn, 5665 Hollister Ave, Goleta, CA 93117, (805) 681-9800
0 The Leta Tapestry Collection by Hilton, 5650 Calle Real, Goleta, CA 93117, (805) 964 6241

Workbook Page 43 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 172



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Customer Information Letter D-5 (English)

Dear Property Owner:

We recognize that sewer backup incidents can be stressful and require immediate response while all facts concerning
how an incident occurred are still unknown. Rest assured that we do all we can to prevent this type of event from
occurring in the first place. Nevertheless, occasionally tree roots or other debris in the sewer lines causes a backup
into homes immediately upstream of the blockage. At this time the District is investigating the cause of this incident.

If the District is found to be responsible for the incident, we are committed to cleaning and restoring your property,
and to protecting the health of those affected during the remediation process.

The cleaning contractor provided by the District has been selected because of their adherence to established protocols
that are designed to assure to all parties thorough, cost-effective and expeditious cleaning services. You also have the
right to select your own cleaning contractor, but the District does not guarantee payment of fees/expenses incurred
and reserves the right to dispute fees/expenses deemed not usual and customary.

To discuss this matter, contact the Collections System Manager at (805) 967-4519 ext. 112. To submit a claim for
damages, complete the Claim Form and mail it to:

Goleta Sanitary District
Attn: Board Secretary
One William Moffett Place
Goleta, CA 93117

Sincerely,
The Goleta Sanitary District

Workbook Page 44 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 173



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Customer Information Letter D-5 (Spanish)

Estimado propietario:

Reconocemos que los incidentes de respaldo de alcantarillado pueden ser estresantes y requieren una respuesta
inmediata, mientras que todos los hechos relacionados con cémo ocurrié un incidente aun se desconocen. Tenga la
seguridad de que hacemos todo lo posible para evitar que ocurra este tipo de evento en primer lugar. Sin embargo,
ocasionalmente, las raices de los arboles u otros escombros en las lineas de alcantarillado causan una copia de
seguridad en las casas inmediatamente aguas arriba del bloqueo. En este momento, el Distrito esta investigando la
causa de este incidente.

Si se determina que el Distrito es responsable del incidente, nos comprometemos a limpiar y restaurar su propiedad,
y a proteger la salud de los afectados durante el proceso de remediacion.

El contratista de limpieza proporcionado por el Distrito ha sido seleccionado debido a su adhesidn a los protocolos
establecidos que estan disefiados para garantizar a todas las partes servicios de limpieza completos, rentables y
rapidos. También tiene derecho a seleccionar su propio contratista de limpieza, pero el Distrito no garantiza el pago
de tarifas / gastos incurridos y se reserva el derecho de disputar tarifas / gastos considerados no habituales y
habituales.

Para discutir este asunto, comuniquese con el Gerente del Sistema de Cobranzas al (805) 967-4519 ext. 112. Para
presentar una reclamacién por dafios y perjuicios, complete el Formulario de reclamacién y envielo por correo a:

Goleta Sanitary District
Attn: Board Secretary
One William Moffett Place
Goleta, CA 93117

Sinceramente,
El Distrito Sanitario de Goleta

Workbook Page 45 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 174



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner D-6: Page 1

How a Sewer System Works

A property owner's sewer pipes are called service laterals and are connected to larger local main and regional trunk
lines. Service laterals run from the connection at the home to the connection with the public sewer. Depending on
your location, a portion of the lateral is the responsibility of the property owner and must be maintained by the
property owner.

How do sewage spills happen?

Sewage spills occur when the wastewater in
underground pipes spills through a manhole, cleanout,
or broken pipe. Most spills are relatively small and can
be stopped and cleaned up quickly, but left unattended
they can cause health hazards, damage to homes and
businesses, and threaten the environment, local
waterways, and beaches. Common causes of sewage
spills include grease build-up, tree roots,
broken/cracked pipes, missing or broken cleanout
caps, undersized sewers, and groundwater/rainwater
entering the sewer system through pipe defects and
illegal connections.

Prevent most sewage backups with a Backflow Prevention Device

This type of device can help prevent sewage backups into homes and businesses. If you don’t already have a
Backflow Prevention Device, contact a professional plumber or contractor to install one as soon as possible.

Is my home required to have a backflow prevention device?

Section 710.1 of the Uniform Plumbing Code (U.P.C.) states: “Drainage piping serving fixtures which have flood level
rims located below the elevation of the next upstream manhole cover or private sewer serving such drainage piping
shall be protected from backflow of sewage by installing an approved type of backwater valve.” The intent of
Section 710.1 is to protect the building interior from mainline sewer spills or surcharges.

Additionally, U.P.C. 710.6 states:
“Backwater valves shall be located where
they will be accessible for inspection and
repair at all times and, unless
continuously exposed, shall be enclosed
in @ masonry pit fitted with an
adequately sized removable cover.”

Workbook Page 46 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 175



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Your Responsibilities as a Private Property Owner D-6: Page 2

Spill cleanup inside the home:

For large clean ups, a professional cleaning firm should be contacted to clean up impacted areas, If you hire a
contractor, it is recommended to get estimates from more than one company. Sometimes, homeowner’s insurance
will pay for the necessary cleaning due to sewer backups. Not all policies have this coverage, so check with your
agent.

If you decide to clean up a small spill inside your home, protect yourself from contamination by observing the
following safety measures. Those persons whose resistance to infection is compromised should not attempt this
type of clean up.

Other Tips: Seek immediate
attention if you
become injured or ill

during or after the
e Wear rubber boots, rubber gloves, and goggles during cleanup. cleanup process.

e Discard items that cannot be washed and disinfected (such as: mattresses,
rugs, cosmetics, toys, etc.)

o Keep children and pets out of the affected area.
e Turn off heating/air conditioning systems

e Remove and discard drywall and insulation that has been contaminated with sewage or flood waters.

e Thoroughly clean all hard surfaces (such as flooring, concrete, molding, wood and metal furniture, countertops,
appliances, sinks and other plumbing fixtures) with hot water and laundry or dish detergent.

e Help the drying process with fans, air conditioning units, and dehumidifiers.

o After completing cleanup, wash your hands with soap and water. Use water that has been boiled for 1 minute
(allow the water to cool before washing your hands) OR use water that has been disinfected (solution of 1/8
teaspoon of household bleach per 1 gallon of water). Let it stand for 30 min. If water is cloudy, use % teaspoon
of household bleach per 1 gallon of water.

e Wash clothes worn during cleanup in hot water & detergent (wash apart from uncontaminated clothes).

e Wash clothes contaminated with sewage in hot water and detergent. Consider using a Laundromat until your
onsite wastewater system has been professionally inspected and serviced.

Spill cleanup outside the home:

o Keep children and pets out of the affected area until cleanup has been completed.

e Wear rubber boots, rubber gloves, and goggles during cleanup of affected area.

o Clean up sewage solids (fecal material) and place in properly functioning toilet or double bag and place in
garbage container.

e On hard surfaces areas such as asphalt or concrete, it is safe to use a 2% bleach solution, or % cup of bleach to 5
gallons of water, but don’t allow it to reach a storm drain as the bleach can harm the environment.

o After cleanup, wash hands with soap and water. Use water that has been boiled for 1 minute (allow to cool
before washing your hands) OR use water that has been disinfected (solution of 1/8 teaspoon of household
bleach per 1 gallon of water). Let it stand for 30 min. If water is cloudy, use % teaspoon of household bleach per
1 gallon of water.

e Wash clothes worn during cleanup in hot water and detergent (wash apart from uncontaminated clothes).

e Wash clothes contaminated with sewage in hot water and detergent. Consider using a laundromat until your
onsite wastewater system has been professionally inspected and serviced.

Workbook Page 47 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 176



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Sus Responsabilidades Como Propietario de Una Propiedad Privada D-6 Pagina 1: en espaiiol

Cémo funciona un sistema de alcantarillado

Las tuberias de alcantarillado de un propietario se denominan servicios laterales y estan conectadas a lineas troncales
principales y regionales locales mas grandes. Los servicios laterales se ejecutan desde la conexidon en el hogar hasta la
conexidén con el sistema de alcantarillado del Distrito. Estos laterales son responsabilidad del propietario y deben ser
mantenidos por el propietario.

¢Como ocurren los derrames de aguas residuales?

Los derrames de aguas residuales ocurren cuando las aguas
residuales en las tuberias subterraneas se desbordan a través
de un pozo de acceso, limpieza o tuberia rota. La mayoria de
los derrames son relativamente pequefios y se pueden
detener vy limpiar rdpidamente, pero si se los deja
desatendidos, pueden causar riesgos para la salud, dafar
viviendas y negocios y amenazar el medio ambiente, las vias
fluviales locales y las playas. Las causas comunes de
derrames de aguas residuales incluyen acumulacién de
grasa, raices de arboles, tuberias rotas / agrietadas, tapas de
limpieza faltantes o rotas, alcantarillas de tamano
insuficiente y aguas subterraneas / pluviales que ingresan al
sistema de alcantarillado a través de defectos en las tuberias
y conexiones ilegales.

Prevenga la mayoria de las copias de seguridad de aguas residuales con un dispositivo de prevencién de reflujo
Este tipo de dispositivo puede ayudar a prevenir las copias de seguridad de aguas residuales en hogares y empresas.
Si auin no tiene un dispositivo de prevencidon de reflujo, comuniquese con un plomero o contratista profesional para
instalar uno lo antes posible.

éSe requiere que mi hogar tenga un dispositivo de prevencién de reflujo?

La Seccién 710.1 del Cédigo Uniforme de Plomeria (UPC) establece: “Los accesorios de tuberias de drenaje que tienen
llantas de nivel de inundacién ubicadas debajo de la elevacidn de la siguiente boca de alcantarilla corriente arriba o la
alcantarilla privada que atiende dicha tuberia de drenaje deben protegerse contra el reflujo de aguas residuales al
instalar un tipo de vélvula de evacuacién ”. La intencion de la Seccién 710.1 es proteger el interior del edificio de los
desaglies o sobrecargas de alcantarillado de la linea principal.

Adicionalmente, U.P.C. 710.6 dice: Las valvulas de aguas residuales deben ubicarse donde puedan ser inspeccionadas
y reparadas en todo momento y, a menos que estén continuamente expuestas, deben estar encerradas en un pozo
de mamposteria equipado con una cubierta removible del tamafio adecuado.

Workbook Page 48 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 177



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Sus Responsabilidades Como Propietario de Una Propiedad Privada D-6 Pagina 2: en espaiiol

Limpieza de derrames dentro de la casa:

Para grandes limpiezas, se debe contactar a una empresa de limpieza profesional para limpiar las areas
afectadas. Si contrata a un contratista, se recomienda obtener estimaciones de mas de una compaiia. A veces,
el seguro del propietario de vivienda pagara la limpieza necesaria debido a las reservas de alcantarillado. No
todas las pdlizas tienen esta cobertura, asi que consulte con su agente.

Si decide limpiar un pequefio derrame dentro de su casa, protéjase de la contaminacién observando las siguientes
medidas de seguridad. Aquellas personas cuya resistencia a la infeccion esté comprometida no deben intentar
este tipo de limpieza.

Otros consejos: Busque atencion
o0 Mantenga a los nifios y mascotas fuera del area afectada. inmediata si se lesiona
0 Apague los sistemas de calefaccion / aire acondicionado o se enferma durante
0 Use botas de goma, guantes de goma y gafas durante la limpieza. o después del proceso
o0 Deseche los articulos que no se puedan lavar y desinfectar (como: colchones, de limpieza.
alfombras, cosméticos, juguetes, etc.)

o

Retire y deseche los paneles de yeso y el aislamiento contaminado con aguas residuales o aguas de

inundacion.

o0 Limpie a fondo todas las superficies duras (como pisos, concreto, molduras, muebles de madera y metal,
mostradores, electrodomésticos, fregaderos y otros accesorios de plomeria) con agua caliente y ropa o
detergente para platos.

0 Ayude al proceso de secado con ventiladores, unidades de aire acondicionado y deshumidificadores.

o0 Después de completar la limpieza, lavese las manos con agua y jabon. Use agua que haya sido hervida por
1 minuto (deje que el agua se enfrie antes de lavarse las manos) O use agua que haya sido desinfectada
(solucion de 1/8 cucharadita de lejia doméstica por 1 galén de agua). Dejar reposar durante 30 min. Si el
agua esta turbia, use %4 cucharadita de lejia de uso doméstico por 1 galon de agua.

0 Lave la ropa usada durante la limpieza con agua caliente y detergente (lave aparte de la ropa no
contaminada).

o0 Lavar la ropa contaminada con aguas residuales en agua caliente y detergente. Considere usar una

lavanderia hasta que su sistema de aguas residuales en el sitio haya sido inspeccionado y reparado

profesionalmente.

Limpieza de derrames fuera de la casa:

0 Mantenga a los nifios y las mascotas fuera del area afectada hasta que se haya completado la limpieza.

o0 Use botas de goma, guantes de goma y gafas protectoras durante la limpieza del area afectada.

o0 Limpie los solidos de alcantarillado (material fecal) y coléquelos en un inodoro o bolsa doble que funcione
correctamente y coloquelos en un contenedor de basura.

o En areas de superficies duras como el asfalto o el concreto, es seguro usar una solucion de lejia al 2%, o V2
taza de lejia a 5 galones de agua, pero no permita que llegue a un drenaje de tormenta ya que la lejia puede
dafar la ambiente.

o Después de la limpieza, lavese las manos con agua y jabon. Use agua que haya sido hervida por 1 minuto
(deje enfriar antes de lavarse las manos) O use agua que haya sido desinfectada (solucion de 1/8
cucharadita de cloro por 1 galon de agua). Dejar reposar durante 30 min. Si el agua esta turbia, use 7
cucharadita de lejia de uso domeéstico por 1 galén de agua.

o0 Lave la ropa usada durante la limpieza con agua caliente y detergente (lave aparte de la ropa no
contaminada).

o Lavar la ropa contaminada con aguas residuales en agua caliente y detergente. Considere usar una
lavanderia hasta que su sistema de aguas residuales en el sitio haya sido inspeccionado y reparado

profesionalmente.
Workbook Page 49 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 178



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Claim Form D-7: Page 1

Claim Form

This form is provided pursuant to Government Code Section 910.4 and shall be used by any person presenting a claim
to the Goleta Sanitary District under Government Code Section 810 et seq., except as provided in Government Code
Sections 905 and 905.1. If additional space is needed for any of the required information, please attach additional
sheets.

Section 1: Claimant Information

( )

Name of Claimant Telephone Number (include area code)

Post Office Address City State Zip Code

Section 2: Notices

The person presenting this claim desires that notices be sent to the following address:

Post Office Address City State Zip Code

Section 3: Claim Information

Date of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim:

Month Day Year
Provide the location of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim. If applicable, include street address, city or

county, highway number, mile post number and direction of travel.

Explain the circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim. State all facts that support your claim

against the Goleta Sanitary District and why you believe the Goleta Sanitary District is responsible for the alleged damage or
injury.

Workbook Page 50 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 179



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Claim Form D-7: Page 2

Provide a general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage or loss incurred so far as it may be known at the time

of presentation of the claim.

Provide the name(s) of the Goleta Sanitary District employee(s) causing the injury, damage, or loss, if known.

Provide the amount claimed if said amount totals less than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) as of the date of presentation of the
claim (including the estimated amount of any prospective injury, damage, or loss, insofar as it may be known at the time of the

presentation of the claim), together with the basis of computation of the amount claimed.

Amount Claimed: $

Basis for computation:

If the amount claimed exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000), do not provide the dollar amount of the claim. However, please
indicate below whether the claim would be a limited civil case. A limited civil case is one where the amount claimed does not
exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000).

_ Limited Civil Case _ Non-Limited Civil Case

Section 4: Insurance Information (Optional - May be completed if claim involves a motor vehicle)

Has a claim for the alleged damage/injury been filed or will it be filed with your insurance carrier?  Yes _ No
( )
Name of insurance carrier Telephone Number (include area code)
Address City State Zip Code
Policy Number: Deductible: $

Name of registered owner(s) of the vehicle:

Vehicle Make: Model: Year:

Workbook Page 51 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 180



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Claim Form D-7: Page 3

Section 5: Representative Information (Optional - May be completed if filed by attorney or representative)

( )
Name of Attorney/Representative Telephone Number (include area code)
Address City State Zip Code
Is the claim filed on behalf of a minor? ~ Yes  No If yes, please indicate:
Relationship to the minor Minor’s date of birth

Month Day Year

Section 6: Advisory

Section 72 of the Penal Code provides that “every person who, with intent to defraud, presents for allowance or for payment to
any State Board or Officer, or to any county, town, city, district, ward, or village, board or officer, authorized to allow or pay the
same if genuine, any false or fraudulent claim, bill, account, voucher, or writing, is guilty of a felony.”

Section 7: Signature

Signature of Claimant or Claimant’s Attorney/Representative Date

Section 8: Submission of Claim Form
Completed Claim Forms must be submitted by personal delivery or by United States mail, postage paid, to the following address:

Goleta Sanitary District
Attn: Board Secretary

One William Moffett Place
Goleta, CA 93117

For additional information, the Goleta Sanitary District may be contacted by telephone at (805) 967-4519, by facsimile at (805)
964-3583, or by e-mail at info@goletasanitary.org.

Workbook Page 52 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 181



INSERT TAB:
Section 5: Lift Stations

Workbook Page 53 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 182



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response: Firestone E-1: Page 1

1. The Firestone Lift Station is equipped with power outage and high-level alarms and an emergency generator.
Upon receipt of these alarms, immediately proceed to the Lift Station, verify flow conditions and acknowledge
the alarm.

2. The emergency generator is designed to provide electrical power to the station in case of loss of Edison power.
The station pumps will automatically switch from one power source to the other. The noise of the generator
will indicate that it is operating, verify that the level of the wet well corresponds with the level indicated on
the control panel.

3. If there is no Edison power to the lift station and the standby generator is not providing electrical power to
the station, contact the District Facilities Maintenance Manager. Monitor the level in the wet well and connect
suction hose from the wet well to the 4” Pioneer trash pump and connect suction hose from the trash pump
to the by-pass valve located in the valve pit. Additional personnel will be required for this operation. Contact
additional District personnel.

4. |If electrical power cannot be restored to the station, turn off the electrical breakers for the pumps in the
control room, close the valves from the station pumps and open the by-pass valves in the valve pit. Operate
the 4” trash pump as required to maintain normal levels in the wet well.

5. If a spill has or is occurring at the Firestone Lift Station, take immediate action to prevent the spill from
entering into the drainage channel adjacent to the station. The perimeter walls of the Station will contain the
spill, use sandbags and/or tarps to contain the gate area. Notify the Collection System Manager, Supervisor
or CSMT Il and begin to pump down the wet well as described above in Items 3-4. Begin initial calculation of
the spill and begin the notification process as required for the spill Category that has occurred.

6. Once the spill has been contained and normal operations have resumed at the station, begin clean up of the
spill and pump or vacuum all water back into the District sewer system. Prepare an spill Report for review by

the Supervisor and continue calculation of the spill volume.

7. The Manager or Supervisor will continue with the notification process.

Workbook Page 54 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 183



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Lift Station Alarm and Spill Response: El Sueno E-1: Page 1

1. TheElSueno Lift Station is equipped with a power outage and a high-level alarm. Upon receipt of these alarms,
immediately proceed to the Lift Station and verify flow conditions. Acknowledge the alarm and determine if
power has been restored.

2. Ifthereis no power at the lift station and an spill has not occurred, take or have brought a 3” trash pump with
sections of suction and discharge hose to the lift station. Connect the suction hose from the pump to the by-
pass pipe at the wet well and connect the discharge hose from the pump to the force main by-pass valve.
Operate the trash pump as needed to maintain normal levels in the wet well until such time that power is
restored. Contact Southern California Edison at 1-800-656-4555 and inform them of the power outage
affecting the District lift station located at 419 El Sueno Road, Santa Barbara, Service Account # 3-000-5321-
34. Notify the Collection System Manager, Supervisor or a CSMT |l of the power outage.

3. Continue to maintain normal levels in the wet well until power is restored and the lift station is operating
normally. Return all pumps and equipment used to the District plant for cleaning and storage.

4. |If there is power at the station but the pump does not appear to be working, check the breakers in the control
power. Reset the breakers if needed and turn off the power to the pump to check if the pump is clogged.
Verify that power to the pump has been disconnected and clear the pump of any blockage. Turn the power
back on and verify that the pump is working. Run the pump in the “Manual Position” until normal levels in the
wet well is maintained and the lift station is operating normally.

5. If the pump will not operate, take or have a 3” trash pump with sections of suction and discharge hose taken
to the lift station. Connect the suction hose from the pump to the by-pass pipe at the wet well and connect
the discharge hose from the pump to the force main by-pass valve. Operate the trash pump as needed to
maintain normal levels in the wet well until such time that the pump can be fixed or replaced.

6. Ifthere appears to be a blockage in the force main, disconnect the force main piping in the wet well to expose
the force main outlet. Clean the force main using the Vactor/Ramjet without skids from District manhole
05T46 at Sherwood Drive towards the lift station. If a blockage is cleared, reassemble the wet well piping and
pump the wet well to normal operating levels. If the blockage cannot be cleared, connect discharge hose from
the 3” trash pump to manhole 05T46 at Sherwood Drive or to a District Vactor/Ramjet truck. Maintain normal
levels in the wet well until the blockage in the force main can be cleared and the lift station is operating
normally.

7. Ifaspill has oris occurring at the El Sueno Lift Station, take immediate action to prevent the spill from entering
into the drainage channel adjacent to the station. Notify the Collection System Manager and begin to pump
down the wet well as described above in Items 1-6. Begin initial calculation of the spill and begin the
notification process as required for the spill Category that has occurred.

8. Once the spill has been contained and normal operations have resumed at the station, begin clean up of the
spill and pump or vacuum all water back into the District sewer system. Prepare a spill Report for review by
the Supervisor and continue calculation of the spill volume.

9. The Manager or Supervisor will continue with the notification process.

Workbook Page 55 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 184



INSERT TAB:
Section 6: Field Sampling

Workbook Page 56 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 185



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Field Sampling Kit Overview F-1
Documents

e Field Sampling Kit Overview (thisS Page)..........cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e F-1

e Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling Requirements and Timelines....................cc........ -2

o Spill Sampling Field REPOIT.........oueiiiiieeeieee e e e e e e e e -3

e Surface Water Sampling Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) ........cccccviiiieiiiiiiinennnne -4

o Surface Water Sampling WOrksheet.............cooiiiiiiii e -5

e Surface Water Sample Chain of Custody Record.............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e -6

Field Sample Kit Contents:

e Cooler

e Sampling SOP from Sewer Spill Workbook

e Sampling Workbook

e Pen/marker

e Labels

e Chain of Custody forms

e Ice Packs

e Ammonia Sample Bottles - 500mL minimum of 4

e Coliform, Enterococcus & E Coli Bottles - 125 mL -minimum of 12
e Latex/rubber gloves

e Safety glasses/goggles

e Sampling pole

o Verify that the District phone is on hand and ready to take pictures

Summary of the Constituents, Sampling and Testing Information:

Constituent Place of Analysis Sampling Bottle

Ammonia FGL or OEC 500mL plastic bottle with HxSO4
Total and Fecal Coliforms GSD lab or FGL/OEC 125 mL plastic sterile bottle
Enterococcus GSD lab or FGL/OEC 125 mL plastic sterile bottle

E. Coli OEC or FGL lab 125 mL plastic sterile bottle

Lab Contact Information:
e GSD Lab: 1 William Moffett Place, Goleta CA
(805) 967-4519 or cell (805) 291-1644

e FGL Environmental: 853 Corporation St., Santa Paula CA
(805) 392-2000

¢ OQilfield Environmental and Compliance: 307 Roemer Way #300, Santa Maria CA
(805) 922-4772

Workbook Page 57 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 186



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Water Quality Monitoring and Sampling Requirements and Timelines F-2

1. State Water Board directives mandate that when a spill of 50,000 gallons or greater that has or may have
reached surface waters, and within forty-eight (48) hours of initial notification of the spill District staff will
sample the affected water body according to the following water quality monitoring and sampling
procedures. This procedure shall be followed when any spill reaches a creek or waterbody.

2. Spills into a Waterbody of the State require that samples be taken at various points upstream and
downstream from the spill and at the spill site. Each sample location will be marked and documented on
the sample bottle. The samples shall be as free of debris as possible. All samples are to be transported
in a cooler with ice packs. Notify the Laboratory & Technical Services Manager or lab analyst on duty
that these samples need to be analyzed within the appropriate holding time.

3. The travel time of the spill within the water body will be used as a determination of the location of the
downstream sample point. The velocity of the flow will be calculated by measuring the travel time of
floating objects between two known distance points. This calculation of distance divided by the travel
time will be used to calculate how far the spill may have traveled from the initial reporting time of the spill
to the time that samples are being collected. The downstream samples are to be collected at locations
as deemed appropriate by the Incident Commander near this calculated location.

4. During periods of heavy rainfall or flooding, it may become impractical and /or unsafe to follow this
procedure. Sampling will be conducted as soon as District staff can safely comply with this requirement.
When access to a creek or water body is restricted, sampling is to be conducted at the next closest
location.

Samples will be analyzed for the following constituents:

Ammonia

Total and fecal coliforms

Enterococcus

E. coli

Other constituents deemed necessary or required by Public Health'RWQCB

caooTw

It may be desirable to send samples to FGL or OEC for analysis as an unbiased contractor. District staff
can analyze the total and fecal coliform and enterococcus samples in-house within the appropriate
holding times.

Samples to be tested for E. Coli and ammonia are to be sent to a contract laboratory for analysis. FGL
in Santa Paula or OEC in Santa Maria are the District’s contracted labs. They will need to be contacted
to schedule a pickup of the samples. Their general contact information is: FGL - (805) 392-2000 and
OEC - (805) 922-4772. Samples may need to be delivered to the contract lab to meet allowable holding
times.

Total and fecal coliform samples can be collected in one sterilized 125 ml plastic bottle. Separate
samples for E. Coli and enterococcus also will need to be collected in sterilized 125 ml plastic bottles.
Sample containers are kept in the District Spill Response Kit. All samples are to be placed in a cooler
with ice packs after collection and transport to the laboratory. The E. Coli and ammonia samples must
be sent to FGL or OEC lab for analysis. Ammonia is to be collected in a plastic 500mL bottle with a small
amount of H.SO4 (sulfuric acid) for preservation. See the overview on the previous page for a summary
of the constituents, sampling and testing information.

Workbook Page 58 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 187



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Spill Sampling Field Report F-3

Date:

Sampled By:

Location:

(GPS coordinates, cross street, GSD Manhole ID #)

WEATHER (circle one) Clear Cloudy Fog Rain Drizzle
CIRCLE ONE Upstream Sample Location Downstream Sample Location
Time:

CIRCLE ONE

Ammonia Total Coliform Fecal Coliform Enterococcus E. Coli

Sketch of Sample Location:

Comments:

Workbook Page 59 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 188



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 1
BEFORE SAMPLING
Sample Locations
Spill Area Downstream of | Upstream of Spill Drainage
Spill Conveyance System
Test Type (as applicable)
Ammonia/ 1 pint with 1 pint with 1 pint with : )
Nitrogen H2504 H2504 H2504 - PIIEGAR [0k
Enterococcus 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle
Fecal Coliforms 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle
E. Coli 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle 2 bacti bottle

Water samples must be collected in different bottles for various tests and then transported

in a cooler with ice packs.

For each of the three sampling sites (plus drainage conveyance system as applicable), one bottle is
needed for ammonia/nitrogen testing, and six bacti bottles are required for each type of bacteria
being tested. Bacti samples may be collected in duplicate as deemed necessary or as required by
the Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Additionally, one field blank sample is required for each constituent. Field blank sample bottles are
filled with sterilized water during sampling to serve as quality control on the sampler's sampling
methods. Since the sample bottles contain sterilized water, bacteria and ammonia should not be

present in the water.

If the lab analysis shows the presence of bacteria, it indicates that the sampler's method may not
have been correct, and the other bacti samples may have been contaminated.

Surface Water Sampling - Preparation ]

l Step 1of4 ]

Prepare the cooler for sample storage by adding
an instant ice pack, ice pack, or ice to keep the
samples cold during transport to the lab.

Workbook Page 60 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 189



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 2

BEFORE SAMPLING (continued)

l Step 2 of 4 ]

Identify the point of the spill where the
wastewater entered the waterway and take a
photograph of this location with a reference point
in the picture.

l Step 3 of 4 ]

Begin completing the Surface Water Sampling
Worksheet to record the relevant information
about the sampling location and collected
samples.

l Step 4 of 4 ]

To determine which direction is upstream and
downstream for sample collection, you should
observe the direction of water movement from
the point of discharge.

Workbook Page 61 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 190



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 3

SAMPLING

The purpose of this procedure is to provide a standard for collecting surface water
samples to assess water quality, avoid contamination, and ensure that samples
can be accurately labeled and transported to the lab for processing.

Notes:
Start by collecting downstream samples first.

In order to determine where the downstream sample is located in a stream,
creek, or river, you will need to determine the velocity of the surface water. This
can be accomplished through the use of a stream velocity meter or by measuring
off a distance along the bank and timing how long it takes for a floating object to
travel that distance.

Use the formula on the Surface Water Sampling Worksheet to calculate the
stream velocity. Once known, determine the time that the spill has not been
entering the surface water.

This, along with the stream velocity, will inform you how far downstream you
need to travel to collect the downstream sample.

Workbook Page 62 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 191



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 4

SAMPLING continued

l Step 1of9 ]

Don the appropriate PPE from your sampling kit.
This should include rubber gloves and safety
glasses.

l Step 2 of 9 ]

Label all samples with their location (refer to table
on G-8), your name, and the date and time they
are collected. Record this information on the
surface water sampling worksheet.

l Step 3 of 9 ]

Take photos of each sample location and ensure a
reference point is visible in each photo. In the
photo (left), the dock and sign serve as excellent
reference points.

Workbook Page 63 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 192



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP

F-4 Page 5

SAMPLING continued

l Step 4 of 9 ]

Remove the seal from the Ammonia sample
container just prior to collecting your sample, as
applicable.

To reduce the likelihood of contamination,
remove the cap immediately before collecting
each sample.

l Step 5 of 9 ]

To prevent sample contamination, do not allow
the inside of the cap to touch anything while you
are obtaining the sample.

l Step 6 of 9 ]

When filling the ammonia nitrogen sample bottle,
don't overfill it because it contains sulfuric acid.
Sweep the bottle or dipper upstream and out of
the water without disturbing the bottom
sediment. Remember to leave the sulfuric acid in
the bottle and avoid skin contact.

Workbook Page 64 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 193



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 6

SAMPLING continued

Step 7 of 9 ]

Fill the Ammonia sample bottle to the fill line, and
immediately replace the cap. If there is no clear fill
line, fill it to the “neck” of the bottle.

l Step 8 of 9 ]

Open the Bacteria sample container and allow
water to gently flow into the bottle just to the fill

line.

l Step 9 of 9 ]

Place all samples in the cooler on the ice pack. To
ensure accurate analysis, all samples must be
transported to the lab within 6 hours of the time

of collection.

Workbook Page 65 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 194



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 7

AFTER SAMPLING continued

l Step 1 of 4: Documentation ]

All samples must be labeled with their location, your name, and the date and time
they were collected. Refer to the state requirements found on the last page of this
document. Record this information on the chain of custody form and the surface
water sampling worksheet.

Chain of Custody Record Surface Water Sampling Worksheet

Step 2 of 4: Contact the Lab ]

Inform the lab that the following samples require processing: ammonia-
nitrogen, total/fecal coliform, and/or enterococcus. Provide any additional
information the lab may require.

l Step 3 of 4: Transport Samples ]

Place the samples in the cooler on the ice pack and transport them to the
lab within 6 hours of collection time. Complete the chain of custody form
and ensure all samples are properly secured during transport.

l Step 4 of 4: Post Warning Signs ]

If directed by your supervisor or the county environmental health division,
post warning signs in the affected area. Keep track of sign locations and
remove warning signs and lift restrictions only when authorized to do so.

Workbook Page 66 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 195



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 8

WDR Attachment E1 Summary

The Enrollee shall collect receiving water
samples at the following locations:

Sampling of Flow in Drainage Conveyance System (DCS) Prior to Discharge

Sampling Location Sampling Location Description

A point in a drainage conveyance system before the drainage
DCS-001 . : ]
conveyance system flow discharges into a receiving water.

Receiving Surface Water Sampling (RSW')

Sampling Location Sampling Location Description

RSW-001 A point in the receiving water where sewage initially enters the
Point of Discharge receiving water.
RSW-001U A point in the receiving water, upstream of the point of sewage
Upstream of discharge, to capture ambient conditions absent of sewage discharge
Point of Discharge impacts.
RSW-001D A point in the receiving water, downstream of the point of sewage
Downstream of discharge, where the spill material is fully mixed with the receiving
Point of Discharge water.

The Enrollee must use its best professional judgment to determine the upstream
and downstream distances based on receiving water flow, accessibility to
upstream/downstream waterbody banks, and size of visible sewage plume.

Workbook Page 67 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 196



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling SOP F-4 Page 9

Quick Reference Guide

l Before Sampling:
N N
PREPARE PHOTOGRAPH PAPERWORK
- Sample Kit Take pictures of Begin filling out the ;=\
. PPE the spill point. m Sample Worksheet
l Sample Procedure: ]
i N
Az AL Keep theSaenI:Ie
Put on the Begin Labeling :
required PPE S p—— & bottle cap clean‘/_ﬁ
N
SAMPLE STORE SAMPLE
Take samples at ...9 Place samples
each location ‘oo, into the cooler <9
LET g ‘y
l After Sampling: ]
PAPERWORK A PAPERWORK R NOTIFY B
Complete the Chain e Complete the < Inform the Lab of
of Custody form Sample Worksheet zz;i:;:;mi”g @
]
* N
DELIVER POST SIGNS
Deliver the samples Post warning
to the lab r‘-% signs A

Workbook Page 68 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 197



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sampling Worksheet

F-5

Sample Date:

Sample Time:

COam CIem | Sample Location:

Sampler(s)’ Name(s):

Sampler(s)’ Signature(s):

What is being sampled?

Cdstream Opond  [Ciake Criver Clother: A.
B.

Weather at time of sampling:

Osunny Oovercast Osprinkling  CRaining C.

Was the spill actively entering the surface water during Sampling?

If the spill was not actively entering the surface water during sampling:

Stream Velocity: CFS

How much time has elapsed since the spill STOPPED entering the water?
minutes X 60sec/min = _ seconds

How far downstream did you travel to collect the SOURCE sample?

(AXC = Feet): feet

OIves CINO If no, complete A-D in the gray box to the right. D. Explain why you travelled a different distance, if you did, to collect the source sample:
Sample Location Sf:l‘ozlle Safnc:les PhotoLIcI))i;)i\;iample Visual Observations and/or Interferences

Drainage Conveyance DCS-001

Source RSW-001

Upstream RSW-001U

Downstream RSW-001D

FINISH CHECKLIST

NOTES / OBSERVATIONS

O an Samples Labeled with:
O Date: a six-digit number indicating the year, month, day of collection
O Time: a four-digit number indicating military time of collection. e.g. 0954
O Sample Location: Drainage Conveyance, Source, Upstream, or Downstream
O Samplers: each sampler is identified
O Parameter/preservative: analysis to be conducted for sample/sample preservation

O chain of Custody Completed
O Samples on Ice in Cooler

O Pictures Taken of Each Sample Location and the Photo ID/# Noted Above
O an Sampling Equipment Collected

Page 69 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 198



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Surface Water Sample Chain of Custody Record F-6
Customer Name Goleta Sanitary District O Hazardous Waste PO#
Customer Address (| Unknown Material WO#
Customer Telephone ‘ Zip Code CONTRACT LAB INFORMATION | Turnaround Requirement
Program Name Ship to: O Normal (21 days)
Lab Program Phone # Ship Date: 0 Rush:
Coordinator O Other:
Sampled By Courier:
SAMPLE COLLECTION INFORMATION Analysis Requested QA/QC Requirements
Lab Standard
Type g O Special (see
W § attached)
Date Time o Sample Location Sample Label ID § g m
g g g. E § é § m Remarks/Notes
LIMS# & 2 (22|58 |53
(Issued by Lab) @ L I O I

O Drainage Conveyance | DCS-001 A O

O Entry Point RSW-001 A O

O Upstream RSW-001U A O

O Downstream RSW-001D A O

*Matrix: P = Potable Water, W = Wastewater, A = Ambient Water, G = Groundwater, S = Soil, B = Biosolids, | = Industrial, O = Other (specify in remarks)

Relinquished Date | Time Relinquished to Date | Time Transport/Shipping Information
O USPS | O UPS | O FedEx
Tracing #:
O Other:

Sample Receiving Documentation

Container intact? O Yes

O No

Correct container? [ Yes [ No

‘ Field preserved? OYes 0ONo

‘ Custody tape intact? 0 Yes [ No

Cooled?

O Yes

O No

Comments:

Sample distribution:

O Lab bench [ Ice chest

O Walk-in cooler shelf #

‘ Disposal Date:

‘ Disposed by: (inits.)

C-0-C
courier

Distribution Date:

By:

[ Lab Admin File

O Prog/Proj Mgr.

O Lab Prog. Coord. O Delivery courier O Pick-up

Page 70 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 199



INSERT TAB:
Section 7: Regulatory Reporting

Page 71 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 200



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Guide

G-1: Page 1

*

Deadline

2 hours after
awareness of spill

Immediately upon
awareness of spill

Within 18 hours of
awareness of spill

3 Business Days after
awareness of spill

15 Days after the spill
end date

Within 30 calendars
days after the end of
the calendar month in
which the spill occurs

45 days after spill end
date

By February 1st after
the end of the
calendar year in which
the spills occur.

Category 1 Spill*

Category 2 Spill

Category 3 Spill

Category 4 Spill/Non-
Category 1 Lat Spill**

Within two (2) hours of the
District’s knowledge of a
Category 1 spill of 1,000
gallons or greater,
discharging or threatening
to discharge to Waters of
the State, notify CalOES
and obtain a notification
control number.

Within two (2) hours of
the District’s knowledge of
a Category 2 spill of 1,000
gallons or greater
threatening to discharge
to Waters of the State,
notify CalOES and obtain a
notification control
number.

0 Notify the Santa Barbara County Environmental Health Services (EHS).

o |If spill impacts private property that may be a failure of the sewer main and/or if a claim for damages may be submitted

against the District, notify the Collections System Manager.

Conduct water quality
sampling of the receiving
water within 18 hours of
initial knowledge of spill of
50,000 gallons or greater to
surface waters.

Submit Draft Spill Report in
the CIWQS database.

Submit Draft Spill Report in
the CIWQS database.

Submit Certified Spill
Report within 15 calendar
days of the spill end date.
(Submit Amended Spill
Report, as needed, within
90 calendar days after the
spill end date.)

Submit Certified Spill
Report within 15 calendar
days of the spill end date.
(Submit Amended Spill
Report, as needed, within
90 calendar days after the
spill end date.)

Submit monthly Certified Spill
Report to the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System
Database

(Submit Amended Spill Report,
as needed, within 90 calendar
days after the Certified Spill
Report due date.)

Certify monthly, the
estimated total spill volume
exiting the sanitary sewer
system, and the total
number of all Category 4
spills and/or check the box if
you had any Non Category 1
Lateral spills into the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database.

Submit Technical Report
within 45 calendar days
after the spill end date for
a Category 1 spill in which
50,000 gallons or greater
discharged to surface
waters; and

See ++ note below.

Upload and certify a report,
in an acceptable digital
format, of all Category 4
spills and Non Category 1
Lateral spills to the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database.

++ See following page for notes.

A spill from an Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a sur

ace water is a Category 1 spill.

Page 72 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 201



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Guide G-1: Page 2

++ Agency owned lateral spills (Non Category 1) details to be reported by Feb 1 of the following year.

«  Monthly Spill Reporting of “No Spills” or “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills”: If either (1) no
spills occur during a calendar month or (2) only Category 4, and/or Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral spills (that
do not discharge to a surface water) occur during a calendar month, the Enrollee shall certify, within 30 calendar days
after the end of each calendar month, either a “No-Spill” certification statement, or a “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-
Category 1 Lateral Spills” certification statement, in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, certifying that
there were either no spills, or Category 4 and/or Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills that will be reported annually for the
designated month.

o If aspill starts in one calendar month and ends in a subsequent calendar month, and the Enrollee has no
further spills of any category, in the subsequent calendar month, the Enrollee shall certify “no-spills” for the
subsequent calendar month. If the Enrollee has no spills from its systems during a calendar month, but the
Enrollee voluntarily reported a spill from a private lateral or a private system, the Enrollee shall certify “no-
spills” for that calendar month. If the Enrollees has spills from its owned and/or operated laterals during a
calendar month, the Enrollee shall not certify “no spills” for that calendar month.

« Annual Certified Spill Reporting of Category 4 and/or Lateral Spills: For all Category 4 spills and spills from its owned
and/or operated laterals that are caused by a failure or blockage in the lateral and that do not discharge to a surface
water, the Enrollee shall annually upload and certify a report, in an appropriate digital format, of all recordkeeping of
spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, by February 1st after the end of the calendar year in which
the spills occurred.

e Report as Spills Occur: There is now an option to certify the Spill Reports for Category 4 and/or Non-Category 1 Lateral
Spills as they occur, and not on an annual basis. Choosing this option still requires an agency to perform the monthly
spill reporting described in the first bullet above.

Page 73 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 202



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Guide G-1: Page 3

Workbook Page 74 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 203



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Guide G-1: Page 4

Workbook Page 75 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 204



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Contacts and Authorization

Authorized Personnel:

The District’s Legally Responsible Officials (LROs) are authorized to electronically sign and certify spill
reports in CIWQS. The following are the District's LROs:

e Collections System Manager

e General Manager/District Engineer

Contact Telephone/Email/Address

CAL/OES

(800) 852-7550

Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board

E-mail: info3@waterboards.ca.gov
Tel: (805)549-3147
Fax: (805)543-0397

Santa Barbara County Environmental Health Services
(EHS) *See Sewage Release Reporting Guidelines,
Section G-1: Page 3 and Page 4.

(805) 681-4927

State Water Resources Control Board
Walter Mobley

(916) 323-0878
Walter.Mobley@waterboards.ca.gov

Workbook Page 76 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 205



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting Log

Agency/Firm Contacted

CalOES (see section G4)

Individual Spoken to:

Date

Time

Notes

Control Number:

Workbook Page 77 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 206



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Regulatory Reporting/Notifications Log G-4
CAL-OES NOTIFICATION

Per Water Code section 13271, for a spill that discharges in or on any waters of the State, or discharges or is deposited
where it is, or probably will be, discharged in or on any waters of the State, the Enrollee shall notify the California Office
of Emergency Services and obtain a California Office of Emergency Services Control Number as soon as possible but no
later than two (2) hours after: e The Enrollee has knowledge of the spill; and e Notification can be provided without
substantially impeding cleanup or other emergency measures. The notification requirements in this section apply to
individual spills of 1,000 gallons or greater, from an Enrollee-owned and/or operated laterals, to a water of the State.

Name of Agency Responsible for Spill:

Name of Person Notifying Cal-OES: Phone:

Cal-OES Notification Date and Time:

[]am []pPm

When was the Agency Notified of the Spill Date and Time:

[]am []pPm

Estimated Spill Volume (gals): Estimated Spill Rate (GPM):

Estimated Volume Contained (gals): Estimated Spill Rate Directly or Indirectly to
Waters of the State (GPM):

Name of Water Body Receiving or Potentially Receiving Discharge:

Description of Water Body Impact and/or Potential Impact to Beneficial Uses:

Spill Incident Description:

Spill Location (address, city, cross street or
landmark):

Contact Person on Scene: Phone:

Spill Cause or Suspected Cause:

[ ] UNKNOWN
Name of Cal-OES Representative: Control Number:

Notification of Spill Report Updates After Initial Notification
Updated Date: Updated By:
Discharge Volume: Volume Discharged to Surface Waters:
|:| Increase |:| Decrease |:| Increase |:| Decrease

Additional Impacts to Surface Waters and Beneficial Uses:

Workbook Page 78 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 207



INSERT TAB:
Section 8: Post Spill

Workbook Page 79 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 208



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Post-Spill Assessment Information H-1: Page 1
SPILL LOCATION
Spill location name:
Address of spill:
NOTIFICATION AND COMMUNICATION PROCEDURES
Were notification procedures adhered to? [dYes [INo
Were notification procedures effective? [dYes [INo
RESPONSE PROCEDURES
Were response time goals met? [1Yes [INo
Were safety procedures adhered to? [1Yes [INo
Were safety procedures effective? [1Yes [INo
Were initial response procedures adhered to? [1Yes [INo
Were initial response procedures effective? LIYes [INo
Were containment procedures adhered to? [1Yes [INo

Workbook Page 80 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 209



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Post-Spill Assessment Information H-1: Page 2
RESPONSE PROCEDURES (continued)
Were containment procedures effective? [dYes [INo
Were clean up and recovery procedures adhered to? [dYes [INo
Were clean up and recovery procedures effective? [1Yes [INo
Were sewer back up procedures adhered to? [1Yes [INo
Were sewer back up procedures effective? [1Yes [INo
Were chain of custody procedures adhered to? [1Yes [INo
Was failure analysis investigation performed and documented? [1Yes [INo
REPORTING AND NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES
Were reporting and notification timeline requirements met? LIYes [INo

Workbook Page 81 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 210



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Post-Spill Assessment Information H-1: Page 3
DOCUMENTATION
Was spill file created? [dYes [INo
Was QA/QC performed to ensure field data matched CIWQS data? [dYes [INo
RECOMMENDED CHANGES
0 N/A
ATTENDEES

FACILITATED BY

Date:

Workbook Page 82 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 211



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan

Collection System Failure Analysis

H-2: Page 1

OFFICE USE ONLY

Incident Report #

Prepared By

Spill/Backup Information

Cause

Summary of Historical Spills/Backups/Service Calls/Other Problems

Date

Cause

Date Last Cleaned Crew

Records Reviewed By:

Record Review Date:

Summary of CCTV Information

CCTV Inspection Date

File Name/Number

CCTV File Reviewed By

CCTV Review Date

Observations

Go to Page 2

Workbook Page 83 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 212



Goleta Sanitary District Spill Emergency Response Plan
Collection System Failure Analysis

H-2: Page 2

Recommendations

v

Type

Specific Actions

Who is
Responsible?

Completion
Deadline

Who Will Verify
Completion?

No Changes or
Repairs Required

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

Added sewer to
preventive
maintenance
program

Adjusted
schedule/method
of preventive
maintenance

Enforcement
action against FOG
source

Plan rehabilitation
or replacement of
sewer

Repaired facilities
or replaced defect

Change(s) to Spill
Response
Procedures

Training

Misc.

Comments/Notes:

Reviewed By:

Review Date:

-- END OF SERP --

Workbook Page 84 of 84

Agenda Packet Page 213



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
1001 | Street, Sacramento, California 95814
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ

STATEWIDE WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL ORDER FOR SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS

This Order was adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board on December 6, 2022.

This Order shall become effective 180 days after the Adoption Date of this General Order,
on June 5, 2023.

The Enrollee shall comply with the requirements of this Order upon the Effective Date of this
General Order.

This General Order does not convey any property rights of any sort or any exclusive privileges.
The requirements prescribed herein do not authorize the commission of any act causing injury
to persons or property, protect the Enrollee from liability under federal, state, or local laws, nor
create a vested right for the Enrollee to continue the discharge of waste.

CERTIFICATION

I, Jeanine Townsend, Clerk to the Board, do hereby certify that this Order with all attachments
is a full, true, and correct copy of the Order adopted by the State Water Board on
December 6, 2022.

AYE: Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel
Vice Chair Dorene D’Adamo
Board Member Sean Maguire
Board Member Laurel Firestone
Board Member Nichole Morgan

NAY: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None
for

Jeanine Townsend
Clerk to the Board

Agenda Packet Page 214



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

Table of Contents

(e To [8 o1 1 o] o IR 4
2. Regulatory Coverage and Application Requirements ..............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5
2.1.  Requirements for Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage ....................... 5
2.2. Requirements for New Regulatory Coverage..........cccooveiieiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeenn, 5
2.3. Regulatory Coverage Transfer..........oouuuiiiiiiiiiiieecce e 7
3. T 1T T SRR 7
N T I = Yo 7= | I XU 1 (o 1 (= SPRSP 7
K 1= =T | 11
3.3.  Water Quality Control Plans, Policies and Resolutions ..............ccccccccuiiiinnnnne. 14
3.4. California Environmental Quality ACt............uuuiiiiiiiiieee 16
3.5. State Water Board Funding Assistance for Compliance with Water Board Water
(@ TUE= 11 Y@ o =T SRS 16
3.6. Notification to Interested Parties ............cooooe i 17
4. ProniDItIONS ... eeaees 17
4.1  Discharge of Sewage from a Sanitary Sewer System.............ccceeeeiiiiiii. 17
4.2. Discharge of Sewage to Waters of the State...............oooeoii 17
4.3. Discharge of Sewage Creating a NUISaNCe............cooooveieeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 18
5. SPECIICALIONS ... nnnnnnnnnnns 18
5.1. Designation of a Legally Responsible Official ...............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 18
5.2. Sewer System Management Plan Development and Implementation............... 18
5.3. Certification of Sewer System Management Plan and Plan Updates................ 19
5.4. Sewer System Management Plan Audits ... 19
5.5. Six-Year Sewer System Management Plan Update..............ccccccouvvmiiiininnnnnnnnns 21
5.6.  System RESIlIENCE........uuuiiiiiiiiiii e nnnnnnne 22
5.7.  Allocation Of RESOUICES ..........uuuuummmiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeenennnnnnnnnnnnnes 22
5.8. Designation of Data SUbMItters..............uuumiiiiiiiiiiees 22
5.9. Reporting CertifiCation..............uuueiiimiieie e 22
TR LS Y5 =Y o 7= T o Y- Lo | Y/ 23
5.11. System Performance ANAIYSIS ...........uuuuuummiiimiiiiiiiiiieeenneenennnnes 23
5.12. Spill Emergency Response Plan and Remedial Actions ...........ccccceeeeiiiiiiinnnnen. 23
5.13. Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements.............. 24
5.14. Electronic Sanitary Sewer System Service Area Boundary Map..............c........ 26
5.15. Voluntary Reporting of Spills from Privately-Owned Sewer Laterals and/or Private
Sanitary SEWEr SYSIEMS .......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 26
5.16. Voluntary Notification of Spills from Privately-Owned Laterals and/or Systems to
the California Office of Emergency ServiCes..........ooouuuiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiccieee e 27
5.17. Unintended Failure to Report ... 27
ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
2

Agenda Packet Page 215



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.18. Duty to Report to Water Boards .................uueuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 27
5.19. Operation and MaintenNaNCe ............ooouumiiiiii i 27
6. PrOVISIONS ..ot e et e et et e e e e e e e e ettt b e e e e e e e eenees 27
6.1.  Enforcement ProViSIONS ...... oo 27
6.2. Other Regional Water Board Orders ... 30
6.3. Sewer System Management Plan Availability ...............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 31
6.4. Entry and INSPECHON ........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 31
Table of Attachments
Attachment A — DefiNItIONS ......coooiiee e e e e e e A-1
Attachment B — Application for Enrollment ... B-1
Attachment C - Notice of Termination............ooooeuiiiiiii e C-1
Attachment D — Sewer System Management Plan — Required Elements ............ccccccccceee.. D-1
Attachment E1 — Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements......E1-1
Attachment E2 — Summary of Notification, Monitoring and Reporting Requirements........... E2-1
Attachment F — Regional Water Quality Control Board Contact Information .......................... F-1
ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
3

Agenda Packet Page 216



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

1. INTRODUCTION

This General Order regulates sanitary sewer systems designed to convey sewage. For
the purpose of this Order, a sanitary sewer system includes, but is not limited to, pipes,
valves, pump stations, manholes, siphons, wet wells, diversion structures and/or other
pertinent infrastructure, upstream of a wastewater treatment plant headworks. A
sanitary sewer system includes:

Laterals owned and/or operated by the Enrollee;
Satellite sewer systems; and/or

Temporary conveyance and storage facilities, including but not limited to temporary
piping, vaults, construction trenches, wet wells, impoundments, tanks and diversion
structures.

Sewage is untreated or partially treated domestic, municipal, commercial and/or
industrial waste (including sewage sludge), and any mixture of these wastes with inflow
or infiltration of stormwater or groundwater, conveyed in a sanitary sewer system.
Sewage contains high levels of suspended solids, non-digested organic waste,
pathogenic bacteria, viruses, toxic pollutants, nutrients, oxygen-demanding organic
compounds, oils, grease, pharmaceuticals, and other harmful pollutants.

For the purpose of this General Order, a spill is a discharge of sewage from any portion
of a sanitary sewer system due to a sanitary sewer system overflow, operational failure,
and/or infrastructure failure. Sewage and its associated wastewater spilled from a
sanitary sewer system may threaten public health, beneficial uses of waters of the
State, and the environment.

This General Order serves as statewide waste discharge requirements and supersedes
the previous State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board)

Order 2006-0003-DWQ and amendments thereafter. All sections and attachments of
this General Order are enforceable by the State Water Board and Regional Water
Quality Control Boards (Regional Water Boards). Through this General Order, the State
Water Board requires an Enrollee to:

Comply with federal and state prohibitions of discharge of sewage to waters of the
State, including federal waters of the United States;

Comply with specifications, and notification, monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping
requirements in this General Order that implement the federal Clean Water Act, the

California Water Code (Water Code), water quality control plans (including Regional
Water Board Basin Plans) and policies;

Proactively operate and maintain resilient sanitary sewer systems to prevent spills;

Eliminate discharges of sewage to waters of the State through effective
implementation of a Sewer System Management Plan;

Monitor, track, and analyze spills for ongoing system-specific performance
improvements; and

Report noncompliance with this General Order per reporting requirements.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 217



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

2.2,

An Enrollee is a public, private, or other non-governmental entity that has obtained
approval for regulatory coverage under this General Order, including:

e A state agency, municipality, special district, or other public entity that owns and/or
operates one or more sanitary sewer systems:

o0 greater than one (1) mile in length (each individual sanitary sewer system);

o0 one (1) mile or less in length where the State Water Board or a Regional Water
Board requires regulatory coverage under this Order; or

e A federal agency, private company, or other non-governmental entity that owns
and/or operates a sanitary sewer system of any size where the State Water Board or
a Regional Water Board requires regulatory coverage under this Order in response
to a history of spills, proximity to surface water, or other factors supporting regulatory
coverage.

For the purpose of this Order, a sanitary sewer system includes only systems owned
and/or operated by the Enrollee.

REGULATORY COVERAGE AND APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Requirements for Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage

To continue regulatory coverage from previous Order 2006-0003-DWQ under this
General Order, within the 60-days-prior-to the Effective Date of this General Order,
the Legally Responsible Official of an existing Enrollee shall electronically certify the
Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage form in the online California Integrated
Water Quality System (CIWQS) Sanitary Sewer System Database. The Legally
Responsible Official will receive an automated CIWQS-issued Notice of Applicability
email, confirming continuation of regulatory coverage under this General Order. All
regulatory coverage under previous Order 2006-0003-DWQ will cease on the Effective
Date of this Order.

An Enrollee continuing existing regulatory coverage is not required to submit a new
application package or pay an application fee for enrollment under this General Order.
The annual fee due date for continued regulatory coverage from previous

Order 2006-0003-DWQ to this General Order remains unchanged.

A previous Enrollee of Order 2006-0003-DWQ that fails to certify the Continuation of
Existing Regulatory Coverage form in the online CIWQS database by the Effective Date
of this Order is considered a New Applicant, and will not have regulatory coverage for
its sanitary sewer system(s) until:

e A new application package for system(s) enroliment is submitted per section 2.2
(Requirements for New Regulatory Coverage) below; and

e The new application package is approved per section 2.2.2 (Approval of Application
Package (For New Applicants Only)).
Requirements for New Regulatory Coverage

No later than 60 days prior to commencing and/or assuming operation and maintenance
responsibilities of a sanitary sewer system, a duly authorized representative that

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 218



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

2.21.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

maintains legal authority over the public or private sanitary sewer system is required to
enroll under this General Order by submitting a complete application package as
specified below and as provided in Attachment B (Application for Enrollment Form) of
this General Order.

Unless required by a Regional Water Board, a public agency that owns a combined
sewer system subject to the Combined Sewer Overflow Control Policy (33 U.S. Code
§ 1342(q)), is not required to enroll, under this Order, the portions of its sanitary sewer
system(s) that collects combined sanitary wastewater and stormwater.

Application Package Requirements

The Application for Enrollment package for new applicants must include the following
items:

e Application for Enroliment Form. The form in Attachment B of this General Order
must be completed, signed, and certified by a Legally Responsible Official, in
accordance with section 5.1 (Designation of a Legally Responsible Official) of this
General Order. If an electronic Application for Enroliment form is available at the
time of application, a new applicant shall submit its application form electronically;
and

e Application Fee. A fee payable to the “State Water Resources Control Board” in
accordance with the Fee Schedule in the California Code of Regulations, Title 23,
section 2200, or subsequent fee regulations updates.

The application fee for this General Order is based on the sanitary sewer system’s
threat to water quality and complexity designations of category 2C or 3C, which is
assigned based on the population served by the system. The current Fee Schedule
for sanitary sewer systems is listed under subdivision (a)(2) at the following website:
Fee Schedule (https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/water_quality/).

Approval of Application Package (For New Applicants Only)

The Deputy Director of the State Water Board, Division of Water Quality (Deputy
Director) will consider approval of each complete Application for Enrollment package.
The Deputy Director will issue a Notice of Applicability letter which serves as approved
regulatory coverage for the new Enrollee.

If the submitted application package is not complete in accordance with section 2.2.1
(Application Package Requirements) of this General Order, the Deputy Director will
send a response letter to the applicant outlining the application deficiencies. The
applicant will have 60 days from the date of the response letter to correct the application
deficiencies and submit the identified items necessary to complete the application
package to the State Water Board.

Electronic Reporting Account for New Enrollee

Within 30 days after the date of the Approval of Complete Application Package for
System Enrollment, a duly authorized representative for the Enrollee shall obtain a
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database user account by clicking the “User
Registration” button and following the directions on the CIWQS Login Page

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 219


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/water_quality/
https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

2.3.

3.1.
3.1.1.

3.1.2.

(https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov). If additional assistance is needed to establish an
online CIWQS user account, contact State Water Board staff by email at
CIWQS@waterboards.ca.gov. The online user account will provide the Enrollee secure
access to the online CIWQS database for electronic reporting.

Regulatory Coverage Transfer

Regulatory coverage under this General Order is not transferable to any person or party
except after an existing Enrollee submits a written request for a regulatory coverage
transfer to the Deputy Director, at least 60 days in advance of any proposed system
ownership transfer. The written request must include a written agreement between the
existing Enrollee and the new Enrollee containing:

e Acknowledgement that the transfer of ownership is solely of an existing system with
an existing waste discharge identification (WDID) number;

e The specific ownership transfer date in which the responsibility and regulatory
coverage transfer between the existing Enrollee and the new Enrollee becomes
effective; and

e Acknowledgement that the existing Enrollee is liable for violations occurring up to the
ownership transfer date and that the new Enrollee is liable for violations occurring on
and after the ownership transfer date.

The Deputy Director will consider approval of the written request. If approved, the
Deputy Director will issue a Notice of Applicability letter which serves as an approved
transfer of regulatory coverage to the new Enrollee.

FINDINGS
Legal Authorities

Federal and State Regulatory Authority

The objective of the Clean Water Act is to restore and maintain the chemical, physical,
and biological integrity of the waters of the United States (33 U.S.C. 1251). The Water
Code authorizes the State Water Board to implement the Clean Water Act in the State
and to protect the quality of all waters of the State (Water Code sections 13000 and
13160).

Discharge of Sewage

A discharge of untreated or partially treated sewage is a discharge of waste as defined
in Water Code section 13050(d) that could affect the quality of waters of the State and is
subject to regulation by waste discharge requirements issued pursuant to Water Code
section 13263 and Chapter 9, Division 3, Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations.
A discharge of sewage may pollute and alter the quality of the waters of the State to a
degree that unreasonably affects the beneficial uses of the receiving water body or
facilities that serve those beneficial uses (Water Code section 13050(1)(1)).

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 220


mailto:CIWQS@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.1.3 Water Boards Authority to Require Technical Reports, Monitoring, and Reporting

Water Code sections 13267 and 13383 authorize the Regional Water Boards and the
State Water Board to establish monitoring, inspection, entry, reporting, and
recordkeeping requirements. Water Code section 13267(b), authorizes the Regional
Water Boards to “require any person who has discharged, discharges, or is suspected
of having discharged or discharging, or who proposes to discharge waste within its
region... or is suspected of having discharged or discharging, or who proposes to
discharge, waste outside of its region that could affect the quality of water within its
region shall furnish, under penalty of perjury, technical or monitoring reports which the
regional board requires...In requiring those reports, the regional board shall provide the
person with a written explanation with regard to the need for the reports and shall
identify the evidence that supports requiring that person to provide the reports.” Water
Code section 13267 (f) authorizes the State Water Board to require this information if it
consults with the Regional Water Boards and determines that it will not duplicate the
efforts of the Regional Water Boards. The State Water Board has consulted with the
Regional Water Boards and made this determination.

The technical and monitoring reports required by this General Order and Attachment E
(Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) are necessary to
evaluate and ensure compliance with this General Order. The effort to develop required
technical reports will vary depending on the system size and complexity and the needs
of the specific technical report. The burden and cost of these reports are reasonable
and consistent with the interest of the state in protecting water quality, which is the
primary purpose of requiring the reports.

Water Code section 13383(a) authorizes the Water Boards to “establish monitoring,
inspection, entry, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements... for any person who
discharges, or proposes to discharge, to navigable waters, any person who introduces
pollutants into a publicly owned treatment works, any person who owns or operates, or
proposes to own or operate, a publicly owned treatment works or other treatment works
treating domestic sewage, or any person who uses or disposes, or proposes to use or
dispose, of sewage sludge.” Section 13383(b) continues, “the state board or the
regional boards may require any person subject to this section to establish and maintain
monitoring equipment or methods, including, where appropriate, biological monitoring
methods, sample effluent as prescribed, and provide other information as may be
reasonably required.”

Reporting of spills from privately owned sewer laterals and systems pursuant to section
5.15 (Voluntary Reporting of Spills from Privately-Owned Sewer Laterals and/or Private
Sanitary Sewer Systems) of this General Order is authorized by Water Code section
13225(c) and encouraged by the State Water Board, wherein a local agency may
investigate and report on any technical factors involved in water quality control provided
the burden including costs of such reports bears a reasonable relationship to the need
for the report and the benefits to be obtained therefrom. The burden of reporting private
spills under section 5.15 (Voluntary Reporting of Spills from Privately-Owned Sewer
Laterals and/or Private Sanitary Sewer Systems) is minimal and is outweighed by the
benefit of providing Regional Water Boards an opportunity to respond to these spills

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 221



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.1.4.

3.1.5.

when an Enrollee, which in many cases has a contractual relationship with the owner of
the private system, has knowledge of the spills.

Water Board Authority to Prescribe General Waste Discharge Requirements

Water Code section 13263(i) provides that the State Water Board may prescribe
general waste discharge requirements for a category of discharges if the State Water
Board finds or determines that:

e The discharges are produced by the same or similar operations;
e The discharges involve the same or similar types of waste;
e The discharges require the same or similar treatment standards; and

e The discharges are more appropriately regulated under general waste discharge
requirements than individual waste discharge requirements.

Since 2006, the State Water Board has been regulating over 1,100 publicly owned
sanitary sewer systems (See section 3.1.5 (Previous Statewide General Waste
Discharge Requirements) of this General Order). California also has a large unknown
number of unregulated privately owned sanitary sewer systems. All waste conveyed in
publicly owned and privately owned sanitary sewer systems (as defined in this General
Order) is comprised of untreated or partially treated domestic waste and/or industrial
waste. Generally, sanitary sewer systems are designed and operated to convey waste
by gravity or under pressure; system-specific design elements and system-specific
operations do not change the common nature of the waste, the common threat to public
health, or the common impacts on water quality. Spills of waste from a sanitary sewer
system prior to reaching the ultimate downstream treatment facility are unauthorized
and enforceable by the State Water Board and/or a Regional Water Board. Therefore,
spills from sanitary sewer systems are more appropriately regulated under general
waste discharge requirements.

As specified in Water Code sections 13263(a) and 13241, the implementation of
requirements set forth in this Order is for the reasonable protection of past, present, and
probable future beneficial uses of water and the prevention of nuisance. The
requirements implement the water quality control plans (Basin Plans) for each Regional
Water Board and take into account the environmental characteristics of sewer service
areas and hydrographic units within the state. Additionally, the State Water Board has
considered water quality conditions that could reasonably be achieved through the
coordinated control of all factors that affect water quality, costs associated with
compliance with these requirements, the need for developing housing within California,
and the need to protect sources of drinking water and other water supplies.

Previous Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements

On May 2, 2006, the State Water Board adopted Order 2006-0003-DWQ serving as
Waste Discharge Requirements pursuant to Article 4, Chapter 4, Division 7 of the Water
Code (commencing with section 13260) for inadvertent discharges to waters of the
State. Order 2006-0003-DWQ prohibited discharges of untreated or partially treated
sewage. Order 2006-0003-DWQ also required system-specific management, operation,
and maintenance of publicly owned sewer systems greater than one mile in length.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 222



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

To decrease the impacts on human health and the environment caused by sewage
spills, the previous Order required enrollees to develop a rehabilitation and replacement
plan that identifies system deficiencies and prioritizes short-term and long-term
rehabilitation actions. The previous Order also required enrollees to:

1. Maintain information that can be used to establish and prioritize appropriate Sewer
System Management Plan activities; and

2. Implement a proactive approach to reduce spills.

The previous Order required Sewer System Management Plan elements for “the proper
and efficient management, operation, and maintenance of sanitary sewer systems,
while taking into consideration risk management.”

On July 30, 2013, the State Water Board amended General Order 2006-0003-DWQ
with Order WQ 2013-0058-EXEC, Amending Monitoring and Reporting Program for
Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems.

Many enrollees of Order 2006-0003-DWQ have already implemented proactive
measures to reduce sewage spills. Other enrollees, however, still need technical
assistance and funding to improve sanitary sewer system operation and maintenance
for the reduction of sewage spills.

3.1.6. Existing Memorandum of Agreement with California Water Environment
Association

The California Water Environment Association is a nonprofit organization dedicated to
providing water industry certifications, training, and networking opportunities. The
Association’s Technical Certification Program provides accredited sanitary sewer
system operator certification for collection system operators and maintenance workers.

On February 10, 2016, the State Water Board entered into a collaborative agreement
with the Association titled Memorandum of Agreement Between the California State
Water Resources Control Board and the California Water Environment Association -
Training Regarding Requirements Set Forth in Statewide General Waste Discharge
Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems. The Memorandum sets forth collaborative
training necessary for regulated sanitary sewer system personnel to operate and
maintain a well operating system and ensure full compliance with statewide sewer
system regulations.

On March 15, 2018, the State Water Board and the California Water Environment
Association amended the existing Memorandum of Agreement to include collaborative
outreach and expand training needs associated with further updates to Water Board
regulations for sanitary sewer systems. The State Water Board encourages further
Agreement updates as necessary to support improved sewer system operations and the
professionalism of collection system operators.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
10

Agenda Packet Page 223



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.2. General

3.2.1. Waters of the State
Waters of the State include any surface water or groundwater, including saline waters,
within the boundaries of the state as defined in Water Code section 13050(e), and are
inclusive of waters of the United States.

3.2.2. Sanitary Sewer System Spill Threats to Public Health and Beneficial Uses
Sewage contains high levels of suspended solids, pathogenic organisms, toxic
pollutants, nutrients, oxygen-demanding organic compounds, oil and grease and other
pollutants. Sewage spills may cause a public nuisance, particularly when sewage is
discharged to areas with high public exposure such as streets and surface waters used
for drinking, irrigation, fishing, recreation, or other public consumption or contact uses.
More specifically, sanitary sewer spills may:

e Adversely affect aquatic life and/or threaten water quality when reaching receiving
waters;

¢ Inadvertently release trash, including plastics;

e Impair the recreational use and aesthetic enjoyment of surface waters by polluting
surface water or groundwater;

e Threaten public health through direct public exposure to bacteria, viruses, intestinal
parasites, and other microorganisms that can cause serious illness such as
gastroenteritis, hepatitis, cryptosporidiosis, and giardiasis;

e Negatively impact ecological receptors and biota within surface waters; and

e Cause nuisance including odors, closure of beaches and recreational areas, and
property damage.

Sanitary sewer system spills may pollute receiving waters and threaten beneficial uses

of surface water and groundwater. Potentially threatened beneficial uses include, but

are not limited to the following (with associated acronym representations as included in
statewide water quality control plans and Regional Water Boards’ Basin Plans):

e Municipal and Domestic Supply (MUN)

e Water Contact Recreation (REC-1) and Non-Contact Water Recreation (REC-2)

e Cold Freshwater Habitat (COLD)

e Warm Freshwater Habitat (WARM)

e Native American Culture (CUL)

e Wildlife Habitat (WILD)

e Rare, Threatened, or Endangered Species (RARE)

e Spawning, Reproduction, and/or Early Development (SPWN)

e Wetland Habitat (WET)

e Agricultural Supply (AGR)

e Estuarine Habitat (EST)

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

11

Agenda Packet Page 224



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.2.3.

e Commercial and Sport Fishing (COMM)

e Subsistence Fishing (SUB)

e Tribal Tradition and Culture (CUL)

e Tribal Subsistence Fishing (T-SUB)

e Aquaculture (AQUA)

e Marine Habitat (MAR)

e Preservation of Biological Habitats of Special Significance (BIOL)
e Migration of Aquatic Organisms (MIGR)

e Shellfish Harvesting (SHELL)

e Industrial Process Supply (PROC)

e Industrial Service Supply (IND)

e Hydropower Generation (POW)

e Navigation (NAV)

e Flood Peak Attenuation/Flood Water Storage (FLD)
e Water Quality Enhancement (WQE)

e Fresh Water Replenishment (FRSH)

e Groundwater Recharge (GWR)

e Inland Saline Water Habitat (SAL)

Proactive Sanitary Sewer System Management to Eliminate Spill Causes

Finding 3 of the previous Order, 2006-0003-DWQ, states: “Sanitary sewer systems
experience periodic failures resulting in discharges that may affect waters of the state.
There are many factors (including factors related to geology, design, construction
methods and materials, age of the system, population growth, and system operation
and maintenance), which affect the likelihood of an SSO [sanitary sewer overflow].

A proactive approach that requires Enrollees to ensure a system-wide operation,
maintenance, and management plan is in place will reduce the number and frequency
of SSOs within the state. This approach will in turn decrease the risk to human health
and the environment caused by SSOs.”

Many spills are preventable through proactive attention on sanitary sewer system
management using the best practices and technologies available to address major
causes of spills, including but not limited to:

e Blockages from sources including but not limited to:

o0 Fats, oils and grease;
0 Tree roots;
0 Rags, wipes and other paper, cloth and plastic products; and
0 Sediment and debris.
e Sewer system damage and exceedance of sewer system hydraulic capacity from

identified system-specific environmental, and climate-change impacts, including but
not limited to:

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

12

Agenda Packet Page 225



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

0 Sea level rise impacts including flooding, coastal erosion, seawater intrusion,
tidal inundation and submerged lands;

Increased surface water flows due to higher intensity rain events;
Flooding;

Wildfires and wildfire induced impacts;

Earthquake induced damage;

Landslides; and

0 Subsidence.

O O O o o

e Infrastructure deficiencies and failures, including but not limited to:

o0 Pump station mechanical failures;

System age;

Construction material failures;

Manhole cover failures;

Structural failures; and

o0 Lack of proper operation and maintenance.

o
o
o
o

e Insufficient system capacity (temporary or sustained), due to factors including but
not limited to:

0 Excessive and/or increased storm or groundwater inflow/infiltration;

o Insufficient capacity due to population increase and/or new connections from
industrial, commercial and other system users; and

o Stormwater capture projects utilizing a sanitary sewer system to convey
stormwater to treatment facilities for reuse.

e Community impacts, including but not limited to:

o Power outages;
o Vandalism; and
o Contractor-caused or other third party-caused damages.

3.2.4. Underground Sanitary Sewer System Leakage

Portions of some sanitary sewer systems may leak, causing underground exfiltration
(exiting) of sewage from the system. Exfiltrated sewage that remains in the underground
infrastructure trench and/or the soil matrix, and that does not discharge into waters of
the State (surface water or groundwater) may not threaten beneficial uses.

Underground exfiltrated sewage may threaten beneficial uses if discharged to waters of
the State. Exfiltrated sewage that discharges to groundwater may impact beneficial
uses of groundwater and pollute groundwater supply. Additionally, if in close proximity,
exfiltrated sewage may enter into a compromised underground drainage conveyance
system that discharges into a water of the United States, or into groundwater that is
hydrologically connected to (feeds into) a water of the United States, thus potentially
causing: (1) a Clean Water Act violation, (2) threat and impact to beneficial uses, and/or
(3) surface water pollution.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
13

Agenda Packet Page 226



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.2.5.

3.3.

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

3.3.3.

Proactive Sanitary Sewer System Management to Reduce Inflow and Infiltration

Excessive inflow (stormwater entering) and infiltration (groundwater seepage entering)
to sanitary sewer systems is preventable through proactive sewer system management
using the best practices and technologies available. The efficiency of the downstream
wastewater treatment processes is dependent on the performance of the sanitary sewer
system. When the structural integrity of a sanitary sewer system deteriorates, high
volumes of inflow and infiltration can enter the sewer system. High levels of inflow and
infiltration increase the hydraulic load on the downstream treatment plant, which can
reduce treatment efficiency, lead to bypassing a portion of the treatment process, cause
illegal discharge of partially treated effluent, or in extreme situations make biological
treatment facilities inoperable (e.g., wash out the biological organisms that treat the
waste).

Water Quality Control Plans, Policies and Resolutions

The nine Regional Water Boards have adopted region-specific water quality control
plans (commonly referred to as Basin Plans) that designate beneficial uses, establish
water quality objectives, and contain implementation programs and policies to achieve
those objectives. The State Water Board has adopted statewide water quality control
plans, policies and resolutions establishing statewide water quality objectives,
implementation programs and initiatives.

State Water Board Antidegradation Policy

On October 28, 1968, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 68-16, titled
Statement of Policy with Respect to Maintaining High Quality of Waters in California,
which incorporates the federal antidegradation policy. Resolution 68-16 requires that
existing water quality be maintained unless degradation is justified based on specific
findings.

The continued prohibition of sewage discharges from sanitary sewer systems into
waters of the State aligns with Resolution 68-16. A sewage discharge from sanitary
sewers to waters of the State is prohibited by this Order. Therefore, this Order does not
allow degradation of waters of the State. In addition, this Order: (1) further expands the
existing prohibition of sewage discharges to include waters of the State, in addition to
waters of the United States as provided in previous Order 2006-0003-DWQ, and

(2) enhances the ability for Water Board enforcement of violations of the established
prohibitions.

State Water Board Sources of Drinking Water Policy

On May 19,1988, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 88-63 (amended on
February 1, 2006), titled Sources of Drinking Water, establishing state policy that all
waters of the State, with certain exceptions, are suitable or potentially suitable for
municipal or domestic supply.

State Water Board Cost of Compliance Resolution

On September 24, 2013, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2013-0029, titled
Directing Actions in Response to Efforts by Stakeholders on Reducing Costs of

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

14

Agenda Packet Page 227



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.3.4.

Compliance While Maintaining Water Quality Protection. Through this resolution, the
State Water Board committed to continued stakeholder engagement in identifying and
implementing measures to reduce costs of compliance with regulatory orders while
maintaining water quality protection and improving regulatory program outcomes.

State Water Board Human Right to Water Resolution

On February 16, 2016, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2016-0010, titled
Adopting the Human Right to Water as a Core Value and Directing its Implementation in
Water Board Programs and Activities, addressing the human right to water as a core
value and directing Water Board programs to implement requirements to support safe
drinking water for all Californians.

On November 16, 2021, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2021-0050 titled
Condemning Racism, Xenophobia, Bigotry, and Racial Injustice, and Strengthening
Commitment to Racial Equity, Diversity, Inclusion, Access, and Anti-racism. Among
other actions, through Resolution 2021-0050, the State Water Board, in summary as
corresponding to this General Order, reaffirms its commitment to its Human Right to
Water resolution, upholding that every human being in California deserves safe, clean,
affordable, and accessible water for human consumption, cooking, and sanitation
purposes. Resolution 2021-0050 provides the State Water Board commitment to:

e Protect public health and beneficial uses of waterbodies in all communities, including
communities disproportionately burdened by wastes discharge of waste to land and
surface water;

e Restore impaired surface waterbodies and degraded aquifers; and
e Promote multi-benefit water quality projects.

Through Resolution 2021-0050, the State Water Board also commits to expanding
implementation of its Climate Change Resolution to address the disproportionate effects
of extreme hydrologic conditions and sea-level rise on Black, Indigenous, and people of
color communities, prioritizing:

e The right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible drinking water and sanitation;
e Sustainable management and protection of local groundwater resources;

¢ Healthy watersheds; and

e Access to surface waterbodies that support subsistence fishing.

On June 7, 2022, the State Water Board adopted a Resolution, titled Authorizing the
Executive Director or Designee to Enter into One or More Multi-Year Contracts Up to a
Combined Sum of $4,000,000 for a Statewide Wastewater Needs Assessment,
supporting the equitable access to sanitation for all Californians and implementation of
Resolutions 2016-0010 and 2021-0050.

This General Order supports the State Water Board priority in collecting a
comprehensive set of data for California’s wastewater systems, including sanitary sewer
systems. Data reported per the requirements of this Order will be used with data from
other Water Boards’ programs, to further develop criteria and create a statewide risk

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

15

Agenda Packet Page 228



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.3.5.

3.3.6.

3.4.

3.5.

framework to prioritize critical funding and infrastructure investments for California’s
most vulnerable populations, including disadvantaged or severely disadvantaged
communities with inadequate or failing sanitation systems and threatened access to
healthy drinking water supplies.

State Water Board Open Data Resolution

On July 10, 2018, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2018-0032, titled Adopting
Principles of Open Data as a Core Value and Directing Programs and Activities to
Implement Strategic Actions to Improve Data Accessibility and Associated Innovation,
directing regulatory programs to assure all monitoring and reporting requirements
support the State Water Boards’ Open Data Initiative.

State Water Board Response to Climate Change

On March 7, 2017, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2017-0012, titled
Comprehensive Response to Climate Change, requiring a proactive response to climate
change in all California Water Board actions, with the intent to embed climate change
consideration into all programs and activities.

California Environmental Quality Act

The adoption of this Order is an action to reissue general waste discharge requirements
that is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code
section 21000 et seq.) because it is an action taken by a regulatory agency to assure
the protection of the environment and the regulatory process involves procedures for
protection of the environment (Cal. Code Regs., Title 14, section 15308). In addition, the
action to adopt this Order is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Cal. Code Regs., Title 14,
section 15301, to the extent that it applies to existing sanitary sewer collection systems
that constitute “existing facilities” as that term is used in sections 15301 and 15302, to
the extent that it results in the repair or replacement of existing systems involving
negligible or no expansion of capacity.

State Water Board Funding Assistance for Compliance with Water Board Water
Quality Orders

The State Water Board, Division of Financial Assistance administers the implementation
of the State Water Board financial assistance programs, per Board-adopted funding
policies. Among other funding areas, the Division administers loan and grant funding for
the planning and construction of wastewater and water recycling facilities per funding
program-specific policies and guidelines. Applicants may apply for Clean Water State
Revolving Fund low-interest loan, Small Community Wastewater grant funding
assistance, and other funding available at the time of application, for some of the costs
associated with complying with this General Order.

Funding applicants may obtain further information regarding current funding
opportunities, and Division of Financial Assistance staff contact information at the
following website: Financial Assistance Funding - Grants and Loans | California State
Water Resources Control Board.
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/)

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

16

Agenda Packet Page 229


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

3.6.

Section 13477.6 of the Water Code authorizes the Small Community Grant Fund.
The Small Community Grant Fund allows the State Water Board to provide grant
funding assistance to small, disadvantaged communities and small severely
disadvantaged communities that may not otherwise be able to afford a loan or similar
financing for projects to comply with requirements of this General Order. The State
Water Board also considers loan forgiveness on a disadvantaged community-specific
basis.

For disadvantaged communities’ wastewater needs, the State Water Board places
priority on the funding of projects that address:

e Public health;

e Violations of waste discharge requirements and National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permits;

e Providing sewer system service to existing septic tank owners; and

e High priority public health and water quality concerns identified by a Regional Water
Board.

Notification to Interested Parties

On January 31, 2022, the State Water Board notified interested parties and persons of
its intent to reissue Sanitary Sewer Systems General Order 2006-0003-DWQ by issuing
a draft General Order for a 60-day public comment period. State Water Board staff
conducted extensive stakeholder outreach and encouraged public participation in the
adoption process for this General Order. On March 15, 2022, the State Water Board
held a public meeting to hear and consider oral public comments. The State Water
Board considered all public comments prior to adopting this General Order.

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that pursuant to Water Code sections 13263,
13267, and 13383 this General Order supersedes Order 2006-0003-DWQ,

Order WQ 2013-0058-EXEC, and any amendments made to these Orders thereafter, except
for enforcement purposes and to meet the provisions contained in Division 7 of the Water
Code (commencing with section 13000) and regulations adopted thereunder, and the
provisions of the Clean Water Act and regulations and guidelines adopted thereunder, the
Enrollee shall comply with the requirements in this Order.

4, PROHIBITIONS

41 Discharge of Sewage from a Sanitary Sewer System
Any discharge from a sanitary sewer system that has the potential to discharge to
surface waters of the State is prohibited unless it is promptly cleaned up and reported
as required in this General Order.

4.2. Discharge of Sewage to Waters of the State
Any discharge from a sanitary sewer system, discharged directly or indirectly through a
drainage conveyance system or other route, to waters of the State is prohibited.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

17

Agenda Packet Page 230



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

4.3.

5.2.

Discharge of Sewage Creating a Nuisance

Any discharge from a sanitary sewer system that creates a nuisance or condition of
pollution as defined in Water Code section 13050(m) is prohibited.

SPECIFICATIONS

Designation of a Legally Responsible Official

The Enrollee shall designate a Legally Responsible Official that has authority to ensure
the enrolled sanitary sewer system(s) complies with this Order, and is authorized to
serve as a duly authorized representative. The Legally Responsible Official must have
responsibility over management of the Enrollee’s entire sanitary sewer system, and
must be authorized to make managerial decisions that govern the operation of the
sanitary sewer system, including having the explicit or implicit duty of making major
capital improvement recommendations to ensure long-term environmental compliance.
The Legally Responsible Official must have or have direct authority over individuals
that:

e Possess a recognized degree or certificate related to operations and maintenance of
sanitary sewer systems, and/or

e Have professional training and experience related to the management of sanitary
sewer systems, demonstrated through extensive knowledge, training and
experience.

For example, a sewer system superintendent or manager, an operations manager, a
public utilities manager or director, or a district engineer may be designated as a Legally
Responsible Official.

The Legally Responsible Official shall complete the electronic CIWQS “User
Registration” form (https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwgs/newUser.jsp). A Legally
Responsible Official that represents multiple enrolled systems shall complete the
electronic CIWQS “User Registration” form for each system.

The Enrollee shall submit any change to its Legally Responsible Official, and/or change
in contact information, to the State Water Board within 30 calendar days of the change
by emailing ciwgs@waterboards.ca.gov and copying the appropriate Regional Water
Board as provided in Attachment F (Regional Water Quality Control Board Contact
Information) of this General Order.

Sewer System Management Plan Development and Implementation

To facilitate adequate local funding and management of its sanitary sewer system(s),
the Enrollee shall develop and implement an updated Sewer System Management Plan.
The scale and complexity of the Sewer System Management Plan, and specific
elements of the Plan, must match the size, scale and complexity of the Enrollee’s
sanitary sewer system(s). The Sewer System Management Plan must address, at
minimum, the required Plan elements in Attachment D (Sewer System Management
Plan — Required Elements) of this General Order. To be effective, the Sewer System
Management Plan must include procedures for the management, operation, and
maintenance of the sanitary sewer system(s). The procedures must: (1) incorporate the

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

18

Agenda Packet Page 231


https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/newUser.jsp
https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/newUser.jsp
mailto:ciwqs@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.3.

5.4.

prioritization of system repairs and maintenance to proactively prevent spills, and
(2) address the implementation of current standard industry practices through available
equipment, technologies, and strategies.

For an existing Enrollee under Order 2006-0003-DWQ that has certified its Continuation
of Existing Requlatory Coverage, per section 2.1 (Requirements for Continuation of
Existing Requlatory Coverage) of this General Order:

Within six (6) months of the Adoption Date of this General Order:

e The Legally Responsible Official shall upload the Enrollee’s existing Sewer System
Management Plan to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

For a new Enrollee:

Within twelve (12) months of the Application for Enroliment approval date:

e The governing entity of the new Enrollee shall approve its Sewer System
Management Plan; and

e The Legally Responsible Official shall certify and upload its Sewer System
Management Plan to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Certification of Sewer System Management Plan and Plan Updates

The Legally Responsible Official shall certify and upload its Sewer System Management
Plan and all subsequent updates to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database.

Sewer System Management Plan Audits

The Enrollee shall conduct an internal audit of its Sewer System Management Plan, and
implementation of its Plan, at a minimum frequency of once every three years. The audit
must be conducted for the period after the end of the Enrollee’s last required audit
period. Within six months after the end of the required 3-year audit period, the
Legally Responsible Official shall submit an audit report into the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database per the requirements in section 3.10 (Sewer System
Management Plan Audit Reporting Requirements) of Attachment E1 of this General
Order.

Audit reports submitted to the CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will be
viewable only to Water Boards staff.

The internal audit shall be appropriately scaled to the size of the system(s) and the
number of spills. The Enrollee’s sewer system operators must be involved in completing
the audit. At minimum, the audit must:

e Evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the Enrollee’s Sewer System
Management Plan in preventing spills;

e Evaluate the Enrollee’s compliance with this General Order;

¢ |dentify Sewer System Management Plan deficiencies in addressing ongoing spills
and discharges to waters of the State; and

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

19

Agenda Packet Page 232



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

¢ Identify necessary modifications to the Sewer System Management Plan to correct
deficiencies.

The Enrollee shall submit a complete audit report that includes:
e Audit findings and recommended corrective actions;

e A statement that sewer system operators’ input on the audit findings has been
considered; and

e A proposed schedule for the Enrollee to address the identified deficiencies.

A new Enrollee of this General Order (that did not have a sanitary sewer system
enrolled in the previous State Water Board Order 2006-0003-DWQ) shall conduct its
first internal Sewer System Management Plan audit for the time period between the
date of submittal of its certified Sewer System Management Plan and the third
subsequent December 315t date. The audit report must be submitted into the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database by July 1 of the following calendar year.

See the following tables for clarification:

Initial Audit Period and Audit Due Date for New Enrollees

Audit Period Audit Due Date
Certified Sewer System Management
Plan Submittal Date July 1st date after
New Enrollee . :
through audit period

the third subsequent December 315t date

Certified Sewer System Management

Plan Submittal Date of August 2, 2025
Example ) ] July 1, 2028
Audit Period of August 2, 2025 through

December 31, 2027

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
20

Agenda Packet Page 233



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

Initial Audit Period for Transition from 2-Year Audit Required in Previous
Order 2006-0003-DWQ to 3-Year Audit Required in this General Order

Audit Period Audit Due Date
An Enrollee e
previously A 3-year period starting from the end of ;’;{g?'gnsdlxo??_ nz]asr
regulated by Order last required 2-year Audit Period y

2006-003-DWQ Audit Period

Last required Audit Period start date of

August 2, 2021;
Example , , February 1, 2025
Audit Period of August 2, 2021 through

August 1, 2024

Three-Year Ongoing Audit Period

Audit Period Audit Due Date

Within six months
after end of 3-year
Audit Period

A 3-year period starting from the end of

EachiEnrolies last required Audit Period

5.5. Six-Year Sewer System Management Plan Update

At a minimum, the Enrollee shall update its Sewer System Management Plan every six
(6) years after the date of its last Plan Update due date. (For an Enrollee previously
regulated by Order 2006-0003-DWQ, the six-year period shall commence on the due
date identified in section 3.11 of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and
Recordkeeping Requirements) of this Order. The Updated Sewer System Management
Plan must include:

e Elements required in Attachment D (Sewer System Management Plan — Required
Elements) of this Order;

e Summary of revisions included in the Plan update based on internal audit findings;
and

e Other sewer system management-related changes.

The Enrollee’s governing entity shall approve the updated Plan. The Legally
Responsible Official shall upload and certify the approved updated Plan in the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database in accordance with section 3.11 (Sewer
System Management Plan Reporting Requirements) of Attachment E1 (Notification,
Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General Order. During
the time period in between Plan updates, the Enrollee shall continuously document
changes to its Sewer System Management Plan in a change log attached to the Plan.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
21

Agenda Packet Page 234



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

System Resilience

The Enrollee shall include and implement system-specific procedures in its Sewer
System Management Plan to proactively prioritize: (1) operation and maintenance,

(2) condition assessments, and (3) repair and rehabilitation, to address ongoing system
resilience, as specified in Attachment D (Sewer System Management Plan — Required
Elements) of this General Order.

Allocation of Resources

The Enrollee shall:

e Establish and maintain a means to manage all necessary revenues and
expenditures related to the sanitary sewer system; and

e Allocate the necessary resources to its sewer system management program for:
o0 Compliance with this General Order,
o Full implementation of its updated Sewer System Management Plan,
o System operation, maintenance, and repair, and
o0 Spill responses.

Designation of Data Submitters

The Legally Responsible Official may designate one or more individuals as a Data
Submitter for reporting of spill data. The Legally Responsible Official shall authorize the
designation of Data Submitter(s) through the online CIWQS database
(https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov) prior to the individuals establishing a

CIWQS user account (https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwgs/newUser.jsp) and
entering spill data into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

The Legally Responsible Official shall submit any change to its Data Submitter(s),
and/or change in Data Submitter contact information, to the State Water Board within
30 calendar days of the change, by emailing ciwgs@waterboards.ca.gov and copying
the appropriate Regional Water Board as provided in Attachment F (Regional Water
Quality Control Board Contact Information) of this General Order.

Reporting Certification

The Legally Responsible Official shall electronically certify, on the Enrollee’s behalf, all
applications, reports, the Sewer System Management Plan(s) and corresponding
updates, and other information submitted electronically into the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database, as follows:

“I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
electronically submitted information was prepared under my direction or supervision.
Based on my inquiry of the person(s) directly responsible for gathering the information,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information submitted is true, accurate, and
complete, and complies with the Statewide Sanitary Sewer Systems General Order.

| am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information.”

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

22

Agenda Packet Page 235


https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/
file:///C:/Users/afarsimadan/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/5RJ2S7EF/CIWQS%20user%20account
file:///C:/Users/wmobley/Downloads/ciwqs@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

Hardcopy submittals to the State Water Board must be accompanied by the above
certification statement.

5.10. System Capacity

The Enrollee shall maintain the system capacity necessary to convey: (1) base flows
during dry weather conditions, and (2) wet weather peak flows consistent with
designated local historic storms. Design storms must take into account system-specific
stormwater contributions via inflow and infiltration, and location-specific depth of
groundwater and storm frequencies. The Enrollee shall implement capital
improvements to provide adequate hydraulic capacity to:

e Meet or exceed the design criteria as defined in the Enrollee’s System Evaluation
and Capacity Assurance element of its Sewer System Management Plan; and

e Prevent system capacity-related spills, and adverse impacts to the treatment
efficiency of downstream wastewater treatment facilities.
5.11. System Performance Analysis

The Enrollee shall include a running 10-year system performance analysis in its Annual
Report. The analysis must include two CIWQS-generated graphs presenting the
following information:

Graph 1 — Total Spill Volume per Year:

X axis: A 10-year period which includes the current calendar year and the nine
previous calendar years;

Y axis: The total spill volume, per Spill Category, for each calendar year.

Graph 2 — Total Number of Spills per Year:

X axis: A 10-year period which includes the current calendar year and the nine
previous calendar years;

Y axis: The total number of spills, per Spill Category, for each calendar year.
The current calendar year is the calendar year covered in the Annual Report.

The Enrollee shall generate the graphs in CIWQS, using the existing data in the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database at the following graph generation link:
(https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwgs/readOnly/PublicReportSSOServiet?reportActio
n=criteria&reportld=sso_operation_report).

5.12. Spill Emergency Response Plan and Remedial Actions
For Existing Enrollees (with requlatory coverage under Order 2006-0003-DWQ):

Within six (6) months of the Adoption Date of this General Order, the Enrollee
shall update and implement its Spill Emergency Response Plan, per Attachment D,
section 6 (Spill Emergency Response Plan) of this General Order.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
23

Agenda Packet Page 236


https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/readOnly/PublicReportSSOServlet?reportAction=criteria&reportId=sso_operation_report
https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwqs/readOnly/PublicReportSSOServlet?reportAction=criteria&reportId=sso_operation_report

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

For New Enrollees:

Within six (6) months of the Application for Enroliment approval date, the Enrollee
shall develop and implement a Spill Emergency Response Plan, per Attachment D,
section 6 (Spill Emergency Response Plan) of this General Order.

The Enrollee shall certify, in its Annual Report, that its Spill Emergency Response Plan
is up to date.

The Spill Emergency Response Plan shall include measures to protect public health
and the environment. The Enrollee shall respond to spills from its system(s) in a timely
manner that minimizes water quality impacts and nuisance by:

e Immediately stopping the spill and preventing/minimizing a discharge to waters of
the State;

e Intercepting sewage flows to prevent/minimize spill volume discharged into waters of
the State;

e Thoroughly recovering, cleaning up and disposing of sewage and wash down water;
and

e Cleaning publicly accessible areas while preventing toxic discharges to waters of the
State.
5.13. Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements
The Enrollee shall comply with notification, monitoring, reporting, and recordkeeping
requirements in Attachment E1 of this General Order.
5.13.1. Spill Categories

Individual spill notification, monitoring and reporting must be in accordance with the
following spill categories:
e Category 1 Spill
A Category 1 spill is a spill of any volume of sewage from or caused by a sanitary
sewer system regulated under this General Order that results in a discharge to:

o A surface water, including a surface water body that contains no flow or volume
of water; or

o0 A drainage conveyance system that discharges to surface waters when the
sewage is not fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer system or
disposed of properly.

Any spill volume not recovered from a drainage conveyance system is
considered a discharge to surface water, unless the drainage conveyance
system discharges to a dedicated stormwater infiltration basin or facility.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
24

Agenda Packet Page 237



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

A spill from an Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a surface
water is a Category 1 spill; the Enrollee shall report all Category 1 spills per section
3.1 of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping
Requirements) of this General Order.

e Category 2 Spill

A Category 2 spill is a spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, from or caused by a sanitary
sewer system regulated under this General Order that does not discharge to a
surface water.

A spill of 1,000 gallons or greater that spills out of a lateral and is caused by a failure
or blockage in the sanitary sewer system, is a Category 2 spill.

e Category 3 Spill

A Category 3 spill is a spill of equal to or greater than 50 gallons and less than
1,000 gallons, from or caused by a sanitary sewer system regulated under this
General Order that does not discharge to a surface water.

A spill of equal to or greater than 50 gallons and less than 1,000 gallons, that spills
out of a lateral and is caused by a failure or blockage in the sanitary sewer system is
a Category 3 spill.

e Category 4 Spill

A Category 4 spill is a spill of less than 50 gallons, from or caused by a sanitary
sewer system regulated under this General Order that does not discharge to a
surface water.

A spill of less than 50 gallons that spills out of a lateral and is caused by a failure or
blockage in the sanitary sewer system is a Category 4 spill.

5.13.2. Annual Report

The Enrollee shall submit an Annual Report (previously termed as Collection System
Questionnaire in Order 2006-0003-DWQ) as specified in section 3.9 (Annual Report) of
Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements)
of this General Order.

For new Enrollees: Within 30 days of obtaining a CIWQS account, a new Enrollee
shall submit its initial Annual Report, as specified in section 3.9 (Annual Report) of
Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements)
of this General Order.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
25

Agenda Packet Page 238



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.14. Electronic Sanitary Sewer System Service Area Boundary Map

For continuing enrollees, starting on July 1, 2025, and no later than
December 31, 2025:

For new enrollees — no earlier than July 1, 2025, or within 12 months of the
Application for Enroliment approval date, whichever date is later:

The Legally Responsible Official shall submit, to the State Water Board, geospatial data
detailing the locations of the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system service area boundary,
per the required content and specifications in section 3.8 (Electronic Sanitary Sewer
System Service Area Boundary Map) of Attachment E1 of this General Order, for each
system identified by a WDID number.

An Enrollee of a disadvantaged community that may need assistance developing an
electronic map to comply with this requirement, may contact State Water Board staff for
assistance at SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov.

5.15. Voluntary Reporting of Spills from Privately-Owned Sewer Laterals and/or Private
Sanitary Sewer Systems

Within 24 hours of becoming aware of a spill (as described below) from a private sewer
lateral or private sanitary sewer system that is not owned/operated by the Enrollee, the
Enrollee is encouraged to report the following observations to the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System Database at the following link:
https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov:

e A spill equal or greater than 1,000 gallons that discharges (or has a potential to
discharge) to a water of the State, or a drainage conveyance system that discharges
to waters of the State; or

e Any volume of sewage that discharges (or has a potential to discharge) to surface
waters.

In the CIWQS module, the Enrollee is encouraged to identify:
e Time of observation;

e Description of general spill location (for example, street name and cross street
names);

e Estimated volume of spill;

e If known, general description of spill destination (for example, flowing into drainage
channel, flowing directly into a creek, etc.); and

e If known, name of private system owner/operator.

The CIWQS database will make the name and contact information of the entity
voluntarily reporting a private spill, accessible to State and Regional Water Board staff
only. The CIWQS database will only make information regarding the actual spill,
accessible to the public.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
26

Agenda Packet Page 239


mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov
https://ciwqs.waterboards.ca.gov/

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

Voluntary Notification of Spills from Privately-Owned Laterals and/or Systems to
the California Office of Emergency Services

Upon observing or acquiring knowledge of any of the following from a private sewer
lateral or private sanitary sewer system that is not owned/operated by the Enrollee, the
Enrollee is encouraged to notify the California Office of Emergency Services (as
provided by Health and Safety Code section 5410 et. seq. and Water Code section
13271), or inform the responsible party that State law requires such notification to the
Office of Emergency Services by any person that causes or allows a sewage discharge
to waters of the State:

e A spill equal to 1,000 gallons or more that discharges (or has a potential to
discharge) to waters of the State, or a drainage conveyance system that discharges
to waters of the State; or

e A spill of any volume to surface waters.

Unintended Failure to Report

If an Enrollee becomes aware that they unintentionally failed to submit relevant facts in
any report required in this General Order, the Enrollee shall promptly notify Regional
Water Board and State Water Board staff. Regional Water Board contact information is
included in Attachment F of this Order. State Water Board staff shall be contacted by
email at SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov for assistance in formally amending the
corresponding report(s) in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Duty to Report to Water Boards

In accordance with Water Code section 13267 and/or section 13383, upon request by
the State Water Board Executive Director (or designee) or a Regional Water Board
Executive Officer (or designee), the Enrollee shall provide the requested information
which the State or Regional Water Board deems necessary to determine compliance
with this General Order.

Operation and Maintenance

To prevent discharges to the environment, the Enrollee shall maintain in good working
order, and operate as designed, any facility or treatment and control system designed to
contain sewage and convey it to a treatment plant.

6. PROVISIONS

6.1. Enforcement Provisions
The following enforcement provisions are based on existing federal and state
regulations, laws and policies, including the federal Clean Water Act, the state Water
Code and the State Water Board Enforcement Policy.

6.1.1. Enforceability of Clean Water Act and Water Code Violations
Noncompliance with requirements of this General Order or discharging sewage without
enrolling in this General Order constitutes a violation of the Water Code and a potential

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

27

Agenda Packet Page 240


mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

6.1.4.

6.1.5.

6.1.6.

violation of the Clean Water Act and is grounds for an enforcement action by the State
Water Board or the applicable Regional Water Board. Failure to comply with the
notification, monitoring, inspection, entry, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements
may subject the Enrollee to administrative civil liabilities of up to $10,000 a day per
violation pursuant to Water Code section 13385; up to $1,000 a day per violation
pursuant to Water Code section 13268; or referral to the Attorney General for judicial
civil enforcement. Discharging waste not in compliance with the requirements of this
General Order or the Clean Water Act may subject the Enrollee to administrative civil
liabilities up to $10,000 a day per violation and additional liability up to $10 per gallon of
discharge not cleaned up after the first 1,000 gallons of discharge; up to $5,000 a day
per violation pursuant to Water Code section 13350 or up to $20 per gallon of waste
discharged; or referral to the Attorney General for judicial civil enforcement.

Monetary Penalties

The Water Code provides the State and Regional Water Boards the authority to pursue
formal enforcement actions, including imposing administrative liability and civil monetary
penalties, for non-compliance with the requirements of this General Order and violations
of the Clean Water Act.

Falsifying or Failure to Report

The Water Code provides that any person failing or refusing to furnish technical or
monitoring program reports, as required under this General Order, or falsifying any
information provided in the technical or monitoring reports is subject to administrative
liability and civil monetary penalties. Any person who knowingly fails or refuses to
furnish technical or monitoring program reports or falsifies any information provided in
reports required by this General Order is subject to criminal penalties.

Severability of General Order

The provisions of this General Order are severable; if any provision of this Order, or the
application of any provision of this Order to any circumstance, is held invalid, the
application of such provision to other circumstances and the remainder of this Order
shall not be affected thereby.

Indirect Discharges

In the event that a spill enters into a drainage conveyance system, the Enrollee shall
take all feasible steps to prevent discharge of sewage into waters of the State by
blocking or redirecting the flow in the drainage conveyance system, removing the
sewage from the drainage conveyance system, and cleaning the system in a manner
that does not inadvertently impact beneficial uses of the receiving water body.

Water Boards’ Considerations for Discretionary Enforcement

Consistent with the State Water Board Enforcement Policy, when considering Water
Code section 13327 factors, the State Water Board or a Regional Water Board may
consider the Enrollee’s efforts to contain, control, clean up, and mitigate spills. In
assessing the factors, the State Water Board or the applicable Regional Water Board
will consider:

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

28

Agenda Packet Page 241



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

e The Enrollee’s compliance with this General Order with a focus on compliance with
reporting requirements;

e The Enrollee’s provision of adequate funding to implement the requirements of this
General Order;

e The Enrollee’s compliance with providing a complete and updated Sewer System
Management Plan;

e The Enrollee’s compliance with implementing its Sewer System Management Plan;

e The overall effectiveness of the Enrollee’s Sewer System Management Plan with
respect to:

o System management, operation, and maintenance,

0 Adequate treatment facilities, sanitary sewer system facilities, and/or
components with an appropriate design capacity, to reasonably prevent spills
(e.g. adequately enlarging treatment or collection facilities to accommodate
growth, infiltration and inflow, etc.),

o0 Preventive maintenance (including cleaning, root grinding, and fats, oils, and
grease control) and source control measures,

Implementation of backup equipment,
Inflow and infiltration prevention and control,

Appropriate sanitary sewer system capacity to prevent spills, and

O O O O

The Enrollee’s responsiveness to stop and mitigate the impact of the discharge;
e The Enrollee’s compliance with identifying the cause of the spill;

e The Enrollee’s use of available information and observations to accurately estimate
the spill volume and identify the affected or potentially affected receiving waters;

e The Enrollee’s thoroughness of cleaning up sewage in drainage conveyance
systems after the spill(s);

e The Enrollee’s use of water quality and biological monitoring and assessment to
determine the short-term and long-term impacts to beneficial uses and the
environment;

e The Enrollee’s follow up actions to improve system performance;
e The Enrollee’s implementation of feasible alternatives to prevent spills, such as:
0 Use of temporary storage or waste retention,
0 Reduction of system inflow and infiltration,
o Collection and hauling of waste to a treatment facility,
o]

Prevention of and/ or containment of spills due to a design storm event identified
in the Enrollee’s Sewer System Management Plan,

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022
29

Agenda Packet Page 242



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

o Implementation of available equipment, technologies, strategies, and
recommended industry practices for maintaining and managing sewer systems to
prevent spills, and contain and eliminate discharges to waters of the State; and

e The spill duration and factors beyond the reasonable control of the Enrollee causing
the event.

6.1.7. Enforcement Discretion Based on Reporting Compliance

6.2.

Consistent with the State Water Board Enforcement Policy, the State Water Board or a
Regional Water Board may consider the Enrollee’s efforts to comply with spill reporting
requirements when determining compliance with Water Code section 13267 and section
13383. When assessing Water Code section 13227 factors, the State Water Board or
the applicable Regional Water Board will consider:

e The Enrollee’s diligence to comply with all reporting requirements in this General
Order;

e The use of best available information for the Enrollee’s reporting of spill start date
and start time in which the release of sewage from the sanitary sewer system
initiated,;

e The Enrollee’s reporting of spill end date, and end time to be the date and time in
which the release of sewage from the sanitary sewer system was stopped;

e The Enrollee’s diligence to accurately estimate and report spill volumes;

e The Enrollee’s subsequent verification and/or updates to initial Draft Spill Reports in
accordance with this General Order; and

e The Enrollee’s timely certification of required spill reports.

Consistent with Water Code section 13267 and section 13383, the State Water Board or
a Regional Water Board may require an Enrollee to report the results of a condition
assessment of a specified portion of the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system.

Other Regional Water Board Orders

It is the intent of the State Water Board that sanitary sewer systems be regulated in a
manner consistent with federal and state regulations. This Order will not be interpreted
or applied:

e In a manner inconsistent with the federal Clean Water Act;

e To authorize a spill or discharge that is illegal under either the Clean Water Act, the
Water Code, and/or an applicable Basin Plan prohibition or water quality standard;

e To prohibit a Regional Water Board from issuing an individual National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit or individual waste discharge
requirements superseding an Enrollee’s regulatory coverage under this General
Order for a sanitary sewer system authorized under the Clean Water Act or Water
Code;

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

30

Agenda Packet Page 243



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

6.3.

6.4.
6.4.1.

6.4.2.

e To supersede any more specific or more stringent waste discharge requirements or
enforcement orders issued by a Regional Water Board; or

e To supersede any more specific or more stringent state or federal requirements in
existing regulation, an administrative/judicial order, or Consent Decree.

Sewer System Management Plan Availability

The Enrollee’s updated Sewer System Management Plan must be maintained for public
inspection at the Enrollee’s offices and facilities and must be available to the public
through CIWQS and/or on the Enrollee’s website, in accordance with section 3.8
(Sewer System Management Plan Reporting Requirements) of Attachment E1
(Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General
Order.

Entry and Inspection

Entry and Availability of Information

The Enrollee shall allow State and Regional Water Board staff, upon presentation of
credentials and other documents as may be required by law, to:

e Enter upon the Enrollee’s premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or
conducted, or where records are kept under the requirements of this General Order;

e Have access to and reproduce any records required to be maintained by this
General Order;

e Inspect any facility and/or equipment (including monitoring and control equipment),
practices, or operations required in this General Order; and

e Sample or monitor substances or parameters for assuring compliance with this
General Order, or as otherwise authorized by the Water Code.
Pre-Inspection Questionnaire

The Enrollee shall provide pre-inspection information to State and Regional Water
Board staff through the completion of a Pre-Inspection Questionnaire provided by Water
Board staff.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

31

Agenda Packet Page 244



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT A - DEFINITIONS

Annual Report

An Annual Report (previously termed as Collection System Questionnaire in
Order 2006-0003-DWQ) is a mandatory report in which the Enrollee provides a calendar-year
update of its efforts to prevent spills.

Basin Plan

A Basin Plan is a water quality control plan specific to a Regional Water Quality Control Board
(Regional Water Board), that serves as regulations to: (1) define and designate beneficial uses
of surface and groundwaters, (2) establish water quality objectives for protection of beneficial
uses, and (3) provide implementation measures.

Beneficial Uses

The term “Beneficial Uses” is a Water Code term, defined as the uses of the waters of the
State that may be protected against water quality degradation. Examples of beneficial uses
include but are not limited to, municipal, domestic, agricultural and industrial supply; power
generation; recreation; aesthetic enjoyment; navigation; and preservation and enhancement of
fish, wildlife, and other aquatic resources or preserves.

California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS)

CIWQS is the statewide database that provides for mandatory electronic reporting as required
in State and Regional Water Board-issued waste discharge requirements.

Data Submitter

A Data Submitter is an individual designated and authorized by the Enrollee’s Legally
Responsible Official to enter spill data into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database. A Data Submitter does not have the authority of a Legally Responsible Official to
certify reporting entered into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Disadvantaged Community

A disadvantaged community is a community with a median household income of less than
eighty percent (80%) of the statewide annual median household income.

For the purpose of this General Order, there is no differentiation between a small and large
disadvantaged community.
Drainage Conveyance System

A drainage conveyance system is a publicly- or privately-owned separate storm sewer system,
including but not limited to drainage canals, channels, pipelines, pump stations, detention
basins, infiltration basins/facilities, or other facilities constructed to transport stormwater and
non-stormwater flows.

ATTACHMENT A — DEFINITIONS December 6, 2022
A-1

Agenda Packet Page 245



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Enrollee

An Enrollee is a public, private, or other non-governmental entity that has obtained approval for
regulatory coverage under this General Order, including:

e A state agency, municipality, special district, or other public entity that owns and/or
operates one or more sanitary sewer systems:

e greater than one (1) mile in length (each individual sanitary sewer system);

e one mile or less in length where the State Water Resources Control Board or a
Regional Water Quality Control Board requires regulatory coverage under this Order, or

e A federal agency, private company, or other non-governmental entity that owns and/or
operates a sanitary sewer system of any size where the State Water Resources Control
Board or a Regional Water Quality Control Board requires regulatory coverage under this
Order in response to a history of spills, proximity to surface water, or other factors
supporting regulatory coverage.

Environmentally Sensitive Area

An environmentally sensitive area is a designated agricultural and/or wildlife area identified to
need special natural landscape protection due to its wildlife or historical value.

Exfiltration

Exfiltration is the underground exiting of sewage from a sanitary sewer system through cracks,
offset or separated joints, or failed infrastructure due to corrosion or other factors.

Flood Control Channel

A flood control channel is a channel used to convey stormwater and non-stormwater flows
through and from areas for flood management purposes.

Governing Entity

A governing entity includes but is not limited to the following:

e A publicly elected governing board, council, or commission of a municipal agency;

e A Department or Division director of a federal or state agency that is not governed by a
board;

e A governing board or commission of an organization or association; and

e A private system owner/manager that is not governed by a board.

Hydrologically Connected

Two waterbodies are hydrologically connected when one waterbody flows, or has the potential
to flow, into the other waterbody. For the purpose of this General Order, groundwater is
hydrologically connected to a surface water when the

groundwater feeds into the surface water. (The surface

waterbody in this example is termed a gaining stream as it

gains flow from surrounding groundwater.)

ATTACHMENT A — DEFINITIONS December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 246



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Lateral (including Lower and Upper Lateral)

A lateral is an underground segment of smaller diameter pipe that transports sewage from a
customer’s building or property (residential, commercial, or industrial) to the Enrollee’s main
sewer line in a street or easement. Upper and lower lateral boundary definitions are subject to
local jurisdictional codes and ordinances, or private system ownership.

A lower lateral is the portion of the lateral located between the sanitary sewer system main,
and either the property line, sewer clean out, curb line, established utility easement boundary,
or other jurisdictional locations.

An upper lateral is the portion of the lateral from the property line, sewer clean out, curb line,
established utility easement boundary, or other jurisdictional locations, to the building or
property.

Legally Responsible Official

A Legally Responsible Official is an official representative, designated by the Enrollee, with
authority to sign and certify submitted information and documents required by this General
Order.

Nuisance

For the purpose of this General Order, a nuisance, as defined in Water Code section
13050(m), is anything that meets all of the following requirements:

e Isinjurious to health, or is indecent or offensive to the senses, or an obstruction to the free
use of property, so as to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property;

e Affects at the same time an entire community or neighborhood, or any considerable
number of persons, although the extent of the annoyance or damage inflicted upon
individuals may be unequal; and

e Occurs during, or as a result of, the treatment or disposal of wastes.

Private Sewer Lateral

A private sewer lateral is the privately-owned lateral that transports sewage from private
property(ies) into a sanitary sewer system.

Private Sanitary Sewer System

A private sanitary sewer system is a sanitary sewer system of any size that is owned and/or
operated by a private individual, company, corporation, or organization. A private sanitary
sewer system may or may not connect into a publicly owned sanitary sewer system.

Potential to Discharge, Potential Discharge

Potential to Discharge, or Potential Discharge, means any exiting of sewage from a sanitary
sewer system which can reasonably be expected to discharge into a water of the State based
on the size of the sewage spill, proximity to a drainage conveyance system, and the nature of
the surrounding environment.

ATTACHMENT A — DEFINITIONS December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 247



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Receiving Water
A receiving water is a water of the State that receives a discharge of waste.

Resilience

Resilience is the ability to recover from or adjust to adversity or change, and grow from
disruptions. Resilience can be built through planning, preparing for, mitigating, and adapting to
changing conditions.

Sanitary Sewer System

A sanitary sewer system is a system that is designed to convey sewage, including but not
limited to, pipes, manholes, pump stations, siphons, wet wells, diversion structures and/or
other pertinent infrastructure, upstream of a wastewater treatment plant headworks, including:

e Laterals owned and/or operated by the Enrollee;
e Satellite sewer systems; and/or

e Temporary conveyance and storage facilities, including but not limited to temporary piping,
vaults, construction trenches, wet wells, impoundments, tanks and diversion structures.

For purpose of this Order, sanitary sewer systems include only systems owned and/or
operated by the Enrollee.

Satellite Sewer System

A satellite sewer system is a portion of a sanitary sewer system owned or operated by a
different owner than the owner of the downstream wastewater treatment facility ultimately
treating the sewage.

Sewer System Management Plan

A sewer system management plan is a living document an Enrollee develops and implements
to effectively manage its sanitary sewer system(s) in accordance with this General Order.
Sewage

Sewage, and its associated wastewater, is untreated or partially treated domestic, municipal,
commercial and/or industrial waste (including sewage sludge), and any mixture of these
wastes with inflow or infiltration of stormwater or groundwater, conveyed in a sanitary sewer
system.

Spill

A spill is a discharge of sewage from any portion of a sanitary sewer system due to a sanitary
sewer system overflow, operational failure, and/or infrastructure failure. Exfiltration of sewage
is not considered to be a spill under this General Order if the exfiltrated sewage remains in the
subsurface and does not reach a surface water of the State.

Training

Training is in-house or external education and guidance needed that provides the knowledge,
skills, and abilities to comply with this General Order.

ATTACHMENT A — DEFINITIONS December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 248



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Wash Down Water
Wash down water is water used to clean a spill area.

Waste

Waste, as defined in Water Code section 13050(d), includes sewage and any and all other
waste substances, liquid, solid, gaseous, or radioactive, associated with human habitation, or
of human or animal origin, or from any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation,
including waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to, and for purposes of,
disposal.

Waste Discharge Identification Number (WDID)

A waste discharge identification number (WDID) identifies each individual sanitary sewer
system enrolled under this General Order. A WDID number is assigned to each enrolled
system upon an Enrollee’s approved regulatory coverage.

Waters of the State

Waters of the State are surface waters or groundwater within boundaries of the state as
defined in Water Code section 13050(e), in which the State and Regional Water Boards have
authority to protect beneficial uses. Waters of the State include, but are not limited to,
groundwater aquifers, surface waters, saline waters, natural washes and pools, wetlands,
sloughs, and estuaries, regardless of flow or whether water exists during dry conditions.
Waters of the State include waters of the United States.

Waters of the United States

Waters of the United States are surface waters or waterbodies that are subject to federal
jurisdiction in accordance with the Clean Water Act.

Water Quality Objective

A water quality objective is the limit or maximum amount of pollutant, waste constituent or
characteristic, or parameter level established in statewide water quality control plans and
Regional Water Boards’ Basin Plans, for the reasonable protection of beneficial uses of
surface waters and groundwater and the prevention of nuisance.

ATTACHMENT A — DEFINITIONS December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 249



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT B — APPLICATION FOR ENROLLMENT

1. Enroliment Status: (Mark only one item)

0 New Enrollee
1 New Enrollee with previous regulatory coverage under Order 2006-0003-DWQ
(that failed to certify continuation of coverage in CIWQS per Order 2022-XXXX-DWQ)
Existing WDID Number:

2. Applicant Information:
Legally Responsible Official Submitting Application
First and Last Name:
Title:
Phone:

Email:

System Owner/Operator Name:

Mailing Address:
City, State, Zip:
County:

Sanitary Sewer System Name:

Regional Water Quality Control Board(s):

Signature and Date:

3. Applicant Type (Check one):
O City 0O County [ State ] Federal [ Special District

1 Government Combination O Private [ Other Non-governmental Entity

4. Wastewater Treatment Plant Receiving Sanitary Sewer System Waste:
Wastewater Treatment Plant Permittee:
WDID No.:

ATTACHMENT B — APPLICATION FOR ENROLLMENT December 6, 2022
B-1

Agenda Packet Page 250



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

5. Billing Information
Billing Address:
City, State, Zip:
Billing Contact Person and Title:

Phone and Email Address:

6. Application Fee:

The application fee, as required by Water Code section 13260, is based on the daily
population served by the sanitary sewer system. See updated Fee Schedule.
(https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/water_quality/)

Check one of the following and enter fee amount:
[0 Population Served < 50,000 — Total Fee submitted: $

[0 Population Served 2= 50,000 — Total Fee submitted: $

Make the fee payment payable to the State Water Resources Control Board and mail the
complete application package to:

State Water Resources Control Board, Accounting Office
P. O. Box 1888
Sacramento, CA 95812-1888

Attention: Statewide Sanitary Sewer System Program

7. Application Submittal Certification

| certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that to the best of
my knowledge and belief, the information in the submitted application package is true,
accurate and complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment.

Print Name:
Title:
Signature: Date:

ATTACHMENT B — APPLICATION FOR ENROLLMENT December 6, 2022
B-2

Agenda Packet Page 251


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/water_quality/

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT C - NOTICE OF TERMINATION

1. Enrollee Information
Enrollee Name:
WDID No:
Legally Responsible Official Requesting Termination of Coverage:

First and Last Name:
Title:
Phone:

Email:

Mailing Address:
City, State, Zip:
County:

Sanitary Sewer System Name(s) or Unique Identifier(s):

Regional Water Quality Control Board(s):

Signature and Date:

2. Basis of Termination

Explanation of termination, including subsequent regulatory coverage and subsequent
owner/operator of enrolled sanitary sewer system, as applicable:

ATTACHMENT C — NOTICE OF TERMINATION December 6, 2022
C-1

Agenda Packet Page 252



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

3. Regulatory Coverage Termination Certification
| certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that to the best of
my knowledge: 1) the sanitary sewer system | officially represent is not required to be
regulated under the Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems
Order 2022-XXXX-DWQ), and 2) the information submitted in this Notice of Termination is
frue, accurate and complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting
false information, including the possibility of fine or imprisonment. Additionally, | understand
that the submittal of this Notice of Termination does not release sanitary sewer system
agencies from liability for any violations of the Clean Water Act.

Print Name:
Title:
Signature: Date:

For State Water Board Use Only

0 Approved for Termination [0 Denied and Returned to Enrollee

Deputy Director of Water Quality Signature:

Date: Notice of Termination Effective Date:
ATTACHMENT C — NOTICE OF TERMINATION December 6, 2022
C-2

Agenda Packet Page 253



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN - REQUIRED ELEMENTS

Table of Contents

1. Sewer System Management Plan Goal And Introduction ............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieininn. D-2

1.1, Regulatory CONteXt .......coooiiiiiii D-2

1.2.  Sewer System Management Plan Update Schedule.................ccc, D-3

1.3.  Sewer System ASSet OVEIVIEW .......coooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e D-3

2. Organization .........oooiiiiiii e e e e ———— D-3

Legal AUTNONITY .....oooiiieee e D-4

Operation And Maintenance Program..............ccoeieiiiiiiiiiiiccee e D-4

4.1. Updated Map of Sanitary Sewer System ... D-4

4.2. Preventive Operation and Maintenance Activities..............cceeiiieiiiiieiiiiciiieeeee. D-4

4.3, TFAINING e D-5

4.4, EQUIPMENT INVENTOTY ..oeeiiiii e e e e e e e e D-5

5. Design And Performance ProViSiONS ...........cooviiiiiiiiiii e e e eeanns D-5

5.1. Updated Design Criteria and Construction Standards and Specifications......... D-5

5.2.  Procedures and Standards...........ooooiiiiiiiiie e D-5

Spill Emergency ReSponSse Plan...........cooooiiiiiiiiii e D-6

Sewer Pipe Blockage Control Program...................e i D-7

System Evaluation, Capacity Assurance and Capital Improvements.............ccccouee.e. D-7

8.1  System Evaluation and Condition Assessment.............cccoovviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeiiinnn, D-7

8.2. Capacity Assessment and Design Criteria.............cccccoueuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee D-8

8.3.  Perioritization of Corrective ACHON ...........ccoooi i D-9

8.4. Capital Improvement Plan ... D-9

9. Monitoring, Measurement and Program Modifications..............cccoooooviiiiiiiciiiii e, D-9

1O TR 1) (=15 0 F= I L L1 PSR D-10

11, Communication Program .............eiiiiiiiiieeee e e e e D-10
ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022

D-1

Agenda Packet Page 254



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT D - SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN - REQUIRED ELEMENTS

A Sewer System Management Plan (Plan) is a living planning document that documents
ongoing local sewer system management program activities, procedures, and decision-making
— at the scale necessary to address the size and complexity of the subject sanitary sewer
system(s). This Plan may incorporate other programs and other plans by reference, to address
short-term and long-term system resilience through:

e Proactive planning and decision-making;

e Local government ordinances;

e Updated operations and maintenance activities and procedures;

e Implementation of capital improvements;

e Sufficient local budget to support staff resources, contractors, equipment, and training; and
e Updated training of staff and contractors.

The Enrollee’s development, update, and implementation of a Sewer System Management
Plan addressing the requirements of this Attachment is an enforceable component of this
General Order. As specified in Provision 6.1 (Enforcement Provisions) of this General Order,
consistent with the Water Code and the State Water Board Enforcement Policy, the State
Water Board or a Regional Water Board may consider the Enrollee’s efforts in implementing
an effective Sewer System Management Plan to prevent, contain, control, and mitigate spills
when considering Water Code section 13327 factors to determine necessary enforcement of
this General Order.

This Attachment includes the following required elements that the Enrollee shall address in its
Plan and subsequent updates. The Enrollee shall identify any requirement in this Attachment
that is not applicable to the Enrollee’s sewer system and shall explain in its Plan why the
requirement is not applicable.

1. SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN GOAL AND INTRODUCTION

The goal of the Sewer System Management Plan (Plan) is to provide a plan and
schedule to: (1) properly manage, operate, and maintain all parts of the Enrollee’s
sanitary sewer system(s), (2) reduce and prevent spills, and (3) contain and mitigate
spills that do occur.

The Plan must include a narrative Introduction section that discusses the following
items:
1.1. Regulatory Context

The Plan Introduction section must provide a general description of the local sewer
system management program and discuss Plan implementation and updates.

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-2

Agenda Packet Page 255



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

1.2. Sewer System Management Plan Update Schedule

The Plan Introduction section must include a schedule for the Enrollee to update the
Plan, including the schedule for conducting internal audits. The schedule must include
milestones for incorporation of activities addressing prevention of sewer spills.

1.3. Sewer System Asset Overview

The Plan Introduction section must provide a description of the Enrollee-owned assets
and service area, including but not limited to:

e Location, including county(ies);
e Service area boundary;
e Population and community served;

e System size, including total length in miles, length of gravity mainlines, length of
pressurized (force) mains, and number of pump stations and siphons;

e Structures diverting stormwater to the sewer system;
e Data management systems;

e Sewer system ownership and operation responsibilities between Enrollee and
private entities for upper and lower sewer laterals;

e Estimated number or percent of residential, commercial, and industrial service
connections; and

e Unique service boundary conditions and challenge(s).

Additionally, the Plan Introduction section must provide reference to the Enrollee’s up-
to-date map of its sanitary sewer system, as required in section 4.1 (Updated Map of
Sanitary Sewer System) of this Attachment.

2. ORGANIZATION

The Plan must identify organizational staffing responsible and integral for implementing
the local Sewer System Management Plan through an organization chart or similar
narrative documentation that includes:

e The name of the Legally Responsible Official as required in section 5.1 (Designation
of a Legally Responsible Official) of this General Order;

e The position titles, telephone numbers, and email addresses for management,
administrative, and maintenance positions responsible for implementing specific
Sewer System Management Plan elements;

e Organizational lines of authority; and

e Chain of communication for reporting spills from receipt of complaint or other
information, including the person responsible for reporting spills to the State and
Regional Water Boards and other agencies, as applicable. (For example, county

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-3

Agenda Packet Page 256



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

health officer, county environmental health agency, and State Office of Emergency
Services.)

3. LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Plan must include copies or an electronic link to the Enrollee’s current sewer
system use ordinances, service agreements and/or other legally binding procedures to
demonstrate the Enrollee possesses the necessary legal authority to:

e Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system from inflow and infiltration
(I&1); unauthorized stormwater; chemical dumping; unauthorized debris; roots; fats,
oils, and grease; and trash, including rags and other debris that may cause
blockages;

e Collaborate with storm sewer agencies to coordinate emergency spill responses,
ensure access to storm sewer systems during spill events, and prevent unintentional
cross connections of sanitary sewer infrastructure to storm sewer infrastructure;

¢ Require that sewer system components and connections be properly designed and
constructed;

e Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, and/or repairs for portions of the service
lateral owned and/or operated by the Enrollee;

e Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances, service agreements, or other legally
binding procedures; and

e Obtain easement accessibility agreements for locations requiring sewer system
operations and maintenance, as applicable.

4. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
The Plan must include the items listed below that are appropriate and applicable to the
Enrollee’s system.

4.1. Updated Map of Sanitary Sewer System

An up-to-date map(s) of the sanitary sewer system, and procedures for maintaining and
providing State and Regional Water Board staff access to the map(s). The map(s) must
show gravity line segments and manholes, pumping facilities, pressure pipes and
valves, and applicable stormwater conveyance facilities within the sewer system service
area boundaries.

4.2. Preventive Operation and Maintenance Activities

A scheduling system and a data collection system for preventive operation and
maintenance activities conducted by staff and contractors.

The scheduling system must include:
¢ Inspection and maintenance activities;
ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-4

Agenda Packet Page 257



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

4.3.

44,

5.1.

5.2.

e Higher-frequency inspections and maintenance of known problem areas, including
areas with tree root problems;

e Regular visual and closed-circuit television (CCTV) inspections of manholes and
sewer pipes.

The data collection system must document data from system inspection and
maintenance activities, including system areas/components prone to root-intrusion
potentially resulting in system backup and/or failure.

Training

In-house and external training provided on a regular basis for sanitary sewer system
operations and maintenance staff and contractors. The training must cover:

e The requirements of this General Order;
e The Enrollee’s Spill Emergency Response Plan procedures and practice drills;
e Skilled estimation of spill volume for field operators; and

e Electronic CIWQS reporting procedures for staff submitting data.

Equipment Inventory

An inventory of sewer system equipment, including the identification of critical
replacement and spare parts.

DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS

The Plan must include the following items as appropriate and applicable to the
Enrollee’s system:

Updated Design Criteria and Construction Standards and Specifications

Updated design criteria, and construction standards and specifications, for the
construction, installation, repair, and rehabilitation of existing and proposed system
infrastructure components, including but not limited to pipelines, pump stations, and
other system appurtenances. If existing design criteria and construction standards are
deficient to address the necessary component-specific hydraulic capacity as specified in
section 8 (System Evaluation, Capacity Assurance and Capital Improvements) of this
Attachment, the procedures must include component-specific evaluation of the design
criteria.

Procedures and Standards

Procedures, and standards for the inspection and testing of newly constructed, newly
installed, repaired, and rehabilitated system pipelines, pumps, and other equipment and
appurtenances.

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-5

Agenda Packet Page 258



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

6. SPILL EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

The Plan must include an up to date Spill Emergency Response Plan to ensure prompt
detection and response to spills to reduce spill volumes and collect information for
prevention of future spills. The Spill Emergency Response Plan must include
procedures to:

e Notify primary responders, appropriate local officials, and appropriate regulatory
agencies of a spill in a timely manner;

e Notify other potentially affected entities (for example, health agencies, water
suppliers, etc.) of spills that potentially affect public health or reach waters of the
State;

e Comply with the notification, monitoring and reporting requirements of this General
Order, State law and regulations, and applicable Regional Water Board Orders;

e Ensure that appropriate staff and contractors implement the Spill Emergency
Response Plan and are appropriately trained;

e Address emergency system operations, traffic control and other necessary response
activities;

e Contain a spill and prevent/minimize discharge to waters of the State or any
drainage conveyance system,;

¢ Minimize and remediate public health impacts and adverse impacts on beneficial
uses of waters of the State;

e Remove sewage from the drainage conveyance system;

e Clean the spill area and drainage conveyance system in a manner that does not
inadvertently impact beneficial uses in the receiving waters;

¢ Implement technologies, practices, equipment, and interagency coordination to
expedite spill containment and recovery;

¢ Implement pre-planned coordination and collaboration with storm drain agencies and
other utility agencies/departments prior, during, and after a spill event;

e Conduct post-spill assessments of spill response activities;
e Document and report spill events as required in this General Order; and

e Annually, review and assess effectiveness of the Spill Emergency Response Plan,
and update the Plan as needed.

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-6

Agenda Packet Page 259



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

7. SEWER PIPE BLOCKAGE CONTROL PROGRAM

The Sewer System Management Plan must include procedures for the evaluation of the
Enrollee’s service area to determine whether a sewer pipe blockage control program is
needed to control fats, oils, grease, rags and debris. If the Enrollee determines that a
program is not needed, the Enrollee shall provide justification in its Plan for why a
program is not needed.

The procedures must include, at minimum:

e An implementation plan and schedule for a public education and outreach program
that promotes proper disposal of pipe-blocking substances;

e A plan and schedule for the disposal of pipe-blocking substances generated within
the sanitary sewer system service area. This may include a list of acceptable
disposal facilities and/or additional facilities needed to adequately dispose of
substances generated within a sanitary sewer system service area;

e The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and identify measures to
prevent spills and blockages;

e Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps or interceptors),
design standards for the removal devices, maintenance requirements, best
management practices requirements, recordkeeping and reporting requirements;

e Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement authorities, and whether
the Enrollee has sufficient staff to inspect and enforce the fats, oils, and grease
ordinance;

¢ An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to fats, oils, and grease
blockages and establishment of a cleaning schedule for each section; and

e Implementation of source control measures for all sources of fats, oils, and grease
reaching the sanitary sewer system for each section identified above.

8. SYSTEM EVALUATION, CAPACITY ASSURANCE AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
The Plan must include procedures and activities for:
e Routine evaluation and assessment of system conditions;
e Capacity assessment and design criteria;
e Prioritization of corrective actions; and

e A capital improvement plan.

8.1 System Evaluation and Condition Assessment
The Plan must include procedures to:

e Evaluate the sanitary sewer system assets utilizing the best practices and
technologies available;

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-7

Agenda Packet Page 260



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

¢ |dentify and justify the amount (percentage) of its system for its condition to be
assessed each year;

e Prioritize the condition assessment of system areas that:

o0 Hold a high level of environmental consequences if vulnerable to collapse,
failure, blockage, capacity issues, or other system deficiencies;

o0 Are located in or within the vicinity of surface waters, steep terrain, high
groundwater elevations, and environmentally sensitive areas;

o Are within the vicinity of a receiving water with a bacterial-related impairment on
the most current Clean Water Act section 303(d) List;

e Assess the system conditions using visual observations, video surveillance and/or
other comparable system inspection methods;

e Utilize observations/evidence of system conditions that may contribute to exiting of
sewage from the system which can reasonably be expected to discharge into a
water of the State;

e Maintain documents and recordkeeping of system evaluation and condition
assessment inspections and activities; and

¢ Identify system assets vulnerable to direct and indirect impacts of climate change,
including but not limited to: sea level rise; flooding and/or erosion due to increased
storm volumes, frequency, and/or intensity; wildfires; and increased power
disruptions.
8.2. Capacity Assessment and Design Criteria

The Plan must include procedures to identify system components that are experiencing
or contributing to spills caused by hydraulic deficiency and/or limited capacity, including
procedures to identify the appropriate hydraulic capacity of key system elements for:

e Dry-weather peak flow conditions that cause or contributes to spill events;

e The appropriate design storm(s) or wet weather events that causes or contributes to
spill events;

e The capacity of key system components; and

e |dentify the major sources that contribute to the peak flows associated with sewer
spills.

The capacity assessment must consider:

e Data from existing system condition assessments, system inspections, system
audits, spill history, and other available information;

e Capacity of flood-prone systems subject to increased infiltration and inflow, under
normal local and regional storm conditions;

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-8

Agenda Packet Page 261



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

e Capacity of systems subject to increased infiltration and inflow due to larger and/or
higher-intensity storm events as a result of climate change;

e Increases of erosive forces in canyons and streams near underground and above-
ground system components due to larger and/or higher-intensity storm events;

e Capacity of major system elements to accommodate dry weather peak flow
conditions, and updated design storm and wet weather events; and

e Necessary redundancy in pumping and storage capacities.

8.3. Prioritization of Corrective Action
The findings of the condition assessments and capacity assessments must be used to
prioritize corrective actions. Prioritization must consider the severity of the
consequences of potential spills.

8.4. Capital Improvement Plan
The capital improvement plan must include the following items:

e Project schedules including completion dates for all portions of the capital
improvement program;

e Internal and external project funding sources for each project; and

e Joint coordination between operation and maintenance staff, and engineering
staff/consultants during planning, design, and construction of capital improvement
projects; and Interagency coordination with other impacted utility agencies.

9. MONITORING, MEASUREMENT AND PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS

The Plan must include an Adaptive Management section that addresses Plan-
implementation effectiveness and the steps for necessary Plan improvement, including:

e Maintaining relevant information, including audit findings, to establish and prioritize
appropriate Plan activities;

e Monitoring the implementation and measuring the effectiveness of each Plan
Element;

e Assessing the success of the preventive operation and maintenance activities;

e Updating Plan procedures and activities, as appropriate, based on results of
monitoring and performance evaluations; and

e Identifying and illustrating spill trends, including spill frequency, locations and
estimated volumes.

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-9

Agenda Packet Page 262



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

10. INTERNAL AUDITS

The Plan shall include internal audit procedures, appropriate to the size and
performance of the system, for the Enrollee to comply with section 5.4 (Sewer System
Management Plan Audits) of this General Order.

11. COMMUNICATION PROGRAM
The Plan must include procedures for the Enrollee to communicate with:
e The public for:

o Spills and discharges resulting in closures of public areas, or that enter a source
of drinking water, and

o0 The development, implementation, and update of its Plan, including opportunities
for public input to Plan implementation and updates.

e Owners/operators of systems that connect into the Enrollee’s system, including
satellite systems, for:

o System operation, maintenance, and capital improvement-related activities.

ATTACHMENT D — SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN
REQUIRED ELEMENTS December 6, 2022
D-10

Agenda Packet Page 263



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT E1 - NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING AND
RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS

Table of Contents

1. Notification ReqQUIrEMENTS ...........cooiiiiiiiee e E1-3
1.1.  Notification of Spills of 1,000 Gallons or Greater to the California Office of
EMErgenCy SEIVICES .....coooiiiiiiiie et e e e e E1-3
1.2.  Spill Notification Information.................oooriiii e, E1-4
1.3.  Notification of Spill Report Updates............ooovviiiiiiiiiiiceee e E1-4
2. Spill-Specific Monitoring Requirements ............ccoooo oo E1-5
2.1 Spill Location and Spread ............ooeeiiiiiiii e E1-5
2.2 Spill Volume EStimation...........coooriiiiiiiiiie e E1-5
2.3. Receiving Water MONItOriNg ........oooiiiiiiiii e E1-5
2.4, Safety and Access EXCEPLIONS ........oovvviiiiiiii i E1-8
3. Reporting REQUINEMENTS ... E1-8
3.1.  Reporting Requirements for Individual Category 1 Spill Reporting ................. E1-8
3.2. Reporting Requirements for Individual Category 2 Spill Reporting ............... E1-12
3.3.  Monthly Certified Spill Reporting for Category 3 Spills............oovveeieiieeinnnnnn. E1-14
3.4. Monthly Certified Spill Reporting for Category 4 Spills............oovveeeieiieninnnn. E1-16
3.5.  Amended Certified Spill Reports for Category 3 Spills...........coovviiiiiiiininnnn. E1-16
3.6. Annual Certified Spill Reporting of Category 4 and/or Lateral Spills ............. E1-16
3.7. Monthly Certification of “No-Spills” or “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category 1
Lateral SPIllS” ... e e e e e aeene E1-16
3.8. Electronic Sanitary Sewer System Service Area Boundary Map................... E1-17
3.9. Annual Report (Previously termed as Collection System Questionnaire in
General Order 2006-0003-DWQ) .....cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e E1-17
3.10. Sewer System Management Plan Audit Reporting Requirements ................ E1-19
3.11. Sewer System Management Plan Reporting Requirements ......................... E1-19
4. Recordkeeping ReqUIrEMENES ........oooiiiiiiii e E1-20
4.1. Recordkeeping Time Period..........coouuiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e E1-20
4.2. Availability of DOCUMENLS ........cooiiiiiie e E1-20
4.3, SPIIREPOIMS ... E1-20
4.4. Recordkeeping of Category 4 Spills and Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills ....... E1-21
4.5. Sewer System Telemetry RECOrds........ccooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiicieeeceee e, E1-22
4.6. Sewer System Management Plan Implementation Records ......................... E1-22
4.7. AUt RECOIAS.... oo E1-23

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-1

Agenda Packet Page 264



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

4.8. EQUIPMENt RECOIS......cceniiiiiee e E1-23
4.9, WOIK OFAEIS ... .ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e enaananas E1-23

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-2

Agenda Packet Page 265



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT E1- NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING
REQUIREMENTS

The Notification Requirements (section 1), Spill-specific Monitoring Requirements (section 2),
Reporting Requirements (section 3) and Recordkeeping Requirements (section 4) in this
Attachment are pursuant to Water Code section 13267 and section 13383, and are an
enforceable component of this General Order. For the purpose of this General Order, the term:

¢ Notification means the notifying of appropriate parties of a spill event or other activity.

e Spill-specific Monitoring means the gathering of information and data for a specific spill event
to be reported or kept as records.

e Reporting means the reporting of information and data into the online California Integrated
Water Quality System (CIWQS) Sanitary Sewer System Database.

e Recordkeeping means the maintaining of information and data in an official records storage
system.

Failure to comply with the notification, monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping requirements in
this General Order may subject the Enrollee to civil liabilities of up to $10,000 a day per
violation pursuant to Water Code section 13385; up to $1,000 a day per violation pursuant to
Water Code section 13268; or referral to the Attorney General for judicial civil enforcement.

Water Code section 13193 et seq. requires the Regional Water Quality Control Boards (Regional
Water Boards) and the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to collect
sanitary sewer spill information for each spill event and make this information available to the
public. Sanitary sewer spill information for each spill event includes but is not limited to: Enrollee
contact information for each spill event, spill cause, estimated spill volume and factors used for
estimation, location, date, time, duration, amount discharged to waters of the State, response
and corrective action(s) taken.

1. NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

1.1. Notification of Spills of 1,000 Gallons or Greater to the California Office of
Emergency Services

Per Water Code section 13271, for a spill that discharges in or on any waters of the
State, or discharges or is deposited where it is, or probably will be, discharged in or on
any waters of the State, the Enrollee shall notify the California Office of Emergency
Services and obtain a California Office of Emergency Services Control Number as soon
as possible but no later than two (2) hours after:

e The Enrollee has knowledge of the spill; and

e Notification can be provided without substantially impeding cleanup or other
emergency measures.

The notification requirements in this section apply to individual spills of 1,000 gallons or
greater, from an Enrollee-owned and/or operated laterals, to a water of the State.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-3

Agenda Packet Page 266



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

1.2. Spill Notification Information

The Enrollee shall provide the following spill information to the California Office of
Emergency Services before receiving a Control Number, as applicable:

e Name and phone number of the person notifying the California Office of Emergency
Services;

e Estimated spill volume (gallons);
e Estimated spill rate from the system (gallons per minute);

e Estimated discharge rate (gallons per minute) directly into waters of the State or
indirectly into a drainage conveyance system;

e Spill incident description:
o Brief narrative of the spill event, and

o Spill incident location (address, city, and zip code) and closest cross streets
and/or landmarks;

e Name and phone number of contact person on-scene;

e Date and time the Enrollee was informed of the spill event;

e Name of sanitary sewer system causing the spill;

e Spill cause or suspected cause (if known);

e Amount of spill contained;

e Name of receiving water body receiving or potentially receiving discharge; and

e Description of water body impact and/ or potential impact to beneficial uses.

1.3. Notification of Spill Report Updates

Following the initial notification to the California Office of Emergency Services and until
such time that the Enrollee certifies the spill report in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database, the Enrollee shall provide updates to the California Office of
Emergency Services regarding substantial changes to:

e Estimated spill volume (increase or decrease in gallons initially estimated);

e Estimated discharge volume discharged directly into waters of the State or indirectly
into a drainage conveyance system (increase or decrease in gallons initially
estimated); and

e Additional impact(s) to the receiving water(s) and beneficial uses.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-4

Agenda Packet Page 267



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

2.
21

2.2

2.3.
2.3.1.

SPILL-SPECIFIC MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

Spill Location and Spread

The Enrollee shall visually assess the spill location(s) and spread using photography,
global positioning system (GPS), and other best available tools. The Enrollee shall
document the critical spill locations, including:

e Photography and GPS coordinates for:
0 The system location where spill originated.

For multiple appearance points of a single spill event, the points closest to the
spill origin.

e Photography for:
o Drainage conveyance system entry locations,
o The location(s) of discharge into surface waters, as applicable,
o Extent of spill spread, and
o0 The location(s) of clean up.

Spill Volume Estimation

To assess the approximate spill magnitude and spread, the Enrollee shall estimate the
total spill volume using updated volume estimation techniques, calculations, and
documentation for electronic reporting. The Enrollee shall update its notification and
reporting of estimated spill volume (which includes spill volume recovered) as further
information is gathered during and after a spill event.

Receiving Water Monitoring

Receiving Water Visual Observations

Through visual observations and use of best available spill volume-estimating
techniques and field calculation techniques, the Enrollee shall gather and document the
following information for spills discharging to surface waters:

e Estimated spill travel time to the receiving water;

e For spills entering a drainage conveyance system, estimated spill travel time from
the point of entry into the drainage conveyance system to the point of discharge into
the receiving water;

e Estimated spill volume entering the receiving water; and
e Photography of:

o0 Waterbody bank erosion,

0 Floating matter,

0 Water surface sheen (potentially from oil and grease),

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-5

Agenda Packet Page 268



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

o Discoloration of receiving water, and
o Impact to the receiving water.

2.3.2. Receiving Water — Water Quality Sampling and Analysis

For sewage spills in which an estimated 50,000 gallons or greater are discharged into a
surface water, the Enrollee shall conduct the following water quality sampling no later
than 18 hours after the Enrollee’s knowledge of a potential discharge to a surface
water:

e Collect one water sample, each day of the duration of the spill, at:

o The DCS-001 location as described in section 2.3.4 (Receiving Water Sampling
Locations) of this Attachment, if sewage discharges to a surface water via a
drainage conveyance system; and/or

o Each of the three receiving water sampling locations in section 2.3.4 (Receiving
Water Sampling Locations) of this Attachment;

If the receiving water has no flow during the duration of the spill, the Enrollee
must report “No Sampling Due To No Flow” for its receiving water sampling
locations.

The Enrollee shall analyze the collected receiving water samples for the following
constituents per section 2.3.3 (Water Quality Analysis Specifications) of this
Attachment:

e Ammonia, and

e Appropriate bacterial indicator(s) per the applicable Basin Plan water quality
objectives, including one or more of the following, unless directed otherwise by the
Regional Water Board:

o Total Coliform Bacteria
o Fecal Coliform Bacteria
o E-coli

o Enterococcus

Dependent on the receiving water(s), sampling of bacterial indicators shall be
sufficient to determine post-spill (after the spill) compliance with the water quality
objectives and bacterial standards of the California Ocean Plan or the California
Inland Surface Water Enclosed Bays, and Estuaries Plan, including the frequency
and/or number of post-spill receiving water samples as may be specified in the
applicable plans.

The Enrollee shall collect and analyze additional samples as required by the applicable
Regional Water Board Executive Officer or designee.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-6

Agenda Packet Page 269



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

2.3.3. Water Quality Analysis Specifications

Spill monitoring must be representative of the monitored activity (40 Code of Federal
Regulations section 122.41(j)(1)).

Sufficiently Sensitive Methods

Sample analysis must be conducted according to sufficiently sensitive test methods
approved under 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 136 for the sample analysis of
pollutants. For the purposes of this General Order, a method is sufficiently sensitive
when the minimum level of the analytical method approved under 40 Code of Federal
Regulations Part 136 is at or below the receiving water pollutant criteria.

Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program-Accredited Laboratories

The analysis of water quality samples required per this General Order must be
performed by a laboratory that has accreditation pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with
section 100825) of Chapter 4 of Part 1 of Division 101 of the Health and Safety Code.
(Water Code section 13176(a).) The State Water Board accredits laboratories through
its Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP).

2.3.4. Receiving Water Sampling Locations

The Enrollee shall collect receiving water samples at the following locations.

Sampling of Flow in Drainage Conveyance System (DCS) Prior to Discharge

Sampling . . e
Location Sampling Location Description
A point in a drainage conveyance system before the drainage
DCS-001 . ; -
conveyance system flow discharges into a receiving water.
Receiving Surface Water Sampling (RSW)'
Sampling . . e
Location Sampling Location Description
RSW-001 A point in the receiving water where sewage initially enters the

Point of Discharge | receiving water.

RSW-001U: A point in the receiving water, upstream of the point of sewage
Upstream of Point | discharge, to capture ambient conditions absent of sewage
of Discharge discharge impacts.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-7

Agenda Packet Page 270



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

2.4,

3.1.
3.1.41.

Sampling . . o

Location Sampling Location Description
RSW-001D: A point in the receiving water, downstream of the point of
Downstream of sewage discharge, where the spill material is fully mixed with
Point of Discharge | the receiving water.

"The Enrollee must use its best professional judgment to determine the upstream and
downstream distances based on receiving water flow, accessibility to
upstream/downstream waterbody banks, and size of visible sewage plume.

Safety and Access Exceptions

If the Enrollee encounters access restrictions or unsafe conditions that prevents its
compliance with spill response requirements or monitoring requirements in this General
Order, the Enrollee shall provide documentation of access restrictions and/or safety
hazards in the corresponding required report.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

All reporting required in this General Order must be submitted electronically to the
online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database (https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov),
unless specified otherwise in this General Order. Electronic reporting may solely be
conducted by a Legally Responsible Official or Data Submitter(s) previously designated
by the Legally Responsible Official, as required in section 5.8 (Designation of Data
Submitters) of this General Order.

The Enrollee shall report any information that is protected by the Homeland Security
Act, by email to SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov, with a brief explanation of the
protection provided by the Homeland Security Act for the subject report to be protected
from unauthorized disclosure and/or public access, and for official Water Board
regulatory purposes only.

Reporting Requirements for Individual Category 1 Spill Reporting

Draft Spill Report for Category 1 Spills

Within three (3) business days of the Enrollee’s knowledge of a Category 1 spill, the
Enrollee shall submit a Draft Spill Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database.

The Draft Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following items:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of Enrollee contact person to
respond to spill-specific questions;

2. Spill location name;
3. Date and time the Enrollee was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
4. Operator arrival time;

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-8

Agenda Packet Page 271


https://cawaterboards.sharepoint.com/DWQ/NPDES/Documents/SSS%20WDR/Order%20Reissuance/Adopted%20Order%20-%20Conformed/Adopted%20Order%20-%20Conformed/CIWQS%20Sanitary%20Sewer%20System%20Database
mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

3.1.2.

5. Estimated spill start date and time;

6. Date and time the Enrollee notified the California Office of Emergency Services, and
the assigned control number;

7. Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates of the system location where the spill
originated;

o If a single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS
coordinates for the appearance point closest to the failure point and describe
each additional appearance point in the spill appearance point explanation field;

8. Estimated total spill volume exiting the system,;
9. Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;
10. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:
o Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;
o Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry location(s);
o Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system;
o0 Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system;
11. Description and photographs of all discharge point(s) into the surface water;
12. Estimated spill volume that discharged to surface waters; and
13. Estimated total spill volume recovered.

Certified Spill Report for Category 1 Spills

Within 15 calendar days of the spill end date, the Enrollee shall submit a Certified Spill
Report for Category 1 spills, to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.
Upon completion of the Certified Spill Report, the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database will issue a final spill event identification number.

The Certified Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following mandatory
information in addition to all information in the Draft Spill Report per section 3.1.1
(Draft Spill Report for Category 1 Spills) above:

1. Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates if available,
that represent the full spread and reach of the spill;

2. Spill end date and time;
3. Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including at a
minimum:

o The methodology, assumptions and type of data relied upon, such as supervisory
control and data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry
information used to estimate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume
of the spill recovered (if any volume of the spill was recovered), and

o The methodology(ies), assumptions and type of data relied upon for estimations
of the spill start time and the spill end time;

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-9

Agenda Packet Page 272



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

4. Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);
5. System failure location (for example, main, lateral, pump station, etc.);

6. Description of the pipe material, and estimated age of the pipe material, at the failure
location;

7. Description of the impact of the spill;
8. Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

9. Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill
containment and cleanup efforts;

10. Description of spill corrective action, including steps planned or taken to reduce,
eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of major milestones
for those steps;

11. Spill response completion date;
12. Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill;

13. Reasons for an ongoing investigation (as applicable) and the expected date of
completion;

14. Name and type of receiving water body(s);
15. Description of the water body(s), including but not limited to:
o Observed impacts on aquatic life,

o Public closure, restricted public access, temporary restricted use, and/or posted
health warnings due to spill,

0 Responsible entity for closing/restricting use of water body, and
o Number of days closed/restricted as a result of the spill.

16. Whether or not the spill was located within 1,000 feet of a municipal surface water
intake; and

17. If water quality samples were collected, identify sample locations and the
parameters the water quality samples were analyzed for. If no samples were taken,
Not Applicable shall be selected.

3.1.3. Spill Technical Report for Individual Category 1 Spill in which 50,000 Gallons or
Greater Discharged into a Surface Water

For any spill in which 50,000 gallons or greater discharged into a surface water,
within 45 calendar days of the spill end date, the Enrollee shall submit a Spill
Technical Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database. The Spill
Technical Report, at minimum, must include the following information:

1. Spill causes and circumstances, including at minimum:
o0 Complete and detailed explanation of how and when the spill was discovered;

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-10

Agenda Packet Page 273



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

o0 Photographs illustrating the spill origin, the extent and reach of the spill, drainage
conveyance system entrance and exit, receiving water, and post-cleanup site
conditions;

o Diagram showing the spill failure point, appearance point(s), the spill flow path,
and ultimate destinations;

o0 Detailed description of the methodology employed, and available data used to
calculate the discharge volume and, if applicable, the recovered spill volume;

Detailed description of the spill cause(s);

Description of the pipe material, and estimated age of the pipe material, at the
failure location;

Description of the impact of the spill;
Copy of original field crew records used to document the spill; and
Historical maintenance records for the failure location.

2. Enrollee’s response to the spill:

o Chronological narrative description of all actions taken by the Enrollee to
terminate the spill;

o0 Explanation of how the Sewer System Management Plan Spill Emergency
Response Plan was implemented to respond to and mitigate the spill; and

o Final corrective action(s) completed and a schedule for planned corrective
actions, including:

= Local regulatory enforcement action taken against an illicit discharge in
response to this spill, as applicable,

= |dentifiable system modifications, and operation and maintenance program
modifications needed to prevent repeated spill occurrences, and

= Necessary modifications to the Emergency Spill Response Plan to
incorporate lessons learned in responding to and mitigating the spill.

3. Water Quality Monitoring, including at minimum:
o Description of all water quality sampling activities conducted;

o List of pollutant and parameters monitored, sampled and analyzed; as required in
section 2.3 (Receiving Water Monitoring) of this Attachment;

0 Laboratory results, including laboratory reports;
0 Detailed location map illustrating all water quality sampling points; and
o Other regulatory agencies receiving sample results (if applicable).

4. Evaluation of spill impact(s), including a description of short-term and long-term
impact(s) to beneficial uses of the surface water.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-11

Agenda Packet Page 274



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

3.1.4. Amended Certified Spill Reports for Individual Category 1 Spills

The Enrollee shall update or add additional information to a Certified Spill Report within
90 calendar days of the spill end date by amending the report or by adding an
attachment to the Spill Report in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.
The Enrollee shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the Enrollee shall contact the State Water Board at
SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov to request to amend a Spill Report. The Legally
Responsible Official shall submit justification for why the additional information was not
reported within the Amended Spill Report due date.

3.2. Reporting Requirements for Individual Category 2 Spill Reporting

3.2.1. Draft Spill Report for Category 2 Spills

Within three (3) business days of the Enrollee’s knowledge of a Category 2 spill, the
Enrollee shall submit a Draft Spill Report to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database.

The Draft Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following items:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of Enrollee contact person to
respond to spill-specific questions;

Spill location name;
Date and time the Enrollee was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
Operator arrival time;

Estimated spill start date and time;

SINSIESRAIIN

. Date and time the Enrollee notified the California Office of Emergency Services, and
the assigned control number;

7. Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates of the system location where the
spill originated;

If a single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS coordinates
for the appearance point closest to the failure point and describe each additional
appearance point in the spill appearance point explanation field;

8. Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;
9. Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;
10. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:
o Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;
o Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry location(s);
o Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system;
o]

Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system;

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-12

Agenda Packet Page 275


mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

o Estimated spill volume discharged to a groundwater infiltration basin or facility, if
applicable; and

11. Estimated total spill volume recovered.

3.2.2. Certified Spill Report for Category 2 Spills

Within 15 calendar days of the spill end date, the Enrollee shall submit a Certified Spill
Report for the Category 2 spill, to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database
(https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov). Upon completion of the Certified Spill Report, the
online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will issue a final spill event
identification number.

The Certified Spill Report must, at minimum, include the following mandatory
information in addition to all information in the Draft Spill Report per section 3.2.1
(Draft Spill Report for Category 2 Spills) above:

1. Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates if available,
that represent the full spread and reach of the spill;

2. Spill end date and time;

3. Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including at a
minimum:

o The methodology, assumptions and type of data relied upon, such as supervisory
control and data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry
information used to estimate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume
of the spill recovered (if any volume of the spill was recovered), and

o The methodology(ies), assumptions and type of data relied upon for estimations
of the spill start time and the spill end time;

4. Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);
5. System failure location (for example, main, pump station, etc.);

6. Description of the pipe/infrastructure material, and estimated age of the pipe
material, at the failure location;

7. Description of the impact of the spill;
8. Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

9. Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill
containment and cleanup efforts;

10. Description of spill corrective action, including steps planned or taken to reduce,
eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of major milestones
for those steps;

11. Spill response completion date;
12. Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill;

13. Reasons for an ongoing investigation (as applicable) and the expected date of
completion; and

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-13

Agenda Packet Page 276


https://cawaterboards.sharepoint.com/DWQ/NPDES/Documents/SSS%20WDR/Order%20Reissuance/Adopted%20Order%20-%20Conformed/Adopted%20Order%20-%20Conformed/CIWQS%20Sanitary%20Sewer%20System%20Database

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

14. Whether or not the spill was located within 1,000 feet of a municipal surface water
intake.

3.2.3. Amended Certified Spill Reports for Individual Category 2 Spills

The Enrollee shall update or add additional information to a Certified Spill Report within
90 calendar days of the spill end date by amending the report or by adding an
attachment to the Spill Report in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.
The Enrollee shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the Enrollee shall contact the State Water Board at
SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov to request to amend a Spill Report. The Legally
Responsible Official shall submit justification for why the additional information was not
reported within the Amended Spill Report due date.

3.3. Monthly Certified Spill Reporting for Category 3 Spills

The Enrollee shall report and certify all Category 3 spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database within 30 calendar days after the end of the month in which
the spills occurred. (For example, all Category 3 spills occurring in the month of
February shall be reported and certified by March 30™). After the Legally Responsible
Official certifies the spills, the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will
issue a spill event identification number for each spill.

The monthly reporting of all Category 3 spills must include the following items for each
spill:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of Enrollee contact person to
respond to spill-specific questions;

. Spill location name;

. Date and time the Enrollee was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
. Operator arrival time;

. Estimated spill start date and time;

o OB~ WN

. Description, photographs, and GPS coordinates where the spill originated:

o If a single spill event results in multiple appearance points, provide GPS
coordinates for the appearance point closest to the failure point and describe each
additional appearance point in the spill appearance point explanation field;

7. Estimated total spill volume exiting the system;
8. Description and photographs of the extent of the spill and spill boundaries;
9. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:
o Description of the drainage conveyance system transporting the spill;
o Photographs of the drainage conveyance system entry locations(s);
o Estimated spill volume fully recovered from the drainage conveyance system; and

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-14

Agenda Packet Page 277


mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ
o Estimated spill volume discharged to a groundwater infiltration basis or facility, if
applicable.
10. Estimated total spill volume recovered;

11. Description of the spill event destination(s), including GPS coordinates, if available,
that represent the full spread and reaches of the spill;

12. Spill end date and time;

13. Description of how the spill volume estimations were calculated, including, at
minimum:

o The methodology and type of data relied upon, including supervisory control and
data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information
used to estimate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill
recovered (if any volume of the spill was recovered), and

o The methodology and type of data relied upon to estimate the spill start time,
on-going spill rate at time of arrival (if applicable), and the spill end time;

14. Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);
15. System failure location (for example, main, pump station, etc.);

16. Description of the pipe/infrastructure material, and estimated age of the
pipe/infrastructure material, at the failure location;

17. Description of the impact of the spill;
18. Whether or not the spill was associated with a storm event;

19. Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill
containment and cleanup efforts;

20. Description of spill corrective actions, including steps planned or taken to reduce,
eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the spill, and a schedule of the major
milestones for those steps; including, at minimum:

o Local regulatory enforcement action taken against an illicit discharge in
response to this spill, as applicable, and

o ldentifiable system modifications, and operation and maintenance program
modifications needed to prevent repeated spill occurrences at the same spill
event location, including:

» Adjusted schedule/method of preventive maintenance,

» Planned rehabilitation or replacement of sanitary sewer asset,
» Inspected, repaired asset(s), or replaced defective asset(s),

= Capital improvements,

» Documentation verifying immediately implemented system modifications and
operating/maintenance modifications,

= Description of spill response activities,

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-15

Agenda Packet Page 278



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

= Spill response completion date, and

= Ongoing investigation efforts, and expected completion date of investigation
to determine the full cause of spill;

21. Detailed narrative of investigation and investigation findings of cause of spill.

3.4. Monthly Certified Spill Reporting for Category 4 Spills

The Enrollee shall report and certify the estimated total spill volume exiting the sanitary
sewer system, and the total number of all Category 4 spills to the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System Database, within 30 calendar days after the end of the month in
which the spills occurred.

3.5. Amended Certified Spill Reports for Category 3 Spills

Within 90 calendar days of the certified Spill Report due date, the Enrollee may
update or add additional information to a certified Spill Report by amending the report or
by adding an attachment to the Spill Report in the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database. The Enrollee shall certify the amended report.

After 90 calendar days, the Legally Responsible Official shall contact the State Water
Board at SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov to request to amend a certified Spill
Report. The Legally Responsible Official shall submit justification for why the additional
information was not reported within the 90-day timeframe for amending the certified Spill
Report, as provided above.

3.6. Annual Certified Spill Reporting of Category 4 and/or Lateral Spills

For all Category 4 spills and spills from its owned and/or operated laterals that are
caused by a failure or blockage in the lateral and that do not discharge to a surface
water, the Enrollee shall:

e Maintain records per section 4.4. of this Attachment;

The Enrollee shall provide records upon request by State Water Board or Regional
Water Board staff.

e Annually upload and certify a report, in an appropriate digital format, of all
recordkeeping of spills to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, by
February 1st after the end of the calendar year in which the spills occurred.

A spill from an Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral that discharges to a surface
water is a Category 1 spill; the Enrollee shall report all Category 1 spills per section 3.1
of Attachment E1 (Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping
Requirements) of this General Order.

3.7. Monthly Certification of “No-Spills” or “Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category
1 Lateral Spills”

If either (1) no spills occur during a calendar month or (2) only Category 4, and/or
Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral spills (that do not discharge to a surface water)
occur during a calendar month, the Enrollee shall certify, within 30 calendar days after

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-16

Agenda Packet Page 279


mailto:SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

3.8.

3.9.

the end of each calendar month, either a “No-Spill” certification statement, or a
“Category 4 Spills” and/or “Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills” certification statement, in the
online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, certifying that there were either no
spills, or Category 4 and/or Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills that will be reported annually
(per section 3.6 of this Attachment) for the designated month.

If a spill starts in one calendar month and ends in a subsequent calendar month, and
the Enrollee has no further spills of any category, in the subsequent calendar month, the
Enrollee shall certify “no-spills” for the subsequent calendar month.

If the Enrollee has no spills from its systems during a calendar month, but the Enrollee
voluntarily reported a spill from a private lateral or a private system, the Enrollee shall
certify “no-spills” for that calendar month.

If the Enrollees has spills from its owned and/or operated laterals during a calendar
month, the Enrollee shall not certify “no spills” for that calendar month.

Electronic Sanitary Sewer System Service Area Boundary Map

The Legally Responsible Official shall submit, to the State Water Board, an up-to-date
electronic spatial map of its sewer system service area boundaries. The map must be in
accordance with section 5.14 (Electronic Sanitary Sewer System Service Area
Boundary Map) of this General Order and the specification provided on the statewide
Sanitary Sewer Systems program website. The map must include the location of
wastewater treatment facility(ies) that treats the sewer system waste, if in the same
sewer service boundary.

By the Effective Date of this General Order, specifications for the electronic sanitary
sewer service area boundary map format will be provided on the statewide Sanitary
Sewer Systems Order program website.

Annual Report (Previously termed as Collection System Questionnaire in General
Order 2006-0003-DWQ)

A new Enrollee shall complete and submit its first certified Annual Report into the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, within 30 days of obtaining a CIWQS
account; Subsequent Annual Reports are due by April 1 of each year.

All enrollees shall update their previous year’s Annual Report, by April 1 of each year
after the Effective Date of this General Order, for each calendar year (January 1
through December 31).

The Annual Report must be entered directly into the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer
System Database. The Enrollee’s Legally Responsible Official shall certify the Annual
Report as instructed in CIWQS;

The Annual Report must address, and update as applicable, the following items:

e Population served;

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-17

Agenda Packet Page 280



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

e Updated sewer system service area boundary map, if service area boundary has
changed from original map submitted per section 5.14 (Electronic Sanitary Sewer
System Service Area Boundary Map) of this General Order;

e Number of system operation and maintenance staff:
o Entry level (less than two years of experience),
o Journey level (greater than two years of experience),
o Supervisory level, and
0 Managerial level;

e Number of operation and maintenance staff certified as a certified collection system
operator by the California Water Environmental Association (CWEA), with:

o Corresponding number of certified collection system operator grade levels
(Grade |, 11, 1ll, IV, and V);

e System information:
o0 Miles of system gravity and force mains,
o Number of upper and lower service laterals connected to system,

o Estimated number of upper and lower laterals owned and/or operated by the
Enrollee,

Portion of laterals that is Enrollee’s responsibility,
Average age the major components of system infrastructure,
Number and age of pump stations, and

©O O O O

Estimated total miles of the system pipeline not accessible for maintenance;

e Name and location of the treatment plant(s) receiving sanitary sewer system’s
waste;

e Name of satellite sewer system tributaries;

e Number of system’s gravity sewer above or underground crossings of water bodies
throughout system;

e Number of force main (pressurized pipe) above or underground crossings of water
bodies throughout system;

e Number of siphons used to convey waste throughout the sewer system;
e Miles of sewer system cleaned;

e Miles of sewer system video inspected, or comparable (i.e., video closed-circuit
television or alternative inspection methods);

e System Performance Evaluation as specified in section 5.11 (System Performance
Analysis) of this General Order;

e Major spill causes (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition);
ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-18

Agenda Packet Page 281



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

e System infrastructure failure points (for example, main, pump station, lateral, etc.);
e Ongoing spill investigations; and

e Actions taken to address system deficiencies.

3.10. Sewer System Management Plan Audit Reporting Requirements

3.11.

The Enrollee shall submit its Sewer System Management Plan Audit and other pertinent
audit information, in accordance with section 5.4 (Sewer System Management Plan
Audits) of this General Order, to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database
by six (6) months after the end of the 3-year audit period.

If a Sewer System Management Plan Audit is not conducted as required: the Enrollee
shall:

e Update the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database and select the
justification for not conducting the Audit; and

e Notify its corresponding Regional Water Board (see Attachment F (Regional Water
Quality Control Board Contact Information)) of the justification for the lapsed
requirements.

The Enrollee’s reporting of a justification for not conducting a timely Audit does not
justify non-compliance with this General Order. The Enrollee shall:

e Submit the late Audit as required in this General Order; and

e Comply with subsequent Audit requirements and due dates corresponding with the
original audit cycle.

Sewer System Management Plan Reporting Requirements

For an Existing Enrollee previously regulated by Order 2006-0003-DWQ: Within every
six (6) years after the required due date of its last Plan Update, the Legally
Responsible Official shall upload and certify a local governing entity-approved Sewer
System Management Plan Update to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database. If the electronic document format or size capacity prevents the electronic
upload of the Plan, the Legally Responsible Official shall report an electronic link to its
updated Sewer System Management Plan posted on its own website.

Order 2006-0003-DWQ required each enrollee to develop its initial Sewer System
Management Plan per the following schedule, with required Plan updates at a frequency
of 5-years thereafter:

Systems serving populations: Greater than 100,000: May 2, 2009
Between 100,000 and 10,000: August 2, 2009
Between 10,000 and 2,500: May 2, 2010
Less than 2,500: August 2, 2010

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-19

Agenda Packet Page 282



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

41.

4.2,

4.3.

This Order carries forth the previously-required Plan Update schedule per

Order 2006-0003-DWAQ. Per the six-year Plan Update frequency required in this Order,
the Enrollee shall upload and certify its first Plan Update, to the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database by the following due dates, with subsequent Plan Updates at
the frequency of six years thereafter:

Systems serving populations: Greater than 100,000: May 2, 2025
Between 100,000 and 10,000: August 2, 2025
Between 10,000 and 2,500: May 2, 2026
Less than 2,500: August 2, 2026

For a New Enrollee: Within twelve (12) months of its Application for Enroliment
Approval date, the Legally Responsible Official of a new Enrollee shall upload and
certify a local governing entity-approved Sewer System Management Plan to the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database. If electronic document format or size
capacity prevents the electronic upload of the Plan, the Legally Responsible Official
shall report an electronic link to its Sewer System Management Plan posted on its own
website. The due date for subsequent 6-year Plan updates, is six (6) years from the
submittal due date of the new Enrollee’s first Sewer System Management Plan.

RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS

The Enrollee shall maintain records to document compliance with the provisions of this
General Order, and previous General Order 2006-0003-DWQ as applicable, for each
sanitary sewer system owned, including any required records generated by an
Enrollee’s contractor(s).

Recordkeeping Time Period

The Enrollee shall maintain records of documents required in this Attachment, including
records collected for compliance with this General Order, and records collected in
accordance with previous General Order 2006-0003-DWQ, for five (5) years.

Availability of Documents

The Enrollee shall make the records required in this General Order readily available,
either electronic or hard copies, for review by Water Board staff during onsite
inspections or through an information request.

Spill Reports

The Enrollee shall maintain records for each of the following spill-related events and
activities:

e Spill event complaint, including but not limited to records documenting how the
Enrollee responded to notifications of spills. Each complaint record must, at a
minimum, include the following information:

o Date, time, and method of notification,

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING

AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-20

Agenda Packet Page 283



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Date and time the complainant first noticed the spill, if available,

Narrative description of the complaint, including any information the caller
provided regarding whether the spill has reached surface waters or a drainage
conveyance system, if available,

o Complainant’s contact information, if available, and
o Final resolution of the complaint;

e Records documenting the steps and/or remedial action(s) undertaken by the
Enrollee, using all available information, to comply with this General Order, and
previous General Order 2006-0003-DWQ as applicable;

e Records documenting how estimate(s) of volume(s) and, if applicable, volume(s) of
spill recovered were calculated;

e All California Office of Emergency Services notification records, as applicable; and

¢ Records, in accordance with the Monitoring Requirements in this Attachment.

4.4. Recordkeeping of Category 4 Spills and Non-Category 1 Lateral Spills

An Enrollee must maintain the following records for each individual Category 4 spill and
for each individual non-Category 1 Enrollee-owned and/or operated lateral spill, and
report in accordance to section 3.6 (Annual Certified Spill Reporting of Category 4
and/or Lateral Spills) of this Attachment.

Recordkeeping of Individual Category 4 Spill Information:

1. Contact information: Name and telephone number of Enrollee contact person to
respond to spill-specific questions;

2. Spill location name;
3. Description and GPS coordinates for the system location where the spill originated;
4. Did the spill reach a drainage conveyance system? If Yes:

o Description of drainage conveyance system location,

o Estimated spill volume fully recovered within the drainage conveyance system,
and

o Estimated spill volume remaining within the drainage conveyance system;
Estimated total spill volume exiting the sanitary sewer system;

Spill date and start time;

Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.);

System failure location (for example, main, pump station, etc.);

© ® N o O

Description of spill response activities including description of immediate spill
containment and cleanup efforts;

10. Description of how the volume estimation was calculated, including, at minimum:

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-21

Agenda Packet Page 284



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

o The methodology and type of data relied upon, including supervisory control and
data acquisition (SCADA) records, flow monitoring or other telemetry information
used to estimate the volume of the spill discharged, and the volume of the spill
recovered (if any volume of the spill was recovered), and

o0 The methodology and type of data relied upon to estimate the spill start time, on-
going spill rate at time of arrival (if applicable), and the spill end time;

11. Description of implemented system modifications and operating/maintenance
modifications.

Recordkeeping of Individual Lateral Spill Information:

Date and time the Enrollee was notified of, or self-discovered, the spill;
Location of individual spill;

Estimated individual spill volume;

Spill cause(s) (for example, root intrusion, grease deposition, etc.); and

o > bdh -

Description of how the volume estimations were calculated.
Total Annual Spill Information:

1. Estimated total annual spill volume;

2. Description of spill corrective actions, including at minimum:

0 Local regulatory enforcement action taken against the sewer lateral owner in
response to a spill, as applicable, and

o System operation, maintenance and program modifications implemented to
prevent repeated spill occurrences at the same spill location.
4.5. Sewer System Telemetry Records

The Enrollee shall maintain the following sewer system telemetry records if used to
document compliance with this General Order, and previous General Order
2006-0003-DWQ as applicable, including spill volume estimates:

e Supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system(s);
e Alarm system(s);

e Flow monitoring device(s) or other instrument(s) used to estimate sewage flow rates,
and/or volumes;

e Computerized maintenance management system records; and

e Asset management-related records.

4.6. Sewer System Management Plan Implementation Records

The Enrollee shall maintain records documenting the Enrollee’s implementation of its
Sewer System Management Plan, including documents supporting its Sewer System
Management Plan audits, corrections, modifications, and updates to the Sewer System
Management Plan.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-22

Agenda Packet Page 285



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ
4.7. Audit Records

The Enrollee shall maintain, at minimum, the following records pertaining to its Sewer
System Management Plan audits, and other internal audits:

e Completed audit documents and findings;

e Name and contact information of staff and/or consultants that conducted or involved
in the audit; and

e Follow-up actions based on audit findings.

4.8. Equipment Records

The Enrollee shall maintain a log of all owned and leased sewer system cleaning,
operational, maintenance, construction, and rehabilitation equipment.

4.9. Work Orders

The Enrollee shall maintain record of work orders for operations and maintenance
projects.

ATTACHMENT E1 — NOTIFICATION, MONITORING, REPORTING
AND RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS December 6, 2022
E1-23

Agenda Packet Page 286



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT E2 - SUMMARY OF NOTIFICATION, MONITORING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS

This Attachment provides a summary of notification, monitoring and reporting requirements, by

spill category, and for Enrollee-owned and/or operated laterals as required in Attachment E1 of
this General Order, for quick reference purposes only.

Table E2-1
Spill Category 1: Spills to Surface Waters
Spil Due Method
Requirement

Within two (2) hours of the Enrollee’s knowledge of California Office
a Category 1 spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, of Emergency

o discharging or threatening to discharge to surface Services at:

Notification | \yaters: (800) 852-7550

Notify the California Office of Emergency Services (Section 1 of
and obtain a notification control number. Attachment E1)

e Conduct spill-specific monitoring;

Monitoring | ® Conduct water quality sampling of the receiving (Section 2 of
water within 18 hours of initial knowledge of spill of Attachment E1)
50,000 gallons or greater to surface waters.

e Submit Draft Spill Report within three (3)
business days of the Enrollee’s knowledge of the
spill;

e Submit Certified Spill Report within 15 calendar

days of the spill end date; :
Reporti _ . (Section 3.1 of
eporting e Submit Technical Report within 45 calendar days Attachment E1)

after the spill end date for a Category 1 spill in
which 50,000 gallons or greater discharged to
surface waters; and

e Submit Amended Spill Report within 90 calendar
days after the spill end date.

ATTACHMENT E2 — SUMMARY TABLES FOR NOTIFICATION, December 6, 2022
MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
E2-1

Agenda Packet Page 287



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Table E2-2

Spill Category 2: Spills of 1,000 Gallons or Greater That Do Not Discharge to Surface

Waters

Spill
Requirements

Due

Method

Within two (2) hours of the Enrollee’s knowledge of

California Office of

days of the spill end date; and

e Submit Amended Spill Report within 90 calendar
days after the spill end date.

a Category 2 spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, E_mergency
- discharging or threatening to discharge to waters of Services at: (800)
Notification | the State: 852-7550
Notify California Office of Emergency Services and (Section 1 of
obtain a notification control number. Attachment E1)
o - . . (Section 2 of
Monitoring Conduct spill-specific monitoring. Attachment E1)
e Submit Draft Spill Report within three (3)
business days of the Enrollee’s knowledge of the
spill;
Reporting e Submit Certified Spill Report within 15 calendar (Section 3.2 of

Attachment E1)

ATTACHMENT E2 — SUMMARY TABLES FOR NOTIFICATION,

MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
E2-2

December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 288




STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Table E2-3

Spill Category 3: Spills of Equal or Greater than 50 Gallons and Less than 1,000 Gallons

That Does Not Discharge to Surface Waters

Spill
Requirements

Due

Method

e Submit Amended Spill Reports within 90 calendar
days after the Certified Spill Report due date.

Notification Not Applicable Not Applicable
. - . . (Section 2 of
Monitoring Conduct spill-specific monitoring. Attachment E1)
Submit monthly Certified Spill Report to the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database within
. 30 calendars days after the end of the month in (Section 3.3 and 3.5 of
Reporting which the spills occur; and

Attachment E1)

Table E2-4

Spill Category 4: Spills Less Than 50 Gallons That Do Not Discharge to Surface Waters

Spill
Requirements

Due

Method

Notification Not Applicable Not Applicable
Monitoring Conduct spill-specific monitoring. (Section 2 oé%ttachment
If, during any calendar month, Category 4 spills
occur, certify monthly, the estimated total spill
volume exiting the sanitary sewer system, and the
total number of all Category 4 spills into the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database, within )
. 30 days after the end of the calendar month in (Section 3.4, 3.6, 3.7
Reporting which the spills occurred. and 4.4 of Attachment

Upload and certify a report, in an acceptable digital
format, of all Category 4 spills to the online CIWQS
Sanitary Sewer System Database, by February 15t
after the end of the calendar year in which the
spills occur.

E1)

ATTACHMENT E2 — SUMMARY TABLES FOR NOTIFICATION,

MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
E2-3

December 6, 2022

Agenda Packet Page 289



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Table E2-5
Enrollee Owned and/or Operated Lateral Spills That Do Not Discharge to Surface Waters
Spill Due Method
Requirements
Within two (2) hours of the Enrollee’s knowledge of a California Office of
spill of 1,000 gallons or greater, from an enrollee- Emergency Services
owned and/or operated lateral, discharging or at: (800) 852-7550

Notification | threatening to discharge to waters of the State:

Notify California Office of Emergency Services and

obtain a notification control number. (Section 1 Oé f;ttachment
Not applicable to a spill of less than 1,000 gallons.

Monitoring Conduct visual monitoring. (Section 2 of Attachment

E1)
e Upload and certify a report, in an acceptable digital
format, of all lateral spills (that do not discharge to
a surface water) to the online CIWQS Sanitary .
R i Sewer System Database, by February 15t after the (Sections 3.6, 3.7 and
eporting 4.4 of Attach E1
end of the calendar year in which the spills occur. 4 of Attachment E1)

e Report a lateral spill of any volume that discharges
to a surface water as a Category 1 spill.

ATTACHMENT E2 — SUMMARY TABLES FOR NOTIFICATION, December 6, 2022
MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
E2-4

Agenda Packet Page 290



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT F - REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD CONTACT
INFORMATION

This Attachment provides a map, list of counties, and contact information to assist the Enrollee
in identifying the corresponding Regional Water Quality Control Board office, for all Regional
Water Board notification requirements in this General Order.

Region 1 -- North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board:
Del Norte, Glenn, Humboldt, Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Modoc, Siskiyou, Sonoma, and Trinity
counties.

RB1SpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (707) 576-2220

Region 2 -- San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board:
Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, Santa Clara (Northern most part of Morgan Hill), San
Mateo, Marin, Sonoma, Napa, Solano counties.

RB2SpillReports@waterboards.ca.gov or (510) 622-2369

Region 3 -- Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board:

Santa Clara (most of Morgan Hill), San Mateo (Southern portion), Santa Cruz, San Benito,
Monterey, Kern (small portions), San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Ventura (Northern portion)
counties.

CentralCoast@waterboards.ca.gov or (805) 549-3147

Region 4 -- Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board:

Los Angeles, Ventura counties (small portions of Kern and Santa Barbara counties).
rb4-ssswdr@waterboards.ca.gov or (213) 576-6600

ATTACHMENT F — REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL December 6, 2022
BOARD CONTACT INFORMATION
F-1

Agenda Packet Page 291


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterboards_map.shtml#rwqcbs

STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ

Region 5 -- Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board:

Rancho Cordova (Sacramento) Office: Colusa, Lake, Sutter, Yuba, Sierra, Nevada, Placer,
Yolo, Napa, (North East), Solano (West), Sacramento, El Dorado, Amador, Calaveras, San
Joaquin, Contra Costa (East), Stanislaus, Tuolumne counties.

RB5sSpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (916) 464-3291
Fresno Office: Fresno, Kern, Kings, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, and Tulare counties, and
small portions of San Benito and San Luis Obispo counties.
RB5fSpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (559) 445-5116

Redding Office: Butte, Glen, Lassen, Modoc, Plumas, Shasta, Siskiyou, and Tehama
counties.

RBS5rSpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (530) 224-4845
Region 6 -- Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board:

Lake Tahoe Office: Alpine, Modoc (East), Lassen (East side and Eagle Lake), Sierra,
Nevada, Placer, El Dorado counties.

RB6sSpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (530) 542-5400

Victorville Office: Mono, Inyo, Kern (East), San Bernardino, Los Angeles (North East corner)
counties.

RB6vSpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (760) 241-6583

Region 7 -- Colorado River Basin Regional Water Quality Control Board:
Imperial county and portions of San Bernardino, Riverside, San Diego counties.
RB7SpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (760) 346-7491

Region 8 -- Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board:

Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino counties.
RB8SpillReporting@waterboards.ca.gov or (951) 782-4130

Region 9 -- San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board:

San Diego county and portions of Orange and Riverside counties.
RB9Spill_Report@waterboards.ca.gov or (619) 516-1990

End of Order 2022-0103-DWQ

ATTACHMENT F — REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL December 6, 2022
BOARD CONTACT INFORMATION
F-2

Agenda Packet Page 292



AGENDA ITEM #3

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa



AGENDA ITEM: 3
MEETING DATE: August 4, 2025
l. NATURE OF ITEM
Update on Energy Storage Project
1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The District adopted a Biosolids and Energy Strategic Plan (BESP) in 2019 to provide a
roadmap and strategy for the District to increase energy resiliency. This was done by
reassessing the District’s biosolids management practices in combination with numerous
energy production approaches (energy generation, utilization, storage, and renewable
energy sources). The BESP is now being implemented: the first phase of the plan is
under construction, and the second phase of the plan is being designed.

The generation of solar energy on District property was originally considered during the
development of the BESP, but it was not included in the final list of recommended
projects due to the projected costs and available funding sources at that time. Since
then, advancements in solar and battery technology along with new funding sources and
incentives have made the project economics more favorable. The funding sources
include a Community Project Grant which was secured by Congressman Salud Carbajal,
a Self-Generation Incentive Program grant administered by Southern California Edison,
and an Investment Tax Credit (ITC) under the Inflation Reduction Act.

On December 4, 2024, the Board received a presentation on the cost/benefit analysis of
implementing microgrid technologies on site, including available financial mechanisms for
renewable energy projects. The investment and simple payback period were favorable to
the Board, so staff negotiated a scope and fee with Hazen and Sawyer for preliminary
design of a microgrid energy storage project. On May 5, 2025, the Board directed staff to
execute a professional services agreement with Hazen and Sawyer for an amount not to
exceed $165,585 for the preliminary design of the Energy Storage Project.

The District has also hired Terra Verde Energy to provide a feasibility study on the
proposed design and to support the District’s various funding applications. The results of
the feasibility study indicated that up-sizing the solar array to 800 kW and the battery to
1,600 kWh would result in a total construction cost of $4,719,000, a simple payback
period of 9 years, and overall net savings of $5,657,000. The teams from Terra Verde
and Hazen and Sawyer are working closely together to provide a preliminary design of
the best overall project for the District without overlap of scope between the consultants.

Since the last update to the Board, new requirements affecting the ITC were introduced
via H.R.1, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act. The new statute puts enhanced restrictions on
commercial solar electric components purchased from China, Iran, North Korea, and
Russia, starting January 1, 2026. The majority of commercial solar panels and battery
storage systems come from China or Chinese companies; therefore, additional diligence
will be required for the Energy Storage Project to remain qualified for the Investment Tax
Credit.

Agenda Packet Page 294



Due to the need for the project timing and delivery method to meet the new requirements
of the ITC, the Community Project Grant, and SGIP funding, staff believes that it is in the
District’s best interest to have an experienced consultant help the District navigate the
next phase of project delivery. Staff has been pleased with Terra Verde's performance to
date, and Terra Verde has substantial experience acting as an owner’s representative,
securing grant funding, and leveraging alternative project delivery methods including
Progressive Design-Build and Government Code 4217 (GC 4217). GC 4217, exclusively
applicable to renewable energy projects, gives public agencies more flexibility and a
faster delivery timeline than the traditional design-bid-build approach. Under GC 4217,
the District would be able to issue a Request for Proposals for final design and delivery of
the project. The District would then choose a contractor from the list of respondents
based on the overall value to the District, even if the selected contractor is not the lowest
construction bidder.

The District has begun negotiating scope with Terra Verde for a new contract which
would have Terra Verde act as the owner’s representative on behalf of the District during
the Request for Proposal process. Staff will bring a proposal from Terra Verde to the
Board for consideration at a subsequent Board Meeting.

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This item is for information purposes only and no Board action is required.

REFERENCE MATERIALS

Proforma Analysis of Energy Storage Project

Agenda Packet Page 295



a0 1,62

without IRA, DR, and without IRA, with DR with IRA, without DR
RECs and RECs and RECs

$10,230,278 $10,230,278 $10,230,278
($2,959,000) ($2,959,000) ($2,959,000)
($1,760,000) ($1,760,000) ($1,760,000)
($2,659,508) ($2,659,508) ($2,659,508)

TerraVerde Optimized System Size: Cash Purchase

with IRA, DR, RECs

30-year Electric Bill Savings' $10,230,278
($2,959,000)
($1,760,000)

($2,659,508)

Solar System Cost
Battery System Cost
O&M Costs?

Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) - $276,744 - $276,744
$773,870 $773,870 $773,870 $773,870
$208,050 $208,050 $208,050 $208,050
: : $887,700 $887,700
: : $528,000 $528,000

SGIP ($0.25/Wh) $408,000 $408,000 $408,000 $408,000

30-year Net Savings?®

T A conservative 3% annual utility escalator is assumed. Includes an additional ~$383k in 30-year savings for a rate switch from TOU-GS-3-D to TOU-GS-3-E.

2Includes estimated costs for asset management services, preventative maintenance, corrective maintenance, annual panel washin g, and battery and inverter replacements in year 16.

8 Value of resilience not included for conservatism.

$4,241,690 $5,042,728 $5,657,390 $6,458,428

Agenda Packet Page 296



NPV $105,588 5%
Cash Purchase without IRA, Demand Response, and RECs Simple Payback (Years) 15 90%
) O&M/ . . : : :
Vears Project EqLipment Electﬂc Bill Demand Rengyvable Energy EPA Community AQMD Fee - Annual SGIP IRA Electwe Pay IRA .Elect|ve Pay Total Cash Flow Cumulative Cash
Costs Replacement Savings Response  Certificates (RECs) Grant Solar Credit Option-Solar  Option - Battery Flow
Upfront -$4,719,000 - - - - - - - - - -$4,719,000 -$4,719,000
1 - -$25,878 $249,150 - - $773,870 $6,935 $204,000 - - $1,208,077 -$3,510,923
2 - -$26,783 $252,942 - - - $6,935 $51,000 - - $284,094 -$3,226,829
8 = -$27,721 $256,738 = = = $6,935 $51,000 = - $286,952 -$2,939,877
4 - -$28,691 $260,533 - - - $6,935 $51,000 - - $289,777 -$2,650,100
5 = -$29,695 $264,325 = = = $6,935 $51,000 = - $292,565 -$2,357,535
6 - -$30,734 $268,110 - - - $6,935 - - - $244,311 -$2,113,224
7 = -$31,810 $271,885 = = = $6,935 = = = $247,010 -$1,866,214
8 - -$32,923 $275,644 - - - $6,935 - - - $249,656 -$1,616,558
9 = -$34,076 $279,384 = = = $6,935 = = = $252,243 -$1,364,315
10 - -$35,268 $283,101 - - - $6,935 - - - $254,768 -$1,109,547
11 = -$36,503 $286,789 = = = $6,935 = = = $257,221 -$852,326
12 - -$37,780 $290,444 - - - $6,935 - - - $259,599 -$592,727
13 = -$39,103 $294,060 - = = $6,935 - - - $261,892 -$330,835
14 - -$40,471 $297,632 - - - $6,935 - - - $264,096 -$66,739
15 - -$41,888 $301,153 - - - $6,935 - - - $266,200 $199,461
16 - -$1,366,995 $369,943 - - - $6,935 - - - -$990,117 -$790,656
17 - -$44,871 $375,304 - - - $6,935 - - - $337,368 -$453,288
18 - -$46,442 $380,654 - - - $6,935 - - - $341,147 -$112,141
19 = -$48,067 $385,987 = = = $6,935 = = = $344,855 $232,714
20 - -$49,750 $391,298 - - - $6,935 - - - $348,483 $581,197
21 = -$51,491 $396,580 = = = $6,935 = = = $352,024 $933,221
22 - -$53,293 $401,826 - - - $6,935 - - - $355,468 $1,288,689
23 = -$55,158 $407,030 = = = $6,935 = = = $358,807 $1,647,496
24 - -$57,089 $412,185 - - - $6,935 - - - $362,031 $2,009,527
25 = -$59,087 $417,283 - = = $6,935 - = = $365,131 $2,374,658
26 - -$61,155 $422,316 - - - $6,935 - - - $368,096 $2,742,754
27 = -$63,295 $427,275 - - - $6,935 - - - $370,915 $3,113,669
28 - -$65,511 $432,152 - - - $6,935 - - - $373,576 $3,487,245
29 = -$67,803 $4 36,936 = = = $6,935 = = = $376,068 $3,863,313
30 - -$70,177 $441,619 - - - $6,935 - - - _ $328,.37Z $4,241,690

~
Totals: -$4,719,000 -$2,659,508  $10,230,278 - - $773,870 $208,050 $408,000 - - (_$4,24169% ) Adenda Packet Page 297
~

— e = -



NPV $485,641 6%
Cash Purchase without IRA, with Demand Response and RECs Simple Payback (Years) 14 107%
) O&M/ . . : : :
Vears Project EqLipment Electﬂc Bill Demand Rengyvable Energy EPA Community AQMD Fee - Annual SGIP IRA Electwe Pay IRA .Elect|ve Pay Total Cash Flow Cumulative Cash
Costs Replacement Savings Response  Certificates (RECs) Grant Solar Credit Option-Solar  Option - Battery Flow

Upfront -$4,719,000 - - - - - - - - - -$4,719,000 -$4,719,000

1 = -$25,878 $249,150 $23,418 $9,946 $773,870 $6,935 $204,000 - - $1,241,441 -$3,477,559

2 - -$26,783 $252,942 $13,978 $9,896 - $6,935 $51,000 - - $307,968 -$3,169,591

8 = -$27,721 $256,738 $13,953 $9,846 = $6,935 $51,000 = - $310,751 -$2,858,840

4 - -$28,691 $260,533 $13,912 $9,797 - $6,935 $51,000 - - $313,486 -$2,545,354

5 = -$29,695 $264,325 $13,857 $9,747 = $6,935 $51,000 = - $316,169 -$2,229,185

6 - -$30,734 $268,110 $13,787 $9,697 - $6,935 - - - $267,795 -$1,961,390

7 = -$31,810 $271,885 $13,699 $9,647 = $6,935 = = - $270,356 -$1,691,034

8 - -$32,923 $275,644 $13,594 $9,598 - $6,935 - - - $272,848 -$1,418,186

9 = -$34,076 $279,384 $13,470 $9,548 = $6,935 = = - $275,261 -$1,142,925
10 - -$35,268 $283,101 $13,326 $9,498 - $6,935 - - - $277,592 -$865,333
11 - -$36,503 $286,789 $13,162 $9,449 - $6,935 - - - $279,832 -$585,501
12 - -$37,780 $290,444 $12,976 $9,399 - $6,935 — - - $281,974 -$303,527
13 = -$39,103 $294,060 $12,767 $9,349 - $6,935 - - - $284,008 -$19,519
14 - -$40,471 $297,632 $12,533 $9,299 - $6,935 - - - $285,928 $266,409
15 = -$41,888 $301,153 $12,274 $9,250 - $6,935 - - - $287,724 $554,133
16 - -$1,366,995 $369,943 $21,798 $9,200 - $6,935 - - - -$959,119 -$404,986
17 - -$44,871 $375,304 $21,778 $9,150 - $6,935 - - - $368,296 -$36,690
18 - -$46,442 $380,654 $21,738 $9,100 - $6,935 - - - $371,985 $335,295
19 = -$48,067 $385,987 $21,675 $9,051 = $6,935 = = - $375,581 $710,876

20 - -$49,750 $391,298 $21,589 $9,001 - $6,935 - - - $379,073 $1,089,949

21 = -$51,491 $396,580 $21,479 $8,951 = $6,935 = = - $382,454 $1,472,403

22 - -$53,293 $401,826 $21,343 $8,902 - $6,935 - - - $385,713 $1,858,116

23 = -$55,158 $407,030 $21,179 $8,852 = $6,935 = = = $388,838 $2,246,954

24 - -$57,089 $412,185 $20,986 $8,802 - $6,935 - - - $391,819 $2,638,773

25 = -$59,087 $417,283 $20,762 $8,752 = $6,935 - = = $394,645 $3,033,418

26 - -$61,155 $422,316 $20,506 $8,703 - $6,935 - - - $397,305 $3,430,723

27 = -$63,295 $427,275 $20,216 $8,653 - $6,935 - - - $399,784 $3,830,507

28 - -$65,511 $432,152 $19,890 $8,603 - $6,935 - - - $402,069 $4,232,576

29 = -$67,803 $4 36,936 $19,526 $8,554 = $6,935 = = - $404,148 $4,636,724

30 - -$70,177 $441,619 $19,123 $8,504 - $6,935 - - - _ $4.06.00i - $5,042,728

Totals: -$4,719,000 -$2,659,508 $10,230,278  $524,294 $276,744 $773,870 $208,050 $408,000 - - ( - 1;-&3,245738’ ) Agenda Packet Page 298



NPV $1,389,670 9%
Cash Purchase with IRA, without Demand Response and RECs Simple Payback (Years) 9 120%
) O&M/ . . : : :
Vears Project EqLipment Electﬂc Bill Demand Rengyvable Energy EPA Community AQMD Fee - Armual SGIP IRA Electwe Pay IRA .Elect|ve Pay Total Cash Flow Cumulative Cash
Costs Replacement Savings Response  Certificates (RECs) Grant Solar Credit Option-Solar  Option - Battery Flow
Upfront -$4,719,000 - - - - - - - - - -$4,719,000 -$4,719,000
1 - -$25,878 $249,150 - - $773,870 $6,935 $204,000 $887,700 $528,000 $2,623,777 -$2,095,223
2 - -$26,783 $252,942 - - - $6,935 $51,000 - - $284,094 -$1,811,129
8 = -$27,721 $256,738 = = = $6,935 $51,000 = - $286,952 -$1,524,177
4 - -$28,691 $260,533 - - - $6,935 $51,000 - - $289,777 -$1,234,400
5 = -$29,695 $264,325 = = = $6,935 $51,000 = - $292,565 -$941,835
6 - -$30,734 $268,110 - - - $6,935 - - - $244,311 -$697,524
7 = -$31,810 $271,885 = = = $6,935 = = = $247,010 -$450,514
8 - -$32,923 $275,644 - - - $6,935 - - - $249,656 -$200,858
9 = -$34,076 $279,384 = = = $6,935 = = = $252,243 $51,385
10 - -$35,268 $283,101 - - - $6,935 - - - $254,768 $306,153
11 = -$36,503 $286,789 = = = $6,935 = = = $257,221 $563,374
12 - -$37,780 $290,444 - - - $6,935 — - - $259,599 $822,973
13 = -$39,103 $294,060 - = = $6,935 - - - $261,892 $1,084,865
14 - -$40,471 $297,632 - - - $6,935 - - - $264,096 $1,348,961
15 - -$41,888 $301,153 - - - $6,935 - - - $266,200 $1,615,161
16 - -$1,366,995 $369,943 - - - $6,935 - - - -$990,117 $625,044
17 - -$44,871 $375,304 - - - $6,935 - - - $337,368 $962,412
18 - -$46,442 $380,654 - - - $6,935 - - - $341,147 $1,303,559
19 = -$48,067 $385,987 = = = $6,935 = = = $344,855 $1,648,414
20 - -$49,750 $391,298 - - - $6,935 - - - $348,483 $1,996,897
21 = -$51,491 $396,580 = = = $6,935 = = = $352,024 $2,348,921
22 - -$53,293 $401,826 - - - $6,935 - - - $355,468 $2,704,389
23 = -$55,158 $407,030 = = = $6,935 = = = $358,807 $3,063,196
24 - -$57,089 $412,185 - - - $6,935 - - - $362,031 $3,425,227
25 = -$59,087 $417,283 - = = $6,935 - = = $365,131 $3,790,358
26 - -$61,155 $422,316 - - - $6,935 - - - $368,096 $4,158,454
27 = -$63,295 $427,275 - - - $6,935 - - - $370,915 $4,529,369
28 - -$65,511 $432,152 - - - $6,935 - - - $373,576 $4,902,945
29 = -$67,803 $4 36,936 = = = $6,935 = = = $376,068 $5,279,013
30 - -$70,177 $441,619 - - - $6,935 - - - _ $328,.37Z $5,657,390

~
Totals: -$4,719,000 -$2,659,508  $10,230,278 - - $773,870 $208,050 $408,000  $887,700 $528,000  (_ $5,657,3%0 ) Agenda Packet Page 299
~

— e = -



NPV $1,769,723 10%
Cash Purchase with IRA, Demand Response, and RECs Simple Payback (Years) 9 137%
) O&M/ . . : : :
Vears Project EqLipment Electﬂc Bill Demand Rengyvable Energy EPA Community AQMD Fee - Annual SGIP IRA Electwe Pay IRA .Elect|ve Pay Total Cash Flow Cumulative Cash
Costs Replacement Savings Response  Certificates (RECs) Grant Solar Credit Option-Solar  Option - Battery Flow
Upfront -$4,719,000 - - - - - - - - - -$4,719,000 -$4,719,000
1 = -$25,878 $249,150 $23,418 $9,946 $773,870 $6,935 $204,000 $887,700 $528,000 $2,657,141 -$2,061,859
2 - -$26,783 $252,942 $13,978 $9,896 - $6,935 $51,000 - - $307,968 -$1,753,891
8 = -$27,721 $256,738 $13,953 $9,846 = $6,935 $51,000 = - $310,751 -$1,443,140
4 - -$28,691 $260,533 $13,912 $9,797 - $6,935 $51,000 - - $313,486 -$1,129,654
5 = -$29,695 $264,325 $13,857 $9,747 = $6,935 $51,000 = - $316,169 -$813,485
6 - -$30,734 $268,110 $13,787 $9,697 - $6,935 - - - $267,795 -$545,690
7 = -$31,810 $271,885 $13,699 $9,647 = $6,935 = = - $270,356 -$275,334
8 - -$32,923 $275,644 $13,594 $9,598 - $6,935 - - - $272,848 -$2,486
9 = -$34,076 $279,384 $13,470 $9,548 = $6,935 = = - $275,261 $272,775
10 - -$35,268 $283,101 $13,326 $9,498 - $6,935 - - - $277,592 $550,367
11 = -$36,503 $286,789 $13,162 $9,449 = $6,935 = = = $279,832 $830,199
12 - -$37,780 $290,444 $12,976 $9,399 - $6,935 — - - $281,974 $1,112,173
13 = -$39,103 $294,060 $12,767 $9,349 - $6,935 - - - $284,008 $1,396,181
14 - -$40,471 $297,632 $12,533 $9,299 - $6,935 - - - $285,928 $1,682,109
15 - -$41,888 $301,153 $12,274 $9,250 - $6,935 - - - $287,724 $1,969,833
16 - -$1,366,995 $369,943 $21,798 $9,200 - $6,935 - - - -$959,119 $1,010,714
17 - -$44,871 $375,304 $21,778 $9,150 - $6,935 - - - $368,296 $1,379,010
18 - -$46,442 $380,654 $21,738 $9,100 - $6,935 - - - $371,985 $1,750,995
19 = -$48,067 $385,987 $21,675 $9,051 = $6,935 = = - $375,581 $2,126,576
20 - -$49,750 $391,298 $21,589 $9,001 - $6,935 - - - $379,073 $2,505,649
21 = -$51,491 $396,580 $21,479 $8,951 = $6,935 = = - $382,454 $2,888,103
22 - -$53,293 $401,826 $21,343 $8,902 - $6,935 - - - $385,713 $3,273,816
23 = -$55,158 $407,030 $21,179 $8,852 = $6,935 = = = $388,838 $3,662,654
24 - -$57,089 $412,185 $20,986 $8,802 - $6,935 - - - $391,819 $4,054,473
25 = -$59,087 $417,283 $20,762 $8,752 = $6,935 - = = $394,645 $4,449,118
26 - -$61,155 $422,316 $20,506 $8,703 - $6,935 - - - $397,305 $4,846,423
27 = -$63,295 $427,275 $20,216 $8,653 - $6,935 - - - $399,784 $5,246,207
28 - -$65,511 $432,152 $19,890 $8,603 - $6,935 - - - $402,069 $5,648,276
29 = -$67,803 $4 36,936 $19,526 $8,554 = $6,935 = = - $404,148 $6,052,424
30 - -$70,177 $441,619 $19,123 $8,504 - $6,935 - - - _ ﬁdﬂﬁ.QOi - $6,458,428
Totals: -$4,719,000 -$2,659,508 $10,230,278  $524,294 $276,744 $773,870 $208,050 $408,000 $887,700 $528,000 ( - 53-6,155438’ ) Agenda Packet Page 300



GENERAL MANAGER'’S
REPORT

eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee



GOLETA SANITARY DISTRICT
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

The following summary report describes the District’s activities from July 22, 2025, through
August 4, 2025. It provides updated information on significant activities under three major
categories: Collection System, Treatment/Reclamation and Disposal Facilities, and General
and Administration Items.

1. COLLECTION SYSTEM REPORT

LINES CLEANING

Staff continues to conduct routine lines cleaning in multiple locations throughout the
District as staff works to close out open cleaning sections/work orders. Staff has also
been conducting priority lines cleaning throughout the District.

CCTV INSPECTION

Staff has been conducting routine Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspections in the
area of Hollister Avenue and Ward Drive. Staff has also been conducting priority CCTV
inspections throughout the District.

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

Cal Portland Construction (Cal Portland) continues work on the County of Santa Barbara’s
Fiscal Year 24-25 Pavement Rehabilitation Project. Cal Portland is adjusting
approximately 30 of the District’s manhole and cleanout frames and covers as part of this
paving project. Staff is coordinating the work with the County of Santa Barbara and Cal
Portland staff. Cal Portland staff continues to adjust frames and covers to grade following
paving work. Staff is providing replacement frames and covers as needed.

Granite Construction has begun work on the City of Goleta’s 2025 Arterial Pavement
Project. The current preliminary count of manholes and cleanouts to be adjusted is
approximately 32. Granite Construction will be adjusting the District’'s frames and covers
as part of this paving project. Staff is coordinating the work with the City of Goleta and
Granite Construction staff. Staff will be providing replacement frames and covers as
needed.

FIRESTONE LIFT STATION
Staff removed accumulated grease and debris in the Firestone Lift Station wet well by
using the Vactor combination sewer cleaning truck to vacuum and wash it down.

CUESTA VERDE ODOR ISSUE

Staff continues to collect gas monitor readings on Cuesta Verde in response to an
ongoing odor issue associated with the force main lateral from the Santa Barbara Wildlife
Care Network (SBWCN) effluent pumpstation.

Staff continues to assess the Consibio combined water level and hydrogen sulfide remote
monitoring device that is installed in a manhole on Cuesta Verde. Concurrent readings
with the District’s portable confined space gas monitors indicate the Consibio hydrogen
sulfide monitor is now reading accurately. Staff continues to assess the features of the

Agenda Packet Page 302



General Manager’s Report
August 4, 2025 Page 2

device to determine if it should be recommended for purchase by the District. The
monitor was installed as part of a no-cost trial provided by Consibio and their vendor,
West Coast Equipment and Safety Supply.

LINES CLEANING TRUCK

The Vactor RamJet is back in use following warranty repairs to replace a defective Body
Control Module and repaired a bad ground wire terminal connection. No further issues
have been observed by staff.

. TREATMENT, RECLAMATION AND DISPOSAL FACILITIES REPORT

Plant flows for the month of July, 2025 averaged 5.05 million gallons a day (MGD). The
Reclamation Plant is online and the average reclaimed water produced for Goleta Water
District is 1.25 MGD.

Construction of the Biosolids and Energy (BESP) Phase 1 project continues. The
excavation around Digester #4 has been backfilled, and the surrounding utility work has
resumed. The replacement 24-inch Primary Effluent pipe to Biofilter #1 is being prepared
for pressure testing, and the digester mixer components are being installed.

Operations staff took the B-Side of the Chlorine Contact Chamber offline for cleaning and
inspection. The gates (Inlet, Outlet, and Drain) need to be repaired. Staff will get a quote
to perform this work during the FY27 budget cycle. The ammonia probes are being
installed at the Aeration Basin. Staff will be taking Aeration Basin # 3 offline for inspection
and repairs this coming week. Staff also received the Jetter Trailer to be used in the Plant
for cleaning and clearing lines.

. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

Financial Report
The District account balances as of August 4, 2025, shown below, are approximations to
the nearest dollar and indicate the overall funds available to the District at this time.

Operating Checking Accounts: $ 772,564
Investment Accounts (including interest earned): $ 43,910,644
Total District Funds: $ 44,683,208

The following transactions are reported herein for the period 07/22/2025 — 08/04/2025

Regular, Overtime, Cash-outs, and Net Payroll: $ 114,125
Claims: $ 83,521
Total Expenditures: $ 197,647
Total Deposits: $ 142,776
Transfers of funds:
LAIF to Community West Bank Operational (CWB): $ -0-
CWB Operational to CWB Money Market: $ -0-
CWB Money Market to CWB Operational: $ 250,000
CWB Operational to CA-Class Investment Account $ -0-

Agenda Packet Page 303



General Manager’s Report
August 4, 2025 Page 3

CA-Class Investment Account to CWB Operational $ -0-

The District’s investments comply with the District’s Investment Policy adopted per
Resolution No. 16-606. The District has adequate funds to meet the next six months of
normal operating expenses.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
LAIF Monthly Statement — Previously reported.
LAIF Quarterly Report — Previously reported.

PMIA/LAIF Performance — Previously reported.
PMIA Effective Yield — Previously reported.

Community West Bank (CWB)
CWB Money Market and ICS Accounts — Previously reported.

CA-Class Investment Account
CA-Class Investment Account — Previously reported.

Deferred Compensation Accounts
CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation Plan — Previously reported.
Lincoln 457 Deferred Compensation Plan — Previously reported.

Personnel
A verbal personnel update will be provided at the meeting.

Agenda Packet Page 304



DISTRICT

CORRESPONDENCE
Board Meeting of August 4, 2025

Date: Correspondence Sent To:

1. 07/22/2025 Ginger C. Andersen
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP
Subject: Sewer Service Availability
Proposed Sewer Service Connection for a proposed project of
192 apartments and 128 townhomes

APN 071-140-071 at 5381 Ekwill St.
Owner: 5381 Ekwill, LLC

Hard Copies of the Correspondence are available at the District’s Office for review

G:\BOARD\AGENDA 2025\Correspondence 2025\Correspondence Cover and Packet\2025-08-04 Correspondence Cover.doc

Agenda Packet Page 305



	Agenda 
	Minutes
	Agenda Item #1
	Agenda Item #2
	Res No. 25-725
	SSMP 082425
	Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ

	Agenda Item #3
	GMR 
	Correspondence 



